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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

(Mark One)
M Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of th Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.
O Transition Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) bthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the
transition period from to .
Commission File Number: 001-31950
MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cegrt
Delaware 16-1690064
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
2828 N. Harwood St., 15th Floor 75201
Dallas, Texas (Zip Code)
(Address of principal executive offices)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
(214) 999-7552
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) d¢fie Act:
Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common stock, $0.01 par value The NASDAQ Stdekket LLC
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%cdb#cturities Act.  Yed No ™
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Exchange Act. YeEkl
No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @l filed all reports required to be filed by SectiB or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirefilécsuch reports), and (2) has been sul
to such filing requirements for the past 90 day¥es M No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdwnitted electronically and posted on its corpoifeb site, if any, every Interactive D
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRiuie 405 of Regulation $-during the preceding 12 months (or for such sgrgreriod the
the registrant was required to submit and post §iled). Yes M No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéitérs pursuant to Iltem 405 of RegulatiorkSis not contained herein, and will not
contained, to the best of registran&nowledge, in definitive proxy or information t&ments incorporated by reference in Part lll aé
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-axxcelerated filer, or a smaller repor!
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdiled,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportincpmpany” in Rule 12t2 of the Exchanc

Act. (Check one):
Large accelerated filel Accelerated filerd Non-accelerated fil&d Smaller reporting companiZl
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgfe Act).
Yes O No ™M
The aggregate market value of voting and nonvotimgnmon stock held by ncaffiliates of the registrant, computed by referetmehe las
sales price as reported on the NASDAQ Stock Mark& as of June 30, 2014, the last business daheofagistrants most recently complet
second fiscal quarter, was $584.2 million .
53,188,905 shares of common stock were outstaradirgg March 2, 2015 .

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Certain information required by Part IIl of thigpaat is incorporated by reference from the regigtsaproxy statement for the 2015 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART |

Item 1. BUSINESS

Overview

MoneyGram International, Inc. (together with oubsidiaries, “MoneyGram,” the “Company,” “we,” “usind “our”)is a leading global mon
transfer and payment services company. We provicvemient, affordable and reliable money transfed payment services. Our prim
customers are persons who may not be fully seryedtlioer financial institutions, which we refer te anbanked or underbanked consun
Unbanked consumers do not have a relationship withaditional financial institution. Underbankednsamers are not fully served
traditional financial institutions. The World Bard key source of industry analysis for crasseder remittance data, estimates that roughly
of the world's adult population, or 2.5 billiggeople, are unbanked. As an alternative finan@alises provider, we provide these consul
with essential services to help them meet the Gismemands of their daily lives. Many of our arsers utilize traditional banking servii
but prefer to use our services based on convenienséor to make urgent payments or transfers.

Our offerings include money transfers, bill paymsetvices, money order services and official chedcessing. Our money transfer serv
are our primary revenue driver. Money transfersracwements of funds between consumers from theénatign or "send" location and 1
designated "receive" location. MoneyGram earnsmegdrom the fees paid by the consumers sendinfutids and from the managemen
currency exchange spreads on money transfer tramssénvolving different “send” and “receiv&urrencies. We share a significant portio
that fee with both the sending and receiving ageims also earn bill payment services revenues pilynftom transaction fees charged
consumers for each transaction completed. Addilipnae earn revenue from the sale of our moneyepi@hd official check products &
generate revenue from the investment of funds Uyidgroutstanding official checks and money orders.

Our money transfer services enable our consumessrtd and receive funds around the world througleriensive global network of locatic
primarily operated by third-party businesses ("agf§nand Company-operated retail locations. Opggain more than 20@ountries an
territories, we have nearly doubled our networksi@009 to approximately 350,000 locations. Histily, we operated ongrimary custome
care center in the U.S., with regional support eenproviding ancillary services and additional cahter services in various countries. In
fourth quarter of 2014, we began transitioningghenary customer care center to Warsaw, PolandpWeide call center services 24 hours
day, 365 days per year and provide customer seivigé languages.

The MoneyGran® brand is recognized throughout the world. We us@ua trademarks and service marks in our busineskiding, but nc
limited, to MoneyGram, the Globe design logo, MoBegm Bringing You Closer, ExpressPayment, MoneyGraress, Moneygradc
FormFree, AgentWorks, Agent Connect, Delta, Primkland MGiAlloy, some of which are registered i ti.S. and other countries. T
document also contains trademarks and service nudriather businesses that are the property of tesipective holders and are used ht
solely for identification purposes. We have omittied® and™ designations, as applicable, for the trademarksafezence.

The Company utilizes specific terms related tolmsiness throughout this document, including ttieviong:

Corridor — With regard to a money transfer transaction, thgimating "send" location and the designated "reetlocation are referred to a
corridor.

Corridor mix — The relative impact of increases or decreases imemdransfer transactions in each available corndosus the comparati
prior period.

Face value— The principal amount of each completed transacBaoluding any fees related to the transaction.

Foreign currency— The impact of foreign currency exchange rate flattins is typically calculated as the differencéateen current peric
activity translated using the current period’s eanny exchange rates and the comparable prior-ya&@ds currency exchange rates. We
this method to calculate the impact of change®iri§in currency exchange rates for all countriesr@tthe functional currency is not the (
dollar.
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History and Development

We conduct our business primarily through our wholvned subsidiary, MoneyGram Payment Systems, TMP$I") under the MoneyGra
brand. The Company was incorporated in DelawarBerember 18, 2003 in connection with the June 804 2pineff from our former parei
company, Viad Corporation. Through the Companyesipcessors, we have been in operation for oveedyOur principal executive offic
are located at 2828 N. Harwood Street, Suite 1B@lias, Texas 75201 and our telephone number i4) (299-7552 Our website address
corporate.moneygram.com . The information on oursite is not part of this Annual Report on FormKLO-

In March 2008, we completed a recapitalization pans to which we received an infusion of $1.5 billiof gross equity and debt capi
referred to herein as the 2008 Recapitalizatiore €huity component consisted of the sale to a#fiaof Thomas H. Lee Partners, |
("THL"), and affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Co. @@man Sachs") (collectively with THL, the "Investd) in a private placement of Serie
Participating Convertible Preferred Stock of thenfpany (the "B Stock"), and SerieslBParticipating Convertible Preferred Stock of
Company (the "B-1 Stock") and collectively with tBeStock (the "Series B Stock") for an aggregateipase price of $760.0 millionwWe als:
paid Goldman Sachs an investment banking advigse§ual to $7.5 million in the form of additiosalares of the B-1 Stock.

In May 2011, we completed a second recapitalizatieferred to herein as the 2011 RecapitalizatRursuant to the 2011 Recapitalizat
(i) THL, as the holder of all of the B Stock, contesl all of the shares of B Stock into shares af @ammon stock in accordance with
Certificate of Designations, Preferences and RigiitSeries B Participating Convertible Preferredc8 of MoneyGram International, In
(i) Goldman Sachs, as the holder of all of the Btbck, converted all of the shares oflBStock into shares of Series D Participe
Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (theStck") in accordance with the Certificate of Daesigons, Preferences and Right:
Series B-1 Participating Convertible Preferred bto€ MoneyGram International, Inc., and (iii) THlegeived approximatel.5 million
additional shares of our common stock and $140IBomin cash, and Goldman Sachs received 15,5@®iadal shares of D Stock ar®¥7.t
million in cash.

On November 14, 2011, we filed a certificate of adraent to our Amended and Restated Certificateodrporation to effect a reverse st
split of our common stock at a reverse stock gpliip of 1-for8 and to decrease the number of authorized shdresnomon stock froi
1,300,000,000 to 162,500,000 . As the par valueashmon stock was not affected, $3.5 milliaas transferred from common stock
additional paid-in capital. In connection with tfeverse stock split, the conversion ratio of th&tbck to common stock decreased fri0(
to 1 to 125 to 1 All share and per share amounts have been réirelycadjusted to reflect the stock split with teeception of our treast
stock, which was not a part of the reverse stotik sp

2014 Events

Global Transformation Program— In the first quarter of 2014the Company announced the 2014 Global Transféemdtrogram, whic
consists of three key components: our compliandemrement program, our reorganization and restingtyprogram and growth in self-
service revenue.

Our compliance enhancement program is focused eating industryjleading compliance platforms, processes and syst@ntonsumers ai
completing the programs required under our settiéméth the U.S. Attorney Office for the Middle District of PennsylvaniaMDPA") anc
the Asset Forfeiture and Money Laundering Sectibrthe Criminal Division of the United States Depaent of Justice ("U.S. DO.
(collectively with MDPA, "MDPA/U.S. DOJ"). At thedginning of 2014, the Company announced that ieetgpto make investments total
$80.0 million to $90.0 million related to the corngpice enhancement program through 2016. For the emeded December 31, 2014ve
incurred $49.0 millionof compliance enhancement program expendituresapifymrelated to hardware and software additionsvadl as
independent contractor and consultant expense/édems and process redesign.

Our reorganization and restructuring activities fm®used on facilities and headcount rationalizgteystem efficiencies and headcount righ
shoring and outsourcing. For the year ended DeceBihe2014 , we did not early terminate any leaSe® ouf'Properties"sectionin Item 2
of this Annual Report on Form 10-For additional information related to our leasehieTCompany projects that these activities wil
concluded at the end of the 20fiScal year. The following figures include Compaestimates and are subject to change as the prc
reorganization and restructuring program continteebe implemented. The Company is estimating tarir0.0 millionin expenditure
through 2015 and generate an annual estimatedaprsavings of $20.0 million exiting fiscal year B01For the year endedecember 3:
2014 , the Company recorded total reorganizati@hrastructuring expenses of $30.5 million .

We believe that our investment in innovative praduand services, particularly seirvice solutions such as MoneyGram Online, mc
account deposit and kiodlased services, positions the Company to enharesue growth and diversify our product offeringsr Ehe yee
ended December 31, 2014 , the self-service chawoelunted for eight percent of money transfer fek a@her revenue and 10 percehtotal
money transfer transactions.
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2014 Incremental Agreement and Secondary Public @iiig — On April 2, 2014, the Company, as borrower, enténéala First Increment
Amendment and Joinder Agreement (the "Incrementgae@ment") with Bank of America, N.A. ("BOA"), adrainistrative agent, and varic
lenders. The Incremental Agreement provided fora(@anche under the term loan facility in an aggte principal amount ¢§130.0 millior
(the "Tranche Bt Term Loan Facility") to be made available to @empany under the 2013 Credit Agreement, (b) arease in the seni
secured five-year revolving credit facility (the é®lving Credit Facility") under the 2013 Credit rsg@ment from $125.0 million t§150.(
million and (c) certain other amendments to the AmendedRasdated Credit Agreement, which the Company edterto with BOA an
various other lenders in March 2013 (the "2013 @radreement") including, without limitation, (i)naendments to certain of the conditi
precedent with respect to these incremental bongsyi(ii) an increase in the maximum secured l@geratio with which the Company
required to comply as of the last day of each fiscarter, and (iii) amendments to permit the Comypt borrow up to $300.0 millioonde
the facility for share repurchases exclusively froiL and Goldman Sachs. The Company borrowed $180ldn under the Tranche B-
Term Loan Facility on April 2, 2014, and the progeevere used to fund a portion of the share remseh from THL, discussed bels
reducing the remaining limit for such purchase$1@0.0 million .

On April 2, 2014, the Company completed an undetari secondary public offering by affiliates andioeestors of the Investors of
aggregate of 9,200,000 shares of the Compangmmon stock. As part of the transaction, thdiat#fs of Goldman Sachs converted
aggregate of 37,957 shares of D Stock to 4,744s686es of common stock, which were sold as péttefransaction. The selling stockholc
received all of the proceeds from the offering.cAts April 2, 2014, the Company completed the repase of 8,185,092hares of commit
stock from the THL selling stockholders at a pi¢é16.25 per share.

Business Acquisition— During 2014, the Company acquired the assets okdl&nancial Corporation ("Nexxo"), which includ&sbsk anc
point-of-entry developed technology. Additionally, the Compacquired MTI Money Transfer Ltd ("MTI"), whoseimary assets includi
agent contractual relationships. See Note 4Aequisitionsof the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateémfam additional disclosul
related to the acquisitions.

Competition —On April 17, 2014, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Walmgriinnounced the launch of the Walmart white label eydransfer servic
a program operated by a competitor of MoneyGramt #iows consumers to transfer money between .i& Btore locations. This progr
limits consumer transfers to $900 per transactéa.are unable to determine the overall extent®@ldhgterm negative impact of this progr
to our business. However, the Company's Walmart td.%).S. transactions declined 37 percent forytsar ended December 31, 201®r
October 31, 2014 we introduced lower prices for our money trangbeoduct in the U.S. to U.S. market and, as a tefidve see
improvements including a reduction in the declih&r@ansactions over $50 and an increase in prihgieatransaction.

Our Segments

We manage our business primarily through two répgrsegments: Global Funds Transfer and FinanaakeP Products. The following ta
presents the components of our consolidated revassmciated with our reporting segments for thesyeaded December 31 :

2014 2013 2012

Global Funds Transfer

Money transfer 87.6% 87.2% 85.7%

Bill payment 6.S% 6.2% 7.S%
Financial Paper Products

Money order 3.7% 3.7% 4.3%

Official check 1.8% 2.0% 2.C%
Other —% 0.1% 0.1%
Total revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

See Note 16— Segment Informatioof the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statesméor additional financial information about 1
segments and geographic areas.

During 2014 , 2013 and 2012, our 10 largest agactsunted for 39 percent , 43 percent and 44 percespectively, of our total company
and investment revenue and 41 percent , 44 pesraht46 percent respectively, of the fee and investment revenfueun Global Fund
Transfer segment. Walmart is our only agent thabats for more than 10 percent of our total corgdae and investment revenue. In 2014
2013 and 2012 , Walmart accounted for 22 percitpercent and 28 percemtespectively, of our total company fee and investt revenu
and 23 percent , 28 percent and 30 percent , rideplgc of the fee and investment revenue of owl@l Funds Transfer segment.
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Global Funds Transfer Segment

The Global Funds Transfer segment is our primawemae driver, providing money transfer services hitidpayment services primarily
unbanked and underbanked consumers. We utilizeietwaf proprietary point-okale platforms, including AgentConnect, which iegrate
into an agent’'s point-of-sale system, DeltaWorkd Belta T3, which are separate software and stdmge device platforms, and MoneyGi
Online.

We continue to focus on the growth of our Globahési Transfer segment outside of the U.S. Duringd2013 and 2012sends originate
outside of the U.S. generated 41 percent , 40 peeswl 38 percent , respectively, of our total camyprevenue, and 43 percent , 42 pere@nt
41 percent , respectively, of our total Global Fafidansfer segment revenue. In 20bdir Global Funds Transfer segment had total nesrer
$1,374.6 million .

Money Transfe— We earn our money transfer revenues primarily fromsumer transaction fees and the management @hayr exchang
spreads on money transfer transactions involviffgréint “send” and “receive€urrencies. We have corridor pricing capabilitieattprovide u
flexibility when establishing consumer fees andefgn exchange rates for our money transfer servigleih allow us to remain competitive
all locations. In a cash-teash money transfer transaction, both the agetiting the transaction and the receiving agenh @commissic
that is generally based on a percentage of theliaeged to the consumer. When a money transfesacion is initiated at a MoneyGram-
owned store or full-service kiosk or via our onlplatform, typically only the receiving agent eaensommission.

In certain countries, we have mutiiirency technology that allows consumers to cha@®®irrency when initiating or receiving a mo
transfer. The currency choice typically consistdaafal currency, U.S. dollars and/or euros. Thesggabilities allow consumers to know
amount that will be received in the selected cuayen

The majority of our remittances constitute tranisast in which cash is collected by one of our agerid funds are available for piok-a
another agent location. Typically, the designatecipient may receive the transferred funds withtn minutes at any MoneyGram ag
location. In select countries, the designated rentpmay also receive the transferred funds viapodit to the recipierg’bank account, mob
phone account or prepaid card. Through our onlioeyrct offerings, consumers can remit funds frobaiak account, credit card or debit card.

We offer a variety of services to provide the bemtsumer experience possible at our agent locat\esoffer full-service and transaction-
staging kiosks at select agent locations aroundmbid. Through our FormFree service, consumersdaerted to one of our customer ¢
centers, and a representative collects transaatfommation, entering it directly via phone into rooentral data processing system.
MoneyGramxpressproduct enables consumers to pay for money tra;msiera MoneyGram agent location, and provide thiernmatior
necessary to complete the money transfer when &edent is convenient for them, via phone or argrinet-enabled device.

We offer our money transfer services on the intewige our MoneyGram Online service in the U.S., tddiKingdom, Germany and throt
affiliate websites. Through our MoneyGram Onlineva®, consumers have the ability to send monegnftbe convenience of their home
internetenabled mobile device to any of our agent locatwwogdwide through a debit or credit card or, intaa cases, funding with a U
checking account. MoneyGram Online money transéersiactions grew 34 percent and revenue grew 2@piein 2014 over the prior year.

We offer our money transfer services via virtuakmtg allowing our consumers to send internatiormadsfers conveniently from a website
their mobile phone in over 10 countries. We cordito expand our money transfer services to consuthevugh the addition of fulervice
and transaction-staging kiosks, ATMs, prepaid cara$direct-to-bank account products in variousketararound the world.
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In 2014 , we added nearly 14,000 locations, briggiur global money transfer agent network to apipnaely 350,000locations. Th
following table is a summary of our money transfgent locations by geographic area as of Decentber 3

2014 2013 2014vs 2013 2014 vs 2013
(growth) (%)

Latin America, excluding Mexico 23,00( 22,00( 1,00(¢ 5%
Mexico 17,00( 16,00( 1,00( 6 %
U.S. and Canada 56,00( 55,00( 1,00(¢ 2%
Western Europe 47,00( 49,00( (2,000 (4%
Eastern Europe 65,00( 64,00( 1,00( 2%
Indian subcontinent 66,00( 60,00( 6,00( 10%
Asia Pacific 44,00( 41,00( 3,00(¢ 7%
Africa 26,00( 23,00( 3,00( 13%
Middle East 6,00( 6,00( — — %

Total agent locations 350,00( 336,00( 14,00( 4%

Our agent network includes agents such as intemeatipost offices, formal and alternative finandiatitutions as well as large and sr
retailers. Additionally, we have Compaoperated retail locations in the U.S. and Westamope. Some of our agents outside the U.S. m:
sub-agents. We refer to these agents as supersagititough these sub-agents are under contradt thidse super-agents, the sagen
locations typically have access to similar techggland services as our other agent locations. Mdirgur agents have multiple location:
large number of which operate in locations thataen outside of traditional banking hours, inchgdhights and weekends. Our agents k
the markets they serve and they work with our saled marketing teams to develop business plansh&r markets. This may inclu
contributing financial resources to, or otherwigpporting, our efforts to market MoneyGram's segsic

Bill Payment Service— We earn our bill payment revenues primarily fromsfecharged to consumers for each transaction coéedpl©u
primary bill payment service offering is our ExpPsyment service, which we offer at substantiallyofiour money transfer agent ¢
Company-operated locations in the U.S., Canadaid®Réco, and at certain agent locations in se@aribbean and European countries.

Through our bill payment services, consumers canptete urgent bill payments, pay routine bills|aad and reload prepaid debit cards
cash at an agent location or through MoneyGramrn@ndiith a credit or debit card. We offer consunsenmeday and two or three day paym
service options; the service option is dependeonupur agreement with the biller. We offer overQDB), payment options to billers in k
industries, including the ability to allow the comser to load or reload funds to nearly 488@paid debit card programs. These industries iz
the credit card, mortgage, auto finance, teleconications, corrections, health care, utilities, gxp management, prepaid card
collections industries.

Marketing— We have global marketing and product managementgdacated in multiple geographical regions. We lemm@ strategy ¢
developing products and marketing campaigns thatgéobal, yet can be tailored to address our coersumase and local needs. A
component of our marketing efforts is our globarting. We use a marketing mix to support our braridch includes traditional, digital a
social media, point-of-sale materials, signageuatagent locations, targeted marketing campaigrasanal campaigns and sponsorships.

Sales —Our sales teams are organized by geographic am@dqi and delivery channel. We have dedicated $ethat focus on developing «
agent and biller networks to enhance the reachuofrmney transfer and bill payment products. Owenagequirements vary depending u
the type of outlet, location and compliance andit&tpry requirements. Our sales teams and strapegtoership teams continue to improve
agent relationships and overall network strength w&igoal of providing the optimal agent and consuexperience.

Competition —While the market for our money transfer and bilip&nt services continues to be very competitive,reraain the secol
largest global money transfer service company énvtbrld based on total face value of remittance20ibd. The World Bank estimates tha
2015 crosdorder remittances will exceed $600 billion. We grafly compete for money transfer agents on theshdsvalue, service, qualit
technical and operational differences, price, cossion and marketing efforts. We compete for monagsfer consumers on the basis of t
convenience, availability of outlets, price, teclugy and brand recognition.
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Our competitors include a small number of large eyomansfer and bill payment providers, financigtitutions and banks, and a large nur
of small niche money transfer service providerd Hemve select regions. Our largest competitoherhoney transfer industry is the Wes
Union Company ("Western Union") which also competath our bill payment services and money orderifesses. On April 17, 201
Walmart announced the launch of the Walmart wtdtzel money transfer service, a program operated bympetitor of MoneyGram, tt
allows consumers to transfer money between its kt@e locations. See oliManagement's Discussion and Analysis - Overvisectionin
Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10f#r additional disclosure. We will encounter incs&eg competition as new technologies emerge
allow consumers to send and receive money througlriaty of channels, but we continue to be anvamar in the industry by diversifying c
core money transfer business through new charsub, as online, mobile, kiosk and other self-seraifferings.

Financial Paper Products Segment

Our Financial Paper Products segment provides mamdgrs to consumers through our retail agents farahcial institutions locate
throughout the U.S. and Puerto Rico, and providésia check outsourcing services for financiasiitutions across the U.S.

In 2014 , our Financial Paper Products segmentrgitrevenues of $80.3 millidrom fee and other revenue and investment reveWs
earn revenue from the investment of funds undeglgintstanding official checks and money orders.réfer to our cash and cash equivale
settlement cash and cash equivalents, interesinlgeiavestments and available-for-sale investmentkectively as our “investment portfolio.”
Our investment portfolio primarily consists of lawgk, highly liquid, shorterm U.S. government securities and bank depdsdsgroduce
low rate of return.

Money Order— Consumers use our money orders to make paymetiesuiof cash or personal checks. We generate revéioun mone
orders by charging per item and other fees, as agelirom the investment of funds underlying outdiagm money orders, which gener:
remain outstanding for fewer than eight days. Wienseney orders under the MoneyGram brand and private label or cdsranded basis wi
certain large retail and financial institution atem the U.S. As of December 31, 2014ve issued money orders through our netwol
approximately 50,000 agent and financial institafiocations in the U.S. and Puerto Rico.

Official Check Outsourcing Services Sfficial checks are used by consumers where a pesgeares a check drawn on a bank. Fina
institutions also use official checks to pay thmim obligations. As with money orders, we generatenue from our official check outsourc
services for U.S. banks and credit unions by cingrgier item and other fees, as well as from thestment of funds underlying outstanc
official checks, which generally remain outstandiogfewer than four days. As of December 31, 20t# provided official check outsourci
services through approximately 1,000 financialitngbns at approximately 7,000 branch bank loaadio

Marketing— We employ a wide range of marketing methods. A &emponent of our marketing efforts is our globaarating. We use
marketing mix to support our brand, which includeslitional, digital and social media, point ofesahaterials, signage at our agent loca
and targeted marketing campaigns. Official checksfimancial institution branded, and thereforé nadirketing to this segment is busines
business.

Sales —Our sales teams are organized by product and dglsteannel. We have dedicated teams that focuseseldping our agent a
financial institution networks to enhance the reatbur official check and money order productsr @gent requirements vary depending t
the type of outlet or location, and our sales teaaminue to improve and strengthen our agenticglsiips with a goal of providing the optir
agent and consumer experience.

Competition —Our money order competitors include a small nundfdarge money order, regional and niche money ropaeviders. OL
largest competitors in the money order industry\&estern Union and the U.S. Postal Service. We gipecompete for money order age
on the basis of value, service, quality, technaa operational differences, price, commission @miagketing efforts. We compete for moi
order consumers on the basis of trust, convenienaglability of outlets, price, technology and arecognition.

Official check competitors include financial instibn solution providers, such as core data prassesand corporate credit unions.
generally compete against a financial instituticstésire to perform these processehadunse with support from these types of organizativiie
compete for official check customers on the bakisatue, service, quality, technical and operatiatifierences, price and commission.

8




Table of Contents

Regulation

Compliance with laws and regulations is a highlynptex and integral part of our day-tiay operations. Our operations are subject to &
range of laws and regulations of the U.S. and ottemtries, including anthoney laundering laws and regulations; financialises
regulations; currency control regulations; antbery laws; regulations of the U.S. Treasury Deparits Office of Foreign Assets Cont
("OFAC™); money transfer and payment instrumenerising laws; escheatment laws; privacy, data piiote@nd information security law
and consumer disclosure and consumer protectios. lRegulators worldwide are exercising heightengesrision of money transfer provid
and requiring increased efforts to ensure compéiaf@ilure to comply with any applicable laws aadulations could result in restrictions
our ability to provide our products and serviceswaell as the potential imposition of civil fineadapossibly criminal penalties. SeeRisk
Factors” section in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Fof-K for additional discussion regarding potential intgaaf failure to comply. W
continually monitor and enhance our global commg@aprograms in light of the most recent legal agllatory changes. We also launchec
compliance enhancement program in 2014 to enhauncgystems and processes.

Deferred Prosecution Agreeme— In November 2012, we announced that a settlemestr@ached with the MDPA, and the U.S. C
relating to the previously disclosed investigatafriransactions involving certain of our U.S. anan@dian agents, as well as fraud comg
data and the consumer afrdud program, during the period from 2003 to e&009. In connection with this settlement, we esdeinto :
deferred prosecution agreement ("DPA") with the MDd&hd U.S. DOJ dated November 8, 2012. Under thA,¥ agreed to a forfeiture
$100.0 millionthat is available as restitution to victims of t@nsumer fraud scams perpetrated through Money@gents. In the first quar
of 2013, Aaron Marcu, a litigation partner with Sinéields Bruckhaus Deringer, LLP in New York andtief its global financial institutio
litigation group, was selected as our compliancaitoo pursuant to a requirement of our settlemeitti the MDPA and the U.S. DOJ. We h,
received two annual reports from the compliance itbonand we continue to make investments in vaiateas related to our complia
systems and operations in order to comply withréftgiirements contained in the DPA and recommenaatdthe compliance monitor.

Anti-Money Laundering Compliance —-©ur money transfer services are subject to motiey laundering laws and regulations of the |
including the Bank Secrecy Act, as amended by t8& PATRIOT Act, as well as state laws and regufegiand the antinoney launderin
laws and regulations in many of the countries iriclwtwe operate, particularly in the European UniGountries in which we operate n
require one or more of the following:

» reporting of large cash transactions and suspicatigity;
» screening of transactions against governmenthwiidts, including but not limited to, the wattibt maintained by OFA(
» prohibition of transactions in, to or from certaiountries, governments, individuals and enti

» limitations on amounts that may be transferred bgrassumer or from a jurisdiction at any one timewer specified periods of time, wh
require the aggregation of information over mué#tiplansactions;

e consumer information gathering and reporting rezmagnts
e consumer disclosure requirements, including languaquirements and foreign currency restricti

» notification requirements as to the identity of wanting agents, governmental approval of contngcthgents or requirements
limitations on contract terms with our agents;

e registration or licensing of the Company or ourragewith a state or federal agency in the U.S. ith the central bank or other pro
authority in a foreign country; and

* minimum capital or capital adequacy requirem

Anti-money laundering regulations are constantly evghand vary from country to country. We continuousignitor our compliance wi
anti-money laundering regulations and implemenicpes and procedures in light of the most curregtl requirements.

We offer our money transfer services primarily thigb thirdparty agents with whom we contract and do not tirexontrol. As a mone
services business, we and our agents are requairestablish antinoney laundering compliance programs that inclgiénternal policies an
controls; (ii) designation of a compliance officéiii) ongoing employee training and (iv) an indegent review function. We have develo
an antimoney laundering training manual available in npldtianguages and a program to assist with theagiduncof our agents on the varit
rules and regulations. We also offergarson and online training as part of our agentptiamce training program and engage in various t
oversight activities.
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Money Transfer and Payment Instrument Licen— Almost all states in the U.S., the District of Qulbia, Puerto Rico, the U.S. Vir¢
Islands and Guam require us to be licensed to aindusiness within their jurisdictions. Our primaoyerseas operating subsidii
MoneyGram International Ltd., is a licensed paymiastitution under the Payment Services Regulatiadspted in the United Kingdc
pursuant to the European Union Payment Servicesciiie. We are also subject to licensing or otlegutatory requirements in various ol
jurisdictions. Licensing requirements may includénimum net worth, provision of surety bonds or édedt of credit, compliance wi
operational procedures, agent oversight and thatarance of reserves or “permissible investmeimtsin amount equivalent to outstanc
payment obligations, as defined by our various letgus. The types of securities that are considépedmissible investmentsvary acros
jurisdictions, but generally include cash and casfivalents, U.S. government securities and otlighhh rated debt instruments. Me
regulators require us to file reports on a quarterimore frequent basis to verify our compliandthvheir requirements. Many regulators
subject us to periodic examinations and requirengsour agents to comply with anti-money launde&nd other laws and regulations.

Escheatment Regulatio— Unclaimed property laws of every state, the DistoicColumbia, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin igla requir
that we track certain information on all of our pant instruments and money transfers and, if tmeyuaclaimed at the end of an applici
statutory abandonment period, that we remit thecgeds of the unclaimed property to the appropijiatiediction. Statutory abandonm
periods for payment instruments and money transterge from three to seven years. Certain foraigisdictions also may have unclain
property laws. These laws are evolving and areuatly unclear and inconsistent among variousdlici®ns, making compliance challengi
We have an ongoing program designed to comply esttheatment laws as they apply to our business.

Privacy Regulations and Data Sharing Requ— In the ordinary course of business we collect @etigpes of data that subject us to priv
laws in the U.S. and abroad. In the U.S., we abjestito various federal privacy laws, including tBramm-LeackBliley Act, which require
that financial institutions provide consumers wyitivacy notices and have in place policies and gdaces regarding the safeguardin
personal information. We are also subject to pgvaied data breach laws of various states. OutbieléJtS., we are subject to privacy law
numerous countries and jurisdictions, includingdaadopted pursuant to the European Ursidpéta Protection Directive. In some cases,
laws are more restrictive than the Gramm-LeBtiley Act and impose more stringent duties on canmips. These laws generally restrict
collection, transfer, processing, storage, usedistlosure of personal information. We abide byth8.EU Safe Harbor framework develoj
by the U.S. Department of Commerce with respedhéotransfer of personal data to the U.S. We adsee ltonfidentiality and informatit
security standards and procedures in place forbowiness activities and with our thipdity vendors and service providers. Privacy
information security laws, both domestically antemationally, evolve regularly, and conflictingMa in the various jurisdictions where we
business pose challenges.

In connection with regulatory requirements to assighe prevention of money laundering, terrofisincing and other illegal activities
pursuant to legal obligations and authorizatiohs, Company makes information available to certaii. federal and state, as well as ce
foreign government agencies when required by lawretent years, the Company has experienced iriegedata sharing requests by tr
agencies, particularly in connection with effodsprevent money laundering or terrorist financimgemluce the risk of identity theft. In cert
cases, the Company is also required by governngamcées to deny transactions that may be relatpersons suspected of money launde
terrorist financing or other illegal activities,dhas a result the Company may inadvertently demystctions from customers who are ma
legal money transfers, which could lead to liapildr reputational damage. Responding to these sgesguests will require increas
operational costs.

DoddFrank Act —The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumereetmin Act (the "Dodd-rank Act") was signed into law in 2010. -
Dodd-Frank Act imposes additional regulatory reguients and creates additional regulatory overdarhtis. The Dodd-rank Act created
Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection (the "CHRM&iich issues and enforces consumer protectidiativies governing financial produ
and services, including money transfer serviceshanU.S. The CFPB’ Remittance Transfer Rule, which became effeaiveDctober 2¢
2013, requirements include: a disclosure requirareeprovide consumers sending funds internatigrfadim the U.S. enhanced ptensactio
written disclosures, an obligation to resolve darterrors, including errors that may be outside oantrol and an obligation to can
transactions that have not been completed at amas's request. As a “larger participairt”the market for international money transfers
are subject to direct examination and supervisigrthe CFPB. We have modified our systems and coesudisclosures in light of tl
requirements of the Remittance Transfer Rule.

Foreign Exchange Regulati— Our money transfer services are subject to foreigmency exchange statutes of the U.S., as wediragar
state laws and the laws of certain other countrieshich we operate. Certain of these statutesireqagistration or licensure and report
Others may impose currency exchange restrictiotfs wiiich we must comply.
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Regulation of Prepaid Carc— We sell our MoneyGrarbranded prepaid card in the U.S., in addition &dlog prepaid cards of other c
issuers through our ExpressPayment offering. Oepaid cards and related loading services may bpduto federal and state laws
regulations, including laws related to consumertgmtion, licensing, unclaimed property, amdney laundering and the payment of wa
Certain of these federal and state statutes probidimit fees and expiration dates on and/or megjapecific consumer disclosures relate
certain categories of prepaid cards. We continualbnitor our prepaid cards and related loadingisesvin light of developments in st
statutes and regulations.

Anti-Bribery Regulation —We are also subject to regulations imposed by thei§n Corrupt Practices Act (the "FCPA") in theSUan«
similar antibribery laws in other jurisdictions. We are subj&xtrecordkeeping and other requirements imposexh pmpanies related
compliance with these laws.

Clearing and Cash Management Bank Relationships

Our business involves the movement of money onobajlbasis on behalf of our consumers, our agemdsoarselves. We buy and se
number of global currencies and maintain a netwadrkettlement accounts to facilitate the fundingrainey transfers and foreign excha
trades to ensure that funds are received on aytibadis. Our relationships with the clearing, tngdand cash management banks are critit
an efficient and reliable global funding network.

In the U.S., we have agreements with aitive clearing banks that provide clearing anccgssing functions for official checks, money or
and other draft instruments. We employ four bawksléar our official checks and thrbanks to clear our retail money orders. We beliéax
this network of banks provides sufficient capastitthandle the current and projected volumes ofstéanthese services.

We maintain significant relationships with majotemational banks which provide the capability tove money electronically as well
through domestic and international wire transfdwieks. There are a limited number of banks thaehae capabilities that are broad enc
in scope to handle our volume and complexity. Cqueatly, we employ banks whose market is not lichitetheir own country or region, &
have extensive systems capabilities and branchankswhat can support settlement needs that aee aftique to different countries around
world. In 2013, we activated our participation in the Society Yorldwide Interbank Financial TelecommunicatioS\WIFT") network fo
international wire transfers, which improves acdessll banks in the world while lowering the co$these funds transfers.

Intellectual Property

The MoneyGram brand is important to our business.NAVve registered our MoneyGram trademark in ti& &nd in anajority of the othe
countries where we do business. We maintain agiartbf other trademarks that are material to oampany, which were previously discus
in the"Overview"section of Item 1 of this Annual Report on FormKLO addition, we maintain a portfolio of Money@nabranded doma
names.

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark asyydght laws and trade secret protection and denfliality or license agreements to prc
our proprietary rights in products, services, knwow and information. We believe the intellectuabperty rights in processing equipmi
computer systems, software and business procesddsbiz us and our subsidiaries provide us with mpetitive advantage. We te
appropriate measures to protect our intellectua@ity to the extent such intellectual property barprotected.

We own U.S. and foreign patents related to our mamder and money transfer technologies. Our pateate in the past given us competi
advantages in the marketplace. We also have papgiications pending in the U.S. that relate to mamey transfer, money order and
payment technologies and business methods. Wapaitahat these applications, if granted, coule gis continued competitive advantage
the marketplace.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014 , we had 1,479 full-timgkoyees in the U.S. and 1,248 ftilhe employees outside of the U.S. In addition
engage independent contractors to support varigpecsés of our business. None of our employeeserUtls. are represented by a labor ur
We consider our employee relations to be good.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Pamela H. Patsle, age 58, has been Chairman and Chief Executivieddfdf the Company since September 2009. Fromaigria Septemb
2009, she served as Executive Chairman of the Coyerior to that, Ms. Patsley served as Seniorchtee Vice President of First D
Corporation, a global payment processing compaoyy March 2000 to October 2007, and President st Blata International from May 20
to October 2007. From 1991 to 2000, Ms. Patsleyeskas President and Chief Executive Officer offRaytech, Inc., prior to its acquisition
First Data Corporation. Ms. Patsley also servedChif Financial Officer of First USA, Inc. She cently serves as a director of Te
Instruments, Inc., a semiconductor design and naetuifing company; and Dr. Pepper Snapple Group, angeverage company.
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Juan Agualimpiaage 52, has served as Executive Vice Presidenin@&ssDevelopment and Chief Marketing Officer sikebdruary 2015. M
Agualimpia previously served as Executive Vice Riest and Chief Marketing Officer from February 20tb February 2015. Prior to tr
Mr. Agualimpia served as Senior Vice President @hiéef Marketing Officer from March 2010 to Febru&®11. From March 2009 to Mai
2010, Mr. Agualimpia engaged in marketing projechsulting. From 2005 to March 2009, Mr. Agualimgierved as Vice President :
General Manager for the Art & Coloring Global Bussis Unit of Newell Rubbermaid. Mr. Agualimpia h&sy2ars of leadership experienc
marketing, brand management, customer relatiomshipagement and product development.

Francis Aaron Henry, age 49, has served as Executive Vice Presidesmiei@l Counsel and Corporate Secretary since AWRQKER an
previously served as interim General Counsel fraiy 2012 to August 2012. He joined the Companyainuary 2011 as Senior Vice Presid
Assistant General Counsel, Global Regulatory armeaPy Officer. From 2008 to 2011, Mr. Henry was &&snt General Counsel at Wes!
Union and from 2004 to 2008 Senior Counsel at Wadtaion.

W. Alexander Hoffmanrage 43, has served as Executive Vice Presidenin@&sss Development and Global Product since Febrdafb
Previously Mr. Hoffmann served as Executive Vicedident, Global Product Management and Emergingn@a from February 2014
February 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Hoffmann servedSenior Vice President, Global Product Managemadt Emerging Channels from J
2013 to February 2014. From 2007 to 2013, Mr. Heffim served in a variety of positions at PayPal tmrexently as Senior Director of Eurc
Middle East and Africa Consumer Growth. Prior tatttMr. Hoffmann spent 12 years at McKinsey & Compin Brussels, Belgium, and P
Alto, California, as an Associate Partner workinghvelients in the payments and telecommunicatiodsstries.

W. Alexander Holmesage 40, has served as Executive Vice Presidéigf Einancial Officer and Chief Operating Officence February 20:
and Executive Vice President and Chief Financidio®f since March 2012. He joined the Company iQ2@s Senior Vice President
Corporate Strategy and Investor Relations. FronB26@®009, Mr. Holmes served in a variety of posi§ at First Data Corporation, includ
chief of staff to the Chief Executive Officer, Dater of Investor Relations and Senior Vice PredsiaddrGlobal Sourcing & Strategic Initiative
From 2002 to 2003, he managed Western Union’s Berrelgion from its offices in Amsterdam.

Grant A. Linesage 50, has served as the Executive Vice PresiBasiness Development since February 2015. Mr.4d previously served
Executive Vice President, AsRacific, South Asia and Middle East from Februa®j£to February 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Lines sena:
Senior Vice President, Asiacific, South Asia and Middle East from Februa®i2 to February 2014. Prior to that, Mr. Lines sena
General Manager of Black Label Solutions, a leadirgeloper and supplier of computerized retail PoinSale systems from May 2011
December 2012. He served as Managing Director it Bdata Corporatios’ ANZ business, a global payment processing comptaagn
September 2008 to February 2011. Mr. Lines seng&enior Vice President of First DataStrategic Business Development and Ge
Manager ASEAN establishing Asian operations in Spage from June 2004 to August 2008 and Senior Wesident with sales a
marketing responsibilities in Australia and New laea from October 2000 to May 2004.

Angela M. McQuienage 43, has been Senior Vice President, Corporatér@ler and Principal Accounting Officer since l{2014. Fron
May 2013 to April 2014, she served as Vice Pregjdéorporate Controller and Principal Accountindi€dr. From July 2012 to April 201
she served in the role of Vice President and CateaController. Ms. McQuien served as Chief AccounOfficer for Think Finance Inc. fro
December 2009 to July 2012. Prior to that, Ms. MieQuserved as Director of Compliance and Control®ean Foods and she has |
previous finance positions at Sabre Holdings. MeQMien is a Certified Public Accountant and begandareer at Deloitte & Touche LLP.

Peter E. Ohsel, age 47, has been Executive Vice President, Bssibevelopment since February 2015. Mr. Ohser posly served ¢
Executive Vice President, U.S. and Canada fromueir2014 to February 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Qlss#ved as Senior Vice President, |
and Canada from February 2013 to February 2014mFiane 2010 to January 2013, he served as VicadEngsIndependent Ret
Channels & Outbound Corridors and from December7200May 2010 he served as Director of Stratega@hg. He served as Director
Business Process and Organizational Readiness November 2006 to November 2007, Senior Manager &l8tisk from 2004 to 200
Manager, Global Risk from 2003 to 2004 and SuperyRisk from September 2002 to 2003. Mr. Ohseargdithe Company in January 200
a Senior Risk Analyst. Prior to that, Mr. Ohsewserin various finance roles in the mortgage antsamer finance industries.

Steven Pianoage 49, has served as Executive Vice President,aduResources since August 2009. From January 20@8igust 200¢
Mr. Piano served as Global Lead Human Resourcen€tantith National Grid, a multiational utility company. From 1996 to January 2
Mr. Piano held a variety of human resources passtiwith First Data Corporation, serving most relseas Senior Vice President of First D
International. From 1987 to 1996, Mr. Piano heldanhn resources positions with Citibank, Dun & Braeist - Nielsen Media Research ¢
Lehman Brothers.
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Phyllis J. Sker-Stimac, age 55, has been Executive Vice President andf @umpliance Officer since December 2014. Ms. 8k&imax
previously served as Senior Vice President andf@wenpliance Officer from February 2011 to Decemd@t4. From June 2008 to Decen
2010, Ms. Sken&timac served as Deputy Chief Compliance Officet ®ite President Global Programs for Western Urdad previousl
served as Vice President Compliance Operations fkpril 2004 to July 2005. From January 1999 to keby 2003, Ms. Sken8timac serve
as the Director of Regulatory Affairs for First Raforporation.

Available Information

We make our reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and, &ection 16 reports on Forms 3, 4 and 5, ancdakéndments to those reports, avail
electronically free of charge in the Investor Rielas section of our websiteifmoneygram.con) as soon as reasonably practicable after
are filed with or furnished to the Securities analiange Commission (the "SEC"). The informationooin website is not part of this Ann
Report on Form 10-K. Any materials filed with th&& may be read and copied at the SERuUblic Reference Room at 100 F Street,
Washington DC 20549. Information on the operatiérthe Public Reference Room can be found by caltimg SEC at 1-800-SEQ330
Additionally, the SEC maintains an internet sitattbontains reports, proxy and information statesieand other information regarding issi
that file electronically with the SEC which may foeind at www.sec.gov

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Various risks and uncertainties could affect ousibess. Any of the risks described below or elsee/lrethis Annual Report on Form ¥Qeor
our other filings with the SEC could have a mataén®gact on our business, prospects, financial tmrdor results of operations.

RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We face intense competition, and if we are unabte dontinue to compete effectively, our businessaficial condition and results ¢
operations could be adversely affected.

The markets in which we compete are highly comipetiand we face a variety of competitors acrogshoginesses. With respect to our mc
transfer, bill payment and money order business@sprimary competitor is Western Union. In additimew competitors or alliances am
established companies may emerge. Further, somerafompetitors have larger and more establishedwuoer bases and substantially gre
financial, marketing and other resources than weh®/e cannot anticipate every effect that acttaken by our competitors will have on
business, or the money transfer and bill paymehistry in general.

If we fail to price our services appropriately tala to our competitors, consumers may not usesewices, which could adversely affect
business and financial results. We have histosidatplemented and will likely continue to implemeamice adjustments from time to time
response to competition and other factors. For @@ntransaction volume where we face intense ctittggecould be adversely affected
increasing pricing pressures between our moneysfearservices and those of some of our competiteléch could reduce margins ¢
adversely affect our financial results. If we reelymrices in order to more effectively compete, stethuctions could adversely affect
financial results in the short term and may alseeaskly affect our financial results in the longmeif transaction volumes do not incre
sufficiently.

Money transfer, bill payment and money order s@vicompete in a concentrated industry, with a smatiber of large competitors and a I
number of small, niche competitors. We also compséte banks and niche person{t@erson money transfer service providers. The abic
bill payment services within our Global Funds Tifenssegment compete in a highly fragmented consdoibusiness payment indusi
Competitors in the electronic payments area incfirtncial institutions, third parties that hogtdncial institution and bill payment servic
third parties that offer payment services direttlgonsumers and billers offering their own billypeent services.

Our official check business competes primarily Wittancial institutions that have developed intépracessing capabilities or services sin
to ours and do not outsource official check sewi¢gnancial institutions could also offer compgtufficial check outsourcing services to
existing and prospective official check customers.
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There can be no assurance that growth in consurareyrtransfer transactions will continue. If we armable to continue to grow our exist
products, while also growing newly developed angu@ed products, we will be unable to compete ¢iifety in the changing marketplace, i
our business, financial condition and results afrations could be adversely affected.

If we lose key agents, our business with key agesteeduced or we are unable to maintain our agerdtwork under terms consistent w
those currently in place, our business, financiabedition and results of operations could be advdysaffected.

Most of our revenue is earned through our retainragnetwork. In addition, our international agemay have subagent relationships in w
we are not directly involved. If agents or theibagents decide to leave our network, our revendepaatits could be adversely affected. A¢
loss may occur for a number of reasons, includinghgetition from other money transfer providers, agents dissatisfaction with i
relationship with us or the revenue derived from tolationship, or an agestunwillingness or inability to comply with our atéards or leg;
requirements, including those related to complianié anti-money laundering regulations, ainiud measures or agent monitoring. Ag
may also generate fewer transactions or reducéidosafor reasons unrelated to our relationshigliem, including increased competitiol
their business, general economic conditions, régulacosts or other reasons. In addition, we mayl®oable to maintain our agent netw
under terms consistent with those already in plaeeger agents may demand additional financial eesions or may not agree to enter
exclusive arrangements, which could increase catiyeepressure. The inability to maintain our ageohtracts on terms consistent with tf
already in place, including in respect of exclusivights, could adversely affect our businessfiicial condition and results of operations.

A substantial portion of our agent network locasiptransaction volume and revenue is attributabler tgenerated by a limited number of
agents. During 2014 and 2013 , our ten largesttagarcounted for 39 percent and 43 perceamispectively, of our total company fee
investment revenue. Our largest agent, Walmarpuded for 22 percent and 27 percehbur total company fee and investment reveni
2014 and 2013 respectively. The current term of our contradhwi/almart expires on March 31, 2016. If our coctsavith our key agen
including Walmart, are not renewed or are termithate are renewed but on less favorable termd, furch agents generate fewer transac
or reduce their locations, our business, financialdition and results of operations could be adgraffected. During 2014 our transactic
volume at Walmart locations was adversely affettedhe introduction of its competing white labebbded product for Walmart-téfalmar
money transfers in the U.S. The introduction of petitive products by Walmart or our other key ageasduld reduce our business with tt
key agents and intensify industry competition, ahgould adversely affect our business, financialdition and results of operations.

Consumer fraud could adversely affect our businefisancial condition and results of operations.

Criminals are using increasingly sophisticated mé#hto engage in illegal activities such as papsirument counterfeiting, fraud and ider
theft. As we make more of our services availablerdlie internet and other digital media, we subjerselves to new types of consumer fi
risk because requirements relating to consumereatittation are more complex with internet servigesrtain former retail agents have
engaged in fraud against consumers, and existingtagould engage in fraud against consumers. We wsriety of tools to protect aga
fraud; however, these tools may not always be smsfek Allegations of fraud may result in finesttlnents, litigation expenses ¢
reputational damage.

The industry is under increasing scrutiny from fadlestate and local regulators in connection whth potential for consumer fraud. If consu
fraud levels involving our services were to rige¢ould lead to regulatory intervention and repotal and financial damage. This, in tt
could lead to government enforcement actions anelsiigations, reduce the use and acceptance @&feovices or increase our compliance ¢
and thereby have a material adverse impact onwsinéss, financial condition and results of operati

MoneyGram and our agents are subject to numerousSUand international laws and regulations. Failuree comply with these laws ai
regulations could result in material settlementsnés or penalties and changes in these laws or fagjons could result in increase
operating costs or reduced demand for our productsservices, all of which may adversely affect domusiness, financial condition ar
results of operations.

We operate in a highly regulated environment, amdbaisiness is subject to a wide range of lawsragdlations that vary from jurisdiction
jurisdiction. We are also subject to oversight byious governmental agencies, both in the U.S.afmdad. In light of the current condition:
the global financial markets and economy, lawmakeus regulators in the U.S. in particular haveéased their focus on the regulation of
financial services industry. New or modified redidas and increased oversight may have unforeseamiatended adverse effects on
financial services industry, which could affect cusiness and operations.
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The money transfer business is subject to a vadetggulations aimed at preventing money laundgeand terrorism. We are subject to |
federal antimoney laundering laws, including the Bank Secrecyand the requirements of OFAC, which prohibifrasn transmitting mone
to specified countries or to or from prohibitediinduals. Additionally, we are subject to amieney laundering laws in many other coun
where we operate, particularly in the European bini/e are also subject to financial services rdguia, money transfer and paym
instrument licensing regulations, consumer prod&ctaws, currency control regulations, escheat lamd privacy and data protection la
Many of these laws are constantly evolving, uncksad inconsistent across various jurisdictions, ingakompliance challenging. Subseqt
legislation, regulation, litigation, court rulings other events could expose us to increased progosts, liability and reputational damage.

We are considered a Money Services Business itUtBe under the Bank Secrecy Act, as amended by g8® PATRIOT Act of 2001. A
such, we are subject to reporting, recordkeepirdyanti-noney laundering provisions in the U.S as well amynother jurisdictions. Durir
2014, there have been significant regulatory reviewd ations taken by U.S. and other regulators ancel@forcement agencies against ba
Money Services Businesses and other financialtinisths related to money laundering, and the trapgears to be greater scrutiny
regulators of potential money laundering activiyough financial institutions. We are also subjectegulatory oversight and enforcemen
The U.S. Department of the Treasury Financial Csireaforcement Network ("FINCEN). Any determinatithrat we have violated the anti-
money-laundering laws could have an adverse efieciur business, financial condition and resultsperations.

The Dodd-Frank Act increases the regulation andsigiet of the financial services industry. The Ddetdnk Act addresses, among o
things, systemic risk, capital adequacy, depositiance assessments, consumer financial protedtitanchange fees, derivatives, lenc
limits, thrift charters and changes among the baagulatory agencies. The Doéfdank Act requires enforcement by various goverrtal
agencies, including the CFPB. Money transmittershsas the Company are subject to direct supervigiothe CFPB and are requirec
provide additional consumer information and disates, adopt error resolution standards and adpfsind procedures for internatio
transactions originating in the U.S. in a mannersistent with the Remittance Transfer Rule (a rsdeed by the CFPB pursuant to the Dod
Frank Act). In addition, the CFPB may adopt othegulations governing consumer financial servicesluding regulations defining unfe
deceptive, or abusive acts or practices, and nedeimisclosures. The CFP8authority to change regulations adopted in thst pg othe
regulators could increase our compliance costdiagdtion exposure. Our litigation exposure magoabe increased by the CFRBiuthority t
limit or ban pre-dispute arbitration clauses. Weyralso be liable for failure of our agents to coynpith the DoddFrank Act. The legislatic
and implementation of regulations associated withoddFrank Act have increased our costs of complianceraquired changes in the v
we and our agents conduct business. In additionamgesubject to periodic examination by the CFPBr fditial examination by the CFF
began in December 2014. The results of this exainimanay require us to change the way we condusiniess or increase the cost:
compliance.

We are also subject to regulations imposed by @ieA-in the U.S. and similar arttribery laws in other jurisdictions. Because of $kepe an
nature of our global operations, we experienceghdririsk associated with the FCPA and similar-aribiery laws than many other compar
We are subject to recordkeeping and other requinérimposed upon companies related to compliantethese laws.

The European Unios’Payment Services Directive ("PSD") imposes paklibility on us for the conduct of our agentedahe commission
third party fraud utilizing our services. If we lfab comply with the PSD, our business, financiahdition and results of operations may
adversely impacted. Additionally, the U.S. and otleeuntries periodically consider initiatives dewg to lower costs of internatio
remittances which, if implemented, may adverselgast our business, financial condition and resaflisperations.

In addition, we are subject to escheatment lawtkénUnited States and certain foreign jurisdictiongvhich we conduct business. These |
are evolving and are frequently unclear and ingiest among various jurisdictions, making compleawetallenging. We have an ongc
program designed to comply with escheatment lawtheys apply to our business. In the United Statgsare subject to the laws of vari
states which from time to time take inconsistentanflicting positions regarding the requirememtsescheat property to a particular stati
some instances, we escheat items to states pursuatdtutory requirements and then subsequentiytipase items to consumers. For ¢
amounts, we must file claims for reimbursement fithve states. Furthermore, certain foreign jurisdit do not have escheatment provis
which apply to our transactions. In these jurisditt where there is not a requirement to escheat,when, by utilizing historical data '
determine that the likelihood is remote that tleenitwill be paid out, we record a reduction to oayment service obligation and recogniz:
equivalent amount as a component of fee and otlvenue.
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Changes in laws, regulations or other industry fizes and standards, or interpretations of legalegulatory requirements, may reduce
market for or value of our products or servicesesrder our products or services less profitablelmolete. Changes in the laws affecting
kinds of entities that are permitted to act as myomansfer agents (such as changes in requirenfentsapitalization or ownership) cot
adversely affect our ability to distribute our sees and the cost of providing such services. Mahyur agents are in the check cas
industry. Any regulatory action that negatively @mgps check cashers could also cause this portiasuofigent base to decline. If onet
regulatory requirements were imposed on our agdms,equirements could lead to a loss of agerghyin turn, could lead to a loss of re
business.

Any violation by us of the laws and regulations feeth above could lead to significant fines or akies and could limit our ability to condi
business in some jurisdictions. Our systems, engasyand processes may not be sufficient to detecpeevent violations of the laws ¢
regulations set forth above by our agents, whialictalso lead to us being subject to significanesi or penalties. In addition to these fines
penalties, a failure by us or our agents to comyitir applicable laws and regulations also couldosssty damage our reputation and resu
diminished revenue and profit and increase our aip®y costs and could result in, among other thimgsocation of required licenses
registrations, loss of approved status, terminabiboontracts with banks or retail representatiaebninistrative enforcement actions and fi
class action lawsuits, cease and desist ordersigihdnd criminal liability.

The occurrence of one or more of these events dwud a material adverse effect on our businassndial condition and results of operatic

Litigation or investigations involving us or our ants could result in material settlements, fines penalties and may adversely affect
business, financial condition and results of opeiats.

We have been, and in the future may be, subjealiégations and complaints that individuals or tiggihave used our money transfer sen
for fraudinduced money transfers, as well as certain moaegdering activities, which may result in finespakies, judgments, settleme
and litigation expenses. We also are the subjerh fime to time of litigation related to our busise The outcome of such allegatic
complaints, claims and litigation cannot be prestict

Regulatory and judicial proceedings and potentigkase developments in connection with ongoingdtibn may adversely affect our busin
financial condition and results of operations. Eheray also be adverse publicity associated witlslgie and investigations that could decr
agent and consumer acceptance of our servicestigually, our business has been in the past, angbean the future, the subject of cl
action lawsuits, regulatory actions and investimadiand other general litigation. The outcome a$glaction lawsuits, regulatory actions
investigations and other litigation is difficult assess or quantify but may include substantigsfiand expenses, as well as the revocati
required licenses or registrations or the losspfraved status, which could have a material adveffeet on our business, financial posi
and results of operations or consumemifidence in our business. Plaintiffs or regubatagencies in these lawsuits, actions or investige
may seek recovery of very large or indeterminatewans, and the magnitude of these actions may rem#inown for substantial periods
time. The cost to defend or settle future lawsaitinvestigations may be significant. In additiaomproper activities, lawsuits or investigatis
involving our agents may adversely impact our bessnoperations or reputation even if we are necty involved.

We have received Civil Investigative Demands fromwaking group of nine state attorneys general \whwe initiated an investigation it
whether we took adequate steps to prevent constnaed during the period from 2007 to 2014. The Cinvestigative Demands se
information and documents relating to our proceslullesigned to prevent fraudulent transfers and woes complaint information. V'
continue to cooperate fully with the state attosiggneral and have submitted the information ardiients requested. No claims have |
filed against MoneyGram at this time in connectith this investigation and the Company has demied wrongful conduct. Taking in
account our discussions with the attorneys genataDecember 31, 2014, we recorded an $11.0 mildicerued liability for estimated Ic
exposure in connection with such investigation. Agstimate of a loss contingency involves judgmdrdsed upon currently availa
information and assumptions believed to be readeratd is subject to uncertainties. There may bexgosure to losses in excess of
amounts accrued, and any actual loss may vary thenturrent estimate, which could affect our finahcondition and results of operatic
Further, the outcome of these Civil Investigativeniands could include additional compliance costsaher expenses, which could adver
affect our business, financial condition and ressaftoperations.
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We face possible uncertainties relating to compléanwith and the impact of the deferred prosecutiagreement entered into with the U
federal government

In November 2012, we announced that we had enteteda DPA with the MDPA/U.S. DOJ relating to thevéstigation of transactio
involving certain of the Company’s U.S. and Canadigents, as well as its fraud complaint data am$wmer antfraud program, during tl
period from 2003 to early 2009. Under the DPA, @mmpany agreed to pay to the U.S. a $100.0 mifbofeiture that is available to victims
the consumer fraud scams perpetrated through Moaey@gents.

Pursuant to the DPA, the MDPA/U.S. DOJ filed a tweoant criminal Information in the U.S. District Qouor the Middle District ¢
Pennsylvania. The MDPA/U.S. DOJ will seek dismisséh prejudice of the Information if the Compangishcomplied with its obligatio
during the fiveyear term of the DPA. Under the DPA, the Company agreed, among other things, to retain an indepgncbmplianc
monitor for a period of five years, subject to atjunent to a shorter period under certain circuntgtsnlf the Company fails to make prog
towards its compliance obligations under the DR, independent compliance monitor could issue davonable report, which could lead
heightened scrutiny by the MDPA and the U.S. DOJ.

If the Company fails to comply with the DPA, the RB/U.S. DOJ have the right to prosecute the Comp#tfhile the Company expects to
in compliance with the DPA, a failure to comply daa prosecution of the Company by the MDPA/U.S. Déaiild lead to a severe mate
adverse effect upon the Compasmability to conduct its business. Additionallyetherms of the DPA impose additional costs upor
Company related to compliance and other requirethdeand such additional compliance costs have b@ehcontinue to be substan
Additional compliance obligations could also have adverse impact on the Company's operations. &unibre, this does not resolve
inquiries from other governmental agencies sucRia€EN, which could result in additional costs, empes and fines. The Company doe:
anticipate material adverse consequences from antrythe DPA on the Comparg/teputation and business, but there can be noamssuthe
such unanticipated consequences will not occur.

Current and proposed regulation addressing consurpeivacy and data use and security could increase oosts of operations, which cot
adversely affect our business, financial conditiamd results of operations.

We are subject to requirements relating to privaiegt data use and security under U.S. federal, atatdoreign laws. For example, the Un
States Federal Trade Commission routinely invegthe privacy practices of companies and has @med enforcement actions age
many, resulting in multi-million dollar settlemerdad multiyear agreements governing the settling companiesiqy practices. Furthermo
certain industry groups require us to adhere teagyi requirements in addition to federal, state famdign laws, and certain of our busir
relationships depend upon our compliance with tiegairements. As the number of countries enagiimgacy and related laws increases
the scope of these laws and enforcement effortaredg we will increasingly become subject to new ®arying requirements. Failure
comply with existing or future privacy and data ws®d security laws, regulations and requirememsluding by reason of inadvert
disclosure of personal information, could resulfiires, sanctions, penalties or other adverse cuesees and loss of consumer confide
which could materially adversely affect our buss)dmancial condition and results of operations.

In addition, in connection with regulatory requirenmts to assist in the prevention of money laundeaind terrorist financing and pursuar
legal obligations and authorizations, the Comparakes information available to certain United Stdtxeral and state, as well as cel
foreign, government agencies when required by lawecent years, the Company has experienced siagaata sharing requests by tt
agencies, particularly in connection with effordsprrevent terrorist financing or reduce the riskdzntity theft. During the same period, tt
has also been increased public attention to thgocate use and disclosure of personal informatonpmpanied by legislation and regulat
intended to strengthen data protection, informatienurity and consumer privacy. These regulatogisgmay conflict, and the law in the
areas is not consistent or settled. While we belignat we are compliant with our regulatory resiliges, the legal, political and busine
environments in these areas are rapidly changimd sabsequent legislation, regulation, litigaticourt rulings or other events could expos
to increased program costs, liability and reputatiacdamage that could have a material adversetaffeour business, financial condition .
results of operations.
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If we fail to successfully develop and timely inttace new and enhanced products and services ordfmake substantial investments in
unsuccessful new product, service or infrastructuchange, our business, financial condition and rd&iof operations could be advers
affected.

Our future growth will depend, in part, on our #kito continue to develop and successfully intraglmew and enhanced methods of provi
money transfer, bill payment, money order, officihleck and related services that keep pace withpettive introductions, technologi
changes and the demands and preferences of outsafieancial institution customers and consumérglternative payment mechanis
become widely substituted for our current prodwts services, and we do not develop and offer aingilternative payment mechanis
successfully and on a timely basis, our businésan€ial condition and results of operations cdutdadversely affected. We may make fu
investments or enter into strategic alliances teettgo new technologies and services or to impleniginastructure changes to further
strategic objectives, strengthen our existing lesses and remain competitive. Such investmentstsaiggic alliances, however, are inhere
risky, and we cannot guarantee that such invessrarstrategic alliances will be successful. Iftsirorestments and strategic alliances art
successful, they could have a material adversetaffeour business, financial condition and reseiltsperations.

We conduct money transfer transactions through ageim some regions that are politically volatile ,dn a limited number of cases, whi
are subject to certain OFAC restrictions.

We conduct money transfer transactions throughtagarsome regions that are politically volatile ior a limited number of cases, are sut
to certain OFAC restrictions. It is possible that money transfer services or other products cbaldsed in contravention of applicable la\
regulations. Such circumstances could result ireiaged compliance costs, regulatory inquiries,esusipn or revocation of required license
registrations, seizure or forfeiture of assets thedimposition of civil and criminal fees and pdieal. In addition to monetary fines or pena
that we could incur, we could be subject to repoetl harm that could have a material adverse efircour business, financial condition .
results of operations.

Changes in tax laws and unfavorable outcomes of tmositions we take could adversely affect our tagpense and liquidity.

Our future tax rate could be adversely affectectignges in tax laws, both domestically and intéonatly. From time to time, the U.S. €
foreign, state and local governments consider lkgis that could increase our effective tax rateshanges to applicable tax laws are ena
our results of operations could be negatively intgp@c

We file tax returns and take positions with respecfederal, state, local and international taxatimcluding positions that relate to
historical securities losses, and our tax retums tax positions are subject to review and auditdyng authorities. The Internal Reve
Service (the "IRS") has issued Notices of Deficiefar 20052007 and 2009, and has also issued an ExaminatporRfor 2008. The Notic
of Deficiency disallow among other items approxiehat$900.0 millionof deductions on securities losses in the 200732080 2009 te
returns. In 2013, the Company reached a partilesatnt with the IRS allowing ordinary loss treatthen $186.9 millionof deductions i
dispute. In January 2015, the U.S. Tax Court gdatibe IRS's motion for summary judgment upholdihg temaining adjustments in

Notices of Deficiency. The Company anticipates ttegh payments in the second half of 2015 speifihis matter will be approximate
$60.0 million for federal tax payments and assecianterest.

In addition, the IRS issued a Revenue Agent RefiBAR") for the tax years 2011 through 2013 thatluded disallowing $100 millioof
deductions related to payments the Company matlettd.S. government in connection with the DPA. M/ve expect to file a protest let
contesting this adjustment, we may not be succkessfuaintaining our original tax position. An unfarable outcome in these audits or o
tax reviews or audits could result in higher tapense, including interest and penalties, which d@alversely affect our results of operat
and cash flows. We establish reserves for matknialvn tax exposures; however, there can be noasseithat an actual taxation event wi
not exceed our reserves.

Our substantial debt service obligations, signifitadebt covenant requirements and our credit ratioguld impair our access to capital a
financial condition and adversely affect our ab#itto operate and grow our busine

We have substantial interest expense on our dedtpar ratings are below “investment gradehils requires that we access capital market:
are subject to higher volatility than those thgtmart higher rated companies. Since a significamtign of our cash flow from operations
dedicated to debt service, a reduction in cash flowld result in an event of default, or signifidgrrestrict our access to capital. Our rati
below investment grade also create the potentia fost of capital that is higher than other congmwith which we compete.

We are also subject to capital requirements impasedarious regulatory bodies throughout the wovite may need access to external ca
to support these regulatory requirements in oralenaintain our licenses and our ability to earreraie in these jurisdictions. An interruptiol
our access to capital could impair our ability éemduct business if our regulatory capital fallsopelequirements.
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Major bank failure or sustained financial market liquidity, or illiquidity at our clearing, cash maagement and custodial financi
institutions, could adversely affect our businedisiancial condition and results of operations.

We face certain risks in the event of a sustairetdribration of financial market liquidity, as wel in the event of sustained deterioration il
liquidity, or failure, of our clearing, cash managent and custodial financial institutions. In peuwtar:

» We may be unable to access funds in our investipertfolio, deposit accounts and clearing accoumsadimely basis to settle ¢
payment instruments, pay money transfers and nedited settlements to agents. Any resulting ne@gt¢ess other sources of liquidity
shortterm borrowing would increase our costs. Any dedayinability to settle our payment instruments, pagney transfers or ma
related settlements with our agents could adveisghact our business, financial condition and ressof operations.

* Inthe event of a major bank failure, we could fatgor risks to the recovery of our bank deposssdifor the purpose of settling with
agents, and to the recovery of a significant parid our investment portfolio. A substantial portiof our cash, cash equivalents
interestbearing deposits are either held at banks thaharesubject to insurance protection against losexaeed the deposit insura
limit.

»  Our revolving credit facility is one source of fungd for our corporate transactions and liquiditeds. If any of the banks participating

our credit facility were unable or unwilling to fill its lending commitment to us, our shddrm liquidity and ability to engage
corporate transactions, such as acquisitions, doelladversely affected.

« We may be unable to borrow from financial instibms or institutional investors on favorable termvbjch could adversely impact ¢
ability to pursue our growth strategy and fund k&nategic initiatives, such as product developnagt acquisitions.

If financial liquidity deteriorates, there can be assurance we will not experience an adverseteffdéch may be material, on our ability
access capital and on our business, financial tondind results of operations.

An inability by us or our agents to maintain adeqieabanking relationships may adversely affect oundiness, financial condition an
results of operations.

We rely on domestic and international banks foernational cash management, electronic funds warsid wire transfer services to

money transfers and settle with our agents. We m@oon domestic banks to provide clearing, preces and settlement functions for

paperbased instruments, including official checks ancheyoorders. Our relationships with these banksaasgtical component of our abill
to conduct our official check, money order and mpotmansfer businesses. An inability on our panmn@intain existing or establish new bani
relationships sufficient to enable us to conduct ofificial check, money order and money transfesibesses could adversely affect
business, financial condition and results of openst There can be no assurance that we will ke tabdstablish and maintain adequate bar
relationships.

If we cannot maintain sufficient relationships witirge international banks that provide these ses/iwe would be required to establi
global network of local banks to provide us witlkegk services. Relying on local banks in each cpwotnld alter the complexity of our treas
operations, degrade the level of automation, Jigtband service we currently receive from banksl affect patterns of settlement with
agents. This could result in an increase in thewarhof time it takes to concentrate agent remigsnand to deliver agent payables, poten
adversely impacting our cash flow, working capitaéds and exposure to local currency value fluictgst
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We and our agents are considered Money ServicenBsses in the U.S. under the Bank Secrecy Act.rddsilators are increasingly taking
position that Money Service Businesses, as a dasdhigh risk businesses. In addition, the creatifoantimoney laundering laws has cree
concern and awareness among banks of the negatplecations of aiding and abetting money launderaagjvity. As a result, banks m
choose not to provide banking services to MoneyiSes Businesses in certain regions due to theofigidditional regulatory scrutiny and
cost of building and maintaining additional comptia functions. In addition, certain foreign bankséd been forced to terminate relations
with Money Services Businesses by U.S. correspdndanks. As a result, we and certain of our agbate been denied access to r
banking services in certain markets regardleshehtitigating factors and controls in place to pravantimoney laundering law violations.
we or our agents are unable to obtain sufficiemkivay relationships, we or they may not be ableffer our services in a particular regi
which could adversely affect our business, findrnmadition and results of operations.

Concerns regarding the financial health of certaiBuropean countries, and the impact that these caigeg might have on the sustainabill
of the euro, could adversely impact our businesssults of operations and financing.

In the normal course of our business, we maintanificant euro denominated cash balances. In 20ft% euro was our second lar¢
currency position in the world following the U.Soldr. The secession of a country from the eure, demise of the use of the euro
significant decline in the European economies coefiilt in a sudden and substantial devaluatioefeuro and other currencies agains
U.S. dollar. Such a development could reduce thgevef our euracdenominated deposits and adversely impact thetabilfty of our busines
in the Eurozone. In addition, our ability to gerteréee revenue from our money transfer busineskidee impaired if the level of econor
activity in the Eurozone were to decrease. A sigaift decline in European economies could also teafihancial market impairment a
restricted bank liquidity. Our ability to fund oaperations could be impaired if our access to owo eeposits were restricted, or if damac
the banking system were to result from a currem@noeconomic crisis.

A breach of security in the systems on which weyrebuld adversely affect our business, financialnchition and results of operation:

We rely on a variety of technologies to providewdyg for our systems. Advances in computer cajit#sl new discoveries in the field
cryptography or other events or developments, diny improper acts by third parties, may resulaicompromise or breach of the sect
measures we use to protect our systems. We olttairsmit and store confidential consumer, emplayet agent information in connect
with certain of our services. These activities subject to laws and regulations in the U.S. anémjlrisdictions. The requirements imposel
these laws and regulations, which often differ mally among the many jurisdictions, are designedptotect the privacy of perso
information and to prevent that information fronirgeinappropriately disclosed. Any security breacheour computer networks, database
facilities could lead to the inappropriate use @chkbsure of personal information, which could hasor business and reputation, adver
affect consumerstonfidence in our or our agents' business, caugdries and fines or penalties from regulatory oveynmental authoritie
cause a loss of consumers, subject us to lawsnoidssabject us to potential financial losses. Initoitl we may be required to expe
significant capital and other resources to progagtinst these security breaches or to alleviatblgmus caused by these breaches. Our a
and thirdparty independent contractors may also experieecergy breaches involving the storage and transionisof our data as well as
ability to initiate unauthorized transactions. $eus gain improper access to our, our agents'rothod-party independent contractors' comp
networks or databases, they may be able to steblish, delete or modify confidential customer imf@tion or generate unauthorized mc
transfers. Such a breach could expose us to mgnethility, losses and legal proceedings, leadejoutational harm, cause a disruption in
operations, or make our consumers and agents tag&lent in our services, which could have a mateadverse effect on our busint
financial condition and results of operations.

Because our business is particularly dependent ¢we tefficient and uninterrupted operation of our iefmation technology, comput
network systems and data centers, disruptions testh systems and data centers could adversely aff@cbusiness, financial condition ar
results of operations.

Our ability to provide reliable services largelypegads on the efficient and uninterrupted operatibaur computer network systems and

centers. Our business involves the movement oklagns of money and the management of data negessdp so. The success of

business particularly depends upon the efficiedtemorfree handling of transactions and data. We relyhenability of our employees and «
internal systems and processes to process thesad¢tans in an efficient, uninterrupted and efree- manner.
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In the event of a breakdown, catastrophic eventh(sas fire, natural disaster, power loss, telecomaations failure or physical breéik},
security breach, computer virus, improper operatimproper action by our employees, agents, conssinfieancial institutions or third pal
vendors or any other event impacting our systenmgracesses or our agents' or vendsgstems or processes, we could suffer financial,
loss of consumers, regulatory sanctions, lawsuitsdamage to our reputation or consumeosifidence in our business. The measures we
enacted, such as the implementation of disastevegg plans and redundant computer systems, magensticcessful. We may also experi
problems other than system failures, includingvsafe defects, development delays and installatifficwties, which would harm our busine
and reputation and expose us to potential liabditg increased operating expenses. In additionwaml¢ stoppages or other labor action:
employees who support our systems or perform arguoimajor functions could adversely affect ouribess. Certain of our agent contrs
including our contract with Walmart, contain seerievel standards pertaining to the operation ofaystem, and give the agent a rigr
collect damages or engage other providers andtierae situations, a right of termination for systdowntime exceeding agreed upon sel
levels. If we experience significant system intptions or system failures, our business interruptiesurance may not be adequat
compensate us for all losses or damages that werroasy.

In addition, our ability to continue to provide oservices to a growing number of agents and consjmas well as to enhance our exis
services and offer new services, is dependent orindormation technology systems. If we are unableffectively manage the technolc
associated with our business, we could experiemreased costs, reductions in system availabititylass of agents or consumers. Any fali
of our systems in scalability, reliability and fdiomality could adversely impact our business, fiicial condition and results of operations.

Continued weakness in economic conditions, in bakie U.S. and global markets, could adversely affear business, financial conditio
and results of operations.

Our money transfer business relies in part on teyadl strength of global economic conditions adlwas international migration patter
Consumer money transfer transactions and intematimigration patterns are affected by, among othiegs, employment opportunities
overall economic conditions. Our consumers tenoetemployed in industries such as constructiormmggnenanufacturing and retail that ten:
be cyclical and more significantly impacted by weslonomic conditions than other industries. Thiy mesult in reduced job opportunities
our customers in the U.S. or other countries thairaportant to our business, which could advera#flgct our business, financial condition
results of operations. For example, sustained wesskin the price of oil could adversely affect emoit conditions and lead to reduced
opportunities in certain regions that constitutgignificant portion of our total money transfer wale, which could result in a decrease in
transaction volume. In addition, increases in emyplent opportunities may lag other elements of aimnemic recovery.

Our agents or billers may have reduced sales dnéss as a result of weak economic conditions. Assalt, our agents could reduce t
number of locations or hours of operation, or camsag business altogether. Our billers may havweefeconsumers making payments to tt
particularly billers in those industries that mag ore affected by an economic downturn such asatliemobile, mortgage and re
industries.

If general market conditions in the U.S. or intéio@al economies important to our business wergldteriorate, our business, finan
condition and results of operations could be adgrenpacted. Additionally, if our consumer transags decline or international migrati
patterns shift due to deteriorating economic comnlé, we may be unable to timely and effectivelgiuge our operating costs or take o
actions in response, which could adversely affactonsiness, financial condition and results ofrapiens.
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A significant change or disruption in internationainigration patterns could adversely affect our bnsgs, financial condition and results
operations.

Our money transfer business relies in part on i@tiional migration patterns, as individuals mowanrfrtheir native countries to countries v
greater economic opportunities or a more stabldigal environment. A significant portion of monesansfer transactions are initiated
immigrants or refugees sending money back to thaive countries. Changes in immigration laws tfiatourage international migration
political or other events (such as war, terrorismhealth emergencies) that make it more difficolt individuals to migrate or work abrc
could adversely affect our money transfer remittamolume or growth rate. Sustained weakness inagjlebonomic conditions could red
economic opportunities for migrant workers and ltedu reduced or disrupted international migratipatterns. Reduced or disrup
international migration patterns, particularly iretU.S. or Europe, are likely to reduce money feartsansaction volumes and therefore hav
adverse effect on our results of operations. Funbee, significant changes in international migratipatterns could adversely affect
business, financial condition and results of openst

We face credit risks from our retail agents and éincial institution customers.

The vast majority of our money transfer, bill paymand money order business is conducted throudépendent agents that provide
products and services to consumers at their busiloeations. Our agents receive the proceeds flmrsale of our payment instruments
money transfers, and we must then collect thesdsfdiom the agents. If an agent becomes insolides, for bankruptcy, commits fraud
otherwise fails to remit payment instruments or motransfer proceeds to us, we must nonethelesthpgyayment instrument or complete
money transfer on behalf of the consumer.

Moreover, we have made, and may make in the fusereyred or unsecured loans to retail agents uimtigzd circumstances or allow agent:
retain our funds for a period of time before remgtthem to us. As of December 31, 2014 , we haditexposure to our agents $441.:
million in the aggregate spread across 12,240 agent

Our official check outsourcing business is conddidteough banks and credit unions. Their custorissge official checks and money orc
and remit to us the face amounts of those instrisrtbe day after they are issued. We may be lifalolpayment on all of those instruments.
of December 31, 2014 , we had credit exposure taofficial check financial institution customers $288.2 millionin the aggregate spre
across 1,017 financial institutions.

We monitor the creditworthiness of our agents andricial institution customers on an ongoing basisere can be no assurance tha
models and approaches we use to assess and mbeitoreditworthiness of our agents and financiafitation customers will be sufficien
predictive, and we may be unable to detect andgteqes to timely mitigate an increased credit risk.

In the event of an agent bankruptcy, we would gahebe in the position of creditor, possibly withited security or financial guarantees
performance, and we would therefore be at risk ifdaiced recovery. We are not insured againsttdiasties, except in circumstances of a
theft or fraud. Significant credit losses could @amaterial adverse effect on our business, finhoondition and results of operations.

There are a number of risks associated with ourémational sales and operations that could adveysaffect our business.

We provide money transfer services between and gmmare than 20@ountries and territories and continue to expanaiious internation
markets. Our ability to grow in international matskand our future results could be harmed by a murabfactors, including:

» changes in political and economic conditions antemiial instability in certain regions, including particular the recent civil unre
terrorism and political turmoil in Africa, the Mitkl East and other regions;

* restrictions on money transfers to, from and betnegtain countrie
* money control and repatriation isst

» changes in regulatory requirements or in foreiglicgpincluding the adoption of domestic or foreitpws, regulations and interpretati
detrimental to our business;

» possible increased costs and additional reguldtorglens imposed on our busini
» the implementation of U.S. sanctions, resultingank closures in certain countries and the ultinfragezing of our asse
» burdens of complying with a wide variety of lawslaegulations

» possible fraud or theft losses, and lack of conmgkaby international representatives in foreigralggrisdictions where collection a
legal enforcement may be difficult or costly;

» reduced protection of our intellectual propertyhti

» unfavorable tax rules or trade barri
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* inability to secure, train or monitor internatior@ents; ar
» failure to successfully manage our exposure tadoreurrency exchange rates, in particular witlpees to the eur

In particular, a portion of our revenue is genatatecurrencies other than the U.S. dollar. Assulte we are subject to risks associated
changes in the value of our revenues denominatéatéign currencies. Fluctuations in foreign cunogmxchange rates could adversely a
our financial condition. SeeEnterprise Risk Management—Foreign Currency Riskitem 7A of this Annual Report on Form ¥0for more
information.

If we are unable to adequately protect our brand dathe intellectual property rights related to ouixisting and any new or enhanct
products and services, or if we infringe on the hig of others, our business, prospects, financiahdition and results of operations could
adversely affected.

The MoneyGram brand is important to our business.ufilize trademark registrations in various co@strand other tools to protect our br:
Our business would be harmed if we were unable¢gaately protect our brand and the value of oandhwas to decrease as a result.

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark amglydght laws, trade secret protection and confii@dity and license agreements to pro
the intellectual property rights related to ourguots and services. We also investigate the imtel property rights of third parties to pre\
our infringement of those rights. We may be subjecthird party claims alleging that we infringeethintellectual property rights or he
misappropriated other proprietary rights. We maydmiired to spend resources to defend such clains protect and police our own rigt
Some of our intellectual property rights may notpoetected by intellectual property laws, particiylan foreign jurisdictions. The loss of ¢
intellectual property protection, the inability $ecure or enforce intellectual property protectiorto successfully defend against claim
intellectual property infringement could harm oustness, prospects, financial condition and resdltperation.

Failure to attract and retain key employees couldve a material adverse impact on our business.

Our success depends to a large extent upon outiydbikttract and retain key employees. Qualifiedividuals with experience in our indus
are in high demand. In addition, legal or enforcetaetions against compliance and other persomngsld money transfer industry may af
our ability to attract and retain key employeese Tack of management continuity or the loss of onemore members of our execut
management team could harm our business and fdewelopment. A failure to attract and retain keyspanel could also have a mate
adverse impact on our business.

The operation of retail locations and acquisitionr start-up of businesses create risks and may adverselgcafbur business, financii
condition and results of operations.

We have Compangperated retail locations for the sale of our patsland services. We may be subject to additi@ves land regulations tt
are triggered by our ownership of retail locati@msl our employment of individuals who staff ouraikelocations. There are also certain r
inherent in operating any retail location, incluglitheft, personal injury and property damage and-ierm lease obligations.

We may, from time to time, acquire or stag-businesses both inside and outside of the Lh8.atquisition and integration of busine:
involve a number of risks. Such risks include, agothers:

* risks in connection with acquisitions and stgrs and potential expenses that could be incurredrinection therewit

» risks related to the integration of new businessesluding integrating facilities, personnel, fir@al systems, accounting syste
distribution, operations and general operating @doces;

» the diversion of capital and managemgiatitention from our core busine

« the impact on our financial condition and result®operations due to the timing of the new businasthe failure of the new busines:
meet operating expectations; and

» the assumption of unknown liabilities relating he thew busines

Risks associated with acquiring or starting newirnmsses could result in increased costs and offeating inefficiencies, which could have
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

We may not be able to implement our 2014 Global igBrmation Program as planned, the expected amoahtosts associated with such
program may exceed our forecasts and we may natlhle to realize the full amount of estimated savinijom such program

In 2014, we announced our Global TransformatiorgRnm and may implement additional initiatives itule periods. While our 2014 Glol
Transformation Program is designed to enhance dganmga, fuel multiehannel growth and improve our cost structure gltan be no assural
that the anticipated savings will be realized. Rert the costs to implement such initiatives maytmater than expected. If we do not re:
the anticipated savings from these initiativesif dhe costs to implement them are greater thareebgul, our business, financial condition,
results of operations could be adversely affected.
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Failure to maintain effective internal controls imccordance with Section 404 of the Sarban@gley Act could have a material adverse ef
on our business.

We are required to certify and report on our coarge with the requirements of Section 404 of thb&@sesOxley Act, which requires annt
management assessments of the effectiveness afiteunal control over financial reporting and aadpby our independent registered pu
accounting firm addressing the effectiveness ofintarnal control over financial reporting. If wailfto maintain the adequacy of our inte
controls, as such standards are modified, supplEder amended from time to time, we may not be &blensure that we can conclude o
ongoing basis that we have effective internal adstover financial reporting in accordance with t8et404. In order to achieve effect
internal controls we may need to enhance our adtwurystems or processes, which could increaseastrof doing business. Any failure
achieve and maintain an effective internal corgrolironment could have a material adverse effedwrbusiness.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Stock
THL owns a substantial percentage of our commoncditpand its interests may differ from the interegifour other common stockholders.

As of December 31, 2014 , THL held 44.7 percenbwf outstanding common shares and 38.3 percentrobutstanding shares on a fully-
converted basis, as if all of the outstanding shafd Stock were converted to common shares, diajureasury shares held by the Comp
Additionally our Amended and Restated Certificaténcorporation provides that as long as the Inmesshave a right to designate directot
our Board of Directors pursuant to the Amended Radtated Purchase Agreement, dated as of MarckODB, among the Company and
several Investor parties named therein, THL hagitig to designate two to four directors (suchediors, the "THL Representatives"), v
each have equal votes and who together have antotaiber of votes equal to the number of directsrisgroportionate to the common st
ownership (on an assnverted basis) of the Investors (rounded to tharest whole number), unlike the other membersuofBoard o
Directors who have only one vote each. THL has ayed three of the nine members of our Board oke&liors, each THL Representa
currently has multiple votes, and the THL Represiives together currently hold a majority of theesof our Board of Directors.

We cannot provide assurance that the interestsHif Will coincide with the interests of other holdeof our common stock and THL’
substantial control over us could result in harnth®market price of our common stock by delayaeferring or preventing a change in cor
of our company; impeding a merger, consolidati@kebver or other business combination involving oampany; or entrenching ¢
management and Board of Directors.

We have significant overhang of salable common sésand D Stock held by the Investors relative t@ outstanding common shares.

As of December 31, 2014 , there were 53.1 milliatstanding common shares, excluding treasury sharég2.0 millioncommon shares if tl
outstanding D Stock were converted into commones)ain accordance with the terms of the RegisinaRights Agreement, dated March
2008, among the Company and the Investor partisedaherein, we have an effective Registratione®tant on Form 3; or the Registratic
Statement, that permits the offer and sale byrkiedtors of all of the common shares and D Stoctently held by the Investors, and subjer
certain limitations set forth therein, we are regdito refile the Registration Statement uponxsiration. The Investors have sd@.9 millior
common shares pursuant to the Registration State@uet on April 2, 2014, THL has sold another 8iffiom common shares to the Comp
pursuant to the Stock Repurchase Agreement, datdhv6, 2014, between the Company and THL, lea8&d million common share
(including common shares issuable upon conversfahe D Stock held by the Investors) that can $tédl sold pursuant to the Registra
Statement. The Registration Statement also pemsit® offer and sell, from time to time, up to $5@0lion of our common stock, prefert
stock, debt securities or any combination of theseurities. Sales of a substantial number of comshames, or the perception that signifi
sales could occur (particularly if sales are cotraged in time or amount), may depress the traginge of our common stock.

Our charter documents and Delaware law contain pigiens that could delay or prevent an acquisitiofitbe Company, which could inhib
your ability to receive a premium on your investnidrom a possible sale of the Compar

Our charter documents contain provisions that nisgodirage third parties from seeking to acquireGbenpany. These provisions and spe
provisions of Delaware law relating to business bomations with interested stockholders may have dffect of delaying, deterring
preventing certain business combinations, includingerger or change in control of the Company. Sofrthese provisions may discourag
future acquisition of the Company even if stockleogdwould receive an attractive value for theirreheor if a significant number of ¢
stockholders believed such a proposed transaatidretin their best interests. As a result, stodkds who desire to participate in suc
transaction may not have the opportunity to do so.
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Our bylaws designates the Court of Chancery of tB&ate of Delaware as the sole and exclusive foruon €ertain types of actions at
proceedings that may be initiated by our stockhaklewhich could limit our stockholder ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum fc
disputes with us or our directors, officers or empkes.

Our bylaws provides that, unless we consent iningrito the selection of an alternative forum, treu@ of Chancery of the State of Delaw
will, to the fullest extent permitted by applicaléesv, be the sole and exclusive forum for (i) amyichtive action or proceeding brought on
behalf, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breadha fiduciary duty owed by any of our directordficers or employees to us or
stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a clainsiag pursuant to any provision of the Delaware &ahCorporation Law, or (iv) any acti
asserting a claim against us that is governed éyriternal affairs doctrine. This choice of forumoyision may limit a stockholdes’ability tc
bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds farable for disputes with us or our directors, @ficor employees, which may discourage
lawsuits against us and such persons. Alternativkly court were to find these provisions of ogtaws inapplicable to, or unenforceablt
respect of, one or more of the specified typesctibas or proceedings, we may incur additional £@sisociated with resolving such matte
other jurisdictions, which could adversely affeat business, financial condition or results of @piens.

Our Board of Directors has the power to issue ssrigf preferred stock and to designate the rightsdapreferences of those series, wh
could adversely affect the voting power, dividetiquidation and other rights of holders of our comom stock.

Under our certificate of incorporation, our BoardDirectors has the power to issue series of prefestock and to designate the rights
preferences of those series. Therefore, our Boalirectors may designate a new series of prefestedk with the rights, preferences
privileges that the Board of Directors deems appat, including special dividend, liquidation awnating rights. The creation and designa
of a new series of preferred stock could advera#ct the voting power, dividend, liquidation amither rights of holders of our common st
and, possibly, any other class or series of steakis then in existence.

The market price of our common stock may be vokatil

The market price of our common stock may fluctigdgmificantly in response to a number of factomne of which may be beyond our cont
These factors include the perceived prospects traboperating results of our business; changesstimates of our operating results
analysts, investors or our management; our acfualating results relative to such estimates or egiens; actions or announcements by 1
our competitors; litigation and judicial decisionsgislative or regulatory actions; and changegéneral economic or market conditions
addition, the stock market in general has from timé&me experienced extreme price and volume dlatbns. These market fluctuations cc
reduce the market price of our common stock foseea unrelated to our operating performance.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The following table includes information concerniogr material properties, all of which are leasedluding location, use, area in square
and lease terms as of December 31, 2014 :

Location Use Segment(s) Using Space Square Feet Lease Expiration

Minneapolis, MN Global Operations Center Both 90,55( 12/31/202:
Minneapolis, MN® Global Operations Center Both 60,82: 12/31/201¢
Brooklyn Center, MN Global Operations Center Both 75,00( 10/31/201*
Lakewood, CO Call Center Global Funds Transfer 68,16¢ 3/31/201¢
Dallas, TX Corporate Headquarters Both 54,95¢ 6/30/2021
Dallas, TX Corporate Headquarters Both 22,92: 12/31/201¢
Frisco, TX Global Operations Center Both 63,15( 6/30/2021
London, UK Global Operations Center Both 20,73¢ 1/23/201¢€
Warsaw, Poland Global Operations Center Both 63,15( 8/31/202z

®Wincluded is 52,879 square feet that has beentsuble
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We also have a number of small leased office looatin the U.S., France, Germany, Italy, Belgiume, Netherlands, Norway and Sweden,
additional small leased local support offices incBBntries and territories around the world. Weéxaithat our properties are sufficient to r
our current and projected needs. We periodicailiere our facility requirements and may acquire rfaeilities, or modify, consolidate, dispc
of or sublet existing facilities, based on businessds.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The matters set forth below are subject to unaiés and outcomes that are not predictable. Thepaay accrues for these matters as
resulting losses become probable and can be rdalgoestimated. Further, the Company maintains #xsce coverage for many claims
litigation alleged.

Litigation Commenced Against the Company:

The Company is involved in various claims and &#tign that arise from time to time in the ordinayurse of the Compargy’busines
Management does not believe that after final digloosany of these matters is likely to have a mateadverse impact on the Compasiy’
financial condition, results of operations and ciiaivs.

Government Investigations:

State Civil Investigative Demands- MoneyGram has received Civil Investigative Demafrdsn a working group of nine state attorn
general who have initiated an investigation intcethler the Company took adequate steps to prevesuoeer fraud during the period fr
2007 to 2014. The Civil Investigative Demands sedlirmation and documents relating to the Compsarprocedures designed to pre
fraudulent transfers and consumer complaint infeiona MoneyGram has cooperated fully with the atéys general in this matter ¢
submitted the information and documents requedtectlaims have been filed against MoneyGram in egtion with this investigation and
Company has denied any wrongful conduct. The Compmourrently in discussions with the attorneyseyal to resolve any allegations 1
they might assert.

Taking into account the Company's discussions thithattorneys general, at December 31, 2014, weied$11.0 milliorfor estimated los
exposure in connection with such investigation. Agstimate of a loss contingency involves judgmdrdsed upon currently availa
information and assumptions believed to be readerad is subject to uncertainties. There may bexgosure to losses in excess of
amounts accrued, and any actual loss may vary finencurrent estimate.

Other Matters— The Company is involved in various other governmieqtiries and other matters that arise from timéirne. Manageme
does not believe that after final disposition afyh@se other matters is likely to have a mateathlerse impact on the Compasyinancia
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Actions Commenced by the Company:

CDO Litigation— In March 2012, the Company initiated an arbitrajwoceeding before the Financial Industry Reguiatauthority agains
Goldman Sachs & Co. The arbitration relates to M@ram’s purchase of Residential Mortgage Backed Secsirdigd Collateral De
Obligations that Goldman Sachs sold to MoneyGranmduthe 2005 through 2007 timeframe. The Compdi®eged, among other things, t
Goldman Sachs made material misrepresentation®ianskions in connection with the sale of these pets] ultimately causing significe
losses to the Company. On April 25, 2014, MoneyGeart Goldman Sachs agreed to settle all pendingpatehtial litigation or arbitratic
concerning any Residential Mortgage Backed Seesritir mortgageelated Collateralized Debt Obligations that Goldnfdachs sold
MoneyGram during the 2003 through June 30, 2008 feriod. In connection with this resolution, GoltmnSachs agreed to make a tinee
payment, net of fees and certain expenses, to Meray in the amount of $13.0 million , and to malenatime payment of fees and exper
to MoneyGram'’s legal counsel in the amount of $418Bion . All amounts were paid in May 2014. This resolatiacludes terminating tl
litigation and arbitration between MoneyGram andd&mn Sachs. Goldman Sachs owns, together withineof its affiliates, approximate
14 percent of the shares of the Compargdmmon stock on a diluted basis, assuming coioveas the D Stock currently owned by Goldr
Sachs and its affiliates.

Certain litigation matters commenced by the Compaage also settled during the year ended Decenthe2(®L4, resulting in the recognitic
of an additional $ 32.4 million from securitiestiahents.
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Tax Litigation— In May 2012 and December 2012, the Company filetitions in the U.S. Tax Court challenging the 2@007 and 20C
Notices of Deficiency, respectively, pursuant toichhthe IRS determined that the Company owes amfiiticorporate income taxes bec:
certain deductions relating to securities losse®wapital in nature, rather than ordinary losgedanuary 2015, the U.S. Tax Court grante:
IRS's motion for summary judgment upholding thetiisvance of ordinary tax treatment on securittessés. This court decision is a chan¢
facts which warranted reassessment of the uncedaiposition. Although the Company believes thdtas substantive tax law argument
favor of its position and expects to appeal thengyjlthe reassessment resulted in the Companyndigieg that it is no longer more likely th
not that its existing position will be sustainediatcordingly, in early 2015, the Company will reta full reserve for the exposure associ
with this matter. This change is anticipated taréase "Income tax expense” in the Consolidatece@ets of Operations by approxima
$70.0 million, which will be reflected as a discrete item fax taurposes. The Company anticipates that cash pagnire the second half
2015 specific to this matter will be approximat&B0.0 million for federal tax payments and assedanterest.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUIT Y, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Stock Matkd.C under the symbol “MGI”"No dividends on our common stock were decl
by our Board of Directors in 2014 or 2013 . SeeeNi®? — Stockholders’ Deficiof the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statésém
additional disclosure. As of March 2, 2015 , themr¥e 8,969 stockholders of record of our commonksto

The high and low sales prices for our common sfockhe periods presented were as follows for #spective periods:

2014 2013
Fiscal Quarter High Low High Low
First $ 20.3t % 17.02 % 18.11 $ 13.15
Second $ 186( $ 1261 $ 248t $ 15.7¢
Third $ 1492 % 125¢ % 23.3¢ % 19.3¢
Fourth $ 12.9: % 8.1t $ 2198 % 17.3¢

The Board of Directors has authorized the repurehafs a total of 12,000,000shares, as announced in our press releases g8
November 18, 2004, August 18, 2005 and May 9, 200¥ repurchase authorization is effective untithsiime as the Company |
repurchased 12,000,0@@mmon shares. The Company may consider repurchabiares which would be subject to limitations ur deb
agreements. Common stock tendered to the Compangrinection with the exercise of stock options esting of restricted stock are
considered repurchased shares under the termsafeffurchase authorization. As of December 31, 20thé Company had repurcha
8,228,573 common shares under the terms of thealegse authorization and has remaining authorizatioepurchase up to 3,771,48Rares

The following table presents a summary of sharengmses made by the Company during the three m@mtied December 31, 20adde
the repurchase authorization.

Total Number of ~ Maximum Number
Shares Purchased of Shares that May
as Part of Publicly  Yet Be Purchased

Total Number of  Average Price Paid Announced Under the
Period Shares Purchased Per Share Programs Programs
October 1, 2014 - October 31, 2014 — 3 = = 4,643,12
November 1, 2014 - November 30, 2014 209,20( 8.7C 209,20( 4,433,92
December 1, 2014 - December 31, 2014 662,50( 8.62 662,50( 3,771,42
Total 871,70( $ 8.6% 871,70(

On April 2, 2014, the Company repurchased 8,185¢a®@mon shares from THL at a price of $16@2%5 share. These repurchases are se|
from, and do not affect, the Company's repurchasgram described above.

The terms of our debt agreements place signifianitations on the amount of restricted paymentsmay make, including dividends on
common stock. With certain exceptions, we may onéke restricted payments in an aggregate amounbretceed $50.0 millionsubject t
an incremental buildp based on our consolidated net income in futeogs. As a result, our ability to declare or myidends o
distributions to the stockholders of the Compangdmmon stock is materially limited at this tifo dividends were paid on our comn
stock in 2014 or 2013 .

STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE

In 2014, we revised our peer group. Our previous peermiB0Id Peer Group") included companies that waréghe money remittance ¢
payment industries, along with companies that &ffely capture our competitive landscape given ghaeducts and services that we prov
Our new peer group ("New Peer Group") consistsrefipusly included companies, excluding comparties &re no longer publicly traded
are deemed irrelevant to our competitive landscape.

The New Peer Group is comprised of the followingnpanies: Euronet Worldwide Inc., Fiserv, Inc., GlblPayments Inc., Green [
Corporation, Heartland Payment Systems, Inc., Highee Holdings, Inc., MasterCard, Inc., Total Sgst8ervices, Inc., Visa, Inc., T
Western Union Company and Xoom Corporation.
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The Old Peer Group is comprised of the followingnpanies: ACI Worldwide, Inc., Euronet Worldwide InEiserv, Inc., Global Payme
Inc., Green Dot Corporation, Heartland Payment&wyst Inc., Higher One Holdings, Inc., Lending Pssieg Services, Inc., MasterCard, |
Total System Services, Inc., Visa, Inc., The Westénion Company and Xoom Corporation.

The following graph compares the cumulative togaiim from December 31, 2009 to December 31, 2600dur common stock, our peer grt
index of payment services companies and the S&Rru¥k. The graph assumes the investment of $1@@c¢h of our common stock, our N
and Old Peer Group Indexes and the S&P 500 Inddemember 31, 2009and the reinvestment of all dividends as and wdistmibuted. Th
graph is furnished and shall not be deemed “fileith the SEC or subject to Section 18 of the ExgeaAct, and is not to be incorporatec
reference into any filing of the Company, whethexda before or after the date hereof, regardleasyfeneral incorporation language in ¢
filing.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
AMONG MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.,
S&P 500 INDEX AND PEER GROUP INDEX

3000 -
230
200

1500 -

DOLLARS

100 E——

W=7 T |

12/31/2009 12/31/2010 127312011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013 1273172014

*$100 invested on 12/31/2009 in stock or index|udmg reinvestment of dividends.

The following table is a summary of the cumulatiotal return for the fiscal years ending Decembder 3

12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013 12/31/2014
MoneyGram International, Inc. 100.0¢ 94.1( 77.0¢ 57.6¢ 90.1¢ 39.4¢
S&P 500 100.0( 115.0¢ 117.4¢ 136.3( 180.4¢ 205.1
New Peer Group 100.0( 89.5¢ 123.0( 162.5! 253.1¢ 282.3:
Old Peer Group 100.0( 89.1¢ 122.7. 161.9 252.4( 281.9:
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The information set forth below should be readanjanction with “Managemerg’Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esult
of Operations”and our Consolidated Financial Statements and Nbgggto. The following table presents our selectasolidated financi
data for the years ended December 31 :

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in millions, except per share and locatiatata)
Operating Results
Revenue
Global Funds Transfer segment $ 1374¢ $ 1389.¢ $ 1255: $ 1,152 $ 1,053.
Financial Paper Products segment 80.:2 84.C 84.t 93.2 109.t
Other — 0.6 g 1.8 3.¢
Total revenue $ 1454¢ $ 1474 $ 1,341 $ 1247¢ $ 1,166.
Net income (loss) $ 721 % 524 % (49.9) $ 504 % 43.¢
Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic $ 1.1C $ 0.7 % (0.69) $ (9.09 $ (8.77)
Diluted $ 1.1C $ 0.7 % (0.69) $ (9.09 $ (8.77)
Financial Position
Cash and cash equivalerits $ 250.¢ $ 318.¢ % 227¢ 3 2117 % 230.z
Total assets $ 4642 $ 4786¢ $ 5150« $ 51756 $ 5,115
Long-term debt $ 963 $ 842¢ % 809.¢ $ 810.¢ $ 639.¢
Mezzanine equit{? $ — $ — $ — $ — 3 999.¢
Stockholders’ deficit $ (182.7) $ (77.0 % (161.9) $ (110.2) $ (942.5)
Other Selected Data
Cash dividends declared per share $ — % — ¢ — $ — 3 —
Number of money transfer locations 350,00 336,00( 310,00( 267,00( 227,00(

(1) As of December 31, 2014, we have recast omsGlaated Balance Sheets to include the Settlenssit and cash equivalents, Receivables, netefittezaring investmer
and Available-forsale investments in a new balance sheet captidilednSettlement assets, in an amount equal taneay service obligations. The historically repo
Assets in excess of payment service obligationsnare presented as unrestricted Cash and cash éntwvan the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Reféiote 1 —
Description of the Business and Basis of Presamtiof the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statesifen further discussion.

(2) Mezzanine equity related to our Series B StocklolMohg the 2011 Recapitalization, all amounts ideld in mezzanine equity were converted into compisne
stockholders’ deficit and no shares of Series RlStemained issued at December 31, 2014 , 20132 a0d 2011 .
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our Consolidated Financial Statements @atated Notes. This discussion cont
forwarddooking statements that involve risks and uncetiiaén Our actual results could differ materiallgrfr those anticipated due to vari
factors discussed below undelCautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Lookinge®teents’ and under the caption Risk Factors’ in
Part 1, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The comparisons presented in this discussion teftte same period in the prior year, unless otlsenwoted. This discussion is organize
the following sections:

*  Overview

* Results of Operatiol

» Liquidity and Capital Resourc

»  Critical Accounting Policies and Estima

» Cautionary Statements Regarding Forwlandking Statemen

OVERVIEW

MoneyGram is a leading global money transfer anangant services company operating in approximat8ly,@0agent locations in more th
200 countries and territories. Our products include eytransfers, bill payment services, money orderises and official check processi
As an alternative financial services provider, ptimary consumers are unbanked or underbanked owrsu Other consumers who use
services are convenience users and emergency wkeranay use traditional banking services, but préfeuse our services based
convenience, cost or to make emergency paymerttawsfers. We primarily offer services through dhprarty agents, including retail chai
independent retailers, post offices and other firrinstitutions. We have Compamperated retail locations in the U.S. and Westerroge
We are an innovator in the industry by diversifyimgr core money transfer revenue through new chansiech as online, mobile, kiosks .
other self-service channels.

Our global money transfer services are our prinmavenue driver, accounting for 88 percent of totaenue for the year end@ecember 3:
2014. The market for money transfer services remaimg gempetitive, consisting of a small number ofjmicompetitors and a large nun
of small, niche competitors. While we are the sectargest global money transfer company in the dvgdased on total face value
remittances in 2014), we will encounter competitimm new technologies allowing consumers to serraceive money in a variety of ways.

We manage our revenue and related commission espém®ugh two reporting segments: Global Fundasfest and Financial Paper Produ
The Global Funds Transfer segment provides globahen transfer services in more than 200 countriesk tarritories. The Global Fun
Transfer segment also provides bill payment sesvioeconsumers through substantially all of our eyomansfer agent and Companyerate
locations in the U.S., Canada, Puerto Rico, andediin agent locations in select Caribbean anagan countries. The Financial Pe
Products segment provides money order servicesrtsueners through our retail and financial institotiocations in the U.S. and Puerto R
and provides official check services to financradtitutions in the U.S. Businesses that are notadpé within these segments are categoriz
“Other” and are primarily related to discontinued prodaetd businesses. The "Other" segment also contaipsmte items. Our sales effc
are organized based on the nature of the produadtservices offered. Operating expenses are arthtyz¢he functional nature of the expense.

See a summary of key 2014 events as disclosediri Piéem 1, "2014 Events of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Business Environment

Overall, our total revenue decline for the yeareshdecember 31, 2014 was one percewhich was primarily driven by the competit
pricing actions and transaction declines in our.UdSU.S. corridor. Our money transfer fee and ottevenue decline for the year en
December 31, 2014 was one percant result of the decline in our U.S. to U.S. hess, which was offset by our continued growtthan .S
Outbound and Non-U.S corridors.

Throughout 2014 worldwide economic conditions continued to remairstable, as evidenced by high unemployment iatégy market:
government assistance to citizens and businessaglmbal basis, restricted lending activity and tnsumer confidence, among other fac
Historically, the remittance industry has gener&igen resilient during times of economic softnessnaney transfers are deemed essent
many, with the funds used by the receiving partyfémd, housing and other basic needs. Given tbbajlreach and extent of the cur
economic recession, the growth of money transféurmes and the average principal of money transfendinued to fluctuate by corridor ¢
country in 2014, particularly in Europe. Also, there is continugdlitical unrest in parts of the Middle East andiéd that contributed
volatile fluctuations in selected countries sucltggpt and Libya.
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As of December 31, 2014 , our money transfer algasé expanded four percent to approximately 350dx#ions, compared to ovaB6,00(
locations as of December 31, 201Brimarily due to expansion in the Asia Pacifiodib, Eastern Europe, Africa and Mexico regions.
continue to review markets where we may have ammppity to increase our presence through agemirgig and acquisitions, specifically
countries or cities where we are underrepresented.

On April 17, 2014, Walmart announced the launchhef Walmart white label money transfer servicer@pmm operated by a competitol
MoneyGram, which allows consumers to transfer mdmetyveen its U.S. store locations. This programtéirmonsumers to transferrirgp0(
per transaction. We are unable to determine theativxtent of the londerm negative impact of this program to our businétowever, th
Company's Walmart U.S. to U.S. transactions degIBiépercent for the year ended December 31, 2014 .

We generally compete for money transfer consumarshe basis of trust, convenience, availabilityootlets, price, technology and br:
recognition. We are monitoring consumer behaviogrisure that we maintain a transaction growth tr@niging actions from our competit
may also result in pricing changes for our prodwasid services. On October 31, 201#e introduced lower prices for our money trar
product in the U.S. to U.S. market and, as a rebalte seen improvements including a reductioméndecline of transactions over $50 an
increase in principal per transaction.

On an ongoing basis we see a trend among staterafednd international regulators towards enharsmdtiny of antimoney launderin
compliance programs, as well as consumer fraudeptén and education. Compliance with laws and legguns is a highly complex a
integral part of our day-tday operations, thus we have continued to increaseompliance personnel headcount and make ineegtnin ou
compliancerelated technology and infrastructure. Our openatiare subject to a wide range of laws and regmsatin the U.S. and ott
countries. In the first quarter of 2012 compliance monitor was selected pursuant egairement of our settlement with the MDPA anc
U.S. DOJ. We have received two annual reports fileencompliance monitor, which have resulted in ostiouing to make investments
various areas of our compliance systems and opagtWe incurred $6.5 million and $6.1 millioh expense directly related to the mor
and $49.0 million and $10.8 million of compliancehancement program expenditures for the years eBeéegmber 31, 2014 and 2013
respectively.

Anticipated Trends for 2015

This discussion of trends expected to impact ogin®ss in 2015 based on information presently available andaios certain assumptiol
including assumptions regarding future economicd@wns. Differences in actual economic conditicshsring 2015compared with ot
assumptions could have a material impact on ouwrlteesSee “Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Lookingedtents’ and Part
Item 1A, “ Risk Factors’ of this Annual Report on Form 1K-for additional factors that could cause resutidiffer materially from thos
contemplated by the following forward-looking stagnts.

Throughout 2014 global economic conditions remained weak. We oapredict the duration or extent of the severityhe current econom
conditions, nor the extent to which these condgiaould negatively affect our business, operategylts or financial condition. While t
money remittance industry has generally been essilduring times of economic softness, the curgdobal economic conditions he
continued to adversely impact the demand for maasyttances.

We continue to review markets in which we may haweopportunity to increase prices based on incdeasend awareness, loyalty ¢
competitive positioning. We are monitoring consurbehavior to ensure that we continue our marketeslggowth. We will specificall
continue to monitor the U.S. to U.S. corridor foicpng actions from our competitors which may alesult in pricing changes for our prodt
and services. As a result of our agent expansidiretention efforts, commissions expense and signimuses may increase in 2015 .

In February 2014, we announced our Global Transdtion Program, which consists of three key comptmesur compliance enhancem
program, our reorganization and restructuring progand growth in seervice revenue. Reorganization and restructusrgentered aroul
facilities and headcount rationalization, systerficielhcies and headcount righhoring and outsourcing. In relation to the commle
enhancement program, we anticipate to make invesmetaling $80.0 million to $90.0 milliorelated to the compliance enhancer
program through 2016. We incurred $49.0 million &id.8 millionof compliance enhancement program expenditureshforyears end:
December 31, 2014 and 2013 , respectively. Inioglab the reorganization and restructuring prograra are estimating a total &#0.(
million in expenditures through 2015 and generatban annual estimated pre-tax cost savings ofcaqpately $20.0 millionexiting fisca
year 2015. For the years encDecember 31, 2014 and 2013 , the Company recomtatreorganization and restructuring expenses36ft
million and $3.2 million , respectively.

We believe that our investment in innovative praduand services, particularly seirvice solutions such as MoneyGram Online, mc
account deposit and kiodlased services, positions the Company to enhareaue growth and diversify our product offeringsr Ehe year
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the self-sechigenel accounted for eight percent and six peércarspectively, of money transfer
and other revenue.

For our Financial Paper Products segment, we expectlecline in overall papéased transactions to continue. We expect the lyig
balances to remain stable or move commensuratetigttransaction volume.
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We continue to see a trend among state, federaindichational regulators toward enhanced scrudihgnti-noney laundering compliance,
well as consumer fraud prevention and educationhdie taken and will continue to take proactivpstinat we feel are in the best intere:
consumers to prevent consumer fraud. Additionaflg,terms of the DPA impose additional costs up@enQompany related to compliance
other required terms, and such additional compéiacwsts could be substantial. Additional compliaobkgations could also have an adv:
impact on the Company's operations.

Financial Measures and Key Metrics

This Form 10K includes financial information prepared in acamde with accounting principles generally acceftetthe U.S., ("GAAP"), €
well as certain non-GAAP financial measures thause to assess our overall performance.

GAAP Measures— We utilize certain financial measures prepareddcoedance with GAAP to assess the Company's oveeatbrmance
These measures include, but are not limited to: &ed other revenue, fee and other commission eerpeee and other revenue |
commissions, operating income and operating maifgire to our regulatory capital requirements, wendeertain payment service asset
settlement assets. Settlement assets represerg faoeived or to be received from agents for uleskthoney transfers, money orders
customer payments. Settlement assets includersetitecash and cash equivalents, receivables,ntetest-bearing investments and availabls
for-sale investments. See Note-2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policsthe Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemém
additional disclosure.

Non-GAAP Measures— Generally, a notGAAP financial measure is a humerical measurer@ticial performance, financial position, or ¢
flows that excludes (or includes) amounts thatimckided in (or excluded from) the most directlymquarable measure calculated and pres:
in accordance with GAAP. The ndbAAP financial measures should be viewed as a sapght to, and not a substitute for, financial mese
presented in accordance with GAAP. We strongly arage investors and stockholders to review oumfifed statements and publicfijed
reports in their entirety and not to rely on anygé financial measure. While we believe that thas¢rics enhance investors' understandit
our business, these metrics are not necessarilp@@ble with similarly named metrics of other comipa. The following norfGAAP financia
measures include:

* EBITDA(earnings before interest, taxes, depreciationaanaitization, including agent signing bonus amatton,
» Adjusted EBITDAEBITDA adjusted for certain significant iten

* Adjusted Free Cash Flo(Adjusted EBITDA less cash interest expense, caslexpense, cash payments for capital expenditure
cash payments for agent signing bonuses)

We believe that EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjudtéree Cash Flow enhance investors' understandingrdusiness and performar
We use EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to review reswfsoperations, forecast and budget, assess aashafid allocate capital resources.
use Adjusted Free Cash Flow to assess our cashaftacapital resources. Since these are®AAP measures, the Company believes
more appropriate to disclose these metrics aftaudision and analysis of the GAAP financial measure

Non-Financial Measures

We also use certain ndimancial measures to assess our overall performafkese measures include, but are not limitedramsaction:
transaction growth and money transfer agent base.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table is a summary of the result®pérations for the years ended December 31 :

2014 vs 2013 vs

2014 2013 2012 2013 2012 2014 vs 2013 2013 vs 2012
(Dollars in millions) (%) (©)] (%) (%)
Revenue
Fee and other revenue $1,438.. $1,456.( $1,328.¢ $ (184 $ 128.C (1)% 10%
Investment revenue 16.5 17.€ 12.€ (1.0 5.C (6)% 40%
Total revenue 1,454.¢ 1,474. 1,341.: (19.5) 133.2 (D)% 10%
Expenses
Fee and other commissions expense 666.( 677.¢ 599.2 (11.8) 78.€ (2)% 13%
Investment commissions expense 0.4 0.4 0.3 — 0.1 — % 33%
Total commissions expense 666. 678.2 599.t (11.¢) 78.7 (2)% 13%
Compensation and benefits 275.( 264.¢ 241.¢ 10.1 23.2 4% 10 %
Transaction and operations support 3322 253.7 355.7 78.5 (102.0 31% (29)%
Occupancy, equipment and supplies 54.¢ 49.C 47.7 5.4 1.3 11% 3%
Depreciation and amortization 55.k 50.7 44.: 4.8 6.4 10 % 14%
Total operating expenses 1,383t 1,296.t 1,288.¢ 87.C 7.7 7% 1%
Operating income 71.2 177.¢ 52.4 (106.5 125t (6C)% 24C%
Other (income) expense
Net securities gains (45.9 — (20.0 (45.9 10.C (100% (100%
Interest expense 442 47.2 70.¢ 3.0 (23.€) (7% (33%
Debt extinguishment costs — 45.2 — (45.9) 45.:2 (100% 10C %
Other costs — — 0.4 — (0.9 — % (200%
Total other (income) expense, net (1.2) 92.€ 61.2 (93.9) 31z (101)% 51%
Income (loss) before income taxes 72.€ 85.2 (8.9 (12.9) 94.2 (15)% NM
Income tax expense 0.t 32.¢ 40.4 (32.9 (7.5) (98)% (19%
Net income (loss) $ 721 $ 524 $ (499 $ 197 $ 101.7 38 % NM

NM = Not meaningful

Global Funds Transfer Fee and Other Revenue

Fee and other revenue consists of transaction feesgn exchange revenue and other revenue. Tinep&oy earns money transfer rever
primarily from consumer transaction fees on its myoitransfer and bill payment services and the mamagt of currency exchange spre
involving different "send" and "receive" countriédther revenue in the Global Funds Transfer segmemiarily consists of breakage reve
on money transfer transactions where the likelihobgayment is remote and there is no requirementdmitting balances to governm
agencies under unclaimed property laws.

The following discussion provides a summary of &l other revenue for the Global Funds Transfemseg for the years enddakcembe
31. Investment revenue is not included in the analpsilow. For further detail, see "Investment ReeeAunalysis" section in Iltem 7 of ti
Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional disclosur

2014 vs 2013 vs
(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2013 2012
Money transfer fee and other revenue $ 1274: $ 1,287t $ 1,148 (2)% 12 %
Bill payment fee and other revenue 100.1 102.( 106.1 (2)% (4%
Global Funds Transfer fee and other revenue $ 1374¢ $ 1,389.% $ 1,254.¢ ()% 11%
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Money Transfer Fee and Other Reve

The following table details the changes in monandfer fee and other revenue from the respectioe year for the years ended December 31

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
For the period ended December 31 $ 1,287f $ 1,148!
Change resulting from:
Average face value per transaction and pricing (39.5) (4.9
Money transfer volume growth 29.t 143.(
Corridor mix (2.5) (4.5
Foreign currency exchange rate (0.7) 5.4
For the period ended December 31 $ 12747 $ 1,287!

In 2014, the decline in money transfer fee and other regemas primarily driven by the decline in our Ut&.U.S. business, lower averi
face value per transaction, pricing actions intc@tliin October 2014 and corridor mix, partiallyseff by transaction growth of two percent
The low transaction growth was driven by the dexiim our U.S. to U.S. business primarily due theonfuction of the Walmart white lat
money transfer service, which was offset by ourtiooied growth in the U.S. Outbound and Ndr& money transfer transactions as det
further below. In 2013 , money transfer fee anceptievenue growth was primarily driven by transacttijrowth of 13 percergnd positivel
impacted by movement in foreign currency exchamagest partially offset by our corridor mix and aage face value per transaction.

Money Transfer Transactiot

The following table displays the percentage distiin of total money transfer transactions by gapbic location (the region originating
transaction) for the years ended December 31 :

2014 2013 2012
U.S.to U.S. 23% 30% 31%
U.S. Outbound 40% 36% 35%
Non-U.S. 37% 34% 34%

The following table displays year over year monmeyisfer transaction growth by geographic locattbe ¢egion originating the transaction)
the years ended December 31 :

2014 vs 2013 2013 vs 2012

Total transactions 2% 13%
U.S.to U.S. (22)% 7%
U.S. Outbound 15% 18%
Non-U.S. 1C% 13%

In 2014 , the U.S. Outbound corridors generategdreent transaction growth while accounting forp&dcentof our total money transt
transactions. The success in the U.S. Outbounddoonwas primarily driven by sends to Mexico, whighd transaction growth @0 percer
for 2014 , as well as sends to Africa and Asia fRadNon-U.S. transactions accounted for 37 peroérdur total money transfer transacti
and generated 10 percerdansaction growth. The growth was primarily drivnthe Middle East, Asia Pacific and Latin Ameriegions. Th
U.S. to U.S. corridor declined 22 percent and antelifor 23 percerdf our total money transfer transactions. The declvas primarily drive
by a 37 percent decline in Walmart U.S. to U.S deations, partially offset by 10 percegiowth in U.S. to U.S. transactions excluc
Walmart.

In 2013, the U.S. Outbound corridors generategek8ent transaction growth and accounted for 36gmof total money transfer transactic
The success in the U.S. Outbound corridor was piliyndriven by sends to Mexico, which had transactgrowth of 31 percent for 2013 . Non:
U.S. transactions accounted for 34 percent of toiahey transfer transactions and generated 13 meremsaction growth. The growth v
primarily driven by the Western European, Latin Aioan and Caribbean regions. The U.S. to U.S. dorrgrew seven perceahd accounte
for 30 percent of total money transfer transactions
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Bill Payment Fee and Other Rever

In 2014 , bill payment fee and other revenue desg@awo percent , or $1.9 milligras a result of lower average fees resulting fsbifts ir
industry mix, partially offset by transaction grdwaf one percent The impact of changes in industry mix reflects continued growth in ne
emerging verticals that generate a lower fee pstction than our traditional verticals.

In 2013, bill payment fee and other revenue desg@dour percent , or $4.1 million , as a resulrafsaction declines of two percemd lowe
average fees as a result of shifts in industry mix.

Global Funds Transfer Commissions Expense

The Company incurs fee commissions primarily on®labal Funds Transfer products. In a money trartsi@saction, both the agent initiat
the transaction and the receiving agent earn a éssion that is generally based on a percentagheofae charged to the consumer. In €
payment transaction, the agent initiating the @atien receives a commission and, in limited cirstances, the biller will generally ear
commission that is based on a percentage of theclieeged to the consumer. Other commissions expemcdedes the amortization
capitalized agent signing bonus payments.

The following table details the changes in fee atiter commissions for the Global Funds Transfernsag from the respective prior year
the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
For the period ended December 31: $ 676.¢ $ 597.¢
Change resulting from:
Money transfer corridor and agent mix (14.2) 7.€
Money transfer revenue volumes (5.9 60.¢€
Bill payment volumes and commission rates — (0.6)
Signing bonuses 10.7 8.¢
Foreign currency exchange rate (2.2 2.8
For the period ended December 31: $ 665.. $ 676.¢

In 2014 , the Global Funds Transfer commission egpelecreased two percent , or $11.5 millidme decrease in commission expense
primarily driven by changes in the corridor and regmix and the movement in foreign currency exclearages, partially offset by increa:
signing bonus amortization from our agent expansiod retention efforts. Commissions expense asreepgge of fee and other reve
remained relatively stable at 48.4 percent and g8rZent , in 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

In 2013 , the Global Funds Transfer commission egpancreased 13 percent , or $79.3 milliocFhe increase in commission expense
primarily driven by transaction growth from the negntransfer product, changes in the corridor anengagnix, the movement in forei
currency exchange rates, a stgpin the commission rate for a large agent anceased signing bonus amortization from our agepaesiol
and retention efforts, which was partially offske ttransaction declines from the bill payment pmdin 2013, commissions expense a
percentage of fee and other revenue grew from gigréent to 48.7 percent , when compared to 2012 .

Financial Paper Products Fee and Other Revenue arfeee and Other Commissions Expense

Fee and other revenue consists of transaction fieeesgn exchange revenue and other revenue. Tehosdees are earned on money ordet
official check transactions. Other revenue prinyacibnsists of processing fees on rebate checksamitolled disbursements, service cha
on aged outstanding money orders and money ordpeniser fees. We generally do not pay commissmagénts on the sale of money orc
except, in certain limited circumstances, for laagents where we may pay a fixed commission basedtal money order transactions.

The following discussion provides a summary of dee other revenue and fee and other commissiorensggor the Financial Paper Prot
segment for the years ended December IBYestment revenue and investment commissionsresgis not included in the analysis below.
further detail, see Thvestment Revenue Analyssection in Item 7 of this Annual Report on ForfiH for additional disclosure.

2014 vs 2013 vs
(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2013 2012
Money order fee and other revenue $ 49.2 $ 51.1 $ 55.4 (4)% (8)%
Official check fee and other revenue 147 16.2 18.c (9% (11)%
Financial Paper Product fee and other revenue $ 64.C $ 67.2 $ 73.7 (5)% (9)%
Fee and other commissions expense $ 06 $ 0¢S $ 1.t (33)% (40)%
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Money order fee and other revenue decreased in 20842013 due to transaction declines of six péraed nine percent respectively
attributed primarily to the migration by consuméwsother payment methods. Similarly, official chdele and other revenue decrea$muat
percent and eight percent in 2014 and 2013 , réispbc Fee and other commissions expense decrdas88 percent and 40 percent2ddls
and 2013, respectively, due primarily to volumeliohes and change in agent mix.

Investment Revenue Analysis

The following discussion provides a summary of @@mpany's investment revenue and investment conunigxpense for the years en
December 31 :

2013 vs
(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs 201: 2012
Investment revenue $ 16.5 $ 17.€ % 12.€ (6)% 40%
Investment commissions experi8e 0.4 0.4 0.3 —% 33%

®Commissions are generated from the average outstpodsh balances of official checks sold.

Investment Reveni

Investment revenue consists primarily of interesbme generated through the investment of casiéxdareceived from the sale of offic
checks and money orders. These cash balances aitabte/ to us for investment until the payment fimstent is cleared. Investment reve
varies depending on the level of investment balsuacel the yield on our investments.

Investment revenue in 2014 decreased $1.1 million six percent , when compared to 20d# to lower average outstanding investr
balances as well as lower interest rates.

Investment revenue in 2013 increased $5.0 million40 percent , when compared to 2Q0H2e to an increase in income received on ou
recovery securities and a shift in investment altimn to longer term, higher yielding investmerfitso partially offsetting the increase w
lower average investment balances from the rumfoéertain official check financial institution dosners terminated in prior periods.

Investment Commissions Expe

Investment commissions expense consists of amaaitsto financial institution official check custens based on shawrm interest ra
indices multiplied by the average outstanding daslances of official checks sold by that finandredtitution. Throughout 2014 investmer
commissions expense remained stable compared t8 2@dile investment commissions expense in 20X3emsed $0.1 million , 083
percent , when compared to 2012 .

Operating Expenses

The following table is a summary of the operatirgenses for the years ended December 31 :

2014 2013 2012

Percent of Total Percent of Total Percent of Total

(Dollars in millions) Dollars Revenue Dollars Revenue Dollars Revenue
Compensation and benefits $ 275.( 1% $ 264.¢ 18% $ 241.¢ 18%
Transaction and operations support 332.C 23% 253.7 17% 355.7 27%
Occupancy, equipment and supplies 54.¢ 3% 49.C 3% 47.7 3%
Depreciation and amortization 55.t 4% 50.7 4% 44.: 3%
Total operating expenses $ 717.1 4% $ 618.% 42% $ 689.: 51%

In 2014 , total operating expenses as a percewfagpeal revenue was 49 percent , compared to 4@péin 2013 The increase was primai
the result of increased expenses incurred as dt resthe 2014 Global Transformation Program. Inl20total operating expenses ¢
percentage of total revenue was 42 percent , whiahan improvement from 51 perc@am®012, or flat when considering the legal expsrfst
the MDPA/U.S. DOJ settlement and shareholder liga
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Compensation and Benefits

Compensation and benefits include salaries andfitgnmanagement incentive programs, related phyaskes and other employee rele
costs. The following table is a summary of the ggim compensation and benefits from the respeptiioe year for the years end8gcembe
31:

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
For the period ended December 31 $ 264¢ $ 241¢
Change resulting from:
Employee stock-based compensation (5.9 2.4
Reorganization and restructuring 18.t (5.9
Salaries, related payroll taxes and incentive caorsgion (9.0 26.¢
Compliance enhancement program 2.8 0.1
Other employee benefits 3.6 (0.3
For the period ended December 31 $ 275.C $ 264.¢

In 2014, compensation and benefits expense increased rilyirdae to the 2014 Global Transformation Prograntjuding increased co:
relating to our reorganization and restructuringvéties and our compliance enhancement prograne ifbbrease in costs related to the 2
Global Transformation Program was $22.6 milliontidly offset by expenses of $1.3 milliorelated to the 2010 Global Transforma
Initiative that concluded in 2013. The costs relate the 2014 Global Transformation Program prifgazonsist of severance costs relate
reorganization and restructuring activities andéased headcount for the compliance enhancemegitgpno Salaries and related payroll te
increased due to increased headcount, ordinaryysalereases and changing employee base as we invegr sales, market development
compliance functions. The increase in compensatioth benefits expense was slightly offset by deetastockbased compensation ¢
performance incentives. See Note 13 Steck-based Compensatiaf the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateséor additione
disclosure.

In 2013, compensation and benefits expense increased nisirdae to increased headcount, ordinary salacydases and changing emplc
base mix as we invest in our sales, market devedoprand compliance functions. Employee stbaked compensation increased due t
annual grant of options and restricted stock ur@ther employee benefits decreased due to lowamranse costs. Reorganization
restructuring costs decreased as we concludedth@ Global Transformation Initiative.

Transaction and Operations Support

Transaction and operations support primarily inekidnarketing, professional fees and other outsateices, telecommunications, ac
support costs, including forms related to our paisilunoneompensation employee costs, including trainingydl and relocation costs, bz
charges and the impact of foreign exchange rateemewts on our monetary transactions, assets drilitiés denominated in a currency ot
than the U.S. dollar. The following table is a suamynof the change in transaction and operationpatifrom the respective prior year for
years endeDecember 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
For the period ended December 31 $ 2537 $ 3557
Change resulting from:
Compliance enhancement program 19.¢ 2.7
Reorganization and restructuring 9.2 (9.6)
Outsourcing, independent contractor and consuttastis 19.c 1.€
Marketing costs 7.2 (2.3
Legal expenses 13.4 (115.9)
Direct monitor costs 0.4 6.1
Agent related costs 0.4 3.¢
Provision for loss 6.€ 6.C
Capital transaction costs and other 1.¢ 4.€
For the period ended December 31 $ 33272 $ 2537

38




Table of Contents

In 2014, transaction and operations support expense isedeprimarily as a result of the expenses associaith the 2014 Glob
Transformation Program, including increased coslsted to our reorganization and restructuringvéi®s and our compliance enhancen
program. The increase in costs for the 2014 Gldbahsformation Program was $32.6 millippartially offset by a decrease in expenst
$3.4 million associated with the 2010 Global Transformationidtiite which concluded in 2013. Expenses relatedth® complianc
enhancement program increased $19.9 milasnwe continue to implement compliance enhancetioatd and processes. Additionally,
incurred increased expenses for outsourcing duthdoshift from internal employees to outsourceddegs as part of the 2014 Glo
Transformation Program. Capital transaction costsraelated to the underwritten secondary publierdfy and share repurchase which \
completed on April 2, 2014. We incurred increaseatkating costs due to the launch of our new low.WoSU.S. pricing. Legal expen:
increased primarily due to the $11.0 milliaccrual associated with the State Civil Investigaibemands matter. Increased expenditures rt
to telecommunication costs are a result of contimsgtwork, product and infrastructure growth. Tiheréase in the provision for loss consis
amounts related to the closure of two agents duiiig!.

In 2013, transaction and operations support expense deteas a result of decreased legal expenses rdlatdte settlement in t
MDPA/U.S. DOJ investigation and the shareholdégdiion. The reduction in transaction and operatismpport expenses were partially ol
by the ongoing IRS tax litigation. We incurred ieased expenses for agent support costs and indreageenditures related
telecommunication costs as a result of continuddor, product and infrastructure growth. As a tesd the DPA, we incurred increas
expenses for independent contractors and conssitaling with fees associated for the compliandeaecement program. Other expel
consist of decreased reorganization and restragfurosts as we concluded the Global Transformdtidiative offset by increases in tra
expenses.

Occupancy, Equipment and Supplies

Occupancy, equipment and supplies expense incldgties rent and maintenance costs, softwareeandpment maintenance costs, fre
and delivery costs and supplies.

In 2014 , occupancy, equipment and supplies inedk&S5.4 million , or 11 percent , when compare@@3, as a result of increased rent
building operation costs, equipment maintenancecantpbliance enhancement costs associated withOthé Global Transformation Program.

In 2013, occupancy, equipment and supplies inexk&4&.3 million , or three percent , when compaece?012, as a result of increased rent
building operation costs and equipment maintenaaseg result of our continued agent base growtlichwivas partially offset by decrea:
costs for reorganization and restructuring as welcoed the 2010 Global Transformation Initiative.

Depreciation and Amortizatio

Depreciation and amortization includes depreciabanpoint of sale equipment, agent signage, comphaedware and software, capitali
software development costs, office furniture, emapt and leasehold improvements and amortizationtafigible assets.

In 2014 , depreciation and amortization increase8 illion , or 10 percent , when compared to 20pB8marily driven by higher amortizati
expense for acquired assets and depreciation exp@nsomputer hardware.

In 2013, depreciation and amortization increasgd illion , or 14 percent , when compared to 20p@marily driven by higher depreciati
expense for signage and increased leasehold imments, partially offset by lower total amortizatiexpense.

Other (Income) Expenses, Net

The following table is a summary of the componefitsther (income) expenses, net for the years ebaegmber 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs 2013 2013 vs 2012
Net securities gains $ (45.9) $ — % (10.00 $ (45.9) % 10.C
Interest expense 442 47.: 70.€ (3.2 (23.6)
Debt extinguishment costs — 45.2 — (45.9) 45.2
Other costs — — 0.4 — (0.9
Total other (income) expense, net $ @2 $ 92 $ 61z $ (93.) $ 31.:

Net Securities Gain—During 2014 , we recorded $45.4 milliohsecurities settlements related to certain séeampreviously written down
a nominal fair value. See Note 15 Goemmitments and Contingenciethe Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateésésr additione
disclosure. During 2013 , we did not realize aniyseeurities gains or losses. In 2012 , two seesritlassified as other as$steked securitie
were sold for a $10.0 million realized gain recagui in “Net securities gains” in the Consolidatéat@&nents of Operations.
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Interest Expens— As a result of lower interest rates from the 2018dt Agreement and Note Repurchase, partiallyedffy higher averas
debt balances incurred in connection with the Himstemental Amendment and Joinder Agreement, éstegxpense in 2014 decrea$&dl
million , from $47.3 million in 2013 to $44.2 mitih in 2014 . Interest expense decreased to $4Ti8min 2013 , from $70.9 million in 2012
as a result of lower interest rates from the 2041 Agreement and Note Repurchase.

Debt Extinguishment Cos— During 2014, we did not incur any debt extinguishment costscdnnection with the termination of the 2
Credit Agreement and the Note Repurchase, we répegjdebt extinguishment costs of $45.3 milliortha first quarter of 2013We expense
$20.0 million of unamortized deferred financing tsoand $2.3 million of debt discount and incurrdd5$million of debt modification cost
Additionally, we incurred a prepayment penalty @fLl% million for the Note Repurchase, which was expensed ased#ibguishment cos
We did not incur any debt extinguishment costs M2 See Note 10 —Bebt of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statémém
additional disclosure.

Income Taxe

The following table represents our provision fazdme taxes and effective tax rate for the yearee@mkcember 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Provision for income taxes $ 0t % 32¢ % 40.4
Effective tax rate 0.€% 38.€% (453.9%

Our provision for income taxes and effective tebe idecreased from 2013 to 2014 , primarily resglfiom the remeasurement of uncertain
positions initially recorded in 2012as well as a release of the valuation allowanceapital loss carryovers from net securities gaivtscl
were partially offset by the reversal of deferraxl benefits on canceled stock options.

Our provision for income taxes decreased from 22013 while the effective tax rate increased framegative 453.9 percent 83.€
percent, benefiting from proceeds on securities that tesliin a release of valuation allowance offsetrigrnational taxes and the revers:
deferred tax benefits on canceled stock optiongXecutive employee terminations.

In 2012 , our effective tax rate differed from B percent federal statutory rate due to a sigunitionetime addition to uncertain tax positic
and the reversal of deferred tax benefits on cadcstock options for separated employees. The ivegedte reflects the effect of a
provision on pretax book loss from a significanbk@xpense, which, at the time, was estimated toasult in a tax benefit.

Our provision for income taxes is volatile and abbé affected by changes in the valuation of oferded tax assets and liabilities, change
tax laws and regulations, ultimate settlementshef tx court case and examinations by tax autheritdistorically, the Company has
asserted permanent reinvestment with respect téoitsgn undistributed earnings. To the extent saskertion changes in the future,
provision for income taxes and effective tax rasyralso change.

We are regularly examined by tax authorities batmdstically and internationally. We assess thdiliked of adverse outcomes and bel
that adequate amounts have been reserved for mdjotst that may result from these examinations. iGthe inherent uncertainties in th
examinations, the ultimate amount and timing oftiatipents cannot be assured.

Pre-Tax Operating Income and Operating Margin

The Company's management utilizes fae-operating income and operating margin whensagsg both consolidated and segment opetr
performance and allocation of resources. Excluderh fthe segments' operating income are interestofimel expenses related to our ct
agreements, operating loss from businesses catedo@ds “Other,”’certain pension and benefit obligation expensesgctiir deferre
compensation plan expenses, executive severanceekteld costs and certain legal and corporates cust related to the performance of
segments.
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The following table provides a summary overviewo#-tax operating income and operating margintienears ended December 31 :

(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Operating income:
Global Funds Transfer $ 754 $ 162 $ 149.¢
Financial Paper Products 28.1 30.€ 32.7
Total segment operating income 103.t 193t 182.:
Other (32.7) (15.¢) (129.9
Total operating income 71.4 177.¢ 52.4
Net securities gains (45.9 — (10.0
Interest expense 44.2 47.% 70.€
Debt extinguishment costs — 45.3 —
Other costs — — 0.4
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 72¢€ $ 85: % (8.9
Total operating margin 4.5% 12.1% 3.2%
Global Funds Transfer 5.5% 11.7% 11.%%
Financial Paper Products 35.(% 36.8% 38.7%
Total Revenue $ 1,454¢ $ 1,474 $ 1,341
Global Funds Transfer $ 1,374¢ $ 1,389.¢ $ 1,255.
Financial Paper Products $ 80 $ 84 $ 84F

“Other” expenses in 2014 included $16.4 millioh legal expenses related to the State Civil Ingative Demands accrual, expense
connection with the IRS tax litigation and otherttaes, as well as pension and postretirement beegfienses of $10.2 millioand other ne
corporate costs of $5.5 million . See Note 11Rensionand Note 15 —Commitments and Contingenciethe Notes to the Consolida
Financial Statements for additional disclosure. &t expenses in 2013 included $2.5 milliof legal expenses in connection with
settlement related to the MDPA/U.S. DOJ investyaind the shareholder litigation, $1.5 millioihseverance and related costs from exec
terminations as well as other net corporate cost14.6 million not allocated to the segments. “@thexpenses in 2012 includeéi119.:
million of legal expenses for the settlement in maction with the MDPA/U.S. DOJ investigation an@ tthareholder litigatior$1.0 millior
severance and related costs from executive terioireaas well as other net corporate costs of $7llmnot allocated to the segments.

In 2014 , the Company experienced a decline in bothl operating income and total operating manghen compared to 2013as tote
operating income decreased to $71.4 million , f&##@7.9 million for the same period in 2013 , priityaas a result of a $19.5 milliotlecreas
in total revenue and increased expenses relatedet®?014 Global Transformation Program. The in@eias2014 Global Transformati
Program expenses was primarily driven by a $23Ilomiincrease in compliance enhancement prograstscand a $27.3 milliomcrease i
reorganization and restructuring costs.

In 2013 , the Company experienced total operatitgprne growth and improved total operating margiremvicompared to 2018s tota
operating income increased to $177.9 million , fr§62.4 million for the same period in 2012Zhe growth was primarily driven by 1
reduction of legal expenses, primarily resultingnirthe settlement related to the MDPA/U.S. DOJ stigation and the shareholder litigati
The Global Funds transfer segment generated opgristcome growth of $13.0 milliowhich was partially offset by a decline in operg
income of $1.8 million from the Financial Paper dRrot segment.
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Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and wortization (“EBITDA”) and Adjusted EBITDA

We believe that EBITDA (earnings before interesiets, depreciation and amortization, including agggning bonus amortization) &
Adjusted EBITDA (EBITDA adjusted for certain sigiziént items) provide useful information to investdrecause they are indicators of
strength and performance of our ongoing businessatipns, including our ability to service debt gndd capital expenditures, acquisiti
and operations. These calculations are commonlg asea basis for investors, analysts and creditg@gencies to evaluate and compart
operating performance and value of companies withinindustry. In addition, our debt agreementsiiregcompliance with financial measu
similar to Adjusted EBITDA. Finally, EBITDA and Adsted EBITDA are financial measures used by managein reviewing results
operations, forecasting, assessing cash flow apitetaallocating resources and establishing ermrggapcentive programs.

Although we believe that EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDshhance investors' understanding of our busimeggparformance, these nGAAP
financial measures should not be considered anusixel alternative to accompanying GAAP financialaswges. These metrics are
necessarily comparable with similarly named metatsther companies. The following table is a reglietion of these nofGAAP financia
measures to the related GAAP financial measurethéyears ended December 31:

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 72€ % 85.: $ (8.9
Interest expense 44.2 47.% 70.¢
Depreciation and amortization 55.5 50.7 44.:
Amortization of agent signing bonuses 53.t 42.¢ 33.¢
EBITDA 226.1 226.1 139.¢
Significant items impacting EBITDA:
Securities settlements (45.9) — (20.0
Reorganization and restructuring cd8ts 30.t 3.2 19.2
Compliance enhancement program 26.7 2.8 —
Legal and contingent mattefs 16.4 2.t 119.:
Losses related to agent closures 7.4 — —
Stock-based and contingent performance compens$a 6.¢ 14.1 9.2
Direct monitor cost§? 6.5 — —
Capital transaction cost$ 2.1 — 0.3
Debt extinguishmeri® — 45.: —
Severance and related costs — 1kt 1.C
Adjusted EBITDA $ 2772 $ 2958 $ 278«

@ Reorganization and restructuring costs in 2014tedia the 2014 Global Transformation Program whemssts in 2013 and 2012 relate to the 2010 Gldbahsformatio
Initiative.

@ egal and contingent matters in 2014 consist of Mhiillion related to the state Civil InvestigatiBmands accrual and other matters whereas co2Bl are primarily i
connection with the settlement related to the MDP.&/ DOJ investigation and certain ongoing legattens.

® Stock-based compensation and one-time contingefurpence award payable after three years basedirvement of certain performance targets.

“ Direct compliance monitor expenses were not ansaelilitem in 2013 but are adjusted in 2014 goimgydied. The direct compliance monitor expenses \#ér& million for the
year ended December 31, 2013.

® Professional and legal fees incurred for the Apri014 debt and equity transactions, subsequeiftrsigistration and capital contributions from éstors' payment to Walm
for the Participation Agreement. See Note 15teckholders' Deficiof the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statesifem additional information.

©®Debt extinguishment costs in connection with th&®Credit Agreement and Note Repurchase.

As disclosed in our table above, for the year eridedember 31, 2014 , EBITDA has been adjusted 46r4million of securities settlemet
and the 2014 Global Transformation Program, whishsgsts of: $26.7 million for the compliance enhement program and $30.5 millidar
reorganization and restructuring costs. In addjtiBBITDA has been adjusted for $6.5 milliah direct monitor costs. For the year en
December 31, 2013 , EBITDA was adjusted for $45ilian of debt extinguishment costs in connection with 2043 Credit Agreement. F
the year ended December 31, 2012 , EBITDA was tefjufor legal expense of $119.2 milligrprimarily due to the forfeiture related to
settlement of the MDPA/U.S. DOJ investigation aatliement of the shareholder lawsuit, as well gallexpenses related to these matters.

For 2014 , the Company generated EBITDA of $226illion and Adjusted EBITDA of $277.2 million . Whetompared to 2013EBITDA
remained stable. The decline in revenue and thease in the costs incurred for the 2014 Globah3i@mation Program were offset b
decrease in commissions expense and the $45.4mdfi securities settlements in 2014. In 2014 uAtid EBITDA decreased $18.3 million
or six percent as a result of a decline in average face valudrpasaction, pricing and an increase in expefmemarketing. See additior
descriptions of these changes in thResults of Operatiorissection of Iltem 7 of this Annual Report on ForfiK for additional disclosure.
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For 2013 , the Company generated EBITDA of $226illian and Adjusted EBITDA of $295.5 million . Whetbmpared to 2012EBITDA
increased $86.2 million , or 62 percerprimarily due to the reduction of legal expens#ereased reorganization and restructuring cd
$16.1 million , which was partially offset by dedsttinguishment costs and an increase in stock-besegensation of $4.9 millionin 2013
Adjusted EBITDA increased $16.6 million , or sixrpent , as a result of continued growth of our nyanansfer product.

Acquisition and Disposal Activity
Acquisition and disposal activity is set forth imtd 4 — Acquisitionsof the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statémen
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have various resources available for purposesasfaging liquidity and capital needs, including mwestment portfolio, credit facilitis
and letters of credit. We refer to our cash andh eapiivalents, settlement cash and cash equivalatésest-bearing investments and availabls
for-sale investments collectively as our “investingortfolio.” We have historically utilized the assets in exadgsayment service obligatio
measure in various liquidity and capital assesssiéka of December 31, 2014, we have recast our @idased Balance Sheets to include
settlement cash and cash equivalents, receivaiddsijnterest-bearing investments and availablesébe investments in a new balance ¢
caption, entitled "Settlement assets," in an ameguoal to the "Payment service obligations" limenit The historically reported assets in ex
of payment service obligations are now presentathesstricted "Cash and cash equivalents" on thes@umlated Balance Sheets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Settlement Assets andyPaent Service Obligations

The following table shows the components of cagshaash equivalents and our settlement assets2ascaimber 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents $ 250.¢ % 318.¢

Settlement assets:

Settlement cash and cash equivalents 1,657.: 1,909.°
Receivables, net 757.¢ 767.
Interest-bearing investments 1,091.¢ 1,011.¢
Available-for-sale investments 27.1 48.1
3,533.¢ 3,737..

Payment service obligations $ (3,533 $ (3,737.)

Our primary sources of liquidity include cash flogsnerated by the sale of our payment instrumentscash and cash equivalent and interes
bearing investment balances, proceeds from ourstment portfolio and credit capacity under our réakilities. Our primary operati
liquidity needs are related to the settlement gfnpent service obligations to our agents and fireriostitution customers, as well as gen
operating expenses.

To meet our payment service obligations at all invee must have sufficient highly liquid assets badble to move funds globally on a tirr
basis. On average, we receive in and pay out dssiarinount of funds on a daily basis to collect aatle the principal amount of our payn
instruments sold and related fees and commissidthsowr end consumers and agents. This patterasif lows allows us to settle our payn
service obligations through ongoing cash generatather than liquidating investments or utilizingrarevolving credit facility. We ha
historically generated, and expect to continue geimgy, sufficient cash flows from daily operatidnsfund ongoing operational needs.

We seek to maintain funding capacity beyond oulydaperating needs to provide a cushion throughnithienal fluctuations in our payme
service obligations, as well as to provide workaapital for the operational and growth requiremesft®ur business. We believe we h
sufficient liquid assets and funding capacity t@mge and grow our business for the next 12 mor@heuld our liquidity needs exceed
operating cash flows, we believe that externalrfailag sources, including availability under the 2@redit Agreement, will be sufficient
meet our anticipated funding requirements.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents and Interest-bearing Invaé¢ments

To ensure we maintain adequate liquidity to meetaperating needs at all times, we keep a sigmifipertion of our investment portfolio
cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearingtimeaits at financial institutions rated A3 or beltg Moody’s Investor Service, ("Moody"),
and A- or better by Standard & Poors, ("S&P"), amdJ.S. government money market funds rated AadMbgdy’s and AAA by S&P. If th
rating agencies have split ratings, the Compang tlse highest two out of three ratings across geneies for disclosure purposes. If non
the rating agencies have the same rating, the Coynpses the lowest rating across the agenciesigotodure purposes. As Bfecember 3:
2014 , cash and cash equivalents (including uncestrand settlement cash and cash equivalentsingerést-bearing investments totaf&@l(
billion , representing 99 percent of our total istreent portfolio. Cash equivalents and intelestring investments consist of money me
funds that invest in U.S. government and governragaetcy securities, time deposits and certificateieposit.

Available-for-sale Investments

Our investment portfolio includes $27.1 millionafailable-for-sale investments as of December 8142 U.S. government agency resider
mortgage-backed securities compose $14.5 milliorowf available-for-sale investments, while othese#backed securities compose
remaining $12.6 million .

Clearing and Cash Management Banks

We collect and disburse money through a networklefring and cash management banks. The relatgmstith these banks are a crit
component of our ability to maintain our globalieetfunding requirements on a timely basis. We hageeements with siactive clearin
banks that provide clearing and processing funstion official checks, money orders and other dirsdtruments. We have foactive officia
check clearing banks, which provide sufficient eafyafor our official check business. We rely ome@active banks to clear our retail moi
orders and believe that these banks provide sefficcapacity for that business. We also maintdetiomships with a variety of domestic ¢
international cash management banks for electrfomids transfer and wire transfer services usetiémtovement of consumer funds and a
settlements.

Special Purpose Entities

For certain financial institution customers, weabtished individual special purpose entities, ("SREupon the origination of our relationst
Along with operational processes and certain firrmovenants, these SPEs provide the financiaitunions with additional assurance of
ability to clear their official checks. For the yeaending December 31, 2014 and 2Q1Bese SPEs had settlement assets equal to pz
service obligations of $3.1 million and $7.2 millig respectively. See Note 4 Description of the Business and Basis of Pregiemtof the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementadditional disclosure

Credit Facilities

Our credit facilities consist of the 2013 CreditrAgment. See Note 16— Debtof the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemém
additional disclosure. The following table is a snary of principal payments and debt issuance franudry 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014 :

2011 Credit Agreement 2013 Credit Agreement
Tranche B-1 Tranche B-1

Senior securec term loan Second lien  Senior securec term loan

credit facility facility due Revolving notes credit facility Revolving facility due
(Amounts in millions) due 2020 2020 facility due 2018 due 2020 facility 2020 Total Debt
Balance at January 1, 20123  340.C $ 149.¢ $ — $ 325.C % — % — — $  8l4¢
2012 payments — (1.5 — — — — — (1.5
2013 new debt issued — — — — 850.( — — 850.(
2013 payments (340.0 (148.]) — (325.0 (6.4 — — (819.5
2014 new debt issued — — — — — — 130.( 130.(
2014 payments — — — — (9.5 — — (9.5
Balance at December 31,
2014 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — $ 8341 % — 3 130.C $ 964.]

We have paid down $17.4 million of our outstanddebt since January 2012, excluding payments relatenir debt refinancing d#813.:
million . We continue to evaluate further reductiaf our outstanding debt ahead of scheduled ntigtiri
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The following table is a summary of our outstandileipt at December 31 :

Original Outstanding
Interest Rate Facility 2015
(Dollars in millions) for 2014 Size 2014 2013 Interest @
2013 Credit Agreement
Senior secured credit facility, due 2020 42%% $ 850.C $ 833.¢ & 842¢ $ 35.¢
Tranche B-1 term loan facility due 2020 4.25% 130.C 129.¢ — 5.€
Total debt at December 31, 2014 $ 980.C $ 9635 $842¢ % 414

@ Reflects interest expected to be paid in 2015gusia rates in effect on December 31, 2014 , asgun® prepayments of principal.

Our revolving credit facility has $150.0 million drrowing capacity as of December 31, 2014 . Sete NO— Debtof the Notes to tf
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionstidsure.

The 2013 Credit Agreement contains various findnafl nonfinancial covenants. We continuously monitor oumptiance with our de
covenants. At December 31, 2014 , the Company wammpliance with its financial covenants; see Nbe— Debtof the Notes to tt
Consolidated Financial Statemefds additional disclosure relating to the finanaalvenants. No dividends were paid on our commocksit
2014 and we do not anticipate declaring any diviidesn our common stock during 2015 .

On April 2, 2014, we entered into the Incrementgrdement, which provided for (a) a tranche undertdrm loan facility in an aggreg
principal amount of $130.0 million , (b) an increas the aggregate revolving loan commitments utitke2013 Credit Agreement frofi25.(
million to $150.0 million , and (c) certain othenandments to the 2013 Credit Agreement furtherriesat in Note 16— Debtof the Notes t
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Equity Registration Rights Agreement

The Company and the Investors entered into a Rafi®t Rights Agreement (the "Equity Registratiogl®s Agreement”) on March 25, 20
with respect to the Series B Stock and D Stock,thkaccommon stock owned by the Investors and #féliates, also referred to collectively
the Registrable Securities. Under the terms ottpaity Registration Rights Agreement, we are regplio file with the SEC a shelf registral
statement relating to the offer and sale of theifRexble Securities and keep such shelf registtattatement continuously effective under
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securitie®) until the earlier of (1) the date as of whiall of the Registrable Securities have t
sold, (2) the date as of which each of the holdéithe Registrable Securities is permitted to gelRegistrable Securities without registra
pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act &)difteen years. The holders of the Registrableuiges are also entitled to six dem
registrations and unlimited piggyback registratidosing the term of the Equity Registration RigAtreement. The SEC has declared effe:
a shelf registration statement on Forn3 $at permits the offer and sale of the Regis&ré&@curities, as required by the terms of the ¥
Registration Rights Agreement. The registrationesteent also permits the Company to offer and geliou$500 millionof its common stoc
preferred stock, debt securities or any combinatioinese, from time to time, subject to marketditans and the Comparg/capital needs.
December 2011, the Company completed a secondéeyingf pursuant to which the Investors sold an egate of 10,237,524hares ¢
Company common stock at a price of $16025 share in an underwritten offering. On Apri®14, the Company completed an underwr
secondary public offering by the Investors of agragate of 9,200,000 shares of the Compmaigmmon stock. The selling stockholt
received all of the proceeds from the offering.cAlen April 2, 2014, the Company completed the rejpase of 8,185,092hares of commic
stock from THL selling stockholders at a price @685 per share.

Credit Ratings

As of December 31, 2014 , our credit ratings fromaddy’s and S&P were B1 and BB-, respectively, renmg unchanged frorbecember 3:
2013 . Our credit facilities, regulatory capitatjoerements and other obligations will not be impddby a future change in our credit ratings.
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Regulatory Capital Requirements and Contractual Obigations

Requlatory Capital Requiremer

We have capital requirements relating to governmegtlations in the U.S. and other countries wiveeeoperate. Such regulations typic
require us to maintain certain assets in a defiia¢id to our payment service obligations. Througi wholly owned subsidiary and licen:
entity, MPSI, we are regulated in the U.S. by vasistate agencies that generally require us totaiaia pool of liquid assets and investm
in an amount generally equal to the regulatory paytrservice obligation measure, as defined by edate, for our regulated paym
instruments, namely teller checks, agent checksiem@rders and money transfers. The regulatoryiremmgents do not require us to spe
individual assets held to meet our payment semitigations, nor are we required to deposit speecifisets into a trust, escrow or other sp
account. Rather, we must maintain a pool of licagdets. Provided we maintain a total pool of licagdets sufficient to meet the regulatory
contractual requirements, we are able to withddaposit or sell our individual liquid assets atlyilithout prior notice, penalty or limitatior
We were in compliance with all state liquidity réeuments in 2014 .

We are also subject to regulatory requirementsanious countries outside of the U.S., which typicagsult in a requirement to either prefi
agent settlements or hold minimum required levélsash or guarantees within the applicable courithe amounts can fluctuate based or
level of activity and is likely to increase ovemg as our business expands internationally. Asssd to meet these regulatory requiren
support our payment service obligations and areamailable to satisfy other liquidity needs. AsDecember 31, 2014 , we h&d02.4 millior
of cash designated to meet regulatory requiremamdssuch amounts are included in "Settlement dssethe Consolidated Balance Sheet.

We were in compliance with all financial regulatagguirements as of December 31, 20¥Me believe that our liquidity and capital resaas
will remain sufficient to ensure ongoing complianei¢h all financial regulatory requirements.

Contractual Obligations

The following table includes aggregated informatadout the Compang’contractual obligations that impact our liquidityd capital neec
The table includes information about payments dugeu specified contractual obligations, aggregétedype of contractual obligation as
December 31, 2014 :

Payments due by period

Less than More than

(Amounts in millions) Total 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years
Debt, including interest payments $ 1178¢ $ 52 $ 1027 $ 99.¢ $ 924.¢
Operating leases 69.7 15.c 19.t 16.5 18.¢
Signing bonuses 132t 59.t 61.€ 9.4 2.C
Marketing 62.¢ 27.F 20.¢ 10.€ 3.
Total contractual cash obligations $ 1,443¢ $ 154 $ 204¢ % 136.1 $ 948.¢

The above table reflects the principal and intetieat will be paid through the maturity of the deising the rates in effect ddecember 3:
2014 , and assuming no prepayments of principal.Cunsolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2@lddes $963.5 millionf debt, net ¢
unamortized discounts of $0.6 milliorOperating leases consist of various leases fidibgs and equipment used in our business. Sig
bonuses are payments to certain agents and finamgfidution customers as an incentive to entéw longterm contracts. Marketing represe
contractual marketing obligations with certain agemillers and corporate sponsorships. We haveratbmmitments as described fur
below that are not included in this table as thertg and/or amount of payments are difficult taraate.

We have a funded, noncontributory pension plan ih&tozen to both future benefit accruals and mpanticipants. It is our policy to fund
least the minimum required contribution each ydas pdditional discretionary amounts as availablg mecessary to minimize expenses o
plan. We made contributions of $8.0 million to thefined benefit pension plan during 2014 . We gpdie a minimum contribution ¢4.C
million to the defined benefit pension plan in 2018Ve also have certain unfunded pension and postregnt plans that require ben
payments over extended periods of time. During 20&¢ paid benefits totaling $4.9 milliorlated to these unfunded plans. Benefit payn
under these unfunded plans are expected to be $1ii@ in 2015. Expected contributions and benefit payments utigese plans are r
included in the above table, as it is difficulta@stimate the timing and amount of benefit paymants required contributions beyond the |
12 months. In January 2015, the Company announgetuatary pension buyout program that may resu#t reduction of our pension liabili
Under the program, eligible deferred vested paudicts have the one-time choice of electing to vecailumpsum settlement of their remain
pension benefit. The eligible participants haveahdity to elect this option through the end of tlirst quarter of 2015 with settlement plan
for the second quarter. If 50.0 percefiteligible participants elect the settlement optithe Company could reduce its pension obligathmy
$25.0 million . This would create an additional nest of $6.7 millionn 2015 with savings to the Company in future yesrapproximatel
$0.7 million annually.
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The liability for unrecognized tax benefits was &illion as of December 31, 2014 . The Compargonsolidated income tax returns
fiscal years 2005-2009 were examined by the IR®. RS issued Notices of Deficiency disallowing agather items approximatef§900.(
million of deductions on securities losses in the 20078288 2009 tax returns. The Company petitionedUt® Tax Court contestil
adjustments related to the securities losses Y, 20008 and 2009. As of December 31, 2013, the dR$ the Company reached a pa
settlement allowing ordinary loss treatment on $288illion of deductions in dispute. In January 20the U.S. Tax Court granted the IRS’
motion for partial summary judgment upholding thenrining adjustments in the Notices of Deficienthile we expect to appeal the decis
of the U.S. Tax Court, there can be no assuraratevth will be successful in overturning the deaisiddditionally, subsequent to the fot
quarter of 2014, the IRS completed its examinatibthe Companys consolidated income tax returns for the tax y2afsl through 2013 a
issued a Revenue Agent Report (“RAR”) that includeshllowing $100.0 milliorof deductions related to payments the Company radhe
United States government in connection with the DIPle Company disagrees with adjustments in the RARexpects to file a protest le
so that the issue will be considered by the IRSe&bp Division. Overall, if all of the Comparsypositions, inclusive of the tax court matter
the 2011 through 2013 audit are ultimately rejectad Company would be required to make cash patsr@napproximately$90.0 millior
based on benefits taken and taxable income ealmedgh December 31, 2014As a result of the tax court ruling, we expecthiake a cas
payment to the IRS of approximately $60.0 million2015 which would reduce our overall $90.0 millieash payment exposure $30.(
million . These amounts are excluded from the table alb®tieese is a high degree of uncertainty regardiegaimount and timing of poten
future cash outflows associated with these itemd,wae are unable to make a reasonably reliablenatdi of the amount and period in wt
these might be paid.

In limited circumstances as an incentive to newensrewing agents, the Company may grant minimum dssiom guarantees for a speci
period of time at a contractually specified amoudihder the guarantees, the Company will pay toagent the difference between
contractually specified minimum commission and #wual commissions earned by the agent. As of DbeeBi, 2014, the minimun
commission guarantees had a maximum payment ol $iillion over a weighted average remaining tern3.df years The maximum payme
is calculated as the contractually guaranteed mimncommission times the remaining term of the @tand, therefore, assumes tha
agent generates no money transfer transactionsagitine remainder of its contract. As of DecemberZl114, the liability for minimun
commission guarantees was $2.9 million . Minimummuoassion guarantees are not reflected in the e,

Analysis of Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Net income (loss) $ 721 $ 524 $ (49.9)

Total adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) (9.9 103.% 125.¢
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 625 $ 156.1 $ 76.%

In 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , operating activities gateel net cash of $62.3 million , $156.1 millionda$76.3 million, respectively. Ca:s
provided by operating activities decreased forytbar ended December 31, 20dde to an increase in signing bonus payments. @ashdec
by operating activities increased for the year eénidecember 31, 201due to an increase in consolidated operating incdash provided
operating activities decreased for the year endsxbBiber 31, 2012 due to a decrease in consolidatzating income.

The Company, in conjunction with its November 2GE2tlement of the MDPA/U.S. DOJ investigation, paifbrfeiture of $65.0 milliorin
November 2012 an$35.0 million in January 2013. These payments weaide with the Company’cash on hand, and no borrowings or ¢
external sources of liquidity were required. Thi98.0 millionsettlement did not have an adverse effect on taditcratings of the Compa
and did not adversely affect compliance with finahcovenants pertaining to any of the Company&litragreements.

No income tax refunds were received 2014 and $0.8 million were received in 2013 ; nfamds were received for 2012Ve made incon
tax payments of $6.4 million , $8.0 million and $aillion during 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivel

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Purchases of property and equipment $ (85.¢) % (48.¢) $ (59.9
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (11.5 (15.9 —
Proceeds from disposal assets 0.¢ 0.7 1.C
Net cash used in investing activities $ (96.9) $ (63.5) $ (58.6)
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In 2014 , investing activities used cash of $96.dlion , primarily from $85.8 million of capital gpenditures and $11.5 milliofor out
acquisition activities, which were partially offdst proceeds of $0.9 million from the disposal séets.

In 2013 , investing activities used cash of $63.8ion , primarily from $48.8 million of capital genditures and $15.4 milliofor our
acquisition activities, which were partially offdst proceeds of $0.7 million from the disposal séets.

In 2012 , investing activities used cash of $58iian , primarily from $59.6 millionof capital expenditures, partially offset by prodee
$1.0 million from the disposal of assets.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Proceeds from issuance of debt $ 129.6 $ 850.C $ =
Transaction costs for issuance and amendment of deb (5.2 (11.9) —
Principal payments on debt (9.5 (819.5) (1.5
Prepayment penalty — (21.5) —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 0.4 1.1 —
Stock repurchase (149.9) — —
Net cash used in financing activities $ (34.1) $ @7 $ (1.5)

In 2014 , financing activities used $34.1 millioh cash primarily associated with the stock repaseh The proceeds from the debt issu
were used to fund the stock repurchase in Aprid20d 2013 , financing activities used $1.7 milliohcash primarily associated with the 2
Credit Agreement. In 2012 , financing activitiegd$1.5 million of cash for payments on debt.
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Adjusted Free Cash Flow

We believe that Adjusted Free Cash Flow (AdjustdITIDA less cash interest expense, cash tax expeares) payments for capi
expenditures and cash payments for agent signingdass) provides useful information to investorsaoise it is an indicator of the strength
performance of ongoing business operations, inatudiur ability to service debt and fund operatiarepital expenditures and acquisitic
This calculation is commonly used as a basis feestors, analysts and credit rating agencies tduaiea and compare the opera
performance and value of companies within our itigusVhile we believe that this metric enhancesesters' understanding of our busin
this metric is not necessarily comparable with Eirhi named metrics of other companies. AdjustegeREash Flow is a financial measure |
by management in reviewing results of operatioasyell as assessing cash flow and capital resources

Although we believe that Adjusted Free Cash Flowastes investors' understanding of our businesspanidrmance, this noGAAP
financial measure should not be considered an sixelualternative to accompanying GAAP financial smwas. The following table is
reconciliation of this non-GAAP financial measuoghe related GAAP financial measure for the yeaded December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 72€ % 85.: $ (8.9
Interest expense 44.2 47.% 70.¢
Depreciation and amortization 55.5 50.7 44.:
Amortization of agent signing bonuses 53.t 42.¢ 33.¢
EBITDA @ 226.1 226.1 139.¢
Significant items impacting EBITDA:
Securities settlements (45.9) — (20.0
Reorganization and restructuring costs 30.t 3.2 19.:
Compliance enhancement program 26.7 2.8 —
Legal and contingent matters 16.4 2.t 119.2
Losses related to agent closures 7.4 — —
Stock-based and contingent performance compensation 6.¢ 14.1 9.2
Direct monitor costs 6.5 — —
Capital transaction costs 2.1 — 0.3
Debt extinguishment — 45.2 —
Severance and related costs — 1kt 1.C
Contribution from investors — — —
Adjusted EBITDA® $ 2772 $ 2958 $§  278¢
Cash interest expense (41.7) (43.9 (64.9)
Cash tax expense (6.9 (8.0 (2.9
Cash payments for capital expenditures (85.9) (48.9) (59.6€)
Cash payments for agent signing bonuses (93.9 (45.0 (36.2)
Adjusted Free Cash Flow $ 50.C $ 149.¢ $  115:¢

®See “EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDAsection of this MD&A for the descriptions of theljustments to arrive at these measures.

We calculate Adjusted Free Cash Flow by beginniith vwdjusted EBITDA, which is adjusted for signifiot items. As disclosed in our ta
above, our Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended Deoen81, 2014 adjusts $57.2 milliasf costs in connection with the 2014 Glc
Transformation Program. For the year ended Decefihe2013 our Adjusted EBITDA adjusts $45.3 milliohdebt extinguishment costs
connection with the 2013 Credit Agreement. Forytear ended December 31, 2012 , legal expensesl&i $inillionwere adjusted out of @
Adjusted EBITDA, primarily related to the settlemerfithe MDPA/U.S. DOJ investigation and settlemefithe shareholder lawsuit, as wel
legal expenses related to these matters.

For 2014 , Adjusted Free Cash Flow decreased $88li8n , or 67 percent , to $50.0 million from $.8 million in 2013. The decrease wa
result of an increase of $48.9 million in cash pidagent signing bonuses, an increase in cashfpaicapital expenditures &37.0 millior
primarily in connection with the 2014 Global Tramshation Program, and overall fee and other revelaatine of one percemthen compare
to 2013 . See additional descriptions of these ghsiuin the 'Results of Operationsand " Analysis of Cash Flowssections of Item 7 of th
Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional disclosur
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For 2013, Adjusted Free Cash Flow increased $3lliwn , or 29 percent , to $149.8 million from #.8 million in 2012 The increase wa:
result of a reduction of $20.5 millioim cash paid for interest as a result of the 201&dif Agreement, a decrease in cash paid for d
expenditures of $10.8 million , and overall fee arier revenue growth of 10 percenthich was partially offset by increased cash gar
agent signing bonuses of $8.8 million and increazedmissions expense.

Stockholders’ Deficit

Stockholders’ Deficit— The Company is authorized to repurchase up 8002000 shares of our common stock. As of Dece®@bg2014,
we had repurchased a total of 8,228,5t8res of our common stock under this authoriradiod have remaining authorization to purchas
to 3,771,427 shares. SeeMarket For The Registrant's Common Equity, RelaSdckholder Matters And Issuer Purchases Of E
Securities' section of Item 5 of this Annual Report on For@+K for a summary of share repurchases made by the &oymturing the ye
ended December 31, 2014 under the repurchase enattian.

Under the terms of our outstanding credit facHifizre are limited in our ability to pay dividends aur common stock. No dividends were |
on our common stock in 2014 , and we do not ardteipleclaring any dividends on our common stocingu2015 .

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
None.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymvith GAAP requires estimates and assumptions difi@ct the reported amounts
related disclosures in the consolidated finandialesnents. Actual results could differ from thos@imates. On a regular basis, manage
reviews its accounting policies, assumptions ariinases to ensure that our financial statementspegsented fairly and in accordance \
GAAP. Our significant accounting policies are dissed in Note 2 —Summary of Significant Accounting Policies the Notes to tt
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical accounting policies are those policiest tii@nagement believes are very important to thrgal of our financial position and resi
of operations, and that require management to reatimates that are difficult, subjective or complBased on these criteria, managemen
identified and discussed with the Audit Committbe following critical accounting policies and esdiies, including the methodology ¢
disclosures related to those estimates.

Goodwill— We have two reporting units: Global Funds Tranafed Financial Paper Products. Our Global Fundssfeameporting unit is tt
only reporting unit that carries goodwill. On amaal basis, or more frequently upon the occurresfceertain events, we test for good
impairment using a twatep process. The first step is to identify a podéimpairment by comparing the fair value of @oging unit with it:
carrying amount. The fair value of a reporting usidetermined based on a discounted cash flowysisahnd further analyzed using of
methods of valuation. A discounted cash flow arialysquires us to make various assumptions, inctudssumptions about future cash flc
growth rates and discount rates. The assumptioostdbture cash flows and growth rates are baseduortongterm projections by reportil
unit. In addition, an assumed terminal value isduseproject future cash flows beyond base yeassufptions used in our impairment tes
are consistent with our internal forecasts and aipeg plans. Our discount rate is based on our debitequity balances, adjusted for cul
market conditions and investor expectations ofrretin our equity. If the fair value of a reportingit exceeds its carrying amount, there i
impairment. If not, the second step of the goodimilpairment test compares the implied fair valuaha reporting unis goodwill with it:
carrying amount. To the extent the carrying amairihe reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its implifair value, a writedown of the reportin
unit’s goodwill would be necessary.

We did not recognize a goodwill impairment loss 80¥14 , 2013 or 2012 The carrying value of goodwill assigned to theolézll Fund
Transfer reporting unit at December 31, 2014 wat2%&! million. No goodwill is assigned to the Financial PaperdBcts reporting unit. Tl
annual impairment test indicated a fair value far Global Funds Transfer reporting unit that wdsstantially in excess of the reporting usit’
carrying value. In order to evaluate the sensitioit the fair value calculations, we applied a hyyatical 10 percent decrease to the fair val
the Global Funds Transfer reporting unit. Had teéngated fair value been hypothetically lower byddicent as of December 31, 2Q1#he
fair value of goodwill would still be substantially excess of the reporting unit’s carrying value.

Fair Value of Investment Securiti— The Company has available-feale investments that are recorded at their esintir value. Ot
available-for-sale investments are comprised piilgnaf U.S. government agency debenture securitiesidential mortgagbacked securiti
collateralized by U.S. government agency debergecarities and other asset-backed securities.
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We estimate fair value for our investments as ait ‘f@ice,” or the exchange price that would be received foasset in an orderly transact
between market participants. Observable price gufiie our exact securities are not available. Rar government agency debentures
residential mortgagbacked securities, similar securities trade witlficgent regularity to allow observation of markeputs needed to estim
fair value. For our other asse&cked securities, the overall liquidity and tradiwithin the relevant markets is not strong. Acdogty,
observable market inputs are not as readily aviailabd estimating fair value is more subjectivee Sete 5 —Fair Value Measuremerdf the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementadaitional disclosure

Pension— Through our qualified pension plan and variougpéemental executive retirement plans, collectiveferred to as our “pension”
plans, we provide defined benefit pension plan caye to certain employees and employees of Viagp&@ation, our former parent. C
pension obligations under these plans are measgenf December 31the measurement date. Pension benefit obligatimilsthe relate
expense are based upon actuarial projections assgmptions regarding mortality, discount ratesgiterm return on assets and other factors

Our pension plan assets are primarily investechortgderm investment fund accounts and commingled fiwsds issued or sponsored by
plan trustee. Our investments are periodicallyigeald in accordance with the investment guidelines.

Our assumptions reflect our historical experiencé managemers’best judgment regarding future expectations.aewdf the assumptior
particularly the discount rate and expected retonnplan assets, require significant judgment andldcdvave a material impact on
measurement of our pension obligation.

At each measurement date, the discount rate isdk@s¢he then current interest rate yield curveddogterm corporate debt securities v
maturities rated AA comparable to our obligations.

The expected return on pension plan assets is lmasedr historical market experience, our pensgsetallocations and our expectation
longterm rates of return. We also consider peer dadiahistorical returns to assess the reasonablemelsappropriateness of our assump
Our pension plan asset allocations are reviewedallynand are based upon plan obligations, an atialu of market conditions, tolerance
risk and cash requirements for benefit payments.

Lower discount rates increase the plan obligatiwth subsequent year pension expense, while higbeoulit rates decrease the plan oblig;
and subsequent year pension expense. Decreasirdjstwint rate by 50 basis points would have irsgda2014 pension expense $.£
million . If the discount rate increased by 50 basiints pension expense would have decreased.@yn$llion . Changing the expected rate
return by 50 basis points would have increasedédead 2014 pension expense by $0.6 million .

Income Taxe— Tax Contingencies- We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. andwarforeign jurisdictions. In determining taxe
income, income or loss before taxes is adjustediféerences between local tax laws and generaibgpted accounting principles.

We file tax returns in multiple states within theSJand various countries. Our tax filings for@driods are subject to audit by tax authori
the U.S. federal income tax filings for fiscal ye@005 through 2013 are currently subject to audit.

The benefits of tax positions are recorded in tioeine statement if we determine it is more-likiédgn not, based on the technical merits o
position, that the tax position will be sustaingubn examination, including any related appealstigation.

Changes in tax laws, regulations, agreements aadigs, foreign currency exchange restrictionsurlevel of operations or profitability
each taxing jurisdiction could have an impact oa #mount of income taxes that we provide during girgn year. The determination
taxable income in any jurisdiction requires theeiptetation of the related tax laws and regulatiang the use of estimates and assumg.
regarding significant future events, such as thewr timing and character of deductions and thecas and character of income and
credits.

These assumptions and probabilities are perioglicalliewed and revised based upon new information.

Changes in our current estimates due to unantaipavents, or other factors, could have a matefiatt on our financial condition and res
of operations. Actual tax amounts may be materidifferent from amounts accrued based upon theltsesdi audits due to differe
interpretations by the tax authorities than thasthe Company. While we believe that our reservesaalequate to cover reasonably expe
tax risks, an unfavorable tax settlement genenadlyuires the use of cash and an increase in thair@nad income tax expense that
recognize. A favorable tax settlement generallyiies a decrease in the amount of income taxeswhaecognize.

Income Taxe— Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recordeskedhan the future tax consequel
attributable to temporary differences that exigiveen the financial statement carrying value oetsssand liabilities and their respective
basis, and operating loss and tax credit carrysbaaid carrnforwards on a taxing jurisdiction basis. We measieéerred tax assets ¢
liabilities using enacted statutory tax rates thiditapply in the years in which we expect the tergry differences to be recovered or paid.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets musedheced through a valuation allowance if it is midkely-thannot that the deferred tax as
will not be realized. In the period in which a vatiion allowance is recorded, we would record tagesse, whereas a tax benefit woul
recorded in the period a valuation allowance i®resd.

In assessing the need for a valuation allowancegamsider both positive and negative evidenceadléd the likelihood that the deferred
assets will be realized. Our assessment of whetkatuation allowance is required or should be stépirequires judgment and is complete
a taxing jurisdiction basis. We consider, amongnpthatters: the nature, frequency and severityngfcaimulative financial reporting losses;
ability to carry back losses to prior years; futbegersals of existing taxable temporary differenpdax planning strategies and projectior
future taxable income. We also consider our betainage of the outcome of any @woing examinations based on the technical merithe
position, historical procedures and case law, anothgr items.

As of December 31, 2014 , we have recorded a valuatilowance of $137.6 million against gross nefedred tax assets of $169.8 million
The valuation allowance primarily relates to ow lass carryovers and basis difference in revaloedstments. While we believe that the b
for estimating our valuation allowance is strongarmges in our current estimates due to unantidpatents, or other factors, could hay
material effect on our financial condition and ésof operations.

Stock-based compensatien The Company has a stoblased compensation plan, which includes stock ogtiestricted stock units, restric
stock awards and stock appreciation rights. Cedumiards are subject to market and performance tonsliat threshold, target and maxin
levels.

For purposes of determining the fair value of stopkon awards, the Company uses the Black-Sclsigge option pricing model for the time-
based tranches and awards and a combination of eMoatlo simulation and the Bla@&eholes single option pricing model for
performance-based tranches. Compensation coshf rettimated forfeitures, is recognized using aightline method over the vesting
service period.

Assumptions for stockased compensation include estimating the futudatility of our stock price, expected dividend ylelemploye
turnover and employee exercise activity.

Performancérased share awards require management to make @gmsiregarding the likelihood of achieving mar&et performance goe
Assumptions used in our assessment are consistdntowr internal forecasts and operating plans asslme achievement of performe
conditions as outlined in Note 13 -Stock-Based Compensatiohthe Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statémen

Recent Accounting Developments

Recent accounting developments are set forth ire et Summary of Significant Accounting Policieé the Notes to the Consolida
Financial Statements.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STA TEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and the document®iiporated by reference herein may contain ford@o#ling statements within t
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation RefoAmt of 1995, including statements with respect damong other things, the financ
condition, results of operations, plans, objectifaeture performance and business of MoneyGramitarglbsidiaries. Statements precede:
followed by or that include words such as “belie¥éestimates,” “expects,” “projects,” “plans,” “dicipates,” “continues,” “will,” “should,”
“could,” “may,” “would,” "goals" and other similaexpressions are intended to identify some of thevdod{ooking statements within t
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Refoket of 1995 and are included, along with thiseta¢nt, for purposes of complying with

safe harbor provisions of the Act. These forwlaaking statements involve risks and uncertainthegtual results may differ materially frc
those contemplated by the forwdobking statements due to, among others, the asksuncertainties described in Part I, ltem 1A wrile
caption "Risk Factors" of this Annual Report. Thésavardiooking statements speak only as of the date theyrade, and MoneyGr:
undertakes no obligation to publicly update or sevany forwardeoking statements for any reason, whether as @tres new informatior
future events or otherwise, except as requiredelderal securities law. These forward-looking staets are based on managemeitirren
expectations, beliefs and assumptions and are duiojecertain risks, uncertainties and changedroumstances due to a number of fac
These factors include, but are not limited to:

» our ability to compete effectivel

» our ability to maintain key agent or biller relat&hips, a reduction in business or transactionmaelérom these relationships, including
largest agent, Walmart, through the recent intrédocby Walmart of a competing white label brandadney transfer product
otherwise;

» the impact of our new U.S. to U.S. pricing strat
» our ability to manage fraud risks from consumeragents

» the ability of us and our agents to comply with La8d international laws and regulatic
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» litigation and regulatory proceedings involving as our agents, including the outcome of ongoingestigations by several st
governments, which could result in material setdats, fines or penalties, revocation of requiredrises or registrations, terminatiol
contracts, other administrative actions or lawsaitd negative publicity;

» possible uncertainties relating to compliance witkl the impact of the DP
« current and proposed regulations addressing conspiivacy and data use and secu

e our ability to successfully develop and timely attuce new and enhanced products and services andvastments in new produc
services or infrastructure changes;

» our offering of money transfer services throughragen regions that are politically volatile or, &limited number of cases, that
subject to certain OFAC restrictions;

» changes in tax laws or an unfavorable outcome reifipect to the audit of our tax returns or tax fpmwss, or a failure by us to establ
adequate reserves for tax events;

e our substantial debt service obligations, significdebt covenant requirements and credit rating @andability to maintain sufficiel
capital;

* major bank failure or sustained financial markdulidity, or illiquidity at our clearing, cash magement and custodial financ
institutions;

» the ability of us and our agents to maintain adegjbanking relationshig

» the financial health of certain European countréesl the impact that those countries may have @subktainability of the eul
* asecurity or privacy breach in systems on whichrelg

» disruptions to our computer systems and data ceatet our ability to effectively operate and adapttechnology

» weakened consumer confidence in our business oeynwansfers general

e continued weakness in economic conditions, in BlethU.S. and global marke

» asignificant change, material slow down or comgliisruption of international migration patte

« our ability to manage credit risks from our retglents and official check financial institution tareers

e our ability to retain partners to operate our d@dfficheck and money order busines

e our ability to manage risks associated with ougrindtional sales and operatic

» our ability to adequately protect our brand andliattual property rights and to avoid infringing the rights of other
» our ability to attract and retain key employ:

* our ability to manage risks related to the opiereof retail locations and the acquisition onst#p of businesse

» our ability to implement our Global Transformati®mogram as planned, whether the expected amounbsi§ associated with st
program will exceed our forecasts and whether wibgiable to realize the full amount of estimasestings from such program;

* our ability to maintain effective internal contr;
e our capital structure and the special voting rigittsvided to designees of THL on our Board of Dioes; ant

» the risks and uncertainties described in theisk Factors’” and “ Managemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord
Results of Operation” sections of this Annual Report on Form KQ-as well as any additional risk factors that ni&ydescribed in o
other filings with the SEC from time to time.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Enterprise Risk Management

Risk is an inherent part of any business. Our modninent risk exposures are credit, interest fateign currency exchange and operati
risk. See Part 1, Iltem 1A Risk Factors” of this Annual Report on Form 10-or a description of the principal risks to our imess
Appropriately managing risk is important to the e@gs of our business, and the extent to which feetefely manage each of the various ty
of risk is critical to our financial condition armofitability. Our risk management objective isnmnitor and control risk exposures to proc
steady earnings growth and long-term economic value

Management implements policies approved by our @@&mDirectors that cover our investment, capitaédit and foreign currency practi
and strategies. The Board receives periodic repegarding each of these areas and approves s@mifchanges to policy and strategy.
Asset/Liability Committee, composed of senior mamragnt, routinely reviews investment and risk mansage strategies and results. A Cr
Committee, composed of senior management, routimesfgws credit exposure to our agents.

The following is a discussion of the risks we haezmed most critical to our business and the gisgave use to manage and mitigate
risks. While containing forwartboking statements related to risks and uncertsnthis discussion and related analyses are rdigbions o
future events. Our actual results could differ matly from those anticipated due to various fastdiscussed underCautionary Statemer
Regarding Forwar-Looking Statementsand under ‘Risk Factors' in Part 1, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Folia-K.

Credit Risk

Credit risk, or the potential risk that we may notlect amounts owed to us, affects our busineissapily through receivables, investments
derivative financial instruments. In addition, tbencentration of our cash, cash equivalents andsinvents at large financial institutit
exposes us to credit risk.

Investment Portfolic— Credit risk from our investment portfolio relatesthe risk that we may be unable to collect therest or principi
owed to us under the legal terms of the variouar#ées. Our primary exposure to credit risk arif@®ugh the concentration of a large am
of our investment portfolio at a few large banKkspaeferred to as financial institution risk, aslhas a concentration in securities issued b
collateralized by, U.S. government agencies.

At December 31, 2014 , the Company’s investmentfglar of $3.0 billion was primarily comprised ofiterestbearing cash accounts, dep
accounts, time deposits, certificates of depodit dr5. government money market funds. Based orstment policy restrictions, investme
are limited to U.S. government securities and stesrrof agencies of the U.S. government, certifisaof deposit and time deposits with b
with minimum debt ratings of A3 (Moody’s) and A-&B), commercial paper with minimum ratings of ANlqody’s) and Pt (S&P) and U.$
dollar denominated SEC registered senior notesigforations with minimum ratings of A3 and A-. Naturity of interestearing investmen
exceeds 24 months from the date of purchase.

The financial institutions holding significant pioris of our investment portfolio may act as cusdodi for our asset accounts, serv
counterparties to our foreign currency transactams conduct cash transfers on our behalf for thpgse of clearing our payment instrum:
and related agent receivables and agent payabtesudh certain check clearing agreements and athetracts, we are required to util
several of these financial institutions.

The concentration in U.S. government agencies deduagencies placed under conservatorship by tBegdvernment in 2008 and exten
unlimited lines of credit from the U.S. TreasurheTlimplicit guarantee of the U.S. government as@dtions to date support our belief tha
U.S. government will honor the obligations of iteacies if the agencies are unable to do so theasel
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The following table is a detailed summary of owrdstment portfolio as of December 31, 2014 :

Number of Percent of
Financial Investment
(Dollars in millions) Institutions © Amount Portfolio

Cash equivalents collateralized by securities dd1yeU.S. government agencies 2 % 9.8 —%
Available-for-sale investments issued or collaieeal by U.S. government agencies N/A 14.5 1%
Cash, cash equivalents and interest-bearing inegsat institutions rated AA 4 402.7 13%
Cash, cash equivalents and interest-bearing ineggiat institutions rated A 12 2,175.7 72%
Cash, cash equivalents and interest-bearing inegsat institutions rated BBB 1 10.7 —%
Cash, cash equivalents and interest-bearing inwegaat institutions rated below BBB 7 38.c 1%
Other asset-backed securities N/A 12.€ 1%
Investment portfolio held within the U.S. 26 2,664.: 88%
Cash held on-hand at owned retail locations N/A 13.t 1%
Cash, cash equivalents and interest-bearing inwgheld at institutions rated AA 2 4.5 —%
Cash, cash equivalents and interest-bearing inegsat institutions rated A 10 275.1 9%
Cash, cash equivalents and interest-bearing inegg#at institutions rated below A 41 69.2 2%
Investment portfolio held outside the U.S. 53 362.: 12%
Total investment portfolio $ 3,026.¢ 10C%

WFinancial institutions, located both in the U.Sd autside of the U.S., are included in each ofrtresipective total number of financial institutions

At December 31, 2014 , all but $12.6 million of theestment portfolio is invested in cash, cashivalants, interesbearing investments a
investments issued or collateralized by U.S. gavemt agencies. Approximately 99 percehthe portfolio is invested in cash, cash equint
and interest-bearing investments, with 88 percéntiototal investment portfolio invested at finaldnstitutions located within the U.S.

Receivable:— We have credit exposure to receivables from ountgiarough the money transfer and money ordelesatt process. The
receivables originate from independent agents wdileat funds from consumers who are transferringh@yoor buying money orders, ¢
agents who receive proceeds from us in anticipatfopayment to the recipients of money transfergerts typically have from one to th
days to remit the funds, with longer remittanceeslthes granted to certain agents on a limited bdsie Company has a credit 1
management function that conducts the underwritihngredit on new agents as well as conducting tdiveillance on all agents to mon
their financial health and the history of settlemnactivity with us. The Compang’credit risk management function also maintainky ¢antac
with agents, and performs a collection functiont f® twelve months ended December 31, 20@dr annual credit losses from agents,
percentage of total fee and other revenue, washessone percent . As of December 31, 2014 , wlechedit exposure to our agents$adf41.:
million in the aggregate spread across 12,240 agehtvhich four agents owed us in excess of $irbliton .

We also have credit exposure to receivables fromfioancial institution customers for business aartéd by the Financial Paper Prod
segment. Financial institutions will collect prodséor official checks and money orders and rehuise proceeds to us. We actively mol
the credit risk associated with financial instituts such as banks and credit unions, and havencwtréd any losses associated with the fe
or merger of any bank or non-bank financial insitttw customer. As of December 31, 201#e had a credit exposure to our official cf
financial institution customers of $288.2 milliom the aggregate spread across 1,017 financiatutistis, of which on@wed us in excess
$15.0 million .

With respect to our credit union customers, ouditrexposure is partially mitigated by National @itdJnion Administration insurance and
have required certain credit union customers teigeous with larger balances on deposit and/os¢0é cashies’ checks only. While the val
of these assets are not at risk in a disruptiocotiapse of a counterparty financial institutiohe tdelay in accessing our assets could adve
affect our liquidity and potentially our earningspetnding upon the severity of the delay and caweeictions we may need to take.

While the extent of credit risk may vary by produtte process for mitigating risk is similar. Wesess the creditworthiness of each pote
agent before accepting them into our distributietwork. This underwriting process includes not oalgetermination of whether to acce
new agent, but also the remittance schedule andnlof transactions that the agent will be allow®gerform in a given timeframe. \
actively monitor the credit risk of our existingeas by conducting periodic financial reviews aadicflow analyses of our agents that ave
high volumes of transactions and monitoring remiteapatterns versus reported sales on a daily.basis
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The timely remittance of funds by our agents andricial institution customers is an important congya of our liquidity. If the timing of tt
remittance of funds were to deteriorate, it woullgtraour pattern of cash flows and could requiretaidiquidate investments or utilize «
revolving credit facility to settle payment servigbkligations. To manage this risk, we closely mamihe remittance patterns of our agents
financial institution customers and act quicklyé detect deterioration or alteration in remittatioeng or patterns. If deemed appropriate
have the ability to immediately deactivate an ageetjuipment at any time, thereby preventing thgation or issuance of further mor
transfers and money orders.

Credit risk management is complemented throughtiomality within our point-of-sale system, whichrcanforce credit limits on a retitne
basis. The system also permits us to remotely Bisabagent’s terminals and cause a cessatioamgdctions.

Derivative Financial Instrument — Credit risk related to our derivative financial insnents relates to the risk that we are unableottzc
amounts owed to us by the counterparties to ouvatere agreements. Our derivative financial instants are used to manage exposur
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rateshéf counterparties to any of our derivative firahmstruments were to default on payme
it could result in a delay or interruption of paymeto our agents. We manage credit risk relatetbtivative financial instruments by enter
into agreements with only major banks and regularbnitoring the credit ratings of these banks.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that ouraipey results are negatively impacted, and ouestment portfolio declines in value, dut
changes in interest rates. Given the short matprityile of the investment portfolio and the lowdé of interest rates, we believe there i
extremely low risk that the value of these seaesitivould decline such that we would have a matadakrse change in our operating res
As of December 31, 2014 , the Company held $631llibm, or 21 percent , of the investment portfoin fixed rate investments.

At December 31, 2014 , the Company’s other asseitdahsecurities are priced on average at four peofdace value for a total fair value
$12.6 million . Included in other asset-backed s&es are collateralized debt obligations backeingrily by highgrade debt, mezzani
equity tranches of collateralized debt obligatiansl home equity loans, along with private equitseBtments. Any resulting adverse mover
in our stockholdersdeficit or settlement assets from declines in itmesits would not result in regulatory or contrattteampliance exceptior

Our operating results are impacted by interest rie through our net investment margin, which ngestment revenue less investn
commissions expense. As the money transfer busisesd materially affected by investment revennd pays commissions that are not tie
an interest rate index, interest rate risk hasntlost impact on our money order and official cheokibesses. We are invested primaril
interestbearing cash accounts, deposit accounts, time deposrtificates of deposit and U.S. governmenheyomarket funds. These type:
investments have minimal risk of declines in fatue from changes in interest rates. Our commisspaid to financial institution custom
are variable rate, based primarily on the fedemad$ effective rate and are reset daily. Accorgingbth our investment revenue and
investment commissions expense will decrease watss idecline and increase when rates rise. Inuthert environment, the federal ful
effective rate is so low that most of our finandratitution customers are in a “negativammission position, and therefore, we do not omy
commissions to these customers.

Our results are impacted by interest rate riskubhoour interest expense on our 2013 Credit Agre¢énidie Company may elect an inte
rate for its debt under the 2013 Credit Agreemeémriaah reset period based on the BOA prime baekarathe Eurodollar rate. The interest
election may be made individually for the Term Grdehcility and each draw under the Revolving Crégicility. The interest rate will |
either the “alternate base rate” (calculated in pased on the BOA prime rate) plus either 2002&rl#asis points (depending on the Compse
secured leverage ratio or total leverage rati@pgdicable, at such time) or the Eurodollar ratesither 300 or 32Basis points (depending
the Company's secured leverage ratio or total deeratio, as applicable, at such time). In conoeatith the initial funding under the 20
Credit Agreement, the Company elected the Eurododite as its primary interest basis. Under theseof the 2013 Credit Agreement,
minimum interest rate applicable to Eurodollar baings under the Term Credit Facility is 10@sis points plus the applicable man
previously referred to in this paragraph. Accordimgny increases in interest rates will adversdfgct interest expense.

The tables below incorporate substantially all af interest rate sensitive assets and assumpti@isréflect changes in all interest r:
pertaining to the balance sheet. The “ramp” anglgssumes that interest rates change in even iaoteraver the next 12 months. The “shock
analysis assumes interest rates change immediatelyremain at the changed level for the next twehtamths. Components of our piaex
income that are interest rate sensitive includeéttment revenue,” “Investment commissions expeasd’“Interest expenselh the currer
interest rate environment where rates are approgctero, our risk associated with declining ratesat material. A moderately rising intel
rate environment would be generally beneficiah® €Company because variable rate assets exceedralvle rate liabilities, and certain of «
variable rate liabilities will not react to incressin interest rates until those rates exceedltioe $et for the index rate on the correspon
debt.
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The following table summarizes the changes to s#becomponents of the income statement under \&rimmp scenarios as becember 3:
2014 :

Basis Point Change in Interest Rates

Down Down Down Up Up Up
(Amounts _in millions) 200 100 50 50 100 200
Investment revenue $ 27 % 26 $ (2.9 % 42 % 8.€ $ 17.1
Investment commissions expense 0.t 0.t 0.t (1.2 (2.6) (9.2
Interest expense NM NM NM NM (0.9 (2.7)
Change in pretax income $ (2.2 % 21 % (1 % 32 % 51 % 5.2

NM = Not meaningfu

The following table summarizes the changes to &ffecomponents of the income statement under v&gback scenarios as of December 31
2014 .

Basis Point Change in Interest Rates

Down Down Down Up Up Up
(Amounts in millions) 200 100 50 50 100 200
Investment revenue $ 3.0 $ 3.0 $ 3.0 % 92 ¢ 187 $ 37.:
Investment commissions expense 0.t 0.t 0.t (1.9 (4.9 (20.0
Interest expense NM NM NM NM (4.2 (11.2)
Change in pretax income $ (2.5) % 25 % (2.5 % 74 $ 9.8 % 6.1

NM = Not meaningfu
Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to foreign currency risk in theradi course of business as we offer our produalssarvices through a network of agents
financial institutions with locations in more thaf@0 countries and territories. By policy, we do not@gdate in foreign currencies; all currel
trades relate to underlying transactional exposures

Our primary source of foreign exchange risk is semtional risk. This risk is predominantly incurriedthe money transfer business in wi
funds are frequently transferred crdms:der and we settle with agents in multiple cucies. Although this risk is somewhat limited duethe
fact that these transactions are shertn in nature, we currently manage some of thsk with forward contracts to protect against patd
shortterm market volatility. The primary currency paitmsed on volume, that are traded against therdallthe spot and forward mark
include the European euro, Mexican peso, Britistingoand Indian rupee. The tenor of forward consractypically less than 30 days.

Realized and unrealized gains or losses on transattcurrency and any associated revaluation tdria® sheet exposures are recorde
“Transaction and operations suppoirt”’the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Hirenfiarket value of any open forward contrac
period end are recorded in “Other assets™Accounts payable and other liabilities" in tBensolidated Balance Sheets. The net effe
changes in foreign exchange rates and the relatedfd contracts for the year ended December 314 #s a loss of $1.0 million .

Additional foreign currency risk is generated frdlmctuations in the U.S. dollar value of future é@n currencydenominated earnings.
2014 , fluctuations in the euro exchange rate @hétansactional hedging activities) resulted ined increase to our operating incomeb6f]
million .

Had the euro appreciated or depreciated relatithetd).S. dollar by 20 percent from actual exchamages for 2014 , preax operating incon
would have increased/decreased approximately &hilibn for the year. There are inherent limitations irsteensitivity analysis, primar
due to the assumption that foreign exchange rateements are linear and instantaneous, that thedgelkeexposure is static, and that
would not hedge any additional exposure. As a tethé analysis is unable to reflect the potergfédcts of more complex market changes
could arise, which may positively or negativelyegffincome.

Translation risk is generated from the accountiagdlation of the financial statements of foreighsdiaries (from their functional curren
into U.S. dollars for consolidation and does noteha significant impact on company results. Theaastation adjustments are recorde
"Accumulated other comprehensive loss" on the Cligeted Balance Sheets.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk represents the potential for lessulting from our operations. This may includet sunot limited to, the risk of fraud

employees or external parties, business continuatinol disaster recovery, errors related to traimaprocessing and technology, unauthor
transactions and breaches of information security @mpliance requirements. This risk may alsouidelthe potential legal actions that c«
arise as a result of an operational deficiencysoa aesult of noncompliance with applicable regulatequirements. Management has d
responsibility for identifying, controlling and mibaring operational risks within their business. sBiess managers maintain a systel
controls to provide transaction authorization arecation, safeguarding of assets from misuse dt dmel to ensure the quality of financial
other data. Our Business Resiliency Group works widch business function to develop plans to stpmesiness resumption activit
including technology, networks and data centerst i@ternal audit function tests the system of ing&rcontrols through riskased aud
procedures and reports on the effectiveness afiateontrols to executive management and the ADdihmittee of the Board of Directors.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information called for by Item 8 is found irsaparate section of this Annual Report on Form 18aKpages F-1 through $8. See th
“Index to Financial Statements” on page F-1.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure controls and procedures are controlsodgimer procedures that are designed to ensurénfloatnation required to be disclosed in
Companys reports filed or submitted under the Securitigshiange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange) Astfecorded, process:
summarized and reported within the time period<i§ipd in the SEGS rules and forms. Disclosure controls and proaslurclude, withot
limitation, controls and procedures designed taienghat information required to be disclosed impany reports filed or submitted under
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated tagement, including the CompasyChief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Ofi
to allow timely decisions regarding required discice.

As of the end of the period covered by this reftne “Evaluation Date”), the Comparsymanagement carried out an evaluation, unde
supervision and with the participation of the Chiefecutive Officer and the Chief Financial Officef, the effectiveness of the design
operation of the Company’s disclosure controls prutedures (as defined in Rule 1B&(e) of the Exchange Act). Based upon that evialn;
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0éf concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, @oenpanys disclosure controls a
procedures were effective.

Other than those described in Item 4 Gentrols and Procedurem the Company's Quarterly Report on FormQU@er the quarter end
September 30, 2014, there were no changes in thep&uy’s internal control over financial reportings(defined in Rule 1385(f) of the
Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter ended Ddim31, 2014hat have materially affected, or are reasonakBlyito materially affect, tt
Company’s internal control over financial reporting

Management’'s annual report on internal control dimaincial reporting is provided on page F-2 ofstiinnual Report on Form 1K- The
attestation report of the Company’s independenisteged public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touch&R, regarding the Compars/interna
control over financial reporting is provided on pdg3 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information called for by this Item is contadnia Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K unttee caption Executive Officers of tt
Registrant” and in our definitive Proxy Statememtdur 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, anm@®rporated herein by reference.

All of our employees, including our principal exége officer, principal financial officer, principaccounting officer and controller, or pers
performing similar functions, also referred to las Principal Officers, are subject to our Code oh@uct. Our directors are also subject tc
Code of Conduct. These documents are posted owehsite at corporate.moneygram.conthe Investor Relations section, and are ava
in print free of charge to any stockholder who esta them at the address set forth in ItemAlvailable Information. We will disclose an
amendments to, or waivers of, our Code of Condurctlirectors or Principal Officers on our websit@e information on our website is not f
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information called for by this Item is containimm our definitive Proxy Statement for our 20ABnual Meeting of Stockholders, anc
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER . MATTERS

The information called for by this Item is containimm our definitive Proxy Statement for our 20ABnual Meeting of Stockholders, anc
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information called for by this Item is contadnimm our definitive Proxy Statement for our 20ABnual Meeting of Stockholders, anc
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information called for by this Item is containimm our definitive Proxy Statement for our 20ABnual Meeting of Stockholders, anc
incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

@) () The financial statements listed in thed8r to Financial Statements” are filed as parhif Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) All financial statement schedules arettedibecause they are not applicable or the regjiifermation is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or notes théistéal in the “Index to Financial Statements.”

3) Exhibits are filed with this Annual Repon Form 10-K or incorporated herein by refereasdisted in the accompanying
Exhibit Index.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regitthas duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

Date: March 3, 2015

MoneyGram International, Inc.
(Registrant)

/ s/ PAMELA H. PATSLEY
Pamela H. Patsley

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By:

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1

registrant and in the capacities and on the dattisdted.

/sl Pamela H. Patsley
Pamela H. Patsley

Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 3, 2015

Executive Vice President,

/sl W. Alexander Holmes
W. Alexander Holmes

/sl Angela McQuien
Angela McQuien

Directors

J. Coley Clark
Victor W. Dahir
Antonio O. Garza
Thomas M. Hagerty

By: /s/ F. Aaron Henry
F. Aaron Henry

Attorney-in-fact

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

March 3, 2015

Senior Vice President and Corporate
Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

March 3, 2015

Seth W. Lawry
Ganesh B. Rao
W. Bruce Turner
Peggy Vaughan

March 3, 2015
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

10.1

10.2

110.3

110.4

110.5

110.6

Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated aduok 30, 2004, by and among Viad Corporation, MGmagn Internationa
Inc., MGI Merger Sub, Inc. and Travelers Expressn@any, Inc. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit to Registrans
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 1302).

Recapitalization Agreement, dated as of March 71,12@mong MoneyGram International, Inc., certafiliafes and canvestors
of Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P. and Goldman, S&c@®. and certain of its affiliates (Incorporatey teference from Exhib
2.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-KdiMarch 9, 2011).

Amendment No. 1 to Recapitalization Agreement, dlaas of May 4, 2011, among MoneyGram Internatiotad,, certair
affiliates and canvestors of Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P. and GaldrBachs & Co. and certain of its affiliates (ipayated by
reference from Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s CurrBeport on Form 8-K filed May 6, 2011).

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatibiMoneyGram International, Inc., dated June 28,4£Q®corporated b
reference from Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Annualpert on Form 10-K filed on March 15, 2010).

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restatedifi@ate of Incorporation of MoneyGram Internataninc., dated May 1.
2009 (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3. Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Maf®b, 2010).

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restatedifi@ate of Incorporation of MoneyGram Internataninc., dated May 1!
2011 (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3. Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed M28; 2011).

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restatedtifidate of Incorporation of MoneyGram Internatan Inc., date:
November 14, 2011 (Incorporated by reference frodilit 3.1 to Registrant’'s Current Report on ForrK 8led November 14
2011).

Bylaws of MoneyGram International, Inc., as amendsul restated September 10, 2009 (Incorporatedebgrence fron
Exhibit 3.01 to Registrant’s Current Report on F@&iK filed on September 16, 2009).

Amendment to Bylaws of MoneyGram International,.]Jrdated as of January 25, 2012 (Incorporated fererce from Exhibi
3.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-Kdillanuary 27, 2012).

Amendment to Bylaws of MoneyGram International,.]mated as of December 10, 2013 (Incorporatecefgrence from Exhib
3.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-Kdil@ecember 16, 2013).

Amended and Restated Certificate of DesignationsfeRences and Rights of Series D Participatingv€dible Preferred Stoc
of MoneyGram International, Inc., dated May 18, PQthcorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 tqgR&ants Current Repo
on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2011).

Form of Specimen Certificate for MoneyGram Commaock (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1Amendment No.
to Registrant’s Form 10 filed on June 14, 2004).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of MarchZ®8, by and among the several Investor partesed therein ar
MoneyGram International, Inc. (Incorporated by refeee from Exhibit 4.5 to Registrant’'s Current Remm Form 8K filed on
March 28, 2008).

Amendment No. 1 to Registration Rights Agreemented as of May 18, 2011, by and among MoneyGraernational, Inc.
certain affiliates and cowestors of Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P., andcanedffiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Co. (Incorpodt
by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s CuatrBeport on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2011).

Employee Benefits Agreement, dated as of June @04,2by and among Viad Corporation, MoneyGram hdgonal, Inc. an
Travelers Express Company, Inc. (Incorporated Wgremce from Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’'s QuarteéRgport on Form 1@
filed on August 13, 2004).

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2094artd between Viad Corporation and MoneyGram I@tgonal, Inc
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Regnt's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed onglist 13, 2004).

MoneyGram International, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Incemt®ian, as amended February 17, 2005 (Incorpotateeference fror
Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on F@&iK filed on February 23, 2005).

Form of Amended and Restated NEmployee Director Indemnification Agreement betwdsmneyGram International, Inc. a
Non-Employee Directors of MoneyGram Internatiomat. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10t6ZRegistrang Curren
Report on Form 8-K filed on February 13, 2009).

Form of Employee Director Indemnification Agreemdagttween MoneyGram International, Inc. and Emplop@ectors o
MoneyGram International, Inc. (Incorporated by refee from Exhibit 10.03 to Registrant’s CurrenpBe on Form & filed on
February 13, 2009).

MoneyGram International, Inc. Performance BonusmP&s amended and restated February 17, 2010 (fgriagown as th
MoneyGram International, Inc. Management and LihBusiness Incentive Plan) (Incorporated by refeeefrom Exhibit 10.0;
to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filedrabruary 22, 1010).
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110.7

110.8

110.9

t10.10

t10.11

110.12

1t10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

110.20

1t10.21

110.22

110.23

110.24

1t10.25

1t10.26

t10.27

Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors of Viadrg;oas amended August 19, 2004 (Incorporated bgreate fron
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report onRd 0-Q filed on November 12, 2004).

Amended and Restated MoneyGram International, Executive Severance Plan (Tier Il), as amendedrasthted August 1
2007 (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 9%@4Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filedAungust 22, 2007).

First Amendment of the Amended and Restated Monay@nternational, Inc. Executive Severance Plaer(ll) (Incorporate:
by reference from Exhibit 10.21 to Registrant’s feat Report on Form 8-K filed on March 28, 2008).

MoneyGram Supplemental Pension Plan, as amendedrestdted December 28, 2007 (Incorporated by necerefrom
Exhibit 99.01 to Registrant’s Current Report onr@-K filed on January 4, 2008).

First Amendment of MoneyGram Supplemental Penslan Bncorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.88mendment No.
to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed August 9, 2010).

Description of MoneyGram International, Inc. Dir@¢s Charitable Matching Program (Incorporated by resfee fron
Exhibit 10.13 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report arh 10-Q filed on August 13, 2004).

Viad Corporation Directos Charitable Award Program (Incorporated by refeeeftom Exhibit 10.14 to Amendment No. 3
Registrant’'s Form 10 filed on June 3, 2004).

Amended and Restated Purchase Agreement, datddMarch 17, 2008, among MoneyGram Internationat, Bnd the sever
Investor parties named therein (Incorporated bgresfce from Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’'s Currenp&® on Form & filed on
March 18, 2008).

Amended and Restated Fee Arrangement Letter, ddedh 17, 2008, between THL Managers VI, LLC andniggpGran
International, Inc. (Incorporated by reference frerhibit 10.2 to Registrant’'s Current Report onrR@K filed March 18, 2008)

Amended and Restated Fee Arrangement Letter, dd@th 17, 2008, between Goldman, Sachs & Co. anaheyiGran
International, Inc. (Incorporated by reference fraxhibit 10.3 to Registrant’'s Current Report onR@K filed on March 18
2008).

Fee Arrangement Letter, dated as of March 25, 2B9&nd between the Investor parties named the@osigman, Sachs & C
and MoneyGram International, Inc. (Incorporateddigrence from Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’'s CurrBefport on Form & filed
on March 28, 2008).

Subscription Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2098and between MoneyGram International, Inc. ahé Goldman Sacl
Group, Inc. (Incorporated by reference from Exhilfit4 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8{&dfion March 28, 2008).

Amended and Restated Fee Letter, dated March 108, 2dmong MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, B&EMP V
Onshore US, Ltd., GSMP V Offshore US, Ltd., GSMRngtitutional US, Ltd., GS Capital Partners VI FuhdP., GS Capite
Partners VI Offshore Fund, L.P., GS Capital Pagnér GmbH & Co. KG, GS Capital Partners VI ParallelP., and THIL
Managers VI, LLC (Incorporated by reference fromhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Current Report on ForK 8led on March 18
2008).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2004 Omnilusentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement, as aeeiebruary 16, 20(
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.5 to Regnt's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Fedmu23, 2005).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2004 Omnildusentive Plan NorQualified Stock Option Agreement, as amen
February 16, 2005 (Incorporated by reference frothiliit 99.6 to Registrant’'s Current Report on F@+K filed on February 2:
2005).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2004 Omnilnsentive Plan Norualified Stock Option Agreement for Directors
adopted February 16, 2005 (Incorporated by referdrmm Exhibit 99.7 to Registrant’s Current Repont Form 8K filed on
February 23, 2005).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnildnsentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement, effectdune 30, 20C
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.2 to Regnt's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on J&ly2005).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnilbusentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement, effecfiugust 17, 2005 (U
Version) (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit®® Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K fimdAugust 23, 2005).
Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnilnsentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement, effecfwugust 17, 2005 (U
Version) (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit®® Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filmdAugust 23, 2005).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibueentive Plan NorQualified Stock Option Agreement, effect
August 17, 2005 (US Version) (Incorporated by refiee from Exhibit 99.6 to Registrant’s Current Repm Form 8K filed on
August 23, 2005).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibugentive Plan NorQualified Stock Option Agreement, effect
August 17, 2005 (UK Version) (Incorporated by refaze from Exhibit 99.8 to Registrant’s Current Réppm Form 8K filed on
August 23, 2005).
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Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibueentive Plan NorQualified Stock Option Agreement, effect
February 15, 2006 (US version) (Incorporated bgnezice from Exhibit 10.41 to Registrant’'s Annuap&® on Form 10K filed
on March 1, 2006).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibugentive Plan NorQualified Stock Option Agreement, effect
February 15, 2006 (UK Version) (Incorporated byerefice from Exhibit 10.42 to Registrant's Annuap®&@ on Form 1K filed
on March 1, 2006).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnilhosentive Plan NorQualified Stock Option Agreement, effective May
2007 (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 9&@4Registrant’'s Current Report on Form 8-K filedMay 14, 2007).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibueentive Plan NorQualified Stock Option Agreement, effect
August 11, 2009 (version 1) (Incorporated by rafeeefrom Exhibit 10.8 to Registrant’s Quarterly Bgpn Form 109 filed on
November 9, 2009).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibueentive Plan NorQualified Stock Option Agreement, effect
August 11, 2009 (version 2) (Incorporated by rafeesfrom Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant’s Quarterly Bepn Form 109 filed on
November 9, 2009).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibosentive Plan NorQualified Stock Option Agreement for Directc
effective August 17, 2005 (Incorporated by refesefiom Exhibit 99.4 to Registrant’s Current Report Form 8K filed on
August 23, 2005).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibosentive Plan NorQualified Stock Option Agreement for Directc
effective February 15, 2006 (Incorporated by rafeeefrom Exhibit 10.43 to Registrant’'s Annual Repam Form 1K filed on
March 1, 2006).

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated January2®D9, between MoneyGram International, Inc. anchéla H. Patsle
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.02 t@R&ant’'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Jary22, 2009).
Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated May 12, 200etween MoneyGram International, Inc. and Parhtld@atsle
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.02 t@R&ant’'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on ME§, 2009).
Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated August&109, between MoneyGram International, Inc. and étaril. Patsle
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.01 tgR&ant’'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Sapber 4, 2009).

Amendment to NorQualified Stock Option Agreements, dated August3109, between MoneyGram International, Inc.
Pamela H. Patsley (Incorporated by reference froxhilit 10.03 to Registrant’'s Current Report on F@# filed on
September 4, 2009).

MoneyGram International, Inc. Performance Unit imoee Plan, as amended and restated May 9, 20@drforated by referen
from Exhibit 99.02 to Registrant’'s Current Repantkorm 8-K filed on May 14, 2007).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. Executive Qmmnsation Trust Agreement (Incorporated by refexdram Exhibit 99.0
to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filedidovember 22, 2005).

First Amendment to the MoneyGram International,. IBgecutive Compensation Trust Agreement (Incorgaraby referenc
from Exhibit 99.01 to Registrant’s Current Repantkorm 8-K filed on August 22, 2006).

The MoneyGram International, Inc. Outside Directdbeferred Compensation Trust, dated January 5, ZD@®rporated b
reference from Exhibit 99.05 to Registrant’'s Cutiieeport on Form 8-K filed on November 22, 2005).

Money Services Agreement between WhHlrt Stores, Inc. and MoneyGram Payment Systents,dated February 1, 2005
amended (Incorporated by reference from Exhibif1@ Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K fimdMarch 25, 2008).

Letter Agreement, effective as of July 26, 2012eading that certain Money Services Agreement, &ffed-ebruary 1, 2005, .
amended, by and between MoneyGram Payment Syskemsnd WalMart Stores, Inc. (Incorporated by reference froxhihit
10.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 16k November 9, 2012).

Form of Employee Trade Secret, Confidential Infdiiora and PosEmployment Restriction Agreement (Incorporated
reference from Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant’s QudytReport on Form 10-Q filed on May 12, 2008).

MoneyGram International, Inc. Severance Plan, tedteeffective February 17, 2010 (Incorporated byerence fron
Exhibit 10.03 to Registrant’s Current Report onrR@-K/A filed November 22, 2010).

Non-Employee Director Compensation Arrangements, revisebe effective as of January 1, 2014 (Incorpatdiy referenc
from Exhibit 10.53 to Registrant’'s Annual Reportieorm 10-K filed March 3, 2014).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. Restrictedc&tUnit Award Agreement (Incorporated by referefroen Exhibit 10.11 t«
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filedgist 9, 2010).

MoneyGram International, Inc. Deferred Compensatitlan, as amended and restated February 16, 2@tbrgorated b
reference from Exhibit 10.01 to Registrant’s Cutii@eport on Form 8-K filed February 23, 2011).
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10.50 Consent Agreement, dated as of March 7, 2011, amdogeyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Inc., Moneyg
International, Inc. and certain of its subsidiardesl certain affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Cocéiporated by reference frc
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on F&iK filed March 9, 2011).

t10.51 MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibus IncemfRlan, as amended and restated March 25, 201&florated by referen:
from Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Reportkorm 8-K filed May 14, 2013).

+10.52 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated daath 28, 2013, by and among MoneyGram Internatjdna., Bank o
America, N.A., as administrative agent, the finahdnstitutions party thereto as lenders and theemtgents party there
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Regnt’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May2813).

10.53  Guaranty, dated as of May 18, 2011, among MoneyQraennational, Inc., MoneyGram Payment Systems,, IMloneyGram ¢
New York LLC, and Bank of America, N.A., as admirggive agent (Incorporated by reference from EiHib.2 to Registrant’
Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2011).

10.54  Pledge Agreement, dated as of May 18, 2011, amomgelyGram International, Inc., MoneyGram Payment&ys Worldwide
Inc., MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc., MoneyGranNeiv York LLC, and Bank of America, N.A., as codedl agen
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Re&gnt’'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 2811).

10.55  Security Agreement, dated as of May 18, 2011, amMogeyGram International, Inc., MoneyGram Paymergt&ns Worldwide
Inc., MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc., MoneyGranNeiv York LLC, and Bank of America, N.A., as codedl agen
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to Regnt’'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 2811).

10.56 Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of May 18, 2(rhpong MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Ine,Rhist Priority
Secured Parties as defined therein, the SecorditiPridecured Parties as defined therein, and Dbeat®&ank Trust Compar
Americas, as Trustee and Collateral Agent (Incatfeat by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to Registra@iisrent Report on Form 8-
K filed May 23, 2011).

10.57  Patent Security Agreement, dated as of May 18, 2b&iween MoneyGram International, Inc. and BanlAwoferica, N.A., a
Collateral Agent (Incorporated by reference froninibit 10.6 to Registrant’s Current Report on Forid 8led May 23, 2011).

10.58 Patent Security Agreement, dated as of May 18, 20dtlveen MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. and BBAknerica, N.A., a
Collateral Agent (Incorporated by reference frontibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Current Report on Forid 8led May 23, 2011).

10.59 Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of May 0&12between MoneyGram International, Inc. and Bafrikmerica, N.A., a
Collateral Agent (Incorporated by reference frontibit 10.8 to Registrant’s Current Report on Forid 8led May 23, 2011).

10.60  Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of May 0812 between MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. amit BEAmerica
N.A., as Collateral Agent (Incorporated by referefiom Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant’'s Current RepmmtForm 8K filed May 23,
2011).

10.61  Copyright Security Agreement, dated as of May 18,12 between MoneyGram International, Inc. and Bafrikmerica, N.A., a
Collateral Agent (Incorporated by reference froninibit 10.10 to Registrant’s Current Report on F@&iK filed May 23, 2011).

+10.62 First Incremental Amendment and Joinder Agreemeated April 2, 2014, by and among MoneyGram Intéonal, Inc., a:
borrower, MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide,, INmneyGram Payment Systems, Inc., and MoneyGrafevi York
LLC, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative ageahd the financial institutions party thereto anders (Incorporated |
reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant's Qu&rtBeport on Form 10-Q filed May 2, 2014).

10.63  Consent Agreement, dated as of August 12, 2015andyamong MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, MoneyGran
International, Inc. and certain of its subsidiariasd certain affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Cac@rporated by reference Frt
Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report onRd 0-Q filed November 3, 2011).

10.64  Consent Agreement, dated as of August 12, 2011grityamong MoneyGram International, Inc., and cersdfiliates and co-
investors of Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P. and iceaffiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Co. (Incorporatgdreference From Exhit
10.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 16k November 3, 2011).

10.65 Consent Agreement, dated as of October 24, 201Bndyamong MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, MaoneyGran
International, Inc. and certain of its subsidiariasd certain affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Cacdrporated by reference frc
Exhibit 10.85 to Registrant’s Annual Report on FdraK filed on March 9, 2012).

10.66  Consent Agreement, dated as of November 15, 201&nt among MoneyGram International, Inc., andaderaffiliates and co-
investors of Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P. andiat#i$ of Goldman, Sachs & Co. (Incorporated byreafee from Exhibit 10.3 1
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Nowmm16, 2011).

10.67  Consent Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2014n8 among MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, MoneyGran
International, Inc. and certain of its subsidiardesl certain affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Cocéiporated by reference frc
Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’'s Current Report on F@+K filed November 18, 2011).
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Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omniblmsentive Plan Global Performance Restricted Stbtkt Award
Agreement (Incorporated by reference from ExhiBitl%o Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-Kdiovember 23, 2011).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnilsentive Plan Global Stock Option Agreement (Iipowated by referent
from Exhibit 99.2 to Registrant’s Current ReportFarm 8-K filed November 23, 2011).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnilncentive Plan Global Stock Appreciation Right Agimeent (Incorporate
by reference from Exhibit 10.92 to Registrant’s AahReport on Form 10-K filed March 9, 2012).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnilsentive Plan Performance Restricted Stock UniaAdvAgreement (Fc¢
Participants in France) (Incorporated by referenoen Exhibit 10.93 to Registrant’s Annual Reporteorm 10K filed March 9,
2012).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnildasentive Plan Stock Option Agreement (For Optienée France
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.94 t@R&ant’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March2®12).

Form of Severance Agreement (Incorporated by referdrom Exhibit 10.95 to Registrant's Annual Reépmm Form 10K filed
March 9, 2012).

Stipulation and Agreement of Compromise and Sestlgmdated as of July 19, 2012, by and among thtgfs and clas
representatives party thereto, MoneyGram Internatjdnc., Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P., The Golui®achs Group, Inc. a
certain individual defendants party thereto (Incogbed by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to RegistaQuarterly Report on For
10-Q filed November 9, 2012).

Supplemental Agreement Regarding Settlement, detexf July 20, 2012, by and among MoneyGram Intemal, Inc., Thoma
H. Lee Partners, L.P., The Goldman Sachs Group, k®rtain individual defendants party thereto, dmatleral Insuranc
Company (Incorporated by reference from Exhibi210. Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-@diNovember 9, 2012).

Master Trust Agreement dated September 30, 20Ehbpbetween MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. aneM&flStores, Inc
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Regnt's Current Report on Form 8-K filed Octolie2012).

Employment Agreement, dated as of March 27, 20¥3amd between MoneyGram International, Inc. and élarkl. Patsle
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Regnt's Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26813).

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 27,,2818nd among MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldviie, GSMP \
Onshore US, Ltd., GSMP V Offshore US, Ltd. and GSWiRstitutional US, Ltd. (Incorporated by referenftom Exhibit 10.1 t
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed Ma2&) 2013).

Stock Repurchase Agreement, dated March 26, 2@1dnth among the Company and the THL Selling Stolckdre (Incorporate
by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s @atrReport on Form 8-K filed March 31, 2014).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omniblusentive Plan Global Performance Restricted Stbtkt Award
Agreement (Incorporated by reference from Exhibitdlto Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 1Gi€dfMay 3, 2013).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnilisentive Plan Global Stock Option Agreement (lpawated by referent
from Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Quarterly RepontForm 10-Q filed May 3, 2013).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnilnsentive Plan Global Stock Appreciation Right Agmeent (Incorporate
by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant’s Qedy Report on Form 10-Q filed May 3, 2013).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibnsentive Plan Global Longerm Incentive Cash Performance Aw
Agreement (for one-time contingent performance agjfincorporated by reference from Exhibit 10./Registrants Quarterl
Report on Form 10-Q filed May 3, 2013).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omniblmsentive Plan Global Performance Restricted Stotkt Award
Agreement (for one-time contingent performance agjfincorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8Registrants Quarterl
Report on Form 10-Q filed May 3, 2013).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnildasentive Plan Stock Option Agreement (For Optienée France
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.9 to Regnt’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May2813).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibmgentive Plan Global TimBased Restricted Stock Unit Awe
Agreement (Incorporated by reference from Exhibi3lto Registrant’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10i€dfMay 2, 2014).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnilncentive Plan Global Stock Appreciation Right Agmeent (Incorporate
by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Qedy Report on Form 10-Q filed May 2, 2014).

Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibinsentive Plan Global PerformanBased Restricted Stock Unit Awe
Agreement (Incorporated by reference from Exhibiblto Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 1Gi€dfMay 2, 2014).
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Form of MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnilisentive Plan Global Stock Option Agreement (lpowated by referent
from Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant’s Quarterly RepontForm 10-Q filed May 2, 2014).

Global TimeBased Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, d&tebdruary 24, 2014, between MoneyGram Internatidnal,
and Pamela H. Patsley (Incorporated by refererara fxhibit 10.7 to Registrant’'s Quarterly Reportfeorm 10Q filed May 2,
2014).

Global Performanc®ased Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dé&tloruary 24, 2014, between MoneyGram Internatit
Inc. and Pamela H. Patsley (Incorporated by referdrom Exhibit 10.8 to Registrant’s Quarterly Regmmn Form 109 filed May
2, 2014).

Settlement Agreement, dated as of January 8, 21&nd between MoneyGram International Limited &adl-Olav Scheible.
Form of 2014 Cash Retention Award Agreement.

2014 Cash Retention Award Agreement, dated DecerhBger2014, between MoneyGram International, Ind &amela F
Patsley.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Power of Attorney

Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Office
Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Office
Section 906 Certification of Chief Executive Office
Section 906 Certification of Chief Financial Office

The following financial statements, formatted inténsible Business Reporting Language (“XBRL'):Gonsolidated Balanc
Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and December 3B; Zi)jlConsolidated Statements of Operations foe tyears ende
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; (iii) ConsolidlaBtatements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for yhars ende
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; (iv) Consolid&tdements of Cash Flows for the years ended De=edi, 2014, 201
and 2012; (v) Consolidated Statements of Stockhsld#eficit as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; (@ijdNotes to th
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Filed herewith.
Indicates management contract or compensatorygularrangement required to be filed as an exhikihis report.

Confidential information has been omitted from tBihibit and has been filed separately with the EGuant to a confidential
treatment request under Rule 24b-2.
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Management’'s Responsibility Statement

The management of MoneyGram International, Incresponsible for the integrity, objectivity and amy of the consolidated financ
statements of the Company. The consolidated fimhrstatements are prepared by the Company in ameoedwith accounting principl
generally accepted in the United States of Ametisang, where appropriate, managemeriest estimates and judgments. The fina
information presented throughout the Annual Refgocbnsistent with that in the consolidated finahstatements.

Management is also responsible for maintaining stesy of internal controls and procedures over fir@nreporting designed to provi
reasonable assurance that the books and recorddstréfe transactions of the Company and that sisset protected against loss fi
unauthorized use or disposition. Such a systemamtained through accounting policies and procesla@ministered by trained Compi
personnel and updated on a continuing basis tarenisair adequacy to meet the changing requirenadraar business. The Company reqt
that all of its affairs, as reflected by the actiarf its employees, be conducted according to thkelst standards of personal and bus
conduct. This responsibility is reflected in ourdeémf Ethics.

To test compliance with the Compasysystem of internal controls and procedures owential reporting, the Company carries ou
extensive audit program. This program includesvéere for compliance with written policies and prdoees and a comprehensive review o
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal cosrstem. Although control procedures are designedi@sted, it must be recognized that t
are limits inherent in all systems of internal cohtand, therefore, errors and irregularities mayeartheless occur. Also, estimates
judgments are required to assess and balanceldtieeecost and expected benefits of the contftejection of any evaluation of effectiven
to future periods are subject to the risk that catmay become inadequate because of changesiditions, or that the degree of complia
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, whis composed solely of outside directors, meetstquy with management, internal a
and the independent registered public accountmg t discuss internal accounting control, auditmgl financial reporting matters, as wel
to determine that the respective parties are plppkscharging their responsibilities. Both our épéndent registered public accounting
and internal auditors have had and continue to bavestricted access to the Audit Committee wittibatpresence of management.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgfapaternal controls over financial reporting asecember 31, 2014In making thi
assessment, management used the criteria setifidriternal Control - Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basedwrassessment and those criteria, managementdelieat the Company designed
maintained effective internal control over finaneigporting as of December 31, 2014 .

The Companys independent registered public accounting firmpite & Touche LLP, has been engaged to auditfimancial statements a
the effectiveness of the Company’s system of irtlecontrol over financial reporting. Their repoaie included on pages F-3 andt f this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/sl PAMELA H. PATSLEY /sl W. ALEXANDER H OLMES

Pamela H. Patsley W. Alexander Holmes

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficedaChief
(Principal Executive Officer) Operating Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
MoneyGram International, Inc.
Dallas, Texas

We have audited the internal control over finaneggborting of MoneyGram International, Inc. and sdkaries (the "Company") as
December 31, 2014 , based on criteria establighéatérnal Control - Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camgananagement is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigerd internal control over financial reportingclided in the accompanying Managemt
Responsibility Statement. Our responsibility isetqpress an opinion on the Company's internal cbotrer financial reporting based on
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statslof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ifq@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiafuthe design and operating effectiveness ofivalecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed by, or under the supenvisfi the company's principal execu
and principal financial officers, or persons pemiorg similar functions, and effected by the compsiioard of directors, management,
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneegdieg the reliability of financial reporting anket preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally medeaccounting principles. A company's internaitoa over financial reporting includ
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihéaraintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypi@jide reasonable assurance that transactionee@weded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengiedcepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are t
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngenzent and directors of the company; and (3) peov@&hsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigion, use, or disposition of the company's as#leat could have a material effect on
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tcohover financial reporting, including the posstlp of collusion or improper managem
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of ¢
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltominover financial reporting to future periods agbject to the risk that the controls r
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigt the degree of compliance with the policgeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fic&l reporting as of December 31, 2014
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control - Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadribe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolida
financial statements as of and for the year endedeber 31, 2014 of the Company and our reporddsiizrch 3, 201%xpressed as
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & T OUCHELLP
Dallas, Texas
March 3, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
MoneyGram International, Inc.
Dallas, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of MoneyGram International, Inc. and ididoges (the “Company”gs o
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related ddasadl statements of operations, comprehensiveriaqtoss), cash flows and stockholders
deficit for each of the three years in the periaderl December 31, 2014 . These financial statenagatthe responsibility of the Compasy’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion the financial statements based on our sudit

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, timarficial position of MoneyGram Internatior
Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2014 and 2@h8 the results of their operations and theih dsvs for each of the three years in
period ended December 31, 2014 , in conformity &itbhounting principles generally accepted in théddnStates of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the Company’
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2014 , based on the criteria establish&ternal Control -Integrated Framewol
(2013)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatainthe Treadway Commission and our report datedcMa, 2015expressed ¢
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal cohtiver financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & T OUCHELLP
Dallas, Texas
March 3, 2015
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AT DECEMBER 31
(Amounts in millions, except share data)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Settlement assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Payment service obligations
Debt

Pension and other postretirement benefits
Accounts payable and other liabilities

Total liabilities

MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 15)

STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

Participating Convertible Preferred Stock - Sebe$0.01 par value, 200,000 shares authorized 821a2d

109,239 issued at December 31, 2014 and Decemb@033, respectively

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 162,500,000 shathordzed, 58,823,567 and 62,263,963 shares issLiel

December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resphctive

Additional paid-in capital
Retained loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock: 5,734,338 and 4,300,782 sharegegmber 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respactiv

Total stockholders’ deficit

Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2014 2013
250.6 $ 318.¢
3,533.¢ 3,737
165.¢€ 134.¢
442 F 435.:
249.¢ 161.(
4642: $  4,786.
3533.( $  3,737.
963.L 842.¢
125.7 98.£
202.1 185.
4,824 4,863.¢
183.¢ 281.¢
0.6 0.€
982.¢ 1,011.¢
(1,144.9 (1,214.9
(67.1) (33.0
(138.9) (123.9)
(182.7) (77.0)
4642 $  4,786.
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 2013 2012
(Amounts in millions, except per share data)
REVENUE
Fee and other revenue $ 1,438. $ 14566 $ 1,328.¢
Investment revenue 16.5 17.€ 12.¢
Total revenue 1,454.¢ 1,474.. 1,341.;
EXPENSES
Fee and other commissions expense 666.( 677.¢ 599.2
Investment commissions expense 0.4 0.4 .3
Total commissions expense 666.< 678.2 599.t
Compensation and benefits 275.( 264.¢ 241.¢
Transaction and operations support 332.2 253.7 355.7
Occupancy, equipment and supplies 54.4 49.C 47.1
Depreciation and amortization b5.k 50.7 44.:
Total operating expenses 1,383t 1,296.t 1,288.¢
OPERATING INCOME 71. 177.¢ 52.¢
Other (income) expense
Net securities gains (45.9 — (20.0
Interest expense 442 47.c 70.¢
Debt extinguishment costs — 45.2 —
Other costs — — 0.4
Total other (income) expenses, net (1.9 92.€ 61.2
Income (loss) before income taxes 72.€ 85.2 (8.9
Income tax expense 0.t 32.¢ 40.
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 721 % 524 % (49.9)

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
Basic $ 1.1C $ 0.7z % (0.69)
Diluted $ 1.1¢C $ 0.7¢ $ (0.69)

Weighted-average outstanding common shares and egaients used in computing earnings
(loss) per share

Basic 65.2 71.€ 71.F
Diluted 65.5 71.€ 71.5

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 2013 2012
(Amounts in millions)
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 721 % 524 $ (499

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
Net change in unrealized holding gains on availitnlesale securities arising during the period, net

of tax (benefit) expense of ($0.2), $4.7 and $1.4 (6.1 1.C (5.2)
Net change in pension liability, net of tax benefi$2.5, $2.7 and $2.2 4.1 4.8 3.t
Valuation adjustment for pension and postretirenbemefit plans, net of tax (benefit) expense of

($13.4), $7.4 and ($8.7) (23.2) 12.€ (14.2)
Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustmemnés of tax (benefit) expense of ($5.2), $0.5 «

$1.0 (8.9 0.8 1.€
Other comprehensive (loss) income (34.7) 19.5 (14.3)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) $ 38.C $ 717 $ (63.6€)

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(Amounts in millions)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)
Depreciation and amortization
Signing bonus amortization
Provision for deferred income taxes
Loss on debt extinguishment
Amortization of debt discount and deferred finagoimsts
Non-cash compensation and pension expense
Signing bonus payments
Change in other assets
Change in accounts payable and other liabilities
Other non-cash items, net
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Transaction costs for issuance and amendment of deb
Principal payments on debt
Prepayment penalty
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Stock repurchase
Net cash used in financing activities
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of period

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of period
Supplemental cash flow information:

Cash payments for interest
Cash payments for income taxes

Change in accrued purchases of property and equipme

2014 2013 2012
$ 721 $ 524 $ (49.9)
55.F 50.7 445
53. 42.¢ 33.¢
5.E 12.C 29.
— 452 —
3.1 3.3 5.7
15.2 20.: 17.2
(93.9 (45.0) (36.9)
(34.5) 29.2 3.6
(8.9 (58.4) 31F
(5.9 3.5 (4.1)
62. 156.1 76.
(85.6) (48.5) (59.6)
(11.5) (15.4) —
0. 0.7 1.
(96.4) (63.5) (58.6)
129.€ 850.( —
(5.1) (11.§) —
(9.5) (819.5) (1.5)
— (21.5) —
0.4 1.1 —
(149.7) — —
(34.1) (1.7) (1.E)
(68.2) 90.¢ 16.2
318.¢ 227.¢ 211.7
$ 2506 $ 318 $  227.¢
$ 411 $ 43¢ $ 64.
$ 64 $ 8C $ 2.8
$ 21 $ 78 $ 2.9

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Amounts in millions)
January 1, 2012
Net loss

Stock-based compensation
Capital contribution from investors

Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities, net of tax

Net change in pension liability, net of tax

Valuation adjustment for pension and
postretirement benefit plans, net of tax

Unrealized foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax

December 31, 2012

Net income

Stock-based compensation
Capital contribution from investors

Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities, net of tax

Net change in pension liability, net of tax

Valuation adjustment for pension and
postretirement benefit plans, net of tax

Unrealized foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax

December 31, 2013

Net income

Stock-based compensation

Capital contribution from investors
Repurchase and retirement of shares
Conversion of Series D convertible shares
Stock repurchase

Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities, net of tax

Net change in pension liability, net of tax

Valuation adjustment for pension and
postretirement benefit plans, net of tax

Unrealized foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax

December 31, 2014

MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

Accumulated

Additional Other
Preferred Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Stock Capital Loss Loss Stock Total

$ 281.¢ $ 0€ $ 989.:. $ (1,216 % (380 $ (1279 % (110.9
— — — (49.9) — — (49.9)

— — 8.€ — — 0.€ 9.2

— — 3.z — — — 3.2

— — — — (5.2) — (5.9

— — — — 3.t — 3.t

— — — — (14.2) — (14.2)

— — — — 1.€ — 1.€
281.¢ 0.€ 1,001.( (1,265.9 (52.9) (126.7%) (161.9
— — — 52.4 — — 52.4

— — 10.t (0.9) — 2.€ 12.4

— — 0.2 — — — 0.2

— — — — 1.C — 1.C

— — — — 4.€ — 4.8

— — — — 12.¢ — 12.€

— — — — 0.€ — 0.¢
281.¢ 0.€ 1,011.¢ (1,214.9) (33.0 (123.9 (77.0)
— — — 72.1 — — 72.1

— — 5.4 (2.9 — 2.3 5.4

— — 0.€ — — — 0.€

— (0.2) (132.9 — — — (133.0
(98.0 0.1 97.¢ — — — —
— — — — — (16.7) (16.7)

— — — — (6.2 — (6.2)

— — — — 4.1 — 4.1

— — — — (23.2) — (23.29)

— — — — (8.9 — (8.9)

$ 183¢ % 0€ $ 982.¢ $ (1,144 $ (67.) $ (138.) $ (182.%)

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Description of the Business and Basis ofdentation

References to “MoneyGram,” the “Company,” “we,
entities.

wmnd “our” are to MoneyGram International, Inc. and its sulsids and consolidat

Nature of Operations— MoneyGram offers products and services undetwts reporting segments: Global Funds Transfer ("GFTi)
Financial Paper Products ("FPP"). The GFT segmentighes global money transfer services and billnpagt services to consumers throu
network of agent locations. The FPP segment prevaficial check outsourcing services and moneyemdhrough financial institutions &
agent locations.

Basis of Presentatio — The consolidated financial statements of MoneyGaaenprepared in conformity with accounting prinegpbenerall
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAPThe Consolidated Balance Sheets are unclassified tduthe timing uncertain
surrounding the payment of settlement obligations.

As of December 31, 2014, we have recast our Catatelil Balance Sheets to include the settlementarabicash equivalents, receivables,
interest-bearing investments and availablesfle investments in a new balance sheet captioitiedri'Settlement assets," in an amount e
to "Payment service obligations." The historicalyported Assets in excess of payment service dldigmare now presented as unrestri
"Cash and cash equivalents" on the ConsolidatedrBal Sheets. Prior year amounts have been re®dssif conform to current ye
presentation.

Similar presentation changes have been made opritreyear Consolidated Statement of Cash Flowsottform to current year presentai
disclosing ending unrestricted "Cash and cash adprits.” In addition, we have recast the Consdda&tatements of Cash Flows to nel
changes in Settlement assets and Payment senligat@mns in the operating section of the statemeligtorically, investments used to se
payment service obligations were included in theesting section of the cash flow statement; howesettlement assets represent fi
received or to be received from agents for ungbtteney transfers, money orders and customer pagntee receipt of which creates an e
and offsetting settlement obligation for subseqummtment to the intended recipient. Settlementtasa® segregated due to their restri
nature, as they are held for payout to customedssabject to restrictions by various U.S. statenags and foreign jurisdictions pursuan
licensing requirements. Since "Settlement assetd'tlae related "Payment service obligations" flattun equal amounts with another, the
not have a net impact on the Company’s cash flows.

Use of Estimates —Fhe preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptiol
that affect the reported amount of assets andlitiabiand disclosure of contingent assets andliligis at the date of the financial statem:
and the reported amounts of revenues and expens@g) dhe reporting period. These estimates andnagsons are based on histor
experience, future expectations and other factas assumptions the Company believes to be reasonatuler the circumstances. Tt
estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an anbasis and are revised when necessary. Changssinmates are recorded in the perio
change. Actual amounts may differ from these egtiga

Principles of Consolidatior — The consolidated financial statements include theoants of MoneyGram International, Inc. and
subsidiaries. Intercompany profits, transactiors arcount balances have been eliminated in corsdimid

The Company participates in various trust arrangesngspecial purpose entities or “SPE®Iated to official check processing agreementh
financial institutions and structured investmentthin the investment portfolio. Working in coopecat with certain financial institutions, t
Company historically established separate congeliti8PEs that provided these financial institutisith additional assurance of its ability
clear their official checks. The Company maintainsatrol of the assets of the SPEs and receivaesvastment revenue generated by the a:
The Company remains liable to satisfy the obligatiof the SPEs, both contractually and by operatiotihe Uniform Commercial Code,
issuer and drawer of the official checks. As thenPany is the primary beneficiary and bears the annburden of any losses, the SPE:
consolidated in the consolidated financial statesienhe assets of the SPEs are recorded in theodeted Balance Sheets in a mai
consistent with the assets of the Company basdteonature of the asset. Accordingly, the obligagibave been recorded in the Consolic
Balance Sheets under “Payment service obligatiofise’ investment revenue generated by the assete @REs is allocated to the Finar
Paper Products segment in the Consolidated StateroE@perations. For the years ending Decembe2@14 and 2013 , the Compasy8PE
had settlement assets and payment service oblgabio$3.1 million and $7.2 million , respectively.
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Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and cash equivalents Fhe Company defines cash and cash equivalentsediheinsent cash and cash equivalents as cash onamainal
highly liquid debt instruments with original maties of three months or less at the purchase date.

Settlement assets and payment service obligatioretdement assets represent funds received or tedsived from agents for unseti
money transfers, money orders and consumer payniBmsCompany records corresponding payment seoltigations relating to amoul
payable under money transfers, money orders anduooer payment service arrangements. Settlementsassasists of cash and c
equivalents, receivables and investments. Payneewice obligations primarily consist of: outstanglipayment instruments; amounts owe
financial institutions for funds paid to the Compato cover clearings of official check payment iostents, remittances and cleal
adjustments; amounts owed to agents for funds fmaidonsumers on behalf of the Company; commissimmsd to financial institutic
customers and agents for instruments sold; amawmésl to investment brokers for purchased securitied unclaimed instruments owec
various states. These obligations are recognizeétidZompany at the time the underlying transastmocur.

The Company’s licensed entity, MoneyGram Paymestedys, Inc. (“MPSI")js regulated by various U.S. state agencies thagrgdly requir
the Company to maintain a pool of assets with aredtment rating of A or higher (“permissible invasnts”)in an amount equal to t
payment service obligations, as defined by eadb,dtar those regulated payment instruments, namedBr checks, agent checks, money ot
and money transfers. The regulatory payment selmgsets measure varies by state, but in all casbsdes investments rated below Ahe
most restrictive states may also exclude assetsdtdbanks that do not belong to a national instegrogram, varying amounts of accol
receivable balances and/or assets held in oneedBEs. The regulatory payment service obligatioeasure varies by state, but in all cas
substantially lower than the Compasypayment service obligations as disclosed in thesGlidated Balance Sheets as the Company
regulated by state agencies for payment servicigaitins resulting from outstanding cashéechecks or for amounts payable to agent:
brokers.

Our primary overseas operating subsidiary, MonewGlraternational Ltd., is a licensed payment insitu in the United Kingdom enabling
to offer our money transfer service in the EuropEaanomic Area. We are also subject to licensingtber regulatory requirements in vari
other jurisdictions. Licensing requirements maylude minimum net worth, provision of surety bondslatters of credit, compliance w
operational procedures, agent oversight and thentereance of settlement assets in an amount eqotvideoutstanding payment ser
obligations, as defined by our various regulators.
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The regulatory and contractual requirements do require the Company to specify individual assetkl He meet its payment serv
obligations, nor is the Company required to depsgécific assets into a trust, escrow or other igp@ccount. Rather, the Company n
maintain a pool of liquid assets sufficient to cdynpith the requirements. No third party placesitations, legal or otherwise, on the Comp
regarding the use of its individual liquid assd@ise Company is able to withdraw, deposit or sslintividual liquid assets at will, with no pr
notice or penalty, provided the Company maintainstal pool of liquid assets sufficient to meet tiegulatory and contractual requireme
Regulatory requirements also require MPSI to mairpasitive net worth, with certain states requgrthat MPSI maintain positive tangible
worth. The Company was in compliance with its cactmal and financial regulatory requirements aPetember 31, 2014 The followin¢
table summarizes the amount of Settlement assdtPayment service obligations as of December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
Settlement assets:
Settlement cash and cash equivalents $ 1,657.0 % 1,909.
Receivables, net 757.€ 767.1
Interest-bearing investments 1,091.¢ 1,011.¢
Available-for-sale investments 27.1 48.1
3,5633.¢ 3,737.:
Payment service obligations $ (3,633.¢) $ (3,737.)

Receivables, ne (included in settlement assets} The Company has receivables due from financialtigins and agents for paym
instruments sold and amounts advanced by the Contpacertain agents for operational and local ratpuly purposes. These receivables
outstanding from the day of the sale of the paymestrument until the financial institution or ageemits the funds to the Company.
Company provides an allowance for the portion ef thceivable estimated to become uncollectibleedsrohined based on known delingt
accounts and historical trends. Receivables arerghy considered past due one dafyer the contractual remittance schedule, whi
typically one to threelays after the sale of the underlying payment umsént. Receivables are generally written off agaims allowance or
year after becoming past due. The following sumnatails the activity within the allowance for citeldsses for the years endDecembe
31:

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Beginning balance $ 107 $ 117 $ 10.5
Charged to expense 11.1 9.€ 7.5
Write-offs, net of recoveries (12.7 (10.6) (6.3

Ending balance $ 107 $ 107 ¢ 11.7

Investments (included in settlement ass — The Company classifies securities as intereatibg or available-fosale. The Company has
securities classified as trading or held-to-majuritime deposits and certificates of deposits wveitiginal maturities of up to 2#nonths ar
classified as interegtearing investments and recorded at amortized 8esturities held for indefinite periods of timegluding any securitie
that may be sold to assist in the clearing of paynservice obligations or in the management ofitlvestment portfolio, are classified
available-for-sale securities. These securitiesracerded at fair value, with the net aftex- unrealized gain or loss recorded as a sej
component of stockholders’ deficit. Realized gaarsd losses and other-thtamporary impairments are recorded in the Consiao
Statements of Operations.

Interest income on residential mortgdwsgcked securities for which risk of credit lossddeemed remote is recorded utilizing the level »
method. Changes in estimated cash flows, bothipesiind negative, are accounted for with retrospeathanges to the carrying value
investments in order to maintain a level yield otrex life of the investment. Interest income on tgagebacked securities for which risk
credit loss is not deemed remote is recorded uh@gprospective method as adjustments of yield.

The Company applies the cost recovery method abwatting for interest to its investments categoriasdother assdtacked securities. T
cost recovery method accounts for interest on h basis and deems any interest payments receivadexovery of principal, which redur
the book value of the related security. When thekbaalue of the related security is reduced to zernerest payments are then recognize
investment income upon receipt. The Company apfiiesost recovery method of accounting as it sebet is probable that the Company
not recover all, or substantially all, of its pripal investment and interest for its other adssmtked securities given the sustained deteriorat
the investment and securities market, the collapseany assebacked securities and the low levels to which #rusties have been writt
down.
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Securities with gross unrealized losses as of #ianlse sheet date, are subject to a process fotifideg other-thantemporary impairment
Securities that the Company deems to be otheritraporarily impaired are written down to fair vainethe period the impairment occurs.
assessment of whether such impairment has occisrtesed on managemengvaluation of the underlying reasons for theidedh fair valu
on an individual security basis. The Company carsich wide range of factors about the securityus®s its best judgment in evaluating
cause of the decline in the estimated fair valuthefsecurity and the prospects for recovery. Tom@any considers an investment to be othe
thantemporarily impaired when it is deemed probablé tha Company will not receive all of the cash ftoeontractually stipulated for t
investment, or whether it is more likely than nieattwe will sell an investment before recovery tsfamortized cost basis. The Comg
evaluates mortgage-backed and other dsselted investments rated A and below for which afkredit loss is deemed more than remot
impairment. When an adverse change in expected ftask occurs, and if the fair value of a secuiyless than its carrying value,
investment is written down to fair value througheamanent reduction to its amortized cost. Seegrigiains and losses are recognized upc
sale, call or maturity of securities using the $iie@entification method to determine the cossigeof securities sold. Any impairment chau
and other securities gains and losses are includig@ Consolidated Statements of Operations ufidetr securities gains.”

Fair Value of Financial Instrument— Financial instruments consist of cash and cashvabprits, investments, derivatives, defe
compensation and debt. The carrying values of aashcash equivalents and interlbstring investments approximate fair value. Theyaag
value of debt is stated at amortized cost; howdwerlisclosure purposes the fair value is estichafee Note 5 —Fair Value Measuremeriibr
information regarding the principles and processes to estimate the fair value of financial insteumts.

Derivative Financial Instrumeni — The Company recognizes derivative financial instats in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at faire
The accounting for changes in the fair value imgaized through the “Transaction and operationgstpline in the Consolidated Stateme
of Operations in the period of change. See Note Derivative Financial Instrument®r additional disclosure.

Property and Equipmer — Property and equipment includes equipment at algeations, communication equipment, computer hareh
computer software, leasehold improvements, offiageifure and equipment, land and signs, and isedtatt cost net of accumula
depreciation. Property and equipment, with the ptioa of land, is depreciated using a strailjimt- method over the useful life or term of
lease or license. Land is not depreciated. The aodtrelated accumulated depreciation of assetk aotisposed of are removed from
financial statements, with the resulting gain asloif any, recognized in “Occupancy, equipment suygblies”in the Consolidated Stateme
of Operations. See Note 8 Property and Equipmeribr additional disclosure. The following table suemizes the estimated useful lives |
major asset category:

Type of Asset Useful Life
Equipment at agent locations 3 -7 years
Communication equipment 5 years
Computer hardware 3 years
Computer software 5-7years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Office furniture and equipment 7 years
Signage 3 years

Tenant allowances for leasehold improvements gpéataed as leasehold improvements upon compleaifche improvement and deprecie
over the shorter of the remaining term of the leas&0 years .

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2018wase development costs of $25.9 million and $1rhillion , respectively, wel
capitalized. At December 31, 2014 and 2013 , theas $61.5 million and $50.3 millionrespectively, of unamortized software developi
costs included in property and equipment.

Fixed assets and capitalized software are testeanfzairment whenever events or changes in circantgs indicate that the carrying amc
may not be recoverable by comparing the carryirigevaf the assets to the estimated future undigeducash flows to be generated by
asset. If an impairment is determined to existfiiced assets or capitalized software, the carryialyie of the asset is reduced to the estin
fair value.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets— Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase pner the fair value of net assets acquired irines:
combinations and is assigned to the reporting innithich the acquired business will operate. Inthlegassets are recorded at their estinr
fair value at the date of acquisition. In the y&alowing the period in which identified intangiblessets become fully amortized, the f
amortized balances are removed from the gross asdeiccumulated amortization amounts. Goodwilliatahgible assets with indefinite liv
are not amortized, but are instead subject to impait testing. Intangible assets with finite liaee amortized using a straigirte method ove
their respective useful lives as follows:

Type of Intangible Asset Useful Life
Contractual and customer relationships 3-15 years
Patents 15 years
Non-compete agreements 3-5 years
Trademarks and licenses 36-40 years
Developed technology 5-7 years

Goodwill is tested for impairment using a famlue based approach, and is assessed at theimgponit level. The carrying value of 1
reporting unit is compared to its estimated failueawith any excess of carrying value over failueadeemed to be an indicator of potel
impairment, in which case a second step is perfdrooenparing the recorded amount of goodwill tdritplied fair value. Intangible assets v
finite lives and other longived assets are tested for impairment wheneventeva changes in circumstances indicate that dnsyiog amour
may not be recoverable by comparing the carryirigevaf the assets to the estimated future undigeducash flows to be generated by
asset. If an impairment is determined to existgoodwill or intangible assets, the carrying valdighe asset is reduced to the estimatec
value.

The Company evaluates its goodwill and other indifilived intangible assets for impairment annuallyoé©ctober 1 of each year or m
frequently if impairment indicators arise in acaamde with Accounting Standards Codification (“AST9pic 350, “Intangibles -Goodwill
and Other” No impairment was recognized as a result of tieeo@er 1, 2014 testing.

Payments on Lor-Term Contracts— The Company makes payments to certain agents aadciil institution customers as an incentiv
enter into longeerm contracts. The payments, or signing bonusesgenerally required to be refunded pro rata énebent of nonperformar
under, or cancellation of, the contract by the @ongr. All signing bonuses are capitalized and arextover the life of the related contr:
Amortization of signing bonuses on long-term cocisés recorded in “Fee and other commissions esg¥én the Consolidated Statement:
Operations. The carrying values of the signing Isesitare reviewed annually or whenever events argesain circumstances indicate that
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Income Taxe:— The provision for income taxes is computed basedhe preax income (loss) included in the Consolidated eStegnts ¢
Operations. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiesracerded based on the future tax consequencdsutdtrle to temporary differences that €
between the financial statement carrying valuesstts and liabilities and their respective taxdyasid operating loss and tax credit cdragk:
and carryforwards on a taxing jurisdiction basis. The Compareasures deferred tax assets and liabilitiegummacted statutory tax rates
will apply in the years in which the Company expgetiie temporary differences to be recovered or.peli¢ Company's ability to reali
deferred tax assets depends on the ability to gemsufficient taxable income within the carry-baclcarryforward periods provided for in t
tax law. The Company establishes valuation allowarfor the Company's deferred tax assets basedrmmelikely-thannot threshold. To tt
extent management believes that recovery is nelylila valuation allowance is established in theéggein which the determination is made.

The liability for unrecognized tax benefits is red@d as a non-cash item in “Accounts payable aherdiabilities”in the Consolidated Balar
Sheets. The Company records interest and penddtieanrecognized tax benefits in “Income tax exgefiisenefit)”in the Consolidate
Statements of Operations. See Note 1dneeme Taxefor additional disclosure.

Treasury Stock— Repurchased common stock is stated at cost snquteisented as a separate component of stockHoldigfisit. Se:
Note 12— Stockholders’ Deficitor additional disclosure.

Foreign Currency Translatio.— The Company converts assets and liabilities ofijor@perations to their U.S. dollar equivalentsaies it
effect at the balance sheet dates and recordsath&dtion adjustments in “Accumulated other comprsive lossin the Consolidated Balar
Sheets. Income statements of foreign operationgranslated from the operatiafunctional currency to U.S. dollar equivalentshat averag
exchange rate for the month. Foreign currency exghdransaction gains and losses are reportedran$hction and operations suppant'the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Revenue Recognitic— The Company derives revenue primarily through serfées charged to consumers and through its ingeattivity
A description of these revenues and revenue rettogmolicies is as follows:

» Fee and other revenue consists of transaction $eedce revenue, foreign exchange revenue and mhenue

F-14




Table of Contents

» Transaction fees consist primarily of fees earnedioney transfer, money order, bill payment anétiafif check transactior
The money transfer transaction fees vary basedhermtincipal value of the transaction and the locet in which thes
money transfers originate and to which they ard. sEme official check, money order and bill payménatnsaction fees &
fixed fees charged on a per item basis. Transatdieg are recognized at the time of the transadtiigale of the product.

» Foreign exchange revenue is derived from the manage of currency exchange spreads on money tratrsfesaction
involving different “send” and “receiveurrencies. Foreign exchange revenue is recogmiztite time the exchange in ful
occurs.

« Other revenue primarily consists of service chargesaged outstanding money orders and money orideemser fee
Additionally, we maintain a liability for unclaimgelayment instruments and money transfers and rézmdmneakage incor
when the likelihood of consumer piclp becomes remote and there is no requiremengefoitting balances to governm
agencies under unclaimed property laws.

» Investment revenue is derived from the investméritiods generated from the sale of payment instnisygrimarily official check
and money orders, and consists of interest incalivaend income, income received on our cost regogecurities and amortizati
of premiums and discounts.

Customer Loyalty Program —The MoneyGram Rewards loyalty program, introducedlanuary 2012, allowed enrolled members to
points based on the face value of their send tcdioses, along with opportunities for points earfemm promotional activities. Points we
redeemable for various denominations of gift cafde® Company estimated the cost of the rewardsesatded this expense and the assoc
liability as points were accumulated by loyalty gram members. The cost was recognized in “Trarmaetnd operational suppomtithin the
Consolidated Statements of Operations, and theciased liability was included in “Accounts payalaled other liabilities’in the Consolidate
Balance Sheets.

In October 2013, the Company began to transitisrivibneyGram Rewards loyalty program to a convemerard program, which does
feature points. The Company provided participantthe MoneyGram Rewards program until December01320 redeem any outstand
program points, after which all points were candelgs a result of the point cancellation, the Comyphad a reduction of marketing expens
$3.9 million in 2013. As of December 31, 2014 , @@mpany has no remaining liability related to liyealty program.

Fee and Other Commissions Expe — The Company incurs fee commissions primarily relate our Global Funds Transfer products.
money transfer transaction, both the agent initiptihe transaction and the receiving agent earonamission that is generally based c
percentage of the fee charged to the consumerbifi payment transaction, the agent initiating thensaction receives a commission th
generally based on a percentage of the fee chaogtse consumer and, in limited circumstances bilier receives a commission that is be
on a percentage of the fee charged to the consurherCompany generally does not pay commissiorzgémts on the sale of money orc
except, in certain limited circumstances, for laegents where we may pay a fixed commission baseadtal money order transactions. O
commissions expense includes the amortization pifal&Zzed agent signing bonus payments.

Investment Commissions Expel— Investment commissions expense consists of ama@uaitsto financial institution customers basec
shortterm interest rate indices times the average cudstg cash balances of official checks sold by fihancial institution. Investme
commissions are recognized each month based omvrage outstanding balances of each financiatutieh customer and their contract
variable rate for that month.

Marketing and Advertising Expen — Marketing and advertising costs are expensed asri or at the time the advertising first takescg
and are recorded in the “Transaction and operatiupport”line in the Consolidated Statements of Operatidmatketing and advertisit
expense was $64.7 million , $57.4 million and $5%illion for 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Stock-Based Compensatien Stockbased compensation awards are measured at fa@ atthe date of grant and expensed over theiing
or service periods. The expense, net of estimatefkifures, is recognized using the straight-linetmod. The Companywccounts fc
modifications to its share-based payment awards@ordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 7180dmpensation - Stock Compensation”
Incremental compensation cost is measured as tesgxif any, of the fair value of the modified agdvaver the fair value of the original aw
immediately before its terms are modified, measuyaged on the share price and other pertinentrfaetbthat date, and is recognize:
compensation cost on the date of modification (fested awards) or over the remaining service (vgstperiod (for unvested awards). /
unrecognized compensation cost remaining from tiggnal award is recognized over the vesting penbthe modified award. See Note 43
Stock-Based Compensatifor additional disclosure of the Company’s stockdracompensation.
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Reorganization and Restructuring Expen— Reorganization and restructuring expenses confsditect and incremental costs associated
reorganization, restructuring and related actisijtiacluding technology; process improvement effoiidependent consulting and contrac
severance; outplacement and other employee releapefits; facility closures, ceasse or related charges; asset impairments or aatex
depreciation and other expenses related to retocati various operations to existing or new Compéagilities and thirdearty providers
including hiring, training, relocation, travel apthbfessional fees. The Company records severariated expenses once they are both pro
and estimable related to severance provided unmdensagoing benefit arrangement. Otirae, involuntary benefit arrangements and othét
costs are recognized when the liability is incurfBde Company evaluates impairment issues assdaiath reorganization activities when
carrying amount of the assets may not be fully vecable, and also reviews the appropriatenesseofeimaining useful lives of impacted fi
assets. See Note 3 Reorganization and Restructurifigr additional disclosure of the Company’s reorgation and restructuring activities.

Earnings Per Shar— For all periods in which it is outstanding, theStock is included in the weightedkerage number of common shi
outstanding utilized to calculate basic earningsgoenmon share because the D Stock is deemed a @orstock equivalent. Diluted earnit
per common share reflects the potential dilutiost #ould result if securities or incremental shagsing out of the Company’s stobase:
compensation plans were exercised or convertedcimtamon stock. Diluted earnings per common shasarass the exercise of stock opti
using the treasury stock method.

The following table is a reconciliation of the wkigd-average amounts used in calculating earniegsipare for the period endBécembe
31:

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Basic common shares outstanding 65.2 71.€ 71.t
Shares related to stock options 0.1 0.2 —
Shares related to restricted stock units 0.1 0.1 —
Diluted common shares outstanding 65.5 71.€ 71.t

Potential common shares are excluded from the ctatipn of diluted earnings per common share whenetifiect would be antiilutive. All
potential common shares are anti-dilutive in pesiofl net loss available to common stockholdersclStuptions are anthlutive when th
exercise price of these instruments is greater tharmverage market price of the Compargdmmon stock for the period. The following t:
summarizes the weighted-average potential commarestexcluded from diluted income (loss) per comstmare as their effect would be anti
dilutive or their performance conditions are nott fioe the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Shares related to stock options 4.C 3.6 4.9

Shares related to restricted stock units 1.1 0.8 0.t
Shares excluded from the computation 5.1 4.4 5.4

Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Related Dawelots — In December 2011, the FASB issued Accountingn@&ads Update (“ASU”
No. 201-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about QffggtAssets and Liabilities (“ASU 2011-11")and in January 2013,
clarification ASU No. 2013-0Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Clarifying the Scop®istlosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilifi¢sASU
2013-01") was issued. ASU 2011- provides for additional disclosures of both gr@nd net information about both instruments
transactions eligible for offset in the statemefirancial position and instruments and transangisubject to an agreement similar to a m
netting arrangement. ASU 2013-01 clarifies that AZ11411 should apply only to derivatives, repurchaseagrents and reverse repurcl
agreements, and securities borrowing and seculéigting transactions that are offset. The Compadgpted ASU 2011-11 and ASU 2003-
on January 1, 2013, which resulted in additionatldisures on offsetting derivative contract asaet liabilities. See Note + Derivative
Financial Instrumentfor additional disclosure.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-08mprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of ArnwuReclassified Out
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incc, (“ASU 2013-02"). ASU 20132 requires presentation (either on the face ofstaeement whe
net income is presented or in the notes) of thectdfon the line items of net income of significamounts reclassified out of accumulated ¢
comprehensive income, but only if the item reckessiis required under GAAP to be reclassified & imcome in its entirety in the sa
reporting period. The Company adopted ASU 2023sn January 1, 2013, which resulted in additiahistlosures on movements in "Ot
comprehensive income." See Note-+2Stockholders' Deficifor additional disclosure.
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In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-Ptesentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit Whé&letaOperating Loss Carryforward
Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward, en8ar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward EXS$EITF Issue 132; "ASC 740"). Thes
changes to ASC 740 require an entity to presentreiacognized tax benefit as a liability in the fiol statements if (i) a net operating

carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax creditrgforward is not available at the reporting dateler the tax law of the applicable jurisdic
to settle any additional income taxes that wouklultefrom the disallowance of a tax position, dy {fe tax law of the applicable jurisdicti
does not require the entity to use, and the edtigs not intend to use, the deferred tax assedttie siny additional income taxes that wc
result from the disallowance of a tax position. @tise, an unrecognized tax benefit is requireblet@resented in the financial statements
reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net opwydtiss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a taedit carryforward. Previously, there v
diversity in practice as no explicit guidance existManagement has determined that the adoptitimesé changes will not have a signific
impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsdq8FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update 2094Revenue from Contracts w
Customers("ASU 2014-09"). The new guidance sets forth a rfexg-step revenue recognition model which replaces ther pevenu
recognition guidance in its entirety and is intesthde eliminate numerous industspecific pieces of revenue recognition guidance tfzave
historically existed in GAAP. The underlying priptg of the new standard is that a business or attganization will recognize revenue
depict the transfer of promised goods or servioesustomers in an amount that reflects what it etpmn exchange for the goods or servi
The standard also requires more detailed disclesamd provides additional guidance for transacttbaswere not addressed completely ir
prior accounting guidance. ASU 2008- provides alternative methods of initial adoptamd is effective for annual periods beginningr
December 15, 2016 and interim periods within thaseual periods. Early adoption is not permittede TQompany is currently evaluating
impact this standard will have on the consoliddieancial statements.

Note 3 — Reorganization and Restructuring Costs

In the first quarter of 2014, the Company annourtbedimplementation of a global transformation pamg (the "2014 Global Transformat
Program™), which includes certain reorganization aestructuring activities centered around faeititand headcount rationalization, sy
efficiencies and headcount rigittoring and outsourcing. The Company projects tteatprogram will conclude at the end of the 20k8d
year. The activities include employee terminati@eméfits and other costs which qualify as restrilguactivities as defined by ASC 4ZzEXxit
or Disposal Cost Obligation§'ASC 420"), as well as certain reorganization\atiis related to the relocation of various openasi to existin
or new Company facilities and third-party providessich are outside the scope of ASC 420. The falgwigures are the Comparsyéstimate
and are subject to change as the 2014 Global Taanafion Program continues to be implemented.

The following table is a roll-forward of the restturing costs accrual related to the 2014 Globah$formation Program as Becember 3:
2014 .

Severance, Outplacement

(Amounts in millions) and Related Benefits Other @ Total

Balance, December 31, 2013 $ — 3 — 3 —
Expenses 14.€ T 16.2
Cash payments (2.0) (2.0 (3.0

Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 12.€  $ 07 $ 13.2

@ Other primarily relates to expenses for facilitielcation and professional fees. Such costs grersed as incurred.

The following table is a summary of the cumulatiestructuring costs incurred to date in operatingeases and the estimated remai
restructuring costs to be incurred for the 2014b@ld ransformation Program as of December 31, 2014

Severance, Outplacement
(Amounts in millions) and Related Benefits Other ® Total

Restructuring costs
Cumulative restructuring expenses incurred to datgperating

expenses $ 14€¢ % 1.7 % 16.2
Estimated additional restructuring expenses taberred 3.8 0.4 4.2
Total restructuring costs incurred and to be iredirr $ 184 % 21 % 20.t

@ Other primarily relates to expenses for facilitielocation and professional fees. Such costs grersed as incurred.
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The following table summarizes the reorganizatiod gestructuring costs recorded for the years efbdember 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Restructuring costs in operating expenses:
Compensation and benefits $ 144 % — 0.3
Transaction and operations support 1.¢ — —
Occupancy, equipment and supplies — — —
Total restructuring costs in operating expenses 16.5 — 0.2
Reorganization costs in operating expenses:
Compensation and benefits 5.C 1.2 6.€
Transaction and operations support 8.4 0.7 10.z
Occupancy, equipment and supplies 0.8 1.3 1.¢
Depreciation and amortization — — 0.t
Total reorganization costs in operating expenses 14.2 3.2 19.4
Total reorganization costs in non-operating expgnse
Other — — 0.1
Total reorganization costs 14.2 3.2 19.5
Total reorganization and restructuring costs $ 305 $ 32 % 19.¢

The following table is a summary of restructuringpenses related to the 2014 Global Transformatiogriam incurred by reportable segment:

(Amounts in millions) GFT FPP Other Total
First quarter 2014 $ 2€ % & & 01 $ 3.C
Second quarter 2014 3.4 0.4 0.2 4.C
Third quarter 2014 3.5 0.4 0.3 4.2
Fourth quarter 2014 4.4 0.€ 0.1 5.1
Total cumulative expenses incurred to date in dpgy@&xpenses $ 13¢ $ 1.7 $ 0.7 $ 16.c
Total estimated additional expenses to be incurred 3.€ 0.t 0.1 4.2
Total restructuring expenses $ 175 ¢ 22§ 08 $ 20.t

Note 4 — Acquisitions

Acquisitions— During 2014 , the Company completed two acquisgifor total cash payments, net of cash acquoke811.5 million. The
Company entered into an asset purchase agreembni@xixo Financial Corporation ("Nexxo0") to acquingbstantially all of its assets 58.€
million , consisting of kiosks offering automatesg|f-service money transfers to MoneyGram agents wodewaind developed technology.
Company entered into an acquisition agreement WA Money Transfer Ltd ("MTI"), a United Kingdorhased company offeril
MoneyGram services across Europe, for full consitien of $10.0 million , consisting of primarily ewactual relationships. Refer to Note-9
Goodwill and Intangible Assetsr further information regarding these acquisition
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Note 5 — Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is defined as the exchange price thatldvbe received for an asset or paid to transféakility, or the exit price, in an ordel
transaction between market participants on the ureagent date. A threlevel hierarchy is used for fair value measuremématsed upon tl
observability of the inputs to the valuation ofasset or liability as of the measurement date. Utlgehierarchy, the highest priority is givel
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets fortidehassets or liabilities (Level 1), followed bipservable inputs (Level 2) and unobserv
inputs (Level 3). A financial instrumestlevel within the hierarchy is based on the lowegel of any input that is significant to the famlue
measurement. Following is a description of the Canyfs valuation methodologies used to estimatdainezalue for assets and liabilities:

Assets and liabilities that are measured at failueaon a recurring basis

Available-for-sale investments— For U.S. government agencies and residential gagebacked securities collateralized by
government agency securities, fair value measuresganerally obtained from independent sourcedudimg a pricing servic
Because market quotes are generally not readiljlaéle or accessible for these specific securitteg, pricing service genera
measures fair value through the use of pricing risodad observable inputs for similar assets andketatata. Accordingly, the
securities are classified as Level 2 financialrinsients. The Company periodically corroboratesvtileations provided by the prici
service through internal valuations utilizing exigty developed cash flow models, comparison taadtansaction prices for any s
securities and any broker quotes received on time s&curity.

For other assebacked securities and investments in limited pastrips, market quotes are generally not availakie. Company wi
utilize a broker quote to measure market valuayéilable. Because the inputs and assumptiondtbéers use to develop prices
unobservable, most valuations that are based deetg'oquotes are classified as Level 3. If no brajumte is available, the Comp:
will utilize a fair value measurement from a prigiservice. The pricing service utilizes pricing ralzdbased on market observable
and indices, such as quotes for comparable sexsjrijield curves, default indices, interest rated historical prepayment spee
Observability of market inputs to the valuation ratsdused for pricing certain of the Company's itwesits has deteriorated with
disruption to the credit markets as overall ligyyidind trading activity in these sectors has besdsstantially reduced. According
other asset-backed securities valued using thirty paicing models are classified as Level 3.

Derivative financial instrument — Derivatives consist of forward contracts to manageme statement exposure to foreign curr
exchange risk arising from the Company’s assetsliabdities denominated in foreign currencies. Thempanys forward contrac
are well-established products, allowing the usstahdardized models with markedsed inputs. These models do not contain a
level of subjectivity and the inputs are readilysetvable. Accordingly, the Company has classiftedarward contracts as Leve
financial instruments. See Note 7 Berivative Financial Instrument®r additional disclosure on the Company's forwemdtracts.

Deferred compensatic— The assets associated with the deferred compengato that are funded through voluntary contritot
by the Company consist of investments in money etagkcurities and mutual funds. These investmeants wlassified as Level 1
there are quoted market prices for these funds.
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The following tables summarize the Companijhancial assets and liabilities measured atvalne by hierarchy level on a recurring basisf
December 31 :

Fair Value at December 31, 2014
(Amounts in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Available-for-sale investments:

Residential mortgage-backed securities — agencies $ — 3 145 % — 3 14.F
Other asset-backed securities — — 12.€ 12.€
Investment related to deferred compensation trust 10.C — — 10.C
Forward contracts — 4.8 — 4.6
Total financial assets $ 10.C $ 19.2 $ 126 $ 41.¢
Financial liabilities:
Forward contracts $ — 02 % — 3 0.2

Fair Value at December 31, 2013

(Amounts in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Available-for-sale investments:

U.S. government agencies $ — 8C $ — 3 8.C
Residential mortgage-backed securities — agencies — 19.5 — 19.t
Other asset-backed securities — — 20.€ 20.€
Investment related to deferred compensation trust 9.€ — — 9.€
Forward contracts — 0.2 — 0.z
Total financial assets $ 9€ $ 277 % 206 $ 57.¢
Financial liabilities:
Forward contracts $ — 0€ $ — 3 0.€

The following table is a summary of the unobsergahputs used in the valuation of other asmetked securities classified as Level 3 ¢
December 31 :

2014 2013

Unobservable Market Net Average Market Net Average

(Amounts in millions) Input Pricing Source Value Price @ Value Price @
Alt-A Price Third party pricing service $ 01 $ 80.70 $ 01 $ 17.01
Home Equity Price Third party pricing service 0.1 30.37 0.2 51.81
Indirect Exposure — High Grade Price Third party pricing service 8.2 21.6¢ 8.2 7.9(
Indirect Exposure — Mezzanine Price Third party pricing service 1.1 1.11 2.6 212
Indirect Exposure — Mezzanine Price Broker 1.2 1.52 5.C 6.01
Other® Net Asset Value Third party pricing service 1.7 9.1¢ 4. 23.8¢
Total $ 12¢€  $ 372 $ 206 % 5.2¢

“Net average price is per $100.00
@Converted to a third party pricing service as ot&uaber 31, 2014; utilized a manual process as oéDber 31, 2013.

The following table provides a roll-forward of tlmther assebacked securities classified as Level 3, whichraeasured at fair value or
recurring basis, for the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013

Beginning balance $ 206 $ 18.C
Principal paydowns (5.7 (3.7
Change in unrealized gains (1.5 6.3
Realized losses (0.9 —

Ending balance $ 12¢€ $ 20.€
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Realized gains and losses and other-than-tempormagirments related to these availabledate investment securities are reported in the
securities gains" line in the Consolidated Statameh Operations while unrealized gains and losskged to available-fosale securities a
recorded in "Accumulated other comprehensive lasshe stockholders' deficit section of the Cordatéd Balance Sheets. There wer
other-than-temporary impairments during the yeadirgy December 31, 2014 and 2013 .

Assets and liabilities that are disclosed at faglue — Debt and interedbearing investments are carried at amortized dusyever, th
Company estimates the fair value of debt for disate purposes. The fair value of debt is estimatgdg an observable market quota
(Level 2). The following table is a summary of faalue and carrying value of debt as of December 31

Fair Value Carrying Value
(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Senior secured credit facility and incremental téoen $ 884 $ 8492 $ 963 $ 842«

The carrying amounts for the Company's cash ank eqsivalents, settlement cash and cash equivadentghe interedtearing investmen
approximate fair value as of December 31, 20142418 .

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value omoa-recurring basis— Assets and liabilities that are measured atvaline on a nomecurring
basis relate primarily to the Company’s tangiblefi assets, goodwill and other intangible asséighnware remeasured only in the event of
impairment. No impairments of fixed assets, goodarild other intangible assets were recorded duhagears ended December 31, 2ah4d
2013.

Fair value remeasurements are normally based on significant ser@hble inputs (Level 3). Tangible and intangiateset fair values ¢
normally derived using a discounted cash flow mdmeded on expected future cash flows discounted)wsiweightedaverage cost of capi
rate. If it is determined an impairment has ocalirtbe carrying value of the asset is reduced itovedue with a corresponding charge to
"Other expense" line in the Consolidated Statemeih@perations.

The Company also records the investments in itthe@fbenefit pension plan ("the Pension Plan")ttatsfair value. The majority of tl
Pension Plan’s investments are common collectiv&srheld by the Pension Planfustee. The fair values of the Pension Planasiments a
determined by the trustee based on the currentehagiues of the underlying assets. In instancesy@vmarket prices are not available, me
values are determined by using bid quotations pbthifrom major market makers or security exchargelid quotations for identical
similar obligations. See Note +* Pension and Other Benefiigr additional disclosure of investments held by Bension Plan.

Note 6 — Investment Portfolio

The Company’s portfolio is invested in cash anchaaguivalents, interest-bearing investments andadble-for-sale investments as descri
in Note 2 —Summary of Significant Accounting Policiedhe following table shows the components of theestment portfolio as
December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
Cash $ 1,898.. $ 2,204t
Money market securities 9.8 24.C

Cash and cash equivalefits 1,907.¢ 2,228

Interest-bearing investments 1,091.¢ 1,011.¢

Available-for-sale investments 27.1 48.1
Total investment portfolio $ 3,026.¢ $ 3,288.:

@ For purposes of the discussion of the investmerifgiio as a whole, the cash and cash equivalegitinbe includes settlement cash and cash equisalent

Cash and Cash Equivalents- Cash and cash equivalents consist of interestitige deposit accounts, namterest bearing transaction accol
and money market securities. The Company’s monakehaecurities are invested in tfimnds, each of which is AAA rated and consisi
U.S. Treasury bills, notes or other obligationsiéss or guaranteed by the U.S. government and @edes, as well as repurchase agreer
secured by such instruments.

Interes-bearing Investments— Interest-bearing investments consist of timeodép and certificates of deposit with maturitidsup to 24
months , and are issued from financial instituticated A- or better as of December 31, 2014 .
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Available-for-sale Investments- Available-for-sale investments consist of morterdigicked securities, other asbatked securities and age
debenture securities. The following table is a samynof the amortized cost and fair value of avdddbr-sale investments as of December. 31

2014
Gross Gross Net ®
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Average
(Amounts in millions, except net average price) Cost Gains Losses Value Price
Residential mortgage-backed securities — agencies $ 132 $ 1.2 % — 145 $ 110.2¢
Other asset-backed securities 3.1 9.t — 12.€ 3.7z
Total $ 16.2 $ 10.€ $ — % 271 % 8.04

“Net average price is per $100.00

The following table is a summary of the amortizedtand fair value of available-for-sale investnseast of December 31, 2013 :

2013
Gross Gross Net ®
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Average

(Amounts in millions, except net average price) Cost Gains Losses Value Price
Residential mortgage-backed securities — agencies $ 17.¢ $ 1.7 $ — 19.58 $ 110.4¢
Other asset-backed securities 5.¢ 147 — 20.¢€ 5.24
U.S. government agencies 7.7 0.2 — 8.C 99.8i
Total $ 314 % 16.7 $ — 481 % 11.5(

®Net average price is per $100.00

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, 54 percent ancebdept , respectively, of the available-gale portfolio were invested in debentures of
government agencies or U.S. government agencyemtiidl mortgagdsacked securities. These securities have the imphkcking of the U.¢
government, and the Company expects to receivepéulivalue upon maturity or paiewn, as well as all interest payments. Includedtire
asset-backed securities are collateralized deligaitins backed primarily by highrade debt, mezzanine equity tranches of collareidek
obligations and home equity loans, along with gevaquity investments, as summarized in Note Fair Value MeasurementThe othe
assetbacked securities continue to have market exposmtthis risk is factored into the fair value essties of the Company, with the avel
price of an asset-backed security at $0.04 peadoflpar value at December 31, 2014 .

Gains and Losses and Other-than-temporary Impaitsier At December 31, 2014 and 2013, net unrealizedsgof $11.2 million an@#17.:
million , respectively, were included in the Coridated Balance Sheets in “Accumulated other cormgneive loss.”

The following is a summary of “Net securities géifa the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Realized gains from available-for-sale investments $ (45.49) $ — 3 (20.0)
Net securities gains $ (45.49 $ — 8 (10.9

During 2014, the Company recorded $45.4 millddrsecurities settlements related to certain séearmpreviously written down to a nominal -
value. See Note 15— Commitments and Contingencadshe Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemfor additional disclosure. The
were no security settlements related to securitiegng 2013. During 2012 , the Company disposetivof securities classified as other asse
backed securities, resulting in a realized gai®Xd.0 million , which was reclassified from “Accufated other comprehensive loss” el
securities gains” in the Consolidated Statemen@p#rations.
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Investment Ratinc— In rating the securities in its investment pditfpthe Company uses ratings from Moody’s Inve&ervice (“Moody'’s),
Standard & Poors (“S&P”) and Fitch Ratings (“Fitghif the rating agencies have split ratings, the Canypuses the highest two out of tt
ratings across the ratings agencies for disclopurposes. If none of the rating agencies have dneesrating, the Company uses the lo
rating across the agencies for disclosure purp&esurities issued, or backed by U.S. governmeanggs, are included in the AAA rat
category. Investment grade is defined as a sechatyng a Moodys equivalent rating of Aaa, Aa, A or Baa or an S&fivalent rating «
AAA, AA, A or BBB. The Company’s investments coneis of the following ratings as of December 31 :

2014 2013
Number of Fair Percent of Number of Fair Percent of
(Dollars in millions) Securities Value Investments Securities Value Investments
Investment grade 13 % 14.: 53% 16 $ 30.¢ 64%
Below investment grade 44 12.¢ 47% 50 17.c 36%
Total 57 $ 27.1 10C% 66 $ 48.1 10C%

Had the Company used the lowest rating from thiegaigencies in the information presented abowerethvould be no change andba.4
million change to the classifications in the abtalgle as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respéctive

Contractual Maturities — Actual maturities may differ from contractual maties as borrowers may have the right to call oeppn
obligations, sometimes without call or prepaymeengities. Maturities of mortgage-backed and otlssetbacked securities depend on
repayment characteristics and experience of thenlyidg obligations. The following table is a summary of amortized castl fair value ¢
available-for-sale securities by contractual majuas of December 31 :

2014 2013
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
(Amounts in millions) Cost Value Cost Value
One year or less $ —  $ — 3 77 $ 8.C
Mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities 16.2 27.1 23.7 40.1
Total $ 16.2 $ 271 % 312 % 48.1

Fair Value Determinatio— The Company uses various sources of pricing fofaitsvalue estimates of its available-feste portfolio. Th
percentage of the portfolio for which the variouiipg sources were used is as follows at Decer@ibeP014 and 2013 : 95 percent &
percent , respectively, used a third party priciegvice; five percent and 10 percent , respectjvebed broker pricing; and none aél
percent , respectively, used internal pricing.

Assessment of Unrealized Los— The Company had no unrealized losses in its avedHis-sale portfolio at December 31, 2014 and 2013
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Note 7 — Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses forward contracts to manage ftdgio currency needs and foreign currency exchaiglearising from its assets &
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. Vehihese contracts may mitigate certain foreignenay risk, they are not designated as he
for accounting purposes. The “Transaction and djgerasupportline in the Consolidated Statements of Operatiorsthe "Net cash provid
by operating activities" line in the Consolidatehi8ments of Cash Flows include the following lesggains) related to assets and liabil
denominated in foreign currencies, for the yeadedrDecember 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Net realized foreign currency losses (gains) $ 25.C $ (33 % (2.9

Net (gains) losses from the related forward comsgrac (24.0 5.3 5.€
Net losses from foreign currency transactions ateted forward contracts $ 1.C $ 2C $ 3.C

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the Company$#24@.5 million and $129.0 million respectively, of outstanding notional amo
relating to its forward contracts. As of Decembgr 3014 and 2013 the Company reflects the following fair valuesdwfrivative forwar

contract instruments in its Consolidated Balancee®h

Net Amount of Assets

Gross Amount of Recognized Presented in the Consolidated
Assets Gross Amount of Offset Balance Sheets
(Amounts in millions) Balance Sheet Location 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Forward contracts Other assets $ 52 % 04 % 0.5) % 02 % 48 % 0.2

Net Amount of Liabilities

Gross Amount of Recognized Presented in the Consolidated
Liabilities Gross Amount of Offset Balance Sheets
(Amounts in millions) Balance Sheet Location 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Accounts payable and oth
Forward contracts liabilities $ 0.8 $ 0.9 % 0t $ 02 $ 0.3 % (0.6

The Company's forward contracts are primarily ei@tuwith counterparties governed by Internationabfs and Derivatives Associat
agreements that generally include standard nedtirapgements. Hence, asset and liability positicora forward contracts and all other fore
exchange transactions with the same counterpagtpetrsettled upon maturity.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the ewémonperformance by counterparties to its derivativetiams. The Company active
monitors its exposure to credit risk through the akcredit approvals and credit limits, and byesghg major international banks and finan
institutions as counterparties. Collateral gengrialinot required of the counterparties or of tt@pany. In the unlikely event the counterp
fails to meet the contractual terms of the derisationtract, the Compargytisk is limited to the fair value of the instrumieThe Company h
not had any historical instances of non-performasncany counterparties, nor does it anticipatefatyre instances of non-performance.
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Note 8 — Property and Equipment

The following table is a summary of "Property awngiipment, net" as of December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
Computer hardware and software $ 268.¢ $ 215.¢
Signage 86.¢ 90.¢
Equipment at agent locations 80.1 74.¢
Office furniture and equipment 34.¢ 33.C
Leasehold improvements 35.1 28.t
Total property and equipment 505.7 442
Accumulated depreciation (340.7) (307.9)
Total property and equipment, net $ 165.¢ $ 134.¢

The following table is a summary of depreciatiopenxse for the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Computer hardware and software $ 274 $ 232 % 20.¢
Signage 15.2 14.¢ 12.]
Equipment at agent locations 4.1 4.€ 4.3
Office furniture and equipment 3.C 3.8 3.7
Leasehold improvements 3.6 3.5 2.t
Total depreciation expense $ 532 % 50.C $ 43.¢

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 , there was $17 ldmand $14.9 million respectively, of property and equipment that baeln received !
the Company and included in “Accounts payable ahérdiabilities” in the Consolidated Balance Slseet

During 2014 and 2013 , the Company recognized s ¢6s50.2 million and $0.1 million respectively, on furniture and equipment reldta
office relocations and disposal of equipment amphage at agent locations. During 2012 , the Companggnized losses of $0.9 millign
primarily related to disposal of furniture and gmuent related to the closing of twaffice locations. The losses were recorded ir
“Occupancy, equipment and supplies” line in the €&tidated Statements of Operations.

Note 9 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The following table is a roll-forward of goodwillylreporting segment:

Global Funds Financial Paper
(Amounts in millions) Transfer Products Total
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 428.7 $ — 3 428.
Acquisitions 6.5 — 6.5
Balance as of December 31, 2013 435.2 — 435.2
Acquisitions 7.2 — 7.2
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 4425 $ — 3 442t

The Company performed an annual assessment of gbaodwng the fourth quarter of 2014 , 2013 andl20 No impairments of goodw
were recorded in 2014 , 2013 and 2012 .
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The following table is a summary of the gross gotidvalances and accumulated impairments as of Déee 31, 2014 and 2013 :

2014 2013
Accumulated Accumulated
(Amounts in millions) Gross Goodwill Impairments Gross Goodwill  Impairments
Global Funds Transfer $ 4457 $ 3.2 % 4384 % (3.9
Financial Paper Products 2.5 (2.5 2.5 (2.5
Other 15.7 (15.9) 15.7 (15.9)
Total $ 463.¢ $ (21.9) $ 456.6 % (21.9

The following table is a summary of intangible assecluded in “Other assets” in the ConsolidatedbBce Sheets as of December 31 :

2014 2013
Gross Net Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying

(Amounts in millions) Value Amortization Value Value Amortization Value
Contractual and customer relationships $ 12: $ (26 $ 9.7 $ 8t $ (1.2 $ 7.4
Non-compete agreements 1.€ (0.9 1.2 1.C (0.2 0.¢
Developed technology 1.1 (0.2) 1.C — — —
Total intangible assets $ 15.C % B3) $ 11¢ % 9t % 12 $ 8.2

In 2014 , the Company completed two acquisitiodss a result of the acquisitions, the Company aeguiagent contracts valued $4.£
million , which are amortized over lives of six yedo eight years , acquired developed technoladyed at $1.1 million which is amortize
over lives ranging from five years to seven years antered into non-compete agreements valued.@triillion , which are amortized ov
lives ranging between three years to five yeaese. ISote 4 —Acquisitionsfor additional disclosure.

In 2013 , the Company completed four acquisitiodss a result of the acquisitions, the Company aeglimgent contracts valued $i.1
million , which are amortized over a life of fivegrs , and entered into non-compete agreementsdvalu$1.0 million, which are amortize
over lives ranging between three years to five yedrhe acquisition of these agent contracts provithed Company with further netwc
expansion in its money transfer business in ith&l&unds Transfer segment.

Intangible asset amortization expense for 2014132ind 2012 was $2.1 million , $0.7 million and%illion , respectively. The estimal
future intangible asset amortization expense i $dllion , $2.6 million , $2.3 million , $1.8 min and $2.5 million for 2015 , 2016 , 2017
2018 and 2019 and thereafter, respectively.
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Note 10 — Debt

The following is a summary of the Company's outdiag debt at December 31, 2014 and activity sineedinber 31, 2013 :

2011 Credit Agreement 2013 Credit Agreement
Senior secured Senior secured Second lien Senior secured
credit facility incremental term notes credit facility Tranche B-1 term
(Amounts in millions) due 2017 loan due 2017 due 2018 due 2020 loan facility due 2020 Total debt
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 339.2 % 145 $ 325.C $ — % — 3 809.¢
Borrowings, gross — — — 850.( — 850.(
Discount on borrowing$ — 0.8 — (0.9 — —
Amortization of discount — 0.1 — 0.1 — 0.2
Write-off of discount upon prepayment 0.€ 1.7 — — — 2.3
Payments (340.0 (148.)) (325.0 (6.9 — (819.9
Balance at December 31, 2013 — — — 842.¢ — 842.¢
Borrowings, gross — — — — 130.C 130.C
Discount on borrowings — — — — (0.2 (0.2
Amortization of discount — — — 0.z 0.1 0.3
Payments — — — (9.5 — (9.5
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ — $ — 3 — $ 833.¢ $ 129.¢ % 963.
Weighted average interest rate 4.25% 4.2%%

@ As a result of the 2013 Credit Agreement, the erttigbt discount was transferred from the 2011 €regtieement to the 2013 Credit Agreement.

2011 Credit Agreement- On May 18, 2011, MoneyGram Payment Systems Wadewnc. (“Worldwide”) entered into &540.0 millior
Credit Agreement with Bank of America, N.A. ("BOA'§s Administrative Agent, and the lenders pargreto (the "2011 Credit Agreemen
The 2011 Credit Agreement was comprised of a $380llbn six-and-one-halfrear term loan maturing the earlier of November728ad 18
days prior to the scheduled maturity of Worldwid&%25% senior secured second lien notes due 28&8gecond lien notes"), andba50.(
million five-year revolving credit facility, maturg May 2016. The term loan was issued to Worldwatd®9.75%of par. On November 2
2011, Worldwide entered into an amendment relatethé¢ 2011 Credit Agreement and obtained an incnéghéerm loan in an aggreg
principal amount of $150.0 million . The incremdrn&m loan was issued to Worldwide at 98.00% of pa

The 2011 Credit Agreement permitted Worldwide tecelan interest rate at each reset period baseitheo®BOA prime bank rate or t
Eurodollar rate. Worldwide elected the Eurodolkteras its primary interest basis, and electea fminimal amount of the term debt to act
interest at the interest rate based on the BOA @itk rate. The 2011 Credit Agreement was amendsthted and replaced in its enti
with the 2013 Credit Agreement (as defined below).

2013 Credit Agreemenrt- On March 28, 2013, the Company, as borrower, edtiete an Amended and Restated Credit Agreemeat"@B1:
Credit Agreement") with BOA, as administrative agehe financial institutions party thereto as lersdand the other agents party thereto.
2013 Credit Agreement provides for (i) a seniorsed five-year revolving credit facility up to aggregate principal amount §825.0 millior
(the "Revolving Credit Facility") and (ii) a senisecured seven-year term loan facility of $850.0ioni (the "Term Credit Facility"). Tk
proceeds of the Term Credit Facility were usedejmay in full all outstanding indebtedness under&b40.0 millionCredit Agreement, wi
BOA, as Administrative Agent, and the lenders p#nsreto (the "2011 Credit Agreement”), to purchaef the outstanding second lien nc
to Goldman, Sachs & Co. ("Goldman Sachs"), to payain costs, fees and expenses relating to thd 2eddit Agreement and the purchas
the second lien notes and also used for genergoraie purposes. The Revolving Credit Facility uels a sulfacility that permits th
Company to request the issuance of letters of togdio an aggregate amount of $50.0 milljanth borrowings available for general corpo
purposes.
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On April 2, 2014, the Company, as borrower, enteird a First Incremental Amendment and Joinder ekgrent (the "Incremen
Agreement”) with BOA, as administrative agent, &adous lenders. The Incremental Agreement provideda) a tranche under the term |
facility in an aggregate principal amount of $13Million (the "Tranche Bt Term Loan Facility") to be made available to @@mpany undkt
the 2013 Credit Agreement, (b) an increase in theoRing Credit Facility under the 2013 Credit Agneent from $125.0 million t$150.(
million and (c) certain other amendments to the 2013 Chepldement including, without limitation, (i) amenednts to certain of the conditic
precedent with respect to these incremental bormgsyi(ii) an increase in the maximum secured lgyeratio with which the Company
required to comply as of the last day of each figcarter, and (iii) amendments to permit the Conypto borrow up to $300.0 millioonde
the facility for share repurchases exclusively fraffiliates of Thomas H. Lee Partners L.P. ("THIaNd Goldman Sachs. The Comp
borrowed $130.0 million under the Tranchel B-erm Loan Facility on April 2, 2014, and the preds were used to fund a portion of the <
repurchases from THL reducing the remaining lirit $uch purchases to $170.0 million . See Note 13teekholders' Deficifor additiona
disclosure on the share repurchase.

The 2013 Credit Agreement is secured by substantfilof the nonfinancial assets of the Company and its materiaiekiic subsidiaries tf
guarantee the payment and performance of the Coyispabligations under the 2013 Credit Agreement.

The Company may elect an interest rate under tH& Zlredit Agreement at each reset period basech®BOA prime bank rate or t
Eurodollar rate. The interest rate election mayrzle individually for the Term Credit Facility améch draw under the Revolving Cr
Facility. The interest rate will be either the &altate base rate” (calculated in part based oB@®& prime rate) plus either 200 or 2Pasit
points (depending on the Company's secured levesdgeor total leverage ratio, as applicable,uhstime) or the Eurodollar rate plus ei
300 or 325bhasis points (depending on the Company's secuvedalge ratio or total leverage ratio, as applicadlesuch time). In connecti
with the initial funding under the 2013 Credit Agreent, the Company elected the Eurodollar ratésgwimary interest basis. Under the te
of the 2013 Credit Agreement, the minimum interag® applicable to Eurodollar borrowings underTkeem Credit Facility is 10®asis point
plus the applicable margins previously referreahtthis paragraph.

Fees on the daily unused availability under thedReng Credit Facility are 50 basis points. As oéde@mber 31, 2014the Company had
outstanding letters of credit and no borrowingsairte Revolving Credit Facility, leaving $150.0lan of availability thereunder.

2013 Note Repurchase In connection with the Company's entry into titfd2 Credit Agreement, the Company purchase8326.0 millior
of the outstanding second lien notes for a purclpaise equal to 106.625 percenftthe principal amount purchased, plus accrueduarmhic
interest, which was funded with a portion of thé peceeds from the 2013 Credit Agreement descrdigne. Following the closing of 1
transaction, the second lien notes were cancetetina second lien notes remain outstanding.

The termination of the 2011 Credit Agreement anttyemto the 2013 Credit Agreement and the purchafs¢he second lien notes v
accounted for principally as a debt extinguishmeitih a partial modification of debt, in accordarwith ASC Topic 470, ‘Debt." Under dek
extinguishment accounting, the Company expensedbtheata portion of deferred financing costs and debtalint costs related to 1
extinguished debt balance. For the debt balanasifiled as a modification, the Company was requicedmortize the proata portion of th
deferred financing costs and unamortized debt discérom the 2011 Credit Agreement over the terrhghe 2013 Credit Agreeme
Additionally, the Company expensed the pata portion of the financing costs related to 2043 Credit Agreement as third party cost
connection with the modification of debt.

Debt Covenants and Other Restrictic — Borrowings under the 2013 Credit Agreement are extibjo various limitations that restrict
Companys ability to: incur additional indebtedness; creaténcur additional liens; effect mergers and @didsitions; make certain acquisitic
or investments; sell assets or subsidiary stocly; gigidends and other restricted payments; andcefi@ans, advances and certain @
transactions with affiliates. In addition, the Rbwog Credit Facility has covenants that place {ations on the use of proceeds fi
borrowings under the facility.

The terms of our debt agreements place signifianitations on the amount of restricted paymentsmay make, including dividends on
common stock. With certain exceptions, we may onéke restricted payments in an aggregate amounbretceed $50.0 millionsubject t
an incremental build-up based on our consolidatgdntome in future periods.

The 2013 Credit Agreement contains various findrema nonfinancial covenants. A violation of these covenatsld negatively impact tl
Company's liquidity by restricting the Company'digbto borrow under the revolving credit facilignd/or causing acceleration of amounts
under the credit facilities. The financial coversint the 2013 Credit Agreement measure leveragereist coverage and liquidity. Leverag
measured through a senior secured debt ratio esdrlibs consolidated indebtedness to consolid®EA, adjusted for certain items suct
net securities gains, stotlased compensation expense, certain legal settteraad asset impairments, among other items, afsored to
adjusted EBITDA. This measure is similar, but ri#ritical, to the measure discussed under EBITDAAadjdsted EBITDA. Interest coverag
is calculated as adjusted EBITDA to net cash isteggpense.
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The Company is required to maintain Asset Coveagater than its payment service obligation. Asasésl in the determination of the As
Coverage covenant are cash and cash equivalentsedtheiment assets. Our cash and cash equivalatdace as obecember 31, 20:
represents the excess of assets over our paymeitesebligation in determining asset coverage.

The following table shows the components of oureAs#n Excess of Payment Service Obligations usethé Asset Coverage calculation a
December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents $ 250.¢ $ 318.¢
Settlement assets:
Settlement cash and cash equivalents 1,657.: 1,909.
Receivables, net 757.¢ 767.7
Interest-bearing investments 1,091.¢ 1,011.¢
Available-for-sale investments 27.1 48.1
Total settlement assets 3,533.¢ 3,737.:
Total cash and cash equivalents and settlemertsasse 3,784.; 4,055.¢
Payment service obligations (3,533.9) (3,737.)
Assets in excess of payment service obligations $ 250.¢ $ 318.¢

The 2013 Credit Agreement also has quarterly firdmovenants to maintain the following interestemge and total secured leverage ratios:

Total Secured

Interest Coverage Leverage Not to

Minimum Ratio Exceed
Through December 31, 2014 2.25:1 5.000:1
January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 2.25:1 4.750:1
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016 2.25:1 4.250:1
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 2.25:1 3.750:1
January 1, 2018 through maturity 2.25:1 3.500:1

We continuously monitor our compliance with our debvenants. At December 31, 201the Company was in compliance with its finar
covenants: our Interest Coverage ratio was 6.7®mand otal Secured Leverage ratio was 3.501 .

Debt Discount— The following is the debt discount amortizatiorcorded in “Interest expense,” and the wadfe-of the debt discour
recorded in "Debt extinguishment costs," in the €didated Statements of Operations for the yealeeéDecember 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Amortization of debt discount $ 02 $ 02 $ 0.t

Write-off of debt discount upon prepayments — 2.3 —
Total amortization of discount $ 02 $ 2t $ 0.t
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Deferred Financing Cost —The Company capitalized financing costs in “Othssets’in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and amortizse
over the term of the related debt using the effedtterest method. Expense of the deferred fimgncosts during 2013 include the wra#-of
a profata portion of deferred financing costs in coniwectvith the extinguishment of the 2011 Credit Agreent, as well as payments on
second lien notes, the incremental term loan aeddim debt. Amortization is recorded in “Interespense’in the Consolidated Statement:
Operations. The following is a summary of the deféifinancing costs at December 31 :

2011 Credit Agreement 2013 Credit Agreement
Senior
Senior Senior Senior secured Senior Total
revolving secured secured Second revolving secured Deferred
credit credit incremental lien credit credit Financing
(Amounts in millions) facility facility term notes facility facility Costs
Balance at January 1, 2012 $ 35 $§ 6¢ % 31 $ 166 % - $ — 3 30.1
Amortization of deferred financing costs (0.8 1.2 (0.6) (2.6) — — (5.2
Balance at December 31, 2012 2.7 5.7 2.t 14.C — — 24.¢€
Capitalized deferred financing costs — — — — 0.€ 10.7 11.:
Amortization of deferred financing costs (0.2 (0.3 (0.2 (0.6) (0.9 1.3 (2.9
Transfer of deferred financing costs (2.0 1.2 (0.6) — 2.C 1.7 —
Write-off of deferred financing costs (0.5 4.3 (1.9 (13.9) — — (20.0
Balance at December 31, 2013 — — — — 2.2 11.1 13.5
Capitalized deferred financing costs — — — — — 5.1 5.1
Amortization of deferred financing costs — — — — (0.5) 2.3 (2.9
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ — $ — — § — $ 17 § 13¢ § 15.€

@ As a result of the 2013 Credit Agreement, a portibthe deferred financing costs were transferrethfthe 2011 Credit Agreement to the 2013 Credieament.

Debt Extinguishment Cost— In 2014 and 2012 , there were no debt extinguishneests. In 2013 the Company recognized d
extinguishment costs of $45.3 millian connection with the termination of the 2011 Gredigreement and entry into the 2013 Cr
Agreement, which included a prepayment penaltytferCompany's purchase of the second lien notesl@odmodification costs for the 2(
Credit Agreement. The following is a summary of tledbt extinguishment costs at December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Prepayment penalty $ — 3 215 % =
Write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs — 20.C —
Write-off of debt discount upon prepayments — 2.3 —
Debt modification costs — 1kt —
Debt extinguishment costs $ — 9 45: § —

Interest Paid in Cas— The Company paid $41.1 million , $43.9 millionda®64.4 million of interest in 2014 , 2013 and 2018spectively.

Maturities— At December 31, 2014 , debt totaling $912.6 wiillwill mature in 2020, while debt principal totadi $51.5 millionwill be paic
quarterly in increments of approximately $2.5 roiflithrough 2020. Any borrowings under the Revol@rgdit facility will mature in 2018.
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Note 11 — Pension and Other Benefits

Pension Benefitt— The Pension Plan is a frozen nommtributory funded defined benefit pension plardemwhich no new service
compensation credits are accrued by the plan paatits. Cash accumulation accounts continue torbdited with interest credits ur
participants withdraw their money from the Pend®ian. It is the Compang’policy to fund at least the minimum required cdwition eac
year plus additional discretionary amounts as abtel and necessary to minimize expenses of the

Supplemental Executive Retirement PlanrsThe Company has obligations under various Suppfgal Executive Retirement Plans (“SERPs”
which are unfunded non-qualified defined benefihgien plans providing postretirement income to rthparticipants. As oDecember 3.
2014 , all benefit accruals under the SERPs amefravith the exception of ordan for which service is frozen but future payreases a
reflected for active participants. It is the Comyarpolicy to fund the SERPs as benefits are paid.

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensi— The Company has unfunded defined benefit postreéing plans that provide medical and
insurance for its participants. The Company amertedostretirement benefit plan to close it to rEasticipants as of December 31, 2009
Effective July 1, 2011 the plan was amended to eliminate eligibility fmrticipants eligible for Medicare coverage. Aseault of this pla
amendment, the Company no longer receives the Medietiree drug subsidy. The Companftinding policy is to make contributions to
postretirement benefits plans as benefits are paid.

Actuarial Valuation Assumptior — The measurement date for the Compaméfined benefit pension plan, SERPs and postne¢int benel
plans is December 31 . The following table is a samy of the weightedverage actuarial assumptions used in calculatiegbenef
obligation and net benefit cost as of and for tearg ended December 31 :

Pension SERPs Postretirement Benefits
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Net periodic benefit cost:

Discount rate 4.81% 4.04% 4.9(% 4.7¢% 3.9% 4.8(% 4.82% 4.0% 4.9(%
Expected return on plan assets 5.6% 6.2(% 7.00% — — — — — —
Rate of compensation increase _ — — 5.7504 5.750% 5.750% — — —
Initial healthcare cost trend rate — — — — — — 7.00% 8.0(% 8.5(%
Ultimate healthcare cost trend rate _ — — — — — 4.5(% 5.00% 5.00%

Year ultimate healthcare cost trend rate is
reached — — — — — — 2022 201¢ 201¢

Projected benefit obligation:

Discount rate 4.0%% 4.81% 4.02% 4.0%% 4.7¢% 3.9% 4.1% 4.8% 4.09%
Rate of compensation increase _ — — 5.75% 5.7% 5.7% — — —
Initial healthcare cost trend rate _ — — — — — 6.5(% 7.0(% 8.0(%
Ultimate healthcare cost trend rate — — — — — — 4.5(% 4.5(% 5.0(%
Year ultimate healthcare cost trend rate is

reached — — — — — — 2023 202t 201¢

The Company utilizes a building-block approach @tedimining the londerm expected rate of return on plan assets. Hisiomarkets ai
studied and longerm historical relationships between equity saémgiand fixed income securities are preservedismmd with the widel
accepted capital market principle that assets higher volatility generate a greater return over ling run. Current market factors, suc
inflation and interest rates, are evaluated belfmmg-term capital market assumptions are determimbd longterm portfolio return also tak
proper consideration of diversification and rebaiag. Peer data and historical returns are revielmeteasonableness and appropriateness.

Actuarial gains and losses are amortized using:tinedor approach, by amortizing the balance exicep@l0% of the greater of the projec
benefit obligation or the fair value of plan assdtie amortization period is primarily based on #werage remaining service life of p
participants for the Pension Plan and SERPs anduwhiage remaining expected life of plan participdor the postretirement benefit plans.

Pension Assel — The Company employs a total return investment apgravhereby a mix of equity and fixed income sem@sgiare used
maximize the londerm return of plan assets for a prudent levelig.rRisk tolerance is established through caretuisideration of ple
liabilities, plan funded status and corporate firiahcondition. The investment portfolio containdigersified blend of equity and fixed inco
securities. Furthermore, equity securities are rdified across U.S. and nahS. stocks, as well as growth, value, and smadl kmge
capitalizations. Other assets, such as real emtatshorterm investment funds, are used on a limited bdis.Company strives to maintain
equity and fixed income securities allocation mpp@opriate to its funded status. As of December2B14, the funding mix was approximat:
45 percent equity and 55 percéixed income. Investment risk is measured and noo@ét on an ongoing basis through quarterly invest
portfolio reviews and annual liability measurements
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The following table is a summary of the Company&igitedaverage asset allocation for the Pension Plan ¢Bt aategory at the measuren
date for the years ended December 31 :

2014 2013
Equity securities 44.5% 45.(%
Fixed income securities 51.7% 50.6%
Real estate 3.6% 3.5%
Other 0.7% 0.7%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

The Company records its pension assets at faievaudescribed in Note 5 +air Value Measurementhe following is a description of t
Pension Plan’s investments at fair value and vadnahethodologies:

« Short-term investment funds These securities are valued at historical cost¢clvhpproximates fair valt

e Common collective trusts issued and held by th&tém+— The fair values of the underlying funds in the coomiicollective trust
are valued based on the net asset value establfshezhch fund at each valuation date. The nettasdee of a collectiv
investment fund is calculated by dividing the fisndét asset value on the calculation date by thabeu of units of the fund tt
are outstanding on the calculation date, whichdasved from observable purchase and redemptiorvigciin the collectivi
investment fund.

*  Mutual Funds— The fair value of the mutual fund issued by regedeinvestment companies is determined using quotdke
prices on the day of valuation.

* Real estat— The Pension Plan trust holds an investment in bestate development project. The fair value of ithivestmer
represents the estimated fair value of the glalated ownership percentage in the project bagpesh an appraisal of t
underlying real property as of each balance shatet dhe fund investment strategy for this asskeing-term capital appreciation.

The following tables are a summary of the Pensian’B financial assets recorded at fair value, ieydrchy level, as of December 31 :

2014
(Amounts in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Short-term investment fund $ — 3 1C $ — 3 1.C
Common collective trust — equity securities
Large Cap securities — 34.2 — 34.2
Small Cap securities — 8.8 — 8.€
International securities — 16.4 — 16.4
Emerging markets — 3.t — 3.t
Common collective trust — fixed income securities
Core fixed income — 72.7 — 720
Real estate — — 5.C 5.C
Total financial assets $ — 3 136.¢ $ 5 $ 141.¢
2013
(Amounts in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Short-term investment fund $ — 3 0c $ — 3 0.¢
Common collective trust — equity securities
Large Cap securities — 32.¢ — 32.¢
Small Cap securities — 8.5 — 8.t
International securities — 16.€ — 16.¢
Emerging markets — 3.4 — 3.4
Common collective trust — fixed income securities
Core fixed income — 69.4 — 69.4
Real estate — — 4.8 4.8
Total financial assets $ — $ 1318 $ 4¢€ $ 136.¢
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The Company’s Pension Plan assets includesenarity that the Company considers to be a Lesssgt for valuation purposes. This sec
is an investment in a real estate joint venture r@ugiires the use of unobservable inputs in itsvalue measurement. The fair value of
asset as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $5i6nrahd $4.8 million, respectively. The change in reported net asdaevfar this ass
resulted in a $0.2 million and a nominal unrealigaéh for 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

The following table represents the Pension PlaeigL3 financial instrument and the valuation teghas used to measure the fair value of the
financial instrument.

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
Instrument Principal Valuation Technique Fair Value Fair Value
Real Estate Appraisal of underlying asset $ 5 % 4.€

In estimating fair value of the investments in Ue¥ethe Company may use third party pricing sosiroe appraisers. In substantiating
reasonableness of the pricing data provided by tharties, the Company evaluates a variety of fachecluding review of methods a
assumptions used by external sources, recenthutegtransactions, existing contracts, economiditioms, industry and market developme
and overall credit ratings.

Plan Financial Informatior — Net periodic benefit expense (income) for the Rem§llan and SERPs and postretirement benefit jiahsle:
the following components for the years ended Deeerhh :

Pension and SERPs Postretirement Benefits
(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Interest cost $ 10& $ 9€ $ 10€ $ 01 $ 01 $ 0.1
Expected return on plan assets (7.3 (7.3 (7.9 — — —
Amortization of prior service credit — — — (0.6) (0.6) (0.6)
Amortization of net actuarial loss 6. 7.7 5.¢ 0.2 0.4 0.4
Net periodic benefit expense (income) $ 104 $ 10C % 8E€ $ 0.2 % 0.1) $ (0.3

The Company did not receive any subsidies in 2013 or 2012 .
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The following tables are a summary of the amouet®gnized in other comprehensive income (loss)retgberiodic benefit expense (incol
for the years ended December 31 :

2014
Pension and Postretirement
(Amounts in millions) SERPs Benefits
Net actuarial loss $ 37.C % 0.2
Amortization of net actuarial loss (6.9 0.3
Amortization of prior service credit — 0.€
Total recognized in other comprehensive (loss)imeo $ 301 $ 0.t
Total recognized in net periodic benefit expenaedime) $ 102 $ (0.2)
Total recognized in net periodic benefit expensedqime) and other comprehensive income (loss) $ 405 % 0.2
2013
Pension and Postretirement
(Amounts in millions) SERPs Benefits
Net actuarial gain $ (18.¢) $ (1.2
Amortization of net actuarial gain (7.7) (0.9
Amortization of prior service credit — 0.€
Total recognized in other comprehensive (loss)imeo $ (26.5 $ (2.0
Total recognized in net periodic benefit expensedqme) $ 10.Cc $ (0.2
Total recognized in net periodic benefit expenseqime) and other comprehensive income (loss) $ (16.5) $ (1.2
2012
Pension and Postretirement
(Amounts in millions) SERPs Benefits
Net actuarial loss $ 22z % 0.€
Amortization of net actuarial loss (5.9 (0.9
Amortization of prior service credit — 0.€
Total recognized in other comprehensive (loss)imeo $ 16.2 % 0.8
Total recognized in net periodic benefit expenaedime) $ 8€ $ (0.2
Total recognized in net periodic benefit expenaedime) and other comprehensive income (loss) $ 24.¢ % 0.7

The estimated net loss and prior service creditiferPension Plan and SERPs that will be amorfized “Accumulated other comprehens
loss” into “Net periodic benefit expense (incomd)iring 2015 is $9.4 million ( $6.0 million net afxX) and none respectively. The estimal
net loss and prior service credit for the postestient benefit plans that will be amortized from t&mulated other comprehensive logstb
“Net periodic benefit expense (income)” during 204550.2 million ( $0.1 million , net of tax) and$ million ( $0.4 millionnet of tax)
respectively.
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The following tables are a summary of the bendfitgation and plan assets, changes to the beradfgation and plan assets, and the fur
status of the Pension Plan and SERPs and the fi@strent benefit plans as of and for the years ériscember 31 :

Pension and SERPs Postretirement Benefits
(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year $ 233¢ $ 2457 % 14 $ 2.5
Interest cost 10.¢ 9.€ 0.1 0.1
Actuarial loss (gain) 36.4 (7.7) 0.2 (1.2
Benefits paid (14.9) (14.0 (0.9 —
Benefit obligation at the end of the year $ 266 $ 233¢ $ 1.2 3 1.4
Pension and SERPs Postretirement Benefits
(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of tay $ 1366 $ 121<¢ $ — 8 —
Actual return on plan assets 6.€ 18.4 — —
Employer contributions 12.¢ 10.¢ 0.4 —
Benefits paid (14.9) (14.0 (0.9 —
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year $ 141¢ $ 136 $ — % —
Unfunded status at the end of the year $ (1249 $ 97.0 $ 13 $ 1.9

In October 2014, the Society of Actuaries issuedatpd mortality tables. The Company adopted theatgod mortality tables on
measurement date which increased the benefit dioligarhe unfunded status of the pension and SER#Peased by 28 perceas the bene!
obligation increased $32.4 million and the fairuebf the Pension Plan assets increased $5.0 mdlliing the year. The unfunded status o
Pension Plan was $41.9 million and $21.9 milliorDacember 31, 2014 and 2018espectively, and the unfunded status of the SER&
$82.5 million and $75.1 million at December 31, 2@&hd 2013 , respectively.

In January 2015, the Company announced a volum@ngion buyout program. Under the program, eligd®éerred vested participants h
the one-time choice of electing to receive a lumpsettlement of their remaining pension benefifeiRto “Liquidity and Capital Resourcés
in Part Il, Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form-K@or additional discussion.

The following table summarizes the components reizegl in the Consolidated Balance Sheets relatirthe Pension Plan and SERPs an
postretirement benefit plans as of December 31 :

Pension and SERPs Postretirement Benefits
(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Pension and other postretirement benefits liability $ (1249 $ 97.0 $ 13 $ 1.9
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Unrealized losses for pension and postretirememefiis, net of tax 720 54.2 1.1 1.6
Prior service cost (credit) for pension and postetent benefits, net of tax 0.1 0.1 (2.0 (2.3

The following table summarizes the projected bendfiligation and accumulated benefit obligation fbe Pension Plan, SERPs and
postretirement benefit plans in excess of thevaline of plan assets as of December 31 :

Pension Plan SERPs Postretirement Benefits
(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Projected benefit obligation $ 183t ¢ 158f $ 82tf $ 751 $ id & 1.4
Accumulated benefit obligation 183.t 158.t 79.4 71.¢ — —
Fair value of plan assets 141.¢ 136.€ — — — —
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The following table summarizes the estimated futegrefit payments for the Pension Plan and SER&shenpostretirement benefit plans
the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020-2024
Pension and SERPs $ 25¢ $ 15z $ 152 % 165 % 152 $ 78.2
Postretirement benefits 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

The Company has a minimum required contributiorambroximately $4.0 million for the Pension Plan2idil5, and will continue to mal
contributions to the SERPs and the postretirementfit plans to the extent benefits are paid. Aggte benefits paid for the unfunded p
are expected to be $15.2 million in 2015 .

Employee Savings Ple — The Company has an employee savings plan thatfigsalinder Section 401(k) of the Internal RevenuaeleCo
1986, as amended. Contributions to, and costshef401(k) defined contribution plan totaled $4.1liom , $4.1 million and $3.8 millionn
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

International Benefit Plan— The Companys international subsidiaries have certain defineatribution benefit plans. Contributions to, .
costs related to, international plans were $2.4ianil $1.9 million and $1.9 million for 2014 , 2Bhnd 2012 , respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plai— The deferred compensation plans are unfunded asecured. The Company is not required to physi
segregate any assets in connection with the defageounts. The Company has rabbi trusts assoaiaticeach deferred compensation p
which are funded through voluntary contributionsthg Company. At December 31, 2014 and 20th® Company had a liability related to
deferred compensation plans of $2.0 million anct$gillion , respectively, recorded in the “Accoupayable and other liabilitiedine in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The rabbi trust hadaeket value of $10.0 million and $9.7 million ae&@mber 31, 2014 and 2013
respectively, recorded in “Other assatsthe Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company pagiments relating to the deferred compens
plans totaling $0.4 million and $0.1 million in 20&nd 2013 , respectively.

Note 12 — Stockholders' Deficit

Common Stock— The Company’s Amended and Restated Certifichteamrporation provides for the issuance of ui6@,500,000shares ¢
common stock with a par value of $0.01 . The haldérMoneyGram common stock are entitled to woie per share on all matters to be v
upon by its stockholders. The holders of commonlst@ave no preemptive, conversion or other subonigights. There are no redemptiot
sinking fund provisions applicable to the commarckt The determination to pay dividends on comntoglswill be at the discretion of t
Board of Directors and will depend on applicablevdaand the Company’financial condition, results of operations, cashuirement:
prospects and such other factors as the Boardret@rs may deem relevant. No dividends were pakDil4 or 2013 . The Compasyability
to declare or pay dividends or distributions to Hwders of the Company’s common stock is restliaiader the Company’2013 Cred
Agreement.

Preferred Stocl — The Company’s Amended and Restated Certifichtaamrporation provides for the issuance of u 000,000 shares ¢
preferred stock that may be issued in one or menes with each series to have certain rights @eferences as shall be determined ir
unlimited discretion of the Comparsy’'Board of Directors, including, without limitatiorwoting rights, dividend rights, conversion rig
redemption privileges and liquidation preferences.

Series D Participating Convertible Preferred SteekIn connection with the 2011 Recapitalization, tbempany issued 173,18&hares ¢
Series D Participating Convertible Preferred Stqu, value $0.01 per share (the “D Stock®)Goldman Sachs. Each share of D Stock |
liguidation preference of $0.01 and is convertibl® 125shares of common stock by a stockholder other @aldman Sachs which recei
such shares by means of (i) a widespread publidlzition, (ii) a transfer to an underwriter foretipurpose of conducting a widespread pi
distribution, (iii) a transfer in which no transéer (or group of associated transferees) would vedgio percenbr more of any class of voti
securities of the Company, or (iv) a transfer tamsferee that would control more than 50 peroérihe voting securities of the Comp:
without any transfer from such transferor or itiliates as applicable (each of (i) — (iv), a “Wigdispersed Offering”). The D Stock is non-
voting while held by Goldman Sachs or any holdeiciheceives such shares by any means other thdidely Dispersed Offering (a “non-
voting holder”). Holders of D Stock other than Golah Sachs and nareting holders vote as a single class with the dé@df the commc
stock on an as-converted basis. The D Stock aldwipates in any dividends declared on the comstonk on an as-converted basis.

Treasury Stock— The Board of Directors has authorized the refpase of a total of 12,000,000 shares. As of Deeer@b, 2014, the
Company has repurchased 8,228,5Rhares of common stock under this authorization fzal remaining authorization to repurchase 1
3,771,427 shares.
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The following table is a summary of the Companyltharized, issued and outstanding stock as of Dbee®ll :

D Stock Common Stock Treasury
(Shares in thousands) Authorized Issued Outstanding Authorized Issued Outstanding Stock
December 31, 2012 20C 10¢ 10¢ 162,50( 62,26¢ 57,85} (4,407%)
Stock option exercised and release of
restricted stock units — — — — — 10¢€ 10¢€
December 31, 2013 20C 10¢ 10¢ 162,50( 62,26 57,96 (4,307)
Conversion of Series D convertible shares — (38) (38 — 4,74¢ 4,74¢ —
Repurchase and retirement of shares — — — — (8,185 (8,18%) —
Stock repurchase — — — — — (1,519 (1,519
Stock option exercised and release of
restricted stock units — — — — — 81 81
December 31, 2014 20C 71 71 162,50( 58,82/ 53,09( (5,739

Participation Agreement between the Investors aral-Mart Stores, Inc. —The Investors have a Participation Agreement wital-Wart
Stores, Inc. (“Walmart”)under which the Investors are obligated to pay Véalncertain percentages of any accumulated casheaty
received by the Investors in excess of the Investriginal investment in the Company. While the Compés not a party to, and has
obligations to Walmart or additional obligations tiee Investors under, the Participation Agreemdimé, Company must recognize

Participation Agreement in its consolidated finahstatements as the Company indirectly benefis fthe agreement. Any future payment
the Investors to Walmart may result in an expehae ¢ould be material to the Compas§inancial position or results of operations, Wwotld
have no impact on the Compasycash flows. As liquidity events are dependenimamy external factors and uncertainties, the Compiae:
not consider a liquidity event to be probable & thme for any Investors, and has not recognizedfarther liability or expense related to
Participation Agreement.

In 2012, one of the Investors sold all of its conmstock to an unrelated thigghrty, resulting in cumulative participation seties payments
excess of its original investment basis. The Irnepaid $0.3 millionto Walmart for settlement in full of its obligatiamder the Participatic
Agreement. As a result of the transactions occgran April 2, 2014 described below, the Investodma payment of approximateh.€
million to Walmart under the Participation agreement. Assallt of these transactions, the Company recodrézpense and a correspont
increase to additional paid-in capital.

Equity Registration Rights Agreeme— In connection with the 2008 Recapitalization, thempany and the Investors entered in
Registration Rights Agreement (the “Equity Registra Rights Agreement™»n March 25, 2008, as amended on May 18, 2011, iegpect t
the Series B Stock and D Stock, and the commork stamed by the Investors and their affiliates (ectively, the “Registrable Securitigs”
Under the terms of the Equity Registration Rightge®ement, the Company is required, after a spécifedding period, to use the Compa
reasonable best efforts to promptly file with thec@rities and Exchange Commission (the “SE&£%helf registration statement relating tc
offer and sale of the Registrable Securities. Then@any is obligated to keep such shelf registragtatement continuously effective under
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securfies), until the earlier of (1) the date as of which dlklee Registrable Securities have t
sold, (2) the date as of which each of the holdéthe Registrable Securities is permitted to gglRegistrable Securities without registra
pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act &)dfifteen years . The holders of the Registreé®deurities are also entitled to sleman:
registrations and unlimited piggyback registratidosing the term of the Equity Registration RigAtireement. The Company has filed a <
registration statement on Form3Swith the SEC that permits the offer and salehef Registrable Securities, as required by the terfrike
Equity Registration Rights Agreement. The regigirastatement also permits the Company to offersaidup to $500 milliorof its commo
stock, preferred stock, debt securities or any doatlon of these, from time to time, subject to ketrconditions and the Compasytapita
needs.

Secondary Offering— On April 2, 2014, the Company completed an unditen secondary public offering by affiliates aooHnvestors c
THL and affiliates of Goldman Sachs (collectivelittwTHL, the "Investors") of an aggregate of 9,2@ shares of the Compasytommo
stock. As part of the transaction, the affiliatésSoldman Sachs converted an aggregate of 3%5B8&res of Series D Participating Conver
Preferred Stock (the "D Stock") to 4,744,68ttares of common stock, which were sold as patheftransaction. The selling stockholc
received all of the proceeds from the offering.cA&n April 2, 2014, the Company completed the repase of 8,185,098hares of commic
stock from the THL selling stockholders at a pride$16.25 per share. The Company funded the skgmerchase with $130.0 millioof the
proceeds from its Tranche B-1 Term Loan Facility aash.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Li— The following table details the components ofctAmulated other comprehensive loss’ o
December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
Net unrealized gains on securities classified afl@ve-for-sale, net of tax $ 112 $ 17.2
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustmenét of tax (5.9 3.t
Pension and postretirement benefits adjustmentfiax (72.9 (53.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (67.0) $ (33.0

The following table is a summary of the change$tcumulated other comprehensive loss" by compodaring 2014 and 2013 :

Net unrealized gains on Cumulative foreign Pension and postretirement
securities classified as currency translation benefits adjustment, net of
(Amounts in millions) available-for-sale, net of tax adjustments, net of tax tax Total
December 31, 2012 $ 16.2 9 2€ % (71.2) $ (52.9)
Other comprehensive income before
amortization 5.1 0.¢ 12.€ 18.€
Amounts reclassified/amortized fro
accumulated other comprehensi
loss 4. — 4.8 0.7
Net current period other
comprehensive income 1.C 0.6 17.4 19.c
December 31, 2013 17.c 3.5 (53.9) (33.0
Other comprehensive loss before
amortization (0.2) (8.9 (23.2) (32.9)
Amounts reclassified/amortized fro
accumulated other comprehensi
loss (5.9 — 4.1 (1.9
Net current period other
comprehensive loss (6.7 (8.9 (29.7) (34.7
December 31, 2014 $ 112  $ 5.4 % (72.9 $ (67.2)

The following table is a summary of the significarhounts amortized out of each component of "Acdated other comprehensive lo
during the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 Statement of Operations Location
Unrealized gains on securities classified as abkitéor-

sale, before tax $ B.7 $ (5.7 "Investment revenue"
Tax expense, net (0.2 1.€
Total gains, net of tax $ 5.9 $ (4.7

Pension and postretirement benefits adjustments:

Prior service credits $ (0.6¢) % (0.6 "Compensation and benefits"

Net actuarial losses 7.2 8.1 "Compensation and benefits"
Total before tax 6.€ 7.5
Tax benefit, net (2.5) (2.7)
Total, net of tax $ 41 $ 4.€
Total amortization for the period, net of tax $ (1.9 $ 0.7
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Note 13 — Stock-Based Compensation

The MoneyGram International, Inc. 2005 Omnibus itive Plan (“2005 Plan”) provides for the grantimigequity-based compensation awa
including stock options, stock appreciation rightsstricted stock units and restricted stock awdoddlectively, “share-based awardg9
officers, employees and directors. In May 2013, @mmpany's stockholders approved an amendment estdtement of the 2005 P
increasing the aggregate number of shares thatbmagsued from 7,125,000 to 12,925,000 sharesfA¥cember 31, 2014the Compan
has remaining authorization to issue future grahtsp to 6,778,170 shares.

The calculated fair value of share-based awardsdsgnized as compensation cost using the striightmethod over the vesting or sen
period in the Company’s financial statements. Sfoaged compensation is recognized only for thosemgtrestricted stock units and st
appreciation rights expected to vest, with forfiedtl estimated at the date of grant and evaluatddadjusted periodically to reflect
Companys historical experience and future expectationg: émange in the forfeiture assumption will be acded for as a change in estim
with the cumulative effect of the change on peripdsviously reported being reflected in the finahatatements of the period in which
change is made.

The following table is a summary of stock-based pensation expense for the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Expense recognized related to stock options $ 6.2 $ 6.7 $ 7.4

Expense recognized related to restricted stocls unit (0.9 4.t 1.€
Stock-based compensation expense $ 54 $ 112 $ 9.2

Stock Options—Option awards are granted with an exercise mipeal to the closing market price of the Compamgmmon stock on the d
of grant. All outstanding stock options containta&r forfeiture and non-compete provisions.

All options granted in 2012 , 2013 and 2014 hatera of 10 years . Prior to the fourth quarter @12, options issued were either time ba
vesting over a four -year period, or performancsebavesting over a five -year period. All optiassued after the fourth quarter of 20drk
time-based, with options granted in the fourth tgraof 2011 through the first part of 2014 vestov@r a four year period, and the remain
options granted in 2014 vesting over a three -peaind, in an equal number of shares each year.

For purposes of determining the fair value of stopkion awards, the Company uses the Black-Scleitege option pricing model for time-
based tranches and a combination of the Monte-Gamhalation and the Black-Scholes single optiorcipg model for performancease:
tranches. The following table provides weightedrage grant-date fair value and assumptions utilivedstimate the gramtate fair value ¢
the options granted during the years ended Dece&iber

2014 2013 2012
Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility” 64.6% - 68.2% 68.2%-69.0% 69.7%-71.8%
Risk-free interest raté 1.1% - 2.1% 1.1%-1.2% 0.9%-1.5%
Expected life” 6.0 - 6.3 years 6.3 years 6.3 years
Weighted-average grant-date fair value per option $10.99 $10.51 $10.60

(1) Expected dividend yield represents the le¥ealividends expected to be paid on the Compsuegmmon stock over the expected term of the opfibe Company do
not anticipate declaring any dividends at this time

(2) Expected volatility is the amount by which @empany’s stock price has fluctuated or will fuste during the expected term of the option. Then@anys expecte
volatility is calculated based on the historicalatiity of the price of the Company’s common stogikce the spimff from Viad Corporation on June 30, 2004.
Company also considers any known or anticipatetfac¢hat will likely impact future volatility.

(3) The risk-free interest rate for the Bla8kholes model is based on the U.S. Treasury yigidedn effect at the time of grant for periodshaitthe expected term of 1
option.

(4) Expected life represents the period of time thdioog are expected to be outstanding. The expdifeedas determined using the simplified methodtses pattern ¢
changes in the value of the Compangommon stock and exercise activity since late720@s been inconsistent and substantially diffefemh historical pattern
Additionally, there have been minimal stock optiexercises which would be representative of the Gomp normal exercise activity since 2007. Accordindhg
Company does not believe that historical termgelevant to the assessment of the expected tethegfrant. Based on these factors, the Companyrdidselieve that
has the ability to make a more refined estimata tha use of the simplified method.
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The following table is a summary of the Companytk option activity for the year ended DecemberZii4 :

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value
Shares Price Term ($000,000)
Options outstanding at December 31, 2013 4,792,00. $ 20.1¢ 6.8 year: $ 13.C
Granted 599,34« 18.2:
Exercised (23,090 16.04
Forfeited/Expired (1,581,80i) 20.8¢
Options outstanding at December 31, 2014 3,786,45: $  19.57 6.3 year: $ —
Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2014 3,675,69; $ 19.67 6.2 year: $ —
Options exercisable at December 31, 2014 2,006,07. $ 19.8( 5.0 year: $ —

The following table is a summary of the Companicgls option compensation information for the yeamded December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 01 $ 01 $ =
Cash received from option exercises $ 04 $ 11 % —
Unrecognized stock option expense $ 11.C

Remaining weighted-average vesting period 1.2 year

Restricted Stock Uni— During the fourth quarter of 2011 and in 201Be €ompany issued grants of performahased restricted stock ur
to certain employees which will vest and becomeapleyin shares of common stock to the extent thmpgamy attains the performance g
applicable to the performance period. The perfoigceagoal is based on the degree to which the Comgawerage annual adjusted EBIT
meets, exceeds or falls short of the target pediorga goal of achieving an average annual adjuss¢@®A increase of 10 percent ovettaree
year period. Under the terms of the gra50 percent of the target restricted stock units Nest on the second anniversary and 50 peroegt
vest on the third anniversary if the performancal g@achieved as of that date. The number ofiotstr stock units that vest is determined
pro rata basis by the extent to which the perforeagoal is met within a threshold minimum and maxim In the event the target performa
goal is not met, but the Company achieves a mininp@niormance goal of an average annual adjusted BBIgrowth of 5 percent the
participant will be entitled to 50 perceaf the target number of restricted stock units.the event the Company achieves its maxit
performance goal of an average annual adjusted BBIgrowth of 20 percent , the participant will betided to 200 percendf the targe
number of restricted stock units. In the fourth rjela of 2014, the Company deemed the performanceiamnefor the 2011 and 20
performance-based restricted stock units not prebalb being attained. As such, the Company revei3e@ million of stock-base
compensation expense.

The Company has granted tirhased restricted stock units to members of the o&mDirectors, excluding the Chairman of the Boaat
compensation for services to be provided. Theiotstr stock units vest on the first anniversaryhefir issuance and may only be settled ir
Company's common stock. Following the settlementetain shareholders' litigation on July 20, 20TRIL agreed to waive any futt
compensation for its representatives on the BoaRirectors, including the issuance of Directortriesed stock units.

During 2013, the Company issued performance-basstdated stock units, which are subject to thgesr cliff vesting and will vest based
the extent to which the performance goal is acliedering the performance period (202315). The 2013 annual restricted stock unit av
are based on average annual adjusted EBITDA (dbfisesarnings before interest, taxes, depreciatidnamortization and adjusted for cer
non-recurring or other unexpected expenses) grauider the terms of the grant, 50 percehthe restricted stock units granted will vest
threshold performance and 100 percagfthe restricted stock units granted will vest loe achievement of average annual adjusted EBIal
target. The number of restricted stock units thiit west for performance achievement between thdopmance threshold and target will
determined based on a straight-line interpolatimrestricted stock units will vest for performarazghievement below the threshold.

In addition, a one-time contingent performance-tasstricted stock unit award was issued in 201stivig of the onéime contingent awa
is based on the achievement by the Company ofgettéavel of the compound average growth rate ("®R®f revenue during the three y
performance period. If the performance goal isiraih at the end of the performance period, theopedince award will vest and eligi
participants will receive the value of their awa@AGR is a nonsAAP financial measure used by the Company in thegbt and reportir
process.
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During 2014, the Company issued performance-basstlicted stock units, which are subject to thyeer cliff vesting, based on aver:
annual adjusted EBITDA growth and self-service resegrowth during the applicable performance pe(il4 -2016). Under the terms
the restricted stock units granted in 2014, the lmemof restricted stock units that will vest is etetined based on the extent to which
performance goals are achieved. Under the terrttseadrant, 50 percenf the restricted stock units granted will vest foreshold performan
and 100 percent of the restricted stock units ghmiill vest for the achievement of average anadglsted EBITDA and seBervice revent
at target. The number of restricted stock unit$ Witk vest for performance achievement betweengbdormance threshold and target wil
determined based on a straight-line interpolatimrestricted stock units will vest for performarazghievement below the threshold.

In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company deerhedperformance metrics for the annual performarased restricted stock units grante
2013 and 2014 and the one-time contingent perfocedaased restricted stock units not probable of beittgined. As such, the Comp:
reversed $9.0 million of stodkased compensation expense. In December, the Cogmpaterially modified certain of the terms of tHzoge
mentioned performandeased restricted stock units. The Company accouotethis as a modification of awards, treating thehange as
cancellation of the original awards accompaniedh®y concurrent grant of replacement awards. Thagamder certain of the 2013 anr
restricted stock unit awards were modified to tibesed restricted stock units and the performanceianeassociated with the ottieae
contingent performance-based restricted stockamérds were modified to exclude U.S. to U.S. walkevenue from the performance g
Each award remains subject to three -year cliffiugsThe terms under certain of the 2014 annuard®; which are subject to thregar clifl
vesting, were modified to exclude annual adjustBdTBA growth as a performance metric. The modif@@il4 annual awards will only
average annual adjusted sedfrvice revenue growth as a performance targehglulie applicable performance period. The modifcet tc
these awards affected 389 employees. The increimeomigensation cost of $4.2 milliomas measured as the excess of the fair value
replacement award over the fair value of the odbaward immediately before the modification ddtkee incremental costs will be amorti:
over the remaining term of the exchanged restristedk unit award.

For purposes of determining the fair value of iettd stock units and performanbased restricted stock units, the fair value isudated base
on the stock price at the time of grant. For perfancebased restricted stock units, expense is recogriizathievement of the performar
goal is deemed probable, with the amount of expeasegnized based on the Companlgest estimate of the ultimate achievement ldva
the performance-based restricted stock units, thetglate fair values at the threshold and targgopmance levels are $12.8 million a$26.]
million , respectively. As of December 31, 201the Company believes it is probable it will ackEighe performance goal at the target leve
the modified 2013 and 2014 restricted stock umiis &ill not achieve the threshold and target levetsthe 2012estricted stock units on t
third anniversary as documented above. For grangsnployees, expense is recognized in the “Compiensand benefitstine and expense f
grants to Directors is recorded in the “Transactiod operations support” line in the Consolidateteénents of Operations using the straigh
line method over the vesting period.

The following table is a summary of the Compangstricted stock unit activity for the year endecc®uaber 31, 2014 :

Weighted Weighted-Average Aggregate

Total Average Remaining Intrinsic Value

Shares Price Contractual Term ($000,000)

Restricted stock units outstanding at DecembeRG13 1,186,14. $ 16.7: 1.8 year: $ 24.¢
Granted 1,583,23i 15.8(
Vested and converted to shares (88,716 17.3i
Forfeited (373,679 16.8:
Canceled (605,38.) 16.9¢

Restricted stock units outstanding at Decembef314 1,701,60 $ 15.7 1.4 year: $ 15.t

No vested restricted stock units were convertislefiDecember 31, 2014 .

The following table is a summary of the Compang&tnicted stock and restricted stock unit compeémsatformation for the years ended
December 31 :

(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Market value of restricted stock units converted $ 1.5 $ 0. % 0.€
Unrecognized restricted stock unit expense $ 11.1

Unrecognized restricted stock unit expense andréh@aining weighted-average vesting period are ptedeunder the Comparsy'currer
estimate of achievement of performance goals. Wgeized restricted stock unit expense, as of Deee®b, 2014 under the minimum ai
maximum thresholds are $9.9 million and $22.5 wnillj respectively.
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Stock Appreciation Rights- In November 2011, the Company issued a grant eksappreciation rights to certain employees whietitle the
holder to any per share appreciation from the paicessuance. The grants vest and become exewisabl a four-yeaperiod in an equ
number of shares each year. Upon exercise, theoge®wlwill receive an amount that is equal to theesx of the closing sale price of
Company’s common stock at the time of exercise éweigrant price paid in cash up to a maximum @&.@Q .

The fair value of stock appreciation rights wasakdted using a Blackcholes single option pricing model and is recorded liability in th
“Accounts payable and other liabilitie§itie in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Expenseaték appreciation rights is recognized in
“Compensation and benefits” line in the Consolidatatements of Operations using the straliglet-method over the vesting period. Expe
related to stock appreciation rights was nominakfal4 , 2013 and 2012 .

Note 14 — Income Taxes

The following table is a summary of the componefitsicome (loss) before income taxes for the yeaded December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012

u.s. $ 664 $ 69< $ (9.6)

Foreign 6.2 15.4 0.7
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 726 $ 85.: § (8.9

Foreign income consists of statutory income anddsdrom the Company’s international subsidiafidsst of the Company’s whollgwnec
subsidiaries recognize revenue based solely oncssnagreements with the primary U.S. operatingsislidry. The following table is
summary of the income tax expense for the yearsagBecember 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federal $ (10.9) % 9.7 % 6.1
State s 0.1 0.t
Foreign 3.8 11.1 4.C
Current income tax (benefit) expense (5.0) 20.¢ 10.€
Deferred income tax expense 5.E 12.C 29.¢
Income tax expense $ 05 $ 32¢ $ 40.4

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the Companyahaet income tax payable of $53.2 million and $58ilfion , respectively, recorded
the “Accounts payable and other liabilities” limethe Consolidated Balance Sheets. Income taxdsyme $6.4 million , $8.0 million arR.¢
million for 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivelyefdwere no income tax refunds received in 201018 #illion refunds received in 20E3¢
no refunds were received in 2012 .

The following table is a reconciliation of the exped federal income tax expense (benefit) at sigtutates to the actual tax expense (ber
provided for the years ended in December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Income tax expense (benefit) at statutory fede@ine tax rate $ 254 % 298 $ (3.9
Tax effect of:
State income tax, net of federal income tax effect iIE 1.7 0.€
Valuation allowance (3.0 (2.7) 0.€
International taxes 0.t 3.2 1.6
Net permanent difference 1.t 0.2 1.C
(Decrease) increase in tax reserve (20.9) (0.5 37.1
Stock options 6.C 1.€ 3.7
Other (2.7 (0.9 (1.6
Income tax expense $ 0t $ 32¢ % 40.4

In 2014 , the Company recognized a tax expens®.&f @illion on pre-tax income of $72.6 milligrresulting from reductions of uncertain
positions of prior years and the tax treatmenthef et securities gains which were partially oftsgtthe reversal of tax benefits on canc
stock options.

F-42






Table of Contents

In 2013 , the Company recognized a tax expens82P%million on pre-tax income of $85.3 milligrbenefiting from proceeds on securi
that result in a release of valuation allowancésetfby international taxes and the reversal ofttmefits recorded on cancelled stock opt
for executive employee terminations. Changes itsfand circumstances may cause the Company todredalitional tax expense or benefit
the future.

In 2012 , the Company recognized a tax expensed0f4$million on pre-tax loss of $8.9 millioresulting from additions to uncertain
positions and the reversal of tax benefits recotedancelled stock options for executive empldgeminations.

The following table is a summary of the Companyé$edred tax assets and liabilities as of December 3

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Postretirement benefits and other employee benefits $ 479  $ 39.7
Tax loss carryovers 50.1 76.5
Tax credit carryovers 30.2 27.€
Basis difference in revalued investments 97.€ 106.1
Bad debt and other reserves 4.¢ 3.t
Other 14.€ 5.C
Valuation allowance (137.¢) (174.9
Total deferred tax asset 107.t 83.4
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization (75.9) (72.¢)
Gross deferred tax liability (75.9) (72.9)
Net deferred tax asset $ 322 % 10.€

Net deferred tax asset positions are reflectech@Other assets’line in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, while deferred tax liabilit
positions are included in the “Accounts payable atiter liabilities”line in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Substgnéith of the deferre
tax assets relate to the U.S. jurisdiction.

At the end of 2014 and 2013certain capital losses expired, resulting in dases to tax loss carryovers and correspondingctieds ir
deferred tax assets and valuation allowances.

The following table is a summary of the amounts argiration dates of tax loss carry-forwards (rzot ¢ffected) and credit carfgrwards a
of December 31, 2014 :

Expiration
(Amounts in millions) Date Amount
U.S. capital loss carry-forwards 2015-2018 $ 116.¢
U.S. federal tax credit carry-forwards Indefinite  $ 30.2

The Company, or one of its subsidiaries, files medax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction &adous states and foreign jurisdictions. V
a few exceptions, the Company is no longer sultgeédreign or U.S. federal, state and local incameexaminations for years prior to 2C
The Company is subject to foreign, U.S. federal @erdain state income tax examinations for 2006uph 2013.

The Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") has cotedlés examination of the Compasyconsolidated income tax returns through 2009
IRS has issued Notices of Deficiency for 2QH7 and 2009, and has also issued an ExaminagporRfor 2008. The Notices of Deficier
disallow among other items approximately $900.0iomlof deductions on securities losses in the 20078 200@ 2009 tax returns. In 2013,
Company reached a partial settlement with the IIRSvang ordinary loss treatment on $186.9 milliohdeductions in dispute. In January 2(
the U.S. Tax Court granted the IRS's motion for suamy judgment upholding the remaining adjustmentthie Notices of Deficiency. Tt
court decision is a change in facts which warramsabsessment of the uncertain tax position. Atjhothe Company believes that it
substantive tax law arguments in favor of its positand expects to appeal the ruling, the reassadsrasulted in the Company determir
that it is no longer more likely than not thatetdsting position will be sustained and accordingtyearly 2015, the Company will record a
reserve for the exposure associated with this mafttés change is anticipated to increase "Incomxeeixpense” in the Consolidated Staten
of Operations by approximately $70.0 milliprvhich will be reflected as a discrete item fox purposes. The Company anticipates that
payments in the second half of 2015 specific te thatter will be approximately $60.0 million fodferal tax payments and associated interest
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Subsequent to the fourth quarter of 2014, the I&8pteted its examination of the Compasigbnsolidated income tax returns for the tax \
2011 through 2013 and issued a Revenue Agent RERAR”) that included disallowing $100.0 millioof deductions related to payments
Company made to the United States government imexdion with the Deferred Prosecution Agreemente Tompany disagrees with

adjustments in the RAR and expects to file a ptdegter so that the issue will be considered lg/IRRS Appeals Division. As of December
2014, the Company has recognized a cumulative ieciax benefit of approximately $23.3 millioalated to these deductions. The Comj
continues to believe that the amounts recordedkicansolidated financial statements reflect itst lstimate of the ultimate outcome of
matter.

Unrecognized tax benefits are recorded in “Accoyaigable and other liabilitiesh the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The followalget is
summary is a reconciliation of unrecognized taxdfigs for the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Beginning balance $ 52.C $ 51€¢ $ 9.€
Additions based on tax positions related to prigarg 3 0.¢ 1.€
Additions based on tax positions related to curyesair 2.7 — 40.¢
Lapse in statute of limitations — (0.5 (0.9
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (23.9 — —

Ending balance $ 317 $ 52 $ 51.€

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the liability darecognized tax benefits was $31.7 million aB&.8 million, all of which could impa
the effective tax rate if recognized. The Compaaograges interest and penalties for unrecognizedbtmefits through Ilhcome tax expen
(benefit)” in the Consolidated Statements of Openst For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 20832012, the Company accru
approximately $0.5 million , $1.1 million and $0nillion , respectively, in interest and penalties in ith&nidated Statements of Operatic
respectively. As of December 31, 2014 and 201® Gbmpany had a liability of $2.6 million and $2xlllion , respectively, for interest a
penalties related to its unrecognized tax benefissof December 31, 2014t is not possible to reasonably estimate thesetgad change to t
total amount of unrecognized tax positions overtbet 12 months .

The Company does not consider its earnings iroiign entities to be permanently reinvested. AB@fember 31, 2014 and 2018 deferre
tax liability of $6.3 million and $7.6 million , spectively, was recognized for the unremitted eaysiof its foreign entities.

Note 15 — Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases— The Company has various noancelable operating leases for buildings and egeip that terminate through 20
Certain of these leases contain rent holidays entlescalation clauses based ongetermined annual rate increases. The Company mexn
rent expense under the straight-line method overtéhm of the lease. Any difference between thaigtdine rent amounts and amou
payable under the leases are recorded as defemedéhr‘Accounts payable and other liabilitieig”the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Ca:
lease incentives received under certain leasescaoeded as deferred rent when the incentive isived and amortized as a reduction to
over the term of the lease using the stralgtg-method. Incentives received relating to teriamgrovements are recognized as a reductic
rent expense under the straighe method over the term of the lease. Tenant avgments are capitalized as leasehold improvensert
depreciated over the shorter of the remaining tefrthe lease or 10 years . The deferred rent itghiélating to these incentives wé&4.:
million and $2.6 million at December 31, 2014 ai®d 2, respectively.

The following table is a summary of the minimumtedrexpense under operating leases for the yededeDecember 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Rent expense $ 18.C $ 16.2 $ 15.€
Contingent rent — 0.2 —
Sublease agreements 1.2 (2.0 (0.7)
Minimum rent expense under operating leases $ 16.¢ $ 152 $ 14.¢
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The following table is a summary of the minimumufig rental payments for all naancelable operating leases with an initial ternmore
than one year at December 31, 2014 (amounts ifoms|:

2015 $ 15.2
2016 10.€
2017 8.¢
2018 8.t
2019 8.C
Thereafter 18.¢
Total W

Letters of Credii— At December 31, 2014the Company had no letters of credit. Theserkedé credit would reduce the amount avail
under the Revolving Credit Facility.

Minimum Commission Guarante — In limited circumstances as an incentive to newemewing agents, the Company may grant mini
commission guarantees for a specified period oétaha contractually specified amount. Under thergutees, the Company will pay to
agent the difference between the contractuallyifipdaninimum commission and the actual commissieasied by the agent. Expenses re
to the guarantee are recognized in the “Fee aret atimmissions expense” line in the ConsolidatedeStents of Operations.

As of December 31, 2014 , the liability for minimwommission guarantees was $2.9 millemmd the maximum amount that could be

under the minimum commission guarantees was $10libmover a weighted-average remaining term df gears. The maximum payment
calculated as the contractually guaranteed mininscammission multiplied by the remaining term of tentract and, therefore, assumes
the agent generates no money transfer transaatioig the remainder of its contract. However, urttie terms of certain agent contracts
Company may terminate the contract if the projectedctual volume of transactions falls beneatlorractually specified amount. Minimt
commission guarantees paid in 2014 and 2013 wegerfiillion and $1.5 million , respectively, or 4@rpent and 56 percentespectively,
the estimated maximum payment for the year.

Other Commitments— The Company has agreements with certaiimeestors to provide funds related to investmentiniited partnershi
interests. As of December 31, 2014 , the total arhofiunfunded commitments related to these agratsweas $0.3 million .

Legal Proceeding— The matters set forth below are subject to unadits and outcomes that are not predictable. Thepaoy accrues f
these matters as any resulting losses become peohad) can be reasonably estimated. Further, thep@oy maintains insurance coverage
many claims and litigation alleged. In relationviarious legal matters, including those describddvibethe Company had $17.3 millicaanc
$1.7 million of liability recorded in the “Accounfsayable and other liabilities” line in the Consalied Balance Sheets as@écember 3:
2014 and 2013, respectively. A charge of $12.8ionil, $0.2 million and $108.8 million net of insurance recoveries, were recorded i
“Transaction and operations support” line in then€uidated Statements of Operations during 201@132and 2012 respectively, for leg
proceedings.

Litigation Commenced Against the Company:

The Company is involved in various claims and &#tigns that arise from time to time in the ordinagurse of the Company's busin
Management does not believe that after final digjposany of these matters is likely to have a mateadverse impact on the Compa
financial condition, results of operations and ciaivs.

Government Investigations

State Civil Investigative Demands MoneyGram has received Civil Investigative Dersarficom a working group of ninstate attorney
general who have initiated an investigation intcethler the Company took adequate steps to prevesuoeer fraud during the period fr
2007 to 2014. The Civil Investigative Demands sedlirmation and documents relating to the Compsarprocedures designed to pre
fraudulent transfers and consumer complaint infeiona MoneyGram has cooperated fully with the atéys general in this matter ¢
submitted the information and documents requedtectlaims have been filed against MoneyGram in egtion with this investigation and
Company has denied any wrongful conduct. The Compmourrently in discussions with the attorneyseyal to resolve any allegations 1
they might assert.

Taking into account our discussions with the aggegeneral, at December 31, 2014, we accrued $illion for estimated loss exposure
connection with such investigation. Any estimateaofoss contingency involves judgments based uporetly available information a
assumptions believed to be reasonable and is $ubjeacertainties. There may be an exposure gep& excess of any amounts accrued
any actual loss may vary from the current estimate.
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Other Matters— The Company is involved in various other governmirqtiries and other matters that arise from timéirne. Manageme
does not believe that after final disposition afiyth@se other matters is likely to have a mateathlerse impact on the Compasyinancia
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Actions Commenced by the Company

CDO Litigation— In March 2012, the Company initiated an arbitrafwoceeding before the Financial Industry Regulatauthority agains
Goldman Sachs. The arbitration relates to MoneyGsgmrchase of Residential Mortgage Backed Secsidtiel Collateral Debt Obligatic
that Goldman Sachs sold to MoneyGram during theb2@éough 2007 timeframe. The Company alleged, grather things, that Goldm
Sachs made material misrepresentations and omssgic@onnection with the sale of these productimnately causing significant losses to
Company. On April 25, 2014, MoneyGram and GoldmanhS agreed to settle all pending and potentightion or arbitration concerning &
Residential Mortgage Backed Securities or mortg&ipgted Collateralized Debt Obligations that Goldn$achs sold to MoneyGram during
2003 through June 30, 2008 time period. In conogaatiith this resolution, Goldman Sachs agreed tkenzaonetime payment, net of fees ¢
certain expenses, to MoneyGram in the amount oftsd#llion , and to make a one-time payment of faed expenses to MoneyGraniéga
counsel in the amount of $4.35 millionAll amounts were paid in May 2014. This resalntincludes terminating the litigation and arbita
between MoneyGram and Goldman Sachs. Goldman Saais together with certain of its affiliates, amgmately 14 percerdf the shares
the Company’s common stock on a diluted basis,nasgyiconversion of the D Stock currently owned lyldgnan Sachs and its affiliates.

Certain litigation matters commenced by the Compaase also settled during the year ended Decenthe2(®BL4, resulting in the recognitic
of an additional $ 32.4 million from securitiestinents.

Tax Litigation— In May 2012 and December 2012, the Company fietitions in the U.S. Tax Court challenging the 2@007 and 20C
Notices of Deficiency, respectively, pursuant toichhthe IRS determined that the Company owes amfiiticorporate income taxes bec:
certain deductions relating to securities losse®wapital in nature, rather than ordinary losgedanuary 2015, the U.S. Tax Court grante:
IRS's motion for summary judgment upholding thextiisvance of ordinary tax treatment on securittessés. This court decision is a chan¢
facts which warranted reassessment of the uncedaiposition. Although the Company believes thdtas substantive tax law argument
favor of its position and expects to appeal thengjlthe reassessment resulted in the Companyndigieg that it is no longer more likely th
not that its existing position will be sustainediatcordingly, in early 2015, the Company will reta full reserve for the exposure associ
with this matter. This change is anticipated toréase "Income tax expense” in the Consolidatece@ets of Operations by approxima
$70.0 million, which will be reflected as a discrete item fax taurposes. The Company anticipates that cash pagnire the second half
2015 specific to this matter will be approximat&B0.0 million for federal tax payments and assedanterest.

Note 16 — Segment Information

The Companys reporting segments are primarily organized basedhe nature of products and services offered thedype of consum
served. The Company has tweporting segments: Global Funds Transfer and EiahRaper Products. The Global Funds Transfer sel
provides global money transfers and bill paymemtises to consumers through substantially all of money transfer agent and Company
operated locations in the U.S., Canada, Puerto, Ried at certain agent locations in select Cariblseal European countries. The Finar
Paper Products segment provides money orders sunwers through retail and financial institutiondtions in the U.S. and Puerto Rico,
provides official check services to financial ihgtions in the U.S. Onef the Company's agents of both the Global Fundssfer segment a
the Financial Paper Products segment accounte@Zopercent , 27 percent and 28 percent of totatmee in 2014 , 2013 and 2012
respectively. Businesses that are not operatednntiese segments are categorized as "Other," anmthnily relate to certain pension ¢
benefit obligation expenses, director deferred cemsgtion plan expenses, executive severance atddealosts and certain legal and corpt
costs not related to the performance of the segn@&@sagment préax operating income and segment operating manginuaed to revie
segment performance and to allocate resources.

Segment accounting policies are the same as thesszilded in Note 2 -Summary of Significant Accounting PolicieEhe Company manac
its investment portfolio on a consolidated levelthwno specific investment security assigned toagtigular segment. However, investr
revenue is allocated to each segment based orvénage investable balances generated by that s¢gnsahe of payment instruments du
the period. Net securities gains are not allocatethe segments as the investment portfolio is madiaat a consolidated level. While
derivatives portfolio is also managed on a consbdéid level, each derivative instrument is utilizeda manner that can be identified t
particular segment.

Also excluded from net operating income for Globahds Transfer and Financial Paper Products ageesttand other expenses related t
Company’s credit agreements, items related to tagany’s preferred stock, operating income fromnmsses categorized as “Othesgttair
pension and benefit obligation expenses, direatéerded compensation plan expenses, executiveameand related costs, certain legal
corporate costs not related to the performancheoségments.
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Unallocated expenses in 2014 include $16.4 milbbfegal expenses related to the state Civil Ingasive Demands accrual and other |
matters, as well as pension and postretirementfiven@enses of $10.2 million and other net corporeosts of $5.5 million Unallocate
expenses in 2013 include $2.5 milliohlegal expenses for the settlement in conneatibh MDPA/U.S. DOJ investigation and the shareht
litigation, $1.5 million of severance and relategsts from executive terminations as well as othetr gorporate costs of $11.6 millian
Unallocated expenses in 2012 include $119.2 milliblegal settlements in connection with MDPA/U.S0Dinvestigation and the shareho
litigation, $1.0 million of severance and relatests from executive terminations as well as otte¢rcorporate costs of $7.6 million .

The following table is a summary of the total rewerby segment for the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Global Funds Transfer revenue
Money transfer revenue $ 1,274% $ 1,287.¢ $ 1,149.
Bill payment revenue 100.1 102.( 106.1
Total Global Funds Transfer revenue 1,374.¢ 1,389.¢ 1,255..
Financial Paper Products revenue
Money order revenue 54.1 55.1 57.t
Official check revenue 26.2 28.¢ 27.C
Total Financial Paper Products revenue 80.:2 84.C 84.t
Other revenue — 0.€ 1.t
Total revenue $ 1454¢ $ 1,474. $ 1,341

The following table is a summary of the operatingome by segment and detail of the income (losEréencome taxes for the years en
December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Global Funds Transfer operating income $ 754 $ 162 $  149.¢
Financial Paper Products operating income 28.1 30.¢ 3217
Total segment operating income 103.t 193.t 182.:
Other operating loss (32.7) (15.6) (129.9
Total operating income 71.4 177.¢ 52.4
Net securities gains 45.4 — 10.C
Interest expense (44.2) (47.9) (70.9
Debt extinguishment costs — (45.9) —
Other costs — — (0.9
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 72€ % 85.: $ (8.9

The following table is a summary of depreciatiod amortization expense by segment for the yearseBecember 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Global Funds Transfer $ 50.¢ $ 46.5 $ 40.7
Financial Paper Products 4.4 3.¢ 3.t
Other 0.3 0.3 0.1
Total depreciation and amortization $ 55 § 50.7 $ 44.:

The following table is a summary of capital expémdis by segment for the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012

Global Funds Transfer $ 71z $ 49.: $ 50.€

Financial Paper Products 16.7 7.4 6.1
Total capital expenditures $ 87.¢ $ 56.7 $ 56.7
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The following table sets forth assets by segmeiof &ecember 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013
Global Funds Transfer $ 1,858. $ 1,611.
Financial Paper Products 2,464.! 2,800.(
Other 319.4 375.¢
Total assets $ 4,642 $ 4,786.¢

Geographic areas— International revenues are defined as revenuesatederom money transfer and bill payment trarisastoriginating ii
a country other than the U.S. Loliged assets are principally located in the U.Se Ttilowing table details total revenue by majoogeaphi
area for the years ended December 31 :

(Amounts in millions) 2014 2013 2012

uU.S. $ 861.: $ 891.¢ $ 822.t

International 593.% 582.¢ 518.7
Total revenue $ 1454¢ $ 1474. $ 1,341.

Note 17 — Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following tables are the summation of quartedynings per share and may not equate to thelatdoufor the full year as quarte
calculations are performed on a discrete basis.

2014 Fiscal Quarters:

(Amounts in millions, except per share data) First Second Third Fourth
Total revenue $ 374¢ $ 3724 $ 358.( $  349:¢
Total operating expenses 337.¢ 351.2 341.7 352.¢
Operating income 37.C 21.1 16.2 (3.0
Total other expenses (income), net 9.7 (11.0 11.€ (11.5)
Income before income taxes $ 27 $ 321 % 47 $ 8.t
Net income (loss) $ 39.C $ 25 $ 3.0 % 10.t
Income (loss) per common share
Basic $ 052 $ 04C $ (0.05) $ 0.17
Diluted $ 054 % 04C $ (0.05) $ 0.17
2013 Fiscal Quarters:
(Amounts in millions, except per share data) First @ Second Third Fourth
Total revenue $ 340t $ 36571 $ 383.C $ 385.¢
Total operating expenses 296.2 322.¢ 334.¢ 342.¢
Operating income 44.: 42t 48.1 43.C
Total other expenses, net 62.7 9.¢ 10.C 10.C
(Loss) income before income taxes $ (18.9) $ 32 $ 381 $ 33.C
Net (loss) income $ (126 % 19.1 % 225 % 23.2
(Loss) income per common share
Basic $ (0.18) $ 027 $ 031 $ 0.3¢
Diluted $ (0.18) $ 027 $ 031 $ 0.3

®Net loss in the first quarter of 2013 includes $4%illion for the debt extinguishment loss.

F-48






Table of Contents

Note 18 — Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events thtbagihate of issuance of the Company's Audited Qlmtsted Financial Statements.
January 2015, the Company received notice thaUtBe Tax Court granted the IRS's motion for sumnjadgment disallowing ordinary t
treatment on securities losses. Refer to Note Ildeeme Taxetor further disclosure.

F-49




Table of Contents

Note 19 — Condensed Consolidating Financial Statemts

In the event the Company offers debt securitiesymmt to an effective registration statement omF88, these debt securities may
guaranteed by certain of its subsidiaries. Accalyinthe Company is providing condensed consolidafinancial information in accordar
with SEC Regulation S-X Rule 3-1Bjnancial Statements of Guarantors and Issuers adr@nteed Securities Registered or Being Regisi
If the Company issues debt securities, the follgn®0 percentdirectly or indirectly owned subsidiaries couldlyuand unconditionall
guarantee the debt securities on a joint and skbasis: MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, IkoneyGram Payment Systems, |
and MoneyGram of New York LLC (collectively, the ti@rantors”).

The following information represents condensed,sotidating Balance Sheets as of December 31, 20142813, along with condense
consolidating Statements of Operations and StatenwérCash Flows for the years ended December@®4 22013 and 2012The condense
consolidating financial information presents finahinformation in separate columns for MoneyGrartetnational, Inc. on a Pareoy basi:
carrying its investment in subsidiaries under theity method; Guarantors on a combined basis, icaripvestments in subsidiaries that are
expected to guarantee the debt (collectively, tNen-Guarantors”) under the equity method; NBmarantors on a combined basis;
eliminating entries. The eliminating entries priihareflect intercompany transactions, such as ant®receivable and payable, fee rew
and commissions expense and the elimination ofggquiestments and income in subsidiaries.
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONDENSED, CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

(Amounts in millions)
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Settlement assets

Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Other assets

Equity investments in subsidiaries
Intercompany receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT)
EQUITY

Payment service obligations
Debt
Pension and other postretirement benefits
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Intercompany liabilities
Total liabilities
Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ (deficit) equit

Subsidiary Non-

Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
21 % 92 $ 156.£ — 250.¢

— 3,494.. 39.2 — 3,533.¢

— 143.% 22.¢ — 165.¢

— 315.3 127.2 — 442t
224 253.8 36.4 (62.2) 249.¢
102.: 206. — (308.4) —
692.2 51.F — (743.9) —
819.1 $ 4556.( $ 381.¢ (1,114 $ 4,642.:
— $ 3500 $ 33.2 — % 3,533.¢
963.t — — — 963.t
— 1257 — — 125.7
38.2 128.( 98.C (62.2) 202.1
— 699.7 44.; (743.9) —
1,001.¢ 4,453.¢ 175. (806.7) 4,824.¢
(182.9) 102.2 206.: (308.4) (182.7)
819.1 $ 4)556.( $ 381.¢ (1,114% $ 4,642..
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONDENSED, CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Subsidiary Non-
(Amounts in millions) Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
REVENUE
Fee and other revenue $ — $ 1547 % 334¢ $ (4435 $ 1,438.
Investment revenue — 16.2 0.2 — 16.5
Total revenue — 1,563.: 335.1 (443.9) 1,454.¢
EXPENSES
Fee and other commissions expense — 802.t 161.¢ (298.9 666.(
Investment commissions expense — 0.4 — — 0.4
Total commissions expense — 802.¢ 161.¢ (298.9) 666.<
Compensation and benefits — 193.t 81.t — 275.(
Transaction and operations support 3.1 414.¢ 59.4 (145.7) 332.C
Occupancy, equipment and supplies — 40.5 13.€ — 54.4
Depreciation and amortization — 42.1 13.4 — b5.k
Total operating expenses 3.1 1,493.¢ 330.1 (443.5) 1,383
OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME (3.7 69.t 5.C — 71.2
Other expense (income)
Net securities gains — (45.9 — — (45.9)
Interest expense 44.2 — — — 44.2
Total other expense (income) 44.2 (45.9) — — (1.2
(Loss) income before income taxes (47.9) 114.¢ 5.C — 72.€
Income tax (benefit) expense (16.€) 15.4 1.7 — 0.t
(Loss) income after income taxes (30.79) 99.t 3.3 — 72.1
Equity income (loss) in subsidiaries 102.¢ 3.2 — (106.7) —
NET INCOME (LOSS) 72.1 102.¢ 3.3 (106.2) 72.1
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME (34.7) (34.)) (18.¢) 52.7 (34.0)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) $ 38.C $ 68.7 $ (15.9 $ (5349 $ 38.C
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONDENSED, CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Subsidiary Non-
(Amounts in millions) Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES $ (27.4 $ 48.: % 414 $ — 3 62.%
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment — (69.0 (16.9 — (85.¢)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (3.7 (7.9 — (11.5)
Proceeds from disposal of assets — 0.¢ — — 0.€
Intercompany financings 11.2 (47.5) — 36.2 —
Dividend from subsidiary 50.7 — — (50.7) —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 61.C (119.9) (24.¢) (14.9 (96.9
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of debt 129.¢ — — — 129.¢
Transactions costs for issuance and amendmenbbf de (5.0 — — — (5.2
Principal payments on debt (9.5 — — — (9.5
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 0.4 — — — 0.4
Stock repurchase (149.9) — — — (149.9)
Intercompany financings — (11.2) 47.t (36.9) —
Dividend to parent — (50.9) — 50.7 —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (34.)) (61.9) 47.5 14.4 (34.0
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 0.4 (132.9) 64.2 — (68.2)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of period 1.7 224.¢ 92.2 — 318.¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of period $ 21 % 92 $ 156t $ — % 250.¢
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONDENSED, CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(Amounts in millions)
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Settlement assets

Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Other assets

Equity investments in subsidiaries
Intercompany receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT)
EQUITY

Payment service obligations
Debt
Pension and other postretirement benefits
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Intercompany liabilities
Total liabilities
Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ (deficit) equit

Subsidiary Non-

Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
17 $ 224¢ % 92.2 — 318.¢
— 3,693.¢ 43.t — 3,737.:
— 109.t 25.& — 134.¢
— 313.( 122.2 — 435.;

18.1 163.( 17.5 (37.¢) 161.(
81.C 194.7 — (275.7) —
703.¢ 4.C 10.2 (717.9 —
804.. $ 4,702 % 311.( (1,031.0) $ 4,786.¢
— $ 3,699¢! % 37.€ — % 3,737.:
842.¢ — — — 842.¢
— 98.4 — — 98.4

38.5 112.¢ 71.7 (37.6) 185.t
— 710.¢ 7.C (717.9) —
881.2 4,621. 116.3 (755.5) 4,863.¢
(77.0 81.C 194.7 (275.7) (77.0
804.. $ 4,702 $ 311.( (1,031) $  4,786.
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONDENSED, CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Subsidiary Non-
(Amounts in millions) Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
REVENUE
Fee and other revenue $ — $ 1488 % 3277 % (359.9) $ 1,456.¢
Investment revenue — 17.4 0.3 (0.7) 17.€
Total revenue — 1,505.¢ 328.( (359.9 1,474..
EXPENSES
Fee and other commissions expense — 730.5 167.C (219.9) 677.¢
Investment commissions expense — 0.4 — — 0.4
Total commissions expense — 730.¢ 167.C (219.%) 678.2
Compensation and benefits — 196.( 68.¢ — 264.¢
Transaction and operations support 1.7 339.7 51.¢ (139.6) 253.7
Occupancy, equipment and supplies — 40.5 8.€ (0.7) 49.C
Depreciation and amortization — 36.4 14.5 — 50.7
Total operating expenses 1.7 1,343 310.% (359.9 1,296.!
OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME 2.7 162.: 17.2 — 177.¢
Other expense
Interest expense 30.5 17.C — — 47.%
Debt extinguishment — 453 — — 45.:
Total other expenses 30.2 62.2 — — 92.€
(Loss) income before income taxes (32.0) 100.( 17.5 — 85.c
Income tax (benefit) expense (11.2) 36.¢€ o5 — 32.¢
(Loss) income after income taxes (20.¢) 63.£ 9.8 — 52.4
Equity (loss) income in subsidiaries 73.2 9.¢ — (83.0 —
NET INCOME (LOSS) 52.4 73.2 9.8 (83.0 52.4
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 19.c 19.: 0.3 (19.6) 19.:
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) $ 717 $ 92t $ 101 $ (102.¢) $ 71.7
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONDENSED, CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(Amounts in millions)

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment
Acquisitions
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Intercompany financings

Dividend to parent/capital contribution from subiarg
guarantors

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Transaction costs for issuance and amendment of deb
Prepayment penalty
Payment on debt
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Intercompany financings
Dividend to parent
Capital contribution to non-guarantors
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of period

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—ENd of period

Subsidiary Non-

Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
48.0) $ 198 % FE $ — % 156.1
— (48.9) — — (48.9)
— (15.0 (0.9 — (15.9)

— 0.7 — — 0.7
(841.9 — — 841.¢ —
44.C 0.8 — (44.8) —
(797.9 (62.9) (0.9 796.¢ (63.5)
850.( — — — 850.(
— (12.¢) — — (11.¢)
— (21.5) — — (21.5)
(6.9 (813.2) — — (819.5)
11 — — — 1.1

= 841.¢ — (841.9 _

— (44.0) — 44.C —

— — (0.9) 0.8 —
844.¢ (49.7) (0.8) (796.€) (1.7)
(0.6) 87.1 4.4 — 90.¢€
2.3 137.¢ 87.¢ — 227.¢
1.7 $ 224¢ % 922 $ — 3 318.¢
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONDENSED, CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Subsidiary Non-
(Amounts in millions) Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
REVENUE
Fee and other revenue $ — $ 14327 % 300.6 $ (4040 $ 1,328.¢
Investment revenue — 12.1 0.5 — 12.¢
Total revenue — 1,444.¢ 301.1 (404.7) 1,341.;
EXPENSES
Fee and other commissions expense — 756.( 161.: (318.)) 599.;
Investment commissions expense — 0.2 — — 0.3
Total commissions expense — 756.3 161.: (318.)) 599.t
Compensation and benefits — 175.5 66.1 — 241.¢
Transaction and operations support 10.€ 382.¢ 49.2 (86.€) 355.17
Occupancy, equipment and supplies — 34.t 13.2 — 47.7
Depreciation and amortization — 31.2 13.1 — 44.:
Total operating expenses 10.€ 1,379.¢ 303.( (404.7%) 1,288.¢
OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME (10.€) 64.¢ (1.9 — 52.4
Other expense (income)
Net securities gains — (10.0 — — (10.0
Interest expense — 70.€ — — 70.¢
Other costs 0.3 0.1 — — 0.4
Total other expenses (income), net 0.3 61.C — — 61.5
(Loss) income before income taxes (10.9 3.¢ (1.9 — (8.9
Income tax (benefit) expense (6.3 42.F 4.2 — 40.4
(Loss) income after income taxes (4.€) (38.¢) (6.1 — (49.3)
Equity (loss) income in subsidiaries (44.9) (6.2) — 50.¢ —
NET (LOSS) INCOME (49.9 (44.7) (6.1 50.¢ (49.9)
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME (14.9) (15.¢) 1.8 14.C (14.9)
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME $ (63.€ $ (60.5) % 43 $ 64.t $ (63.€)
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONDENSED, CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Amounts in millions)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Capital contribution from subsidiary guarantors
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on debt
Intercompany financings
Capital contribution to non-guarantors
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of period

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—ENnd of period

Subsidiary Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

10.1 51: $ 14¢ % — 3 76.%
— (44.9 (14.7) — (59.6)
1.C — — 1.C

— (7.9) — 7.9 —
— (51.6) (14.7) 7.9 (58.6)
— (1.5) — — (1.5)
(8.4) 8.4 — — —
— 7.8 (7.9 —

(8.4) 6. 7.8 (7.9 (1.5)
1.7 6.4 8.1 — 16.2
0.€ 131. 79.7 — 211.;
2.3 137.¢ % 87.¢ $ — ¢ 227.¢
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WITHOUT PREJUDICE AND SUBJECT TO CONTRACT
THIS AGREEMENT is made on 8 th January 2015

BETWEEN:
(1) Carl-Olav Scheible of 10 Melville Ave, London SW20 ONS (" you "); and

(2) MoneyGram International Limited whose registered office is at 1 st Floor, Senator House, 85 Queen Victoria Street,
London EC4V 4AB (the " Company ").

INTERPRETATION:

In this Agreement

" Adviser " means a relevant independent adviser (as defined in section 203 Employment Rights Act 1996) from
whom you have received legal advice as to the terms of this Agreement and its effect and, in particular, its effect on
your ability to pursue your rights before an Employment Tribunal,

" Group Company " means any company which for the time being is:
(@) a parent undertaking (as defined by the Companies Act 2006) of the Company; or

(b) any subsidiary undertaking (as defined by the Companies Act 2006) of any such parent undertaking or of the
Company; and

" Termination Date " means 28 February 2015.

WHEREAS:

Q) Your employment with the Company will terminate on the Termination Date.

(2) Without any admission of liability, the Company has agreed to settle all claims and potential claims that you have or
may have against the Company and/or any Group Company arising out of your employment and/or your directorships
and/or the termination of your employment and/or your resignation from your directorships on the following terms.

IT IS AGREED:




3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

TERMINATION
Your employment will terminate on the Termination Date by reason of redundancy.

PERIOD UP TO THE TERMINATION DATE

During your employment up to the Termination Date you will continue to be bound by all the terms of your contract of
employment and the Staff Manual, the Code of Conduct and all other Company policies, procedures and rules as may
be in force from time to time.

You agree that you will undertake all such tasks and duties as are necessary to ensure that there is a smooth
handover of your responsibilities.

You will receive:
€)) your salary and other contractual benefits up to and including the Termination Date in the normal way; and
(b) any pay in lieu of accrued but untaken holiday,

less deductions for income tax and national insurance contributions at appropriate rates. Your P45 will be issued to
you.

Save as set out in this Agreement, you have no other entitlements to salary or any other contractual or other benefits.
TERMINATION PAYMENT

Subject to and conditional upon your compliance with all the terms of this Agreement the sum of £316,000 (the "
Termination Payment ") will be paid to you as compensation for termination of your employment which shall be
apportioned as follows:

(@) £158,000 by way of payment in lieu of notice in accordance with clause 20.5 of your Service Agreement dated
16 March 2012 subject to deductions for income tax and National Insurance contributions in the normal way
(the " Notice Payment "); and

(b) £158,000 as an ex gratia termination payment including your entitlement to a statutory redundancy payment
calculated by reference to your age, length of service and a maximum weekly wage of £464 (the " Ex-Gratia
Payment ").

The Termination Payment will be processed within the payroll run following the later of the Termination Date and the
date of receipt by the Company of this Agreement signed by you together with the Adviser's certificate at Schedule 3
signed by your Adviser.

You will receive a 2014 bonus payment under the Performance Bonus Plan (the "Bonus Payment"). Your individual
performance will be measured at 85% of target for the purposes of the Bonus Payment. The Bonus Payment will be
paid less deductions for income tax and national insurance contributions at appropriate rates and at the same time as
the Termination Payment and subject to the same conditions.

TAX

The Notice Payment will be paid subject to deductions for tax and national insurance contributions. The first £30,000
of the Ex Gratia Payment can be paid without deduction of tax but income tax at the appropriate rate or rates will be
deducted from the remainder before payment.

You agree that you will be responsible for paying any income tax which may be assessed on the Termination
Payment and the value of all other benefits provided to you under this Agreement (save for any sums actually



6.1

6.2

10.

deducted by the Company). You further agree to indemnify and keep indemnified the Company and any Group
Company in respect of any further income tax and/or employee's national insurance contributions (including any
interest, penalties, costs and fines) (the " Further Tax ") which the Company or any Group Company may incur in
respect of this Agreement other than in relation to the sums deducted by the Company under this Agreement
provided that the Company will make no payment of such Further Tax without particulars of any such payment being
given to you and you being given the opportunity at your own expense to dispute any such payment.

STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS
Stock Options

You may exercise any stock options granted to you under the MoneyGram International Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive
Plan (the " Plan ") to the extent permitted under the Plan and in accordance with and subject to the rules of the Plan
and the relevant Stock Option Agreement which you entered into with MoneyGram International Inc.. Your
employment will be treated as having been terminated without Cause for the purposes of:

() the Global Stock Option Agreement dated 16 April 2012; and
(b) the Global Stock Option Agreement dated 26 February 2013.
Restricted Stock Units

The Restricted Stock Units granted to you under the Plan will vest to the extent permitted under the Plan and in
accordance with and subject to the rules of the Plan and the relevant Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement which
you entered into with MoneyGram International Inc. and to the achievement of any applicable performance conditions.
Your employment will be treated as having been terminated without Cause for the purposes of:

(@) the Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement dated 16 April 2012;

(b) the Performance Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement dated 26 February 2013;

(c) the Global Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement dated 24 February 2014; and

(d) the Global Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement dated 24 February 2014.
EXPENSES

The Company will reimburse you for any expenses properly and reasonably incurred by you in the performance of
your duties on or before the Termination Date. Any such claim must be submitted within 7 days of the Termination
Date in accordance with the Company's normal procedure.

COMPANY PENSION

You will receive a statement of your accrued pension benefits under the Company's Group Personal Pension Plan
and the options available to you for dealing with the accrued sums.

LEGAL COSTS

The Company will pay direct to your Adviser his/her legal costs in connection with advising you on the termination of
your employment up to a maximum of £700 plus VAT on receipt of an appropriate invoice addressed to you but stated
to be payable by the Company.

OUTPLACEMENT SERVICES

The Company will arrange for you to receive and will pay for outplacement services through the Company-provided
vendor (in alignment with Company practice) up to a maximum of £3,000 plus VAT to assist you in adjusting to the
termination of your employment and finding other gainful employment.
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11.2

12.

13.

131

13.2

14.

14.1

14.2

REFERENCES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Subject to any overriding regulatory obligations or requirements, the Company will provide prospective employers on
request with a reference in the form set out in Schedule 1 and will respond to all oral enquiries in a manner consistent
with such reference. Where any overriding regulatory obligations or requirements require a deviation from the agreed
reference, the Company will first take reasonable steps to notify you of any proposed change to that reference and
will reasonably consider any comments you may have before issuing the reference to a third party.

An announcement in the form set out in Schedule 4 will be issued by the Company to staff and any relevant third
party to announce your departure.

DIRECTORSHIPS

You agree to resign on such specified date as requested by the Company from your directorship of the Company and
from all your other directorships and other offices in any Group Companies by signing a letter of resignation in the
form set out in Schedule 2. If you hold any trusteeships or other offices relating to the Company and/or any Group
Company you will on request resign from them and execute such documents as may be necessary to give effect to
your resignation.

COMPANY PROPERTY

You undertake that you shall return to the Company no later than the Termination Date all mobile phones, blackberry
devices, laptops, keys, credit cards, correspondence, documents, reports, papers, records and data (including notes,
summaries and extracts) which relate to the Company or its business or that of any Group Company, held in any form
(including electronically) and any other Company property or property of any Group Company which is in your
possession or under your control, together with all copies of the same.

You also confirm that by no later than the Termination Date you shall delete from your personal computer and any
other personal electronic device any information which relates to the Company or any Group Company or its or their
business or that of its or their clients and which you acquired during or as a result of your employment with the
Company or material whose copyright belongs to the Company or any Group Company, which is stored electronically
or in any recoverable form and that you have made no copies of those materials whether onto hard drive or onto any
other medium whether allowing for their reproduction or otherwise, nor passed them on to any third party and that you
have not incorporated or adapted any such materials into any material belonging to you or a third party.

CONFIDENTIALITY

You acknowledge that you remain bound by and will comply with your on-going duties of confidentiality to the
Company and to any Group Company and shall not:

(@) disclose to any person, firm, company or organisation whatsoever (save as may be required by law or to any
regulatory authority or for the purposes of obtaining advice from professional advisers in relation to this
Agreement); or

(b) otherwise make use of,

any confidential or commercially sensitive information which you have or may have acquired in the course of your
employment and which relates to the Company and/or any Group Company or to its or their business.

Information which has entered the public domain (otherwise than as a result of any breach by you of any obligation
owed by you to the Company or any Group Company) shall cease to be confidential.

The terms of this Agreement, the circumstances in which your employment was terminated and all discussions on
these subjects shall be treated by you and the Company as confidential and shall not be disclosed to any other
person save:
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14.4

15.

16.

16.1

16.2

€)) to the Company's Board of Directors/senior management;

(b) to those other individuals at the Company or a Group Company who the Company deems disclosure
reasonably necessary for a business reason;

(c) to those individuals who will be required to give effect to the terms of this Agreement;

(d) as may be required by law or to any regulatory authority (including disclosure required by the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission);

(e) for the purposes of obtaining advice from professional advisers in connection with this Agreement;

)] in your case, to confirm to a prospective employer that the reason for the termination of your employment was
redundancy; or

(9) in your case, your immediate family.

In the case of disclosures to your immediate family, you may not disclose any such information until you have
procured that the person to whom such matters are disclosed will keep confidential the information you impart to
them.

The parties agree not to act in any manner detrimental to each other including, in your case, to any Group Company,
and you agree not to make, or cause to be made, any derogatory statements concerning the Company, any Group
Company, or its or their business or officers or employees.

You agree not to make, or cause to be made, any statement or comment to the press (whether local, national or
specialist) or any other media concerning your employment with the Company, or its termination, or your resignation
or removal from any directorships or other offices with the Company or any Group Company without the prior written
consent of the Company. The Company agrees not to authorise the publication of any derogatory statements
concerning you.

RESTRICTIONS

You acknowledge you remain bound by and undertake to continue to observe clause 15 ( Restrictions During
Employment ), clause 17 ( Confidential Information ) and clause 22 ( Restrictive Covenants ) of your Service
Agreement dated 16 March 2012 notwithstanding the termination of your employment.

FULL AND FINAL SETTLEMENT

Without any admission of liability by the Company, you agree to accept the terms set out in this Agreement in full and
final settlement of any and all claims, demands, costs, expenses or rights of action which you have or may have
against the Company or any Group Company or any of its or their officers or employees, whether under English law
and/or the law of any other jurisdiction in the world and whether at common law, statutory, pursuant to European
Union law or otherwise, however arising, in connection with your employment and/or its termination and/or your
directorships and/or your removal or resignation from them including, for the avoidance of doubt, in respect of the
period between the date of this Agreement and the Termination Date (the " Identified Issues ") (but excluding any
claim in respect of accrued pension entitlement or personal injury of which you are aware and any claims to enforce
the terms of this Agreement).

In particular, but without limitation, the waiver and release contained in clause 15.1 extends to:

(@) any claim for damages for breach of contract (whether brought before an Employment Tribunal or otherwise);
and

(b) any claim for personal injury of which you are aware; and

(c) any statutory claims which you have or may have for:



16.3

16.4

17.

171

0] unfair dismissal;
(ii) a redundancy payment;
(iii) equal pay and/or equality of terms under the Equality Act 2010 and/ or the Equal Pay Act 1970;

(iv) discrimination, harassment and/or victimisation related to sex under the Equality Act 2010 and/ or the
Sex Discrimination Act 1975;

(v) discrimination, harassment and/or victimisation related to race under the Equality Act 2010 and/ or the
Race Relations Act 1976;

(vi) discrimination, harassment and/or victimisation related to disability under the Equality Act 2010 and/ or
the Disability Discrimination Act 1995;

(vii)  adetriment under section 47B ( whistleblowing ) of the Employment Rights Act 1996;
(viiiy  a claim for unlawful deductions under Part Il of the Employment Rights Act 1996;

(ix) a claim under the Working Time Regulations 1998;

x) a claim under the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992;

(xi) discrimination, harassment and/or victimisation related to religion or belief under the Equality Act 2010
and/ or the Employment Equality (Religion or Belief) Regulations 2003;

(xii)  discrimination, harassment and/or victimisation related to age under the Equality Act 2010 and/ or the
Employment Equality (Age) Regulations 2006;

(xiii)  a claim under the Protection from Harassment Act 1997;
(xiv)  aclaim under the Data Protection Act 1998.

The claims specified in this clause 15.2 (together the " Employee Claims ") are claims which it is recognised you
have or may have arising out of the circumstances surrounding your employment and its termination.

By your signature of this Agreement you agree that you shall not institute or commence any claims, actions or
proceedings against the Company or any Group Company in relation to the Identified Issues before any Employment
Tribunal or court whether in respect of the Employee Claims or otherwise.

The Company confirms that it has no intention of bringing a claim against you on the basis of the facts as it
understands them. You warrant that you are not aware of any facts which may give rise to a claim against you by the
Company.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
You represent and warrant as a strict condition of the Company entering into this Agreement that:

(d) having taken independent legal advice, you have previously notified to the Company in writing any and all
potential claims of any nature that you have or may have against the Company or any Group Company and
that you have no other complaints or grounds for any claim whatsoever against the Company in relation to the
Identified Issues, including, without limitation, the Employee Claims and you are not aware of any claim or any
facts which could give rise to any claim which is not being settled under this Agreement;

(e) you are not aware of any facts or matters which might give rise to a claim for personal injury against the
Company and/or any of its Group Companies;
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18.

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

19.

191

19.2

19.3

()] you are not aware of any facts or matters which might give rise to a dispute between you, the Company, any
of its Group Companies and/or the pension trustees in respect of your pension rights;

(9) you have made a full and frank disclosure to the Adviser of all matters which might reasonably affect the
willingness of the Company to enter into this Agreement;

(h) you have not commenced any action against the Company or any Group Company and will not commence or
continue any action in relation to the Employee Claims or otherwise arising out of the Identified Issues;

0] you have not made nor will you make any reference to the Information Commissioner in relation to any alleged
breach of the Data Protection Act 1998 by the Company or any Group Company;

() as at the date of signature of this Agreement, you have not breached the confidentiality obligations in your
Service Agreement; and

(k) as at the date of signature of this Agreement, you have not done or omitted to do anything which would entitle
the Company to summarily dismiss you without compensation.

You acknowledge that the Company is relying on clauses 15, 16 and 17 in deciding to enter into this Agreement. If
you breach any of these provisions and a judgment or order is made against the Company or any Group Company,
you acknowledge that any such company will have a claim against you for damages of not less than the amount of
the judgment or order.

COMPROMISE AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS

You acknowledge that the conditions regulating compromise and/or settlement agreements (as appropriate) in the
following sections are satisfied: section 203(3) of the Employment Rights Act 1996, Section 77(4A) of the Sex
Discrimination Act 1975, section 72(4A) of the Race Relations Act 1976, Paragraph 2(2) of Schedule 3A, Part 1 of the
Disability Discrimination Act 1995, Regulation 35(3) of the Working Time Regulations 1998, section 288(2B) of the
Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992, Schedule 4 Part 1 of the Employment Equality (Religion
or Belief) Regulations 2003, Schedule 5 of the Employment Equality (Age) Regulations 2006, section 147(3) of the
Equality Act 2010.

You acknowledge that this agreement relates to any matters over which an Employment Tribunal may have
jurisdiction including, without limitation, the Employee Claims.

You confirm that you have received legal advice from your Adviser.

You have provided the name of your Adviser from whom you have taken this advice and the name and address of the
organisation for whom your Adviser works and your Adviser has signed the certificate set out in Schedule 3 to this
Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS

Save for any Group Company a person, firm, company or organisation who or which is not a party to this Agreement
shall have no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of this Agreement. The
consent of a third party shall not be required for the variation or termination of this Agreement, even if that variation or
termination affects the benefits conferred in this Agreement on that third party.

Although marked "without prejudice" and "subject to contract”, once the Agreement has been signed by the Company
and by you and the certificate attached to this Agreement has been signed by your Adviser it shall be treated as an
open agreement and binding between the Company and you.

This Agreement may be executed by the parties in separate counterparts each of which shall be an original but all of
which shall constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement is not effective until each party has executed at
least one counterpart and the Adviser has signed the Adviser's certificate.



19.4 The headings to the clauses are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of this
Agreement.

19.5 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on the termination of your employment and
except where expressly incorporated supersedes all other agreements, negotiations and discussions, whether written
or oral.

20. APPLICABLE LAW AND JURISDICTION

English law shall apply to this Agreement and the parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts.

Signed by Carl-Olav Scheible /sl Carl-Olav Scheible

Signed for and on behalf of the Company [sl Coleen Highfield

Name: Coleen Highfield

Job title: Vice President, Human Resources (Europe and
Africa)

SCHEDULE 1

Agreed Reference
SCHEDULE 2

Resignation of directorship

SCHEDULE 3

Certificate from the independent legal adviser

SCHEDULE 4

Announcement



Exhibit 10.93
MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CASH RETENTION AWARD AGREEMENT

This CASH RETENTION AWARD AGREEMENT (the “ Agreement) is made by and between

MoneyGram International, Inc. , a Delaware corporation (theCompany’), and (theé”articipant
"). The grant date of this award is {tant Date”).
1. Award.
The Company hereby grants to the Participant a i&shtion award (the Award”) in the amount equal
to , according to the terms and condi@sngrovided in this Agreement.
2. Vesting.

(@) Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, theafdhgranted under this Agreement shall vest irethre
installments with respect to the corresponding gatiage of the Award set forth below on the datesifipd below
(each, a ‘Vesting Daté€), provided the Participant remains continuoustypdoyed by the Company or a subsidiary
from the Grant Date through the applicable VesDade.

Vesting Date Percentage Vested

December 10, 2015 25%
July 10, 2016 25%
January 10, 2017 50%

(b) Except as provided in Section 5, if the Participdmgs not remain continuously employed by the Cam
or a subsidiary from the Grant Date through eacstivg Date, any Award installment corresponding ¥esting Date
that follows the date of the Participant’s termioatshall be forfeited and no corresponding paymeéthie due to the
Participant.

(c) The Participant shall have no right to paymentrof Award installment that has not vested in accocda
with the terms of this Agreement. Prior to settlaméhe Award represents an unfunded and unseacinéghtion of the
Company.




3. Settlement of Award Any Award installment that vests shall be paidh® Participant in cash on, or as soon as
practicable after, the corresponding Vesting Datadcordance with Section 2 above (or, if soonectién 5 below),
but in any event, no later than March 15 of thewrdar year following the calendar year of vesting.

4. Restrictions on TransferExcept as otherwise provided by the Human Ressurod Nominating Committee (the
Committe€) of the board of directors of the Company (thBdard”), the Award will not be transferable, other tHan
will or by the laws of descent and distribution.eTAward may not be pledged, alienated, attachedharwise
encumbered, and any purported pledge, alienatitagrament or encumbrance of the Award will be vend
unenforceable against the Company or any subssdiari

5. Effect of Termination of EmploymentExcept as provided in this Section 5 or as otiswmay be determined by
the Committee, if the Participant ceases to bengpl@yee of the Company or any of its subsidiaties,following
actions shall occur:

(@) Termination for Cause; Resignatiotf the Participant's employment with the Compamyany of its
subsidiaries is terminated for Cause (as definéol\peor the Participant resigns for any reasoniuding as a result of
the Participant’s retirement, prior to a Vesting®any Award installment that has not vested dfmlmmediately
forfeited and no corresponding payment will be thuthe Participant.

(b) Involuntary Termination/Disability/Deathif the Participans employment with the Company or any o
subsidiaries is terminated without Cause or is tegited due to death or Disability (as defined bélpwor to a Vesting
Date, the Participant shall immediately vest athefdate of termination only with respect to theakavinstallment
corresponding to the next subsequent Vesting Datdale remainder of the Award installments, if astyall be
immediately forfeited.

(c) For purposes of this AgreementCause’ shall mean (A) the Participant’s willful refusia carry out, in
all material respects, the reasonable and lawfekctions of the person or persons to whom the ddaatnt reports or the
Committee that are within the Participant’s conarot consistent with the Participant’s status withCompany or its
subsidiary and his or her duties and responsaslitiereunder (except for a failure that is attable to the Participant’s
illness, injury or Disability) for a period of t€t0) days following written notice by the Compamyite subsidiary to tr
Participant of such failure, (B) fraud or matedahonesty in the performance of the Participadhiises hereunder, (C)
an act or acts on the Participant’s part constitu(k) a felony under the laws of the United Stateany state thereof or
similar act under foreign law for the n@hS. Participants, (y) a misdemeanor involving rharepitude or (z) a materi
violation of the securities laws of the United 8tbr any state thereof or similar act under fordéagv for the non-U.S.
Participants, (D) an indictment of the Participtomta felony under the laws of the United Statearoy state thereof or
similar act under foreign law for the non-U.S. Rapants, (E) the Participant’s willful miscondumt gross negligence
in connection with the Participant’s duties whiduld reasonably be expected to be injurious inraaterial respect to
the financial condition or business reputationh&f Company as determined in good faith by the Cdteenor the
Company, to the extent the Participant does




not report to the Committee, (F) the Participantaterial breach of the Company’s Code of Condueingrother code
of conduct in effect from time to time to the extepplicable to the Participant, and which breamhia reasonably be
expected to have a material adverse effect on timep@ny as determined in good faith by the Boarth@ Company, to
the extent the Participant does not report to thar8, or (G) the Participant’s breach of the Emp®yrade Secret,
Confidential Information and Post-Employment Resioh Agreement (or any similar agreement the Biadnt
received from the Company) (thé*6st-Employment Restriction Agreemgmhich breach has an adverse effect on
the Company or its subsidiaries.

(d) For purposes of this AgreementDfsability ” shall mean that the Participant becomes physicall
mentally incapacitated and is therefore unablefperiod of six (6) consecutive months or for agragate of nine (9)
months in any twenty-four (24) consecutive monthiqueto perform his or her duties. Any questiori@ghe existence
of the Disability of the Participant for purposddluos Agreement shall be determined in writingabgualified
independent physician selected by the Companydétermination of Disability made in writing to t@®mpany and
the Participant shall be final and conclusive flbparposes of the Agreement.

(e) For purposes of this Agreement, the Participani sease to be continuously employed (whether ¢r no
later found to be invalid or in breach of any loeaiployment law in the country where the Participasides and/or is
employed or the terms of the Participant’s emplaynoe service agreement, if any) as of the datettigaParticipant is
no longer actively providing services and will &t continuously employed for purposes of the Aviardugh any
notice period mandated under an employment lawamtige in the country where the Participant res@ed/or is
employed, even if otherwise applicable to the Bgdint's employment benefite(g., continuous employment would
not include any contractual notice period or angqaeof “garden leave” or similar period mandatedier employment
laws in the jurisdictions where the Participanides and/or is employed or the terms of the Paditi's employment ¢
service agreement, if any); the Committee shalehire exclusive discretion to determine when thréiddaant is no
longer continuously employed for purposes of theafdy and if the Participant is a U.S. taxpayerhsigtermination
shall be made in accordance with Section 409A efititernal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (@ozle”).

6. Forfeiture and Repayment Provisians

(a) Failure to properly execute the Agreement (and edlobr document required to be executed by the
Participant in connection with the Participant'seipt of the Award) in a timely manner followingetisrant Date may
result in the forfeiture of the Award, as deterndie the sole discretion of the Company.

(b) The right to vest in installments of the Award s$tha& conditional upon the fact that the Participiza
read and understood the forfeiture and repaymenigions set forth in this Section 6, that the iegrént has not
engaged in any misconduct or acts contrary to thraf@any as described below, and that the Participasmno intent to
leave employment with the Company or any of itsskdibries for the purpose of engaging in any aistior providing
any




services which are contrary to the spirit and intdrihe Post-Employment Restriction Agreement.

(c) The Company is authorized to suspend or termimmageAward prior to or after termination of employm
if the Company reasonably determines that:

() The Participant engaged in any conduct agreed &vbieled pursuant to the Post-Employment
Restriction Agreement.

(i)  During the Participant’s employment with the Companany of its subsidiaries, the Participant
knowingly participated in misconduct that causesisstatement of the financial statements of the am or any of i
subsidiaries or misconduct which represents a mahtgolation of any code of ethics of the Compapplicable to the
Participant or of the Code of Conduct or similasgram of the Company; or

(i)  During the Participant’s employment with the Companany of its subsidiaries, the Participant
was aware of and failed to report, as requiredriyycde of ethics of the Company applicable toRh#icipant or by
the Code of Conduct or similar program of the Conypanisconduct that causes a misstatement of tiaadial
statements of the Company or any of its subsidiatenisconduct which represents a material viohatif any code of
ethics of the Company applicable to the Participardf the Code of Conduct or similar program @& @ompany.

(d) If, at any time after the Participant vests in &ward installment(s), the Company reasonably detezm
that any of the actions or inactions contemplatedln Sections 6(c)(i) through 6(c)(iii) have ocedtrthen any amount
of the Award paid to the Participant (without redjér tax effects) from such vesting shall be refgidhe Participant t
the Company. The Participant consents to the denturtbom any amounts the Company or any of its glidises owes
to the Participant to the extent of the amountdtaeicipant owes the Company under this Sectidi 6(

7. Administration.

(a) Power and Authority of the Committedhe Agreement shall be administered by the CotemiSubject
to the express provisions of the Agreement angypdi@able law, the Committee shall have full powwad authority to:
(i) amend the terms and conditions of the Agreem@ptnterpret and administer the Agreement) @stablish, amend,
suspend or waive such rules and regulations andirpguch agents as it shall deem appropriatenoptoper
administration of the Agreement; and (iv) make ather determination and take any other actionttteCommittee
deems necessary or desirable for the administrafitime Agreement. Unless otherwise expressly plexvin the
Agreement, all designations, determinations, imeggtions and other decisions under or with resjoettte Agreement
shall be within the sole discretion of the Comnaittanay be made at any time and shall be final,losive and binding
upon any Participant, any holder or beneficiarthef Agreement, and any employee of the Company.




(b) Power and Authority of the BoardNotwithstanding anything to the contrary contdiherein, the Board
may, at any time and from time to time, without &mther action of the Committee, exercise the psvasnd duties of
the Committee under the Agreement.

9. Miscellaneous

(a) Tax Withholding. Solely for tax purposes, amounts paid in settl@méa vested Award installment will
be treated as wages subject to applicable tax wldinyg.

(b) Responsibility for Taxes

(iv) Regardless of any action the Company or the Paatntis employer (the Employer’) takes with
respect to any or all income tax, social insurapegroll tax, payment on account or other tax-szglatems related to
this Award and legally applicable to the Particip@nl ax-Related Item3, the Participant acknowledges that the
ultimate liability for all Tax-Related Items is angimains the Participant’s responsibility and meageed the amount
actually withheld by the Company or the Employdre Participant further acknowledges that the Comyeud/or the
Employer (1) make no representations or undertakiagarding the treatment of any Tax-Related Itenc®nnection
with any aspect of the Award, including, but natited to, the grant, vesting or payment of the Adhand the payment
of cash upon settlement of the Award; and (2) docoonmit to and are under no obligation to struetine terms of the
grant or any aspect of the Award to reduce or elatd the Participant’s liability for Tax-Relatedrts or achieve any
particular tax result. Further, if the Particip&ias become subject to tax in more than one jutisdibetween the Gra
Date and the date of any relevant taxable or téxheiding event, as applicable, the Participanhaekedges that the
Company and/or the Employer (or former employeg@dicable) may be required to withhold or accdonfTax-
Related Items in more than one jurisdiction.

(v) Prior to any relevant taxable or tax withholding el as applicable, the Participant will pay or
make adequate arrangements satisfactory to the &ongnd/or the Employer to satisfy all Tax-Reldtedhs. In this
regard, the Participant authorizes the Companyoaridé Employer, or their respective agents, dt thiscretion, to
satisfy the obligations with regard to all Tax-Rethltems by withholding from the Award paymeng farticipant’s
wages or other cash compensation paid to the Ramicby the Company and/or the Employer.

(vi)  Finally, the Participant shall pay to the Companyhe Employer any amount of Tax-Related
Items that the Company or the Employer may be redub withhold or account for as a result of theafd that cannot
be satisfied by the means previously described.Gdrapany may refuse to pay the Award if the Paudiot fails to
comply with the Participant’s obligations in contien with the Tax-Related Items.

(c) Interpretations Any question of administration or interpretatemsing under this Agreement shall be
determined by the Committee, and such determinatiaf be final, conclusive and binding upon alttigs in interest.




(d) Nature of Grant In accepting the grant, the Participant acknogésd understands and agrees that:

(i) the grant of the Award is voluntary and occasi@ma does not create any contractual or other
to receive future grants of awards, or benefitgein of awards, even if awards have been granteeatedly in the past;

(i) all decisions with respect to future awards, if,amyl be at the sole discretion of the Company;

(i)  the grant of this Award shall not create a rightudher employment with the Employer and shal
not interfere with the ability of the Employer &rininate the Participastemployment or service relationship (if any
any time;

(iv)  the Participant is voluntarily accepting this Award
(v) the Award is not intended to replace any pensightsior compensation;

(vi) the Award, and the income and value of same, arpard of normal or expected compensatior
purposes of calculating any severance, resignagomination, redundancy, dismissal, end-of-serpi@gments,
bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retireoranelfare benefits or similar payments; and

(vii)  no claim or entitlement to compensation or damatedl arise from forfeiture of the Award
resulting from the Participant’s termination of tanous employment by the Company or the Emplofgrany reason
whatsoever and whether or not later found to balidwr in breach of the Participant’'s employmenservice
agreement, if any, or of any employment law indbantry where the Participant resides and/or isleyepl, even if
otherwise applicable to the Participant’s employthiemefits from the Employer), and in consideratbthe grant of
the Award to which the Participant is otherwise ewtitled, the Participant irrevocably agrees néwenstitute any
claim against the Company or the Employer, waive®hher ability, if any, to bring any such claiand releases the
Company and the Employer from any such claim;otwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is\akd by a cou
of competent jurisdiction, then, by accepting theatd, the Participant shall be deemed irrevocablyave agreed not
to pursue such claim and agrees to execute anglhddcuments necessary to request dismissal bdvatval of such
claims.

(e) No Advice Regarding GrantThe Company is not providing any tax, legal aaficial advice, nor is the
Company making any recommendations regarding thi&cipant’'s decision to accept this Award. The Rgrant is
hereby advised to consult with his or her own peastax, legal and financial advisors regarding #wvard before
taking any action related to the Award.

() Data Privacy.




(i) The Participant hereby explicitly and unambiguoustpnsents to the collection, use and transfer
in electronic or other form, of the Participant'sgrsonal data as described in this Agreement and attyer Award
grant materials by and among, as applicable, the oyer, the Company and its subsidiaries for thecksive
purpose of implementing, administering and managitfie Participan’s Award.

(i)  The Participant understands that the Company ane tEmployer may hold certain personal
information about the Participant, including, but ot limited to, the Participant’s name, home addresmsd telephone
number, date of birth, social insurance number other identification number, salary, nationality, jotitle, any
shares of stock or directorships held in the Compadetails of all awards from the Company for theckusive
purpose of implementing, administering and managititge Award ‘Data”).

(i)  The Participant understands that the Data may barisferred to the Company (or its
subsidiaries or Award payment provider) in the Uedt States or elsewhere, and that the country tockiithe Data is
transferred (e.g., the United States) may haveeliént data privacy laws and protections than therffapant’s
country. If the Participant resides outside the Ued States, the Participant understands that hesbe may request a
list with the names and addresses of any potentegipients of the Data by contacting his or her Edcdhuman
resources representative. The Participant authoazee Company and any other possible recipientschhiay assist
the Company (presently or in the future) with impieenting, administering and managing the Award tocedve,
possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in #l@ac or other form, for the sole purpose of impleenting,
administering and managing his or her Award. The Rigipant understands that Data will be held onlysdong as is
necessary to implement, administer and manage tlagtieipant's Award. If the Participant resides outside the Wal
States, the Participant understands that he or shay, at any time, view Data, request additionalanhation about
the storage and processing of Data, require any e&gary amendments to Data or refuse or withdraw tle@sents
herein, in any case without cost, by contactingvimiting his or her local human resources represetitee. Further,
the Participant understands that he or she is prdivig the consents herein on a purely voluntary badif the
Participant does not consent or if the Participalatter seeks to revoke his or her consent, his or &&atus as ar
employee and career with the Employer will not bdvarsely affected; the only consequence of refusimg
withdrawing his or her consent is that the Compamwpuld not be able to grant awards or administermaintain
such awards. Therefore, the Participant understarttiat refusing or withdrawing his or her consent maffect the
Participants ability to receive this Award. For more informiain on the consequences of the Participant’s refusa
consent or withdrawal of consent, the Participanbderstands that he or she may contact his or hezdbhuman
resources representative.

(g) Assignment Neither this Agreement nor any right, remedyjgdtlon or liability arising hereunder or by
reason hereof shall be assignable by the Participan

(h) Successors and Assigns; No Third Party Benefidarldis Agreement shall inure to the benefit of &ed
binding upon the Company and the Participant aaut tespective heirs,




successors, legal representatives and permitteghasslothing in this Agreement, expressed or iggplis intended to
confer on any Person other than the Company anddhecipant, and their respective heirs, successegal
representatives and permitted assigns, any rigditsedies, obligations or liabilities under or bgsen of this
Agreement.

() Headings Headings are given to the sections and subseatibtihis Agreement solely as a convenience |
facilitate reference. Such headings shall not leedel in any way material or relevant to the cowrsisa or
interpretation of this Agreement or any provisiardof.

() Governing Law; Arbitration The internal law, and not the law of conflictétlee State of Texas will
govern all questions concerning the validity, camgion and effect of this Agreement. Any contrayerdispute or
claim arising under or in connection with this Agmeent (including, without limitation, the existengalidity,
interpretation or breach hereof and any claim basecontract, tort or statute) shall be resolvea lynding arbitratior
to be held in Dallas, Texas pursuant to the U.8eFa# Arbitration Act and in accordance with thertkprevailing
National Rules of Resolution of Employment Disputéthe American Arbitration Association (t* AAA”). The AAA
shall select a sole arbitrator. Each party shall lts own expenses incurred in connection withtietoon and the fees
and expenses of the arbitrator shall be sharedlgdpyethe parties involved in the dispute and athed by them from
time to time as required. It is the mutual intentand desire of the parties that the arbitratochmesen as expeditiously
as possible following the submission of the dispgatarbitration. Once such arbitrator is chosen, except as may
otherwise be agreed in writing by the parties imedlin such dispute or as ordered by the arbitigton substantial
justification shown, the hearing for the disputdl v held within sixty (60) days of submissiontbé dispute tc
arbitration. The arbitrator shall render his or fieal award within sixty (60) days, subject to@xsion by the arbitrator
upon substantial justification shown of extraordyneircumstances, following conclusion of the hegrand any
required post-hearing briefing or other proceedimigiered by the arbitrator. Any discovery in cortim@twith
arbitration hereunder shall be limited to inforratdirectly relevant to the controversy or clainanbitration. The
arbitrator will state the factual and legal basisthe award. The decision of the arbitrator in angh proceeding will
final and binding and not subject to judicial reviand final judgment may be entered upon such ardim any court
of competent jurisdiction, but entry of such judgrneill not be required to make such award effextikny action
against any party hereto ancillary to arbitratioc)uding any action for provisional or conservgtareasures or action
to enforce an arbitration award or any judgmeneiea by any court in respect of any thereof magrbeght in any
federal or state court of competent jurisdictiocali®d within the State of Texas, and the partiestbénereby
irrevocably submit to the non-exclusive jurisdictiof any federal or state court located within 8tate of Texas over
any such action. The parties hereby irrevocablygyab the fullest extent permitted by applicalale,l any objection
which they may now or hereafter have to the lagihgenue of any such action brought in such coudny defense of
inconvenient forum for the maintenance of suchoactEach of the parties hereto agrees that a judgmeny such
action may be enforced in other jurisdictions by sn the judgment or in any other manner providgdaw.




(k) Notices. The Participant should send all written notiaagarding this Agreement to the Company at the
following address:

MoneyGram International, Inc.
EVP, General Counsel & Secretary
2828 North Harwood Street, %loor
Dallas, TX 75201

(0 Amendments The Company may amend this Agreement at any fmo¥jided that, subject to this Section
9(l), no such amendment, alteration, suspensi@epdtinuation or termination shall be made withtbet Participant’s
consent, if such action would materially diministyaf the Participant’s rights under this Agreem@iite Company
reserves the right to impose other requirementh@emward, to the extent the Company determinesriecessary or
advisable under the laws of the country in whiah Barticipant resides to facilitate the adminigtradf the Award.

(m) Correction of Defects, Omissions and Inconsistencidhe Committee may correct any defect, supply
omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the &gnent in the manner and to the extent it shall déesirable to
implement or maintain the effectiveness of the &grent.

(n) No Limit on Other Compensation Plans or ArrangemmeNothing contained in the Agreement shall
prevent the Company from adopting or continuingfiiect other or additional compensation plans caregements, and
such plans or arrangements may be either genagliycable or applicable only in specific cases.

(o) Entire Agreement This Agreement, including other agreements reteto herein, and any schedules,
exhibits and other documents referred to hereinstitnite the entire agreement and an understarzaimeng the parties
hereto exists in respect of the subject matterdiened supersede all prior and contemporaneousgaraents,
agreements and understandings, both oral and mnitieether in term sheets, presentations or otisefveimong the
parties hereto, or between any of them, with resSjoethie subject matter hereof.

(p) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is invalideijal, or incapable of being enforced by any
law, all other provisions of this Agreement shalinain in full force and effect so long as the ecooand legal
substance of the transactions contemplated herelyoa affected in any manner materially adversangparty. If any
provision of this Agreement is held to be invalltkgal, or incapable of being enforced, the partiereto shall
negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreementsao effect the original intent of the partiecksely as possible in
order that the transactions contemplated herebgarsummated as originally contemplated to thetgst@xtent
possible.

(q) Participant UndertakingThe Participant agrees to take such additiortedraand execute such additional
documents the Company may deem necessary or ativisatarry out or effect one or more of the oltiigas or
restrictions imposed either on the Participantporuthis Award pursuant to the provisions of thggéement.




() Counterparts For the convenience of the parties and to fatdiexecution, this Agreement may be
executed in two or more counterparts, each of whkieil be deemed an original, but all of which kbahstitute one
and the same document.

(s) Electronic Delivery. The Company may, in its sole discretion, deciddeliver any documents related to
the Award by electronic means. The Participantineo®nsents to receive such documents by electdmiicery.

(t) Language If the Participant has received this Agreemengny other document related to the Award
translated into a language other than English aithetimeaning of the translated version is diffetban the English
version, the English version will control.

(u) Waiver. The Participant acknowledges that a waiver byGbmpany of any provision of this Agreement
shall not operate or be construed as a waiveryb#rer provision of this Agreement, or of any sdpgent breach by
the Participant or any other participant.

(v) No Trust or Fund Createdrhis Agreement shall not create or be constroantdate a trust or separate
fund of any kind or a fiduciary relationship betwdbe Company or any subsidiary and the Participaany other
person.

(w) Section 409A ProvisionsThe Award and the payment of cash under this &gent is intended to be
exempt from the application of Section 409A of @mde, as amended $ection 409A) by reason of the short-term
deferral exemption set forth in Treasury RegulaB@r09A1(b)(4). Notwithstanding anything in this Agreemémthe
contrary, to the extent that any amount or bemefieunder that constitutes “deferred compensatmwitie Participant
under Section 409A and applicable guidance themusdtherwise payable or distributable to thdiBipant under thi
Agreement solely by reason of the occurrence ejpamation from service, such amount or benefit moll be payable
distributable to the Participant by reason of stictumstance unless the Committee determines id émth that (i) the
circumstances giving rise to such separation fremise meet the definition of a separation fronvieerwithin the
meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(A) of the Code angliapble Treasury Regulations, or (ii) the paymandlistribution
of such amount or benefit would be exempt fromapplication of Section 409A by reason of the shemnn deferral
exemption or otherwise (including, but not limitieg a payment made pursuant to an involuntary séipar
arrangement that is exempt from Section 409A utitef'short-term deferral” exception). Any paymentdgstribution
that constitutes deferred compensation subjecbtieGection 409A and that otherwise would be madieet
Participant who is a specified employee as defineggection 409A(a)(2)(B) of the Code on accounsegparation from
service instead shall be made on the earlier ofitte that is six months and one day after the afatee specified
employee’s separation from service and the speo#iaployee’s death, to the extent necessary taaprohibited
transaction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company and the Participant have executedAilnieement on the date set
forth in the first paragraph.
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MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By:

PARTICIPANT

Print Name_
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Exhibit 10.94
MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CASH RETENTION AWARD AGREEMENT

This CASH RETENTION AWARD AGREEMENT (the “ Agreement) is made by and between
MoneyGram International, Inc. , a Delaware corporation (theCompany’), and Pamela H. Patsley (théarticipant
"). The grant date of this award is December 1042@he “Grant Date”).

1. Award.

The Company hereby grants to the Participant a i&shtion award (the Award”) in the amount equal to
$3,250,000, according to the terms and conditienzravided in this Agreement.

2. Vesting.

(@) Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, theafdhgranted under this Agreement shall vest irethre
installments with respect to the corresponding gatiage of the Award set forth below on the datesifipd below
(each, a ‘Vesting Daté€), provided the Participant remains continuoustypdoyed by the Company or a subsidiary
from the Grant Date through the applicable VesDade.

Vesting Date Percentage Vested

December 10, 2015 25%
July 10, 2016 25%
January 10, 2017 50%

(b) Except as provided in Section 5, if the Participdmgs not remain continuously employed by the Cam
or a subsidiary from the Grant Date through eacstivg Date, any Award installment corresponding ¥esting Date
that follows the date of the Participant’s termioatshall be forfeited and no corresponding paymeéthie due to the
Participant.

(c) The Participant shall have no right to paymentrof Award installment that has not vested in accocda
with the terms of this Agreement. Prior to settlaméhe Award represents an unfunded and unseacinéghtion of the
Company.




3. Settlement of Award Any Award installment that vests shall be paidhte Participant in cash on the date the
Award installment vests in accordance with SecB@bove (or, if sooner, Section 5 below), but ig anent, no later
than March 15 of the calendar year following thieedar year of vesting.

4. Restrictions on TransferExcept as otherwise provided by the Human Resgurod Nominating Committee (the
Committe€) of the board of directors of the Company (thBdard”), the Award will not be transferable, other tHan
will or by the laws of descent and distribution.eTAward may not be pledged, alienated, attachedharwise
encumbered, and any purported pledge, alienatitagrament or encumbrance of the Award will be vend
unenforceable against the Company or any subssdiari

5. Effect of Termination of EmploymentExcept as provided in this Section 5 or as otiswmay be determined by
the Committee, if the Participant ceases to bengpl@yee of the Company or any of its subsidiaties,following
actions shall occur:

(a) Termination for Cause; Resignation without Good$®ea If the Participant's employment with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries is terminatedfause (as defined below) or the Participant rsswjthout Good
Reason (as defined below), including as a resuh@Participant’s retirement, prior to a Vestingt® any Award
installment that has not vested shall be immedidtafeited and no corresponding payment will be tluthe
Participant.

(b) Involuntary Termination/Disability/Deathif the Participans employment with the Company or any o
subsidiaries is terminated by the Company withcaise, by the Participant for Good Reason or isiteted due to
death or Disability (as defined below) prior to asting Date, then each unvested Award installmegit snmediately
vest as of the date of termination.

(c) The vesting acceleration benefits, as applicalvteyiged in this Section 5 are subject to satistacof the
conditions set forth in Section 6.6 of the Employptn&greement.

(d) For purposes of this Agreement, the Participanit sbase to be continuously employed (whether or no
later found to be invalid or in breach of any loealployment law in the country where the Participasides and/or is
employed or the terms of the Participant’s emplaynoe service agreement, if any) as of the datettigParticipant is
no longer actively providing services and will &t continuously employed for purposes of the Aviardugh any
notice period mandated under an employment lawamtige in the country where the Participant res@ed/or is
employed, even if otherwise applicable to the Bgdint's employment benefite(g., continuous employment would
not include any contractual notice period or anyqukof “garden leave” or similar period mandatewier employment
laws in the jurisdictions where the Participanides and/or is employed or the terms of the Paditi's employment ¢
service agreement, if any); the Committee shalehiie exclusive discretion to determine when thiéiddaant is no
longer continuously employed for purposes of theafdy and if the Participant is a U.S. taxpayerhgietermination
shall be made in accordance with Section 409A efititernal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (@ozle”).




6. For purposes of this Agreement, the following teghall have the corresponding meanings:

(@) “ Employment Agreemehshall mean the Employment Agreement dated MaiH2R213 by and among
the Company and the Participant.

(b) * Caus€ shall mean a good faith finding by the Board (@) the Participans willful refusal to carry out
in all material respects, the reasonable and ladifections of the Board that are within the Pgraat’s control and
consistent with the Participant’s status as a senecutive of the Company and her duties and respiities
hereunder (except for a failure that is attribugetol the Participant’s illness, injury or Disabj)ifor a period of 10 days
following written notice by the Company to the Rapant of such failure; (B) fraud or material digtesty in the
performance of the Participant’s duties hereun@®ran act or acts on the Participant’s part ctutstg (x) a felony
under the laws of the United States or any staeet, (y) a misdemeanor involving moral turpituwst€z) a material
violation of federal or state securities laws; @D)indictment of the Participant for a felony unthex laws of the United
States or any state thereof; (E) the Participamilful misconduct or gross negligence in connectwith the
Participant’s duties hereunder which is materiadjyrious to the financial condition or businesputation of the
Company; (F) the Participant’s material breacrhef€ompany’s Code of Conduct and Ethics or anyratbee of
conduct in effect from time to time to the exteppkcable to the Participant, and which breachdasaterial adverse
effect on the Company; or (G) the Participant’salsteof the provisions of Sections 8.1, 8.2, 8.8.drof the
Employment Agreement which breach has a materiadrad effect on the Company.

(c) “ Good Reasoinshall mean, without the Participant’s consent) Ay material reduction in the
Participant’s position or responsibilities, exclglithe failure to continue to serve as Executivaif@man of the
Company or an isolated, insubstantial or inadveetion not taken in bad faith; (B) a materialueiibn of the
Participant’s Base Salary, or Target Bonus (asthesns are defined in the Employment Agreemenpdpnity then
in effect, except in connection with an acrosstbard reduction of not more than 10% applicablerdlarly situated
employees of the Company; or (C) the reassignniethiedParticipant’s place of work to a location mdinan 50 miles
from the Participant’s place of work on the Grauatt® provided that none of the events describethuses (A), (B)
and (C) shall constitute Good Reason hereundessiiflg the Participant shall have given writtengeto the
Company of the Participastintent to terminate her employment with Good Reasithin sixty (60) days following tt
occurrence of any such event and (y) the Compaaly Isave failed to remedy such event within th{{®®) days of the
Company’s receipt of such notice. Failing such carermination of employment by the Participamt@@od Reason
shall be effective on the day following the expoatof such cure period.

Notwithstanding anything else to the contrary comd in this Agreement or the Employment Agreemiénihe
Company temporarily suspends the Participant frendties but retains the Participant as an emplggading or
during an investigation of whether an act or onoisdy the Participant constitutes Cause, and thgcipant tenders
her resignation based on Good Reason with respélee tsuspension of duties within the requiredquefor resigning
for Good




Reason, the Company may delay treating such rdsgras for Good Reason until the completion ofithwestigation
and need not treat the resignation as based on Beasbn at such date if it can then establish Causeided,
however, that the Participant shall retain hertrigherminate employment for Good Reason baseattwar factors, if
applicable.

(d) *“ Disability ” shall mean a determination by a qualified indejset physician mutually acceptable to the
Participant and the Company that the Participanhable to perform her duties under this Agreeraedtin all
reasonable medical likelihood such inability wiindinue for a period of 120 consecutive days or d®gs in any 365
day period. The Participant shall fully cooperateonnection with the determination of whether Dikty exists. If the
Participant and the Company cannot agree as tal#igd independent physician, each shall appaichsa physician
and those two physicians shall select a third wiadl snake such determination in writing. The deteation of
Disability made in writing to the Company and thetigipant shall be final and conclusive for alfposes of the
Agreement.

7. Forfeiture and Repayment Provisians

(a) Failure to properly execute the Agreement (and edichr document required to be executed by the
Participant in connection with the Participant'seipt of the Award) in a timely manner followingetisrant Date may
result in the forfeiture of the Award, as deterndie the sole discretion of the Company.

(b) The right to vest in installments of the Award $h& conditional upon the fact that the Participaa
read and understood the forfeiture and repaymenigions set forth in this Section 6, that the iegrént has not
engaged in any misconduct or acts contrary to thrafgany as described below, and that the Participasno intent to
leave employment with the Company or any of itsstibries for the purpose of engaging in any aistior providing
any services which are contrary to the spirit anidnt of the Post-Employment Restriction Agreement.

(c) The Company is authorized to suspend or termitmegeAward prior to or after termination of employmt
if the Company reasonably determines that:

(i) The Participant engaged in any conduct agreed &vbieled pursuant to the Post-Employment
Restriction Agreement.

(i)  During the Participant’s employment with the Compan any of its subsidiaries, the Participant
knowingly participated in misconduct that causesisstatement of the financial statements of the @y or any of i
subsidiaries or misconduct which represents a mahtgolation of any code of ethics of the Compapplicable to the
Participant or of the Code of Conduct or similasgram of the Company; or

(i)  During the Participant’s employment with the Comypanany of its subsidiaries, the Participant
was aware of and failed to report, as requiredriyycde of ethics of the Company applicable toRB#gicipant or by
the Code of Conduct or similar program of the Conypanisconduct that causes a misstatement of tiaadial
statements of the Company




or any of its subsidiaries or misconduct which espnts a material violation of any code of ethiahe Company
applicable to the Participant or of the Code of diant or similar program of the Company.

(d) If, at any time after the Participant vests in @&ward installment(s), the Company reasonably detesm
that any of the actions or inactions contemplatedlen Sections 7(c)(i) through 7(c)(iii) have ocedtrthen any amount
of the Award paid to the Participant (without redjér tax effects) from such vesting shall be refgidhe Participant t
the Company. The Participant consents to the deatutom any amounts the Company or any of its slidises owes
to the Participant to the extent of the amountdtaeicipant owes the Company under this Sectidh 7(

8. Administration.

(@) Power and Authority of the Committed@he Agreement shall be administered by the CotemiSubject
to the express provisions of the Agreement angypdi@able law, the Committee shall have full powad authority to:
(i) amend the terms and conditions of the Agreem@htnterpret and administer the Agreement;) @stablish, amend,
suspend or waive such rules and regulations andipguch agents as it shall deem appropriatenfoptoper
administration of the Agreement; and (iv) make ather determination and take any other actionttteCommittee
deems necessary or desirable for the administrafitime Agreement. Unless otherwise expressly plexvin the
Agreement, all designations, determinations, imtggtions and other decisions under or with resjoettte Agreement
shall be within the sole discretion of the Comnaittanay be made at any time and shall be final,losive and binding
upon any Participant, any holder or beneficiaryhef Agreement, and any employee of the Company.

(b) Power and Authority of the BoardNotwithstanding anything to the contrary contdiherein, the Board
may, at any time and from time to time, without &mther action of the Committee, exercise the psvasd duties of
the Committee under the Agreement.

9. Miscellaneous

(a) Tax Withholding. Solely for tax purposes, amounts paid in setti@méa vested Award installment will
be treated as wages subject to applicable tax wlinyg.

(b) Responsibility for Taxes

(iv) Regardless of any action the Company or the Paatitis employer (the Employer’) takes with
respect to any or all income tax, social insurapegroll tax, payment on account or other tax-szlatems related to
this Award and legally applicable to the Particip@nl ax-Related Item3, the Participant acknowledges that the
ultimate liability for all Tax-Related Items is aneimains the Participant’s responsibility and meageed the amount
actually withheld by the Company or the Employdre Participant further acknowledges that the Comyeual/or the
Employer (1) make no representations or undertakiagarding the treatment of any Tax-Related Itenc®nnection
with any aspect of the Award, including, but




not limited to, the grant, vesting or payment @& fkward and the payment of cash upon settlemetieofAward; and
(2) do not commit to and are under no obligatiosttacture the terms of the grant or any aspettieAward to reduce
or eliminate the Participant’s liability for Tax-Réed Items or achieve any particular tax resulttlter, if the
Participant has become subject to tax in more tmanjurisdiction between the Grant Date and the daany relevant
taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, Barticipant acknowledges that the Company arldéoEmployer (or
former employer, as applicable) may be requireditbhold or account for Tax-Related Items in mdrart one
jurisdiction.

(v) Prior to any relevant taxable or tax withholdingel as applicable, the Participant will pay or
make adequate arrangements satisfactory to the &ongnd/or the Employer to satisfy all Tax-Reldtedhs. In this
regard, the Participant authorizes the Companyoaridé Employer, or their respective agents, dt thiscretion, to
satisfy the obligations with regard to all Tax-Rethltems by withholding from the Award paymeng farticipant’s
wages or other cash compensation paid to the Ramicby the Company and/or the Employer.

(vi)  Finally, the Participant shall pay to the Companyhe Employer any amount of Tax-Related
Items that the Company or the Employer may be redub withhold or account for as a result of theafd that cannot
be satisfied by the means previously described.ddrapany may refuse to pay the Award if the Pardiot fails to
comply with the Participant’s obligations in contien with the Tax-Related Items.

(c) Interpretations Any question of administration or interpretatemsing under this Agreement shall be
determined by the Committee, and such determinat@at be final, conclusive and binding upon alitigs in interest.

(d) Nature of Grant In accepting the grant, the Participant acknogésd understands and agrees that:

(i) the grant of the Award is voluntary and occasi@mal does not create any contractual or other
to receive future grants of awards, or benefitgein of awards, even if awards have been granteeatedly in the past;

(i)  all decisions with respect to future awards, if,amyl be at the sole discretion of the Company;

(i)  the grant of this Award shall not create a rightudher employment with the Employer and shal
not interfere with the ability of the Employer &rininate the Participarstemployment or service relationship (if any
any time;

(iv) the Participant is voluntarily accepting this Award
(v) the Award is not intended to replace any pensightsior compensation;

(vi) the Award, and the income and value of same, arpard of normal or expected compensatior
purposes of calculating any severance, resignagomjnation,




redundancy, dismissal, end-of-service payments,$es) longservice awards, pension or retirement or welfarebts
or similar payments; and

(vii)  no claim or entitlement to compensation or damatedl arise from forfeiture of the Award
resulting from the Participant’s termination of tanous employment by the Company or the Emplofgarany reason
whatsoever and whether or not later found to balidwor in breach of the Participant’'s employmenservice
agreement, if any, or of any employment law indbantry where the Participant resides and/or isleyepl, even if
otherwise applicable to the Participant's employhimmefits from the Employer), and in consideratbthe grant of
the Award to which the Participant is otherwise ewtitled, the Participant irrevocably agrees néwenstitute any
claim against the Company or the Employer, waivesalbility, if any, to bring any such claim, andeases the
Company and the Employer from any such claim;afwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim iswatd by a cou
of competent jurisdiction, then, by accepting theatd, the Participant shall be deemed irrevocablyave agreed not
to pursue such claim and agrees to execute anglhddcuments necessary to request dismissal bdvatval of such
claims.

(e) No Advice Regarding GrantThe Company is not providing any tax, legal aaficial advice, nor is the
Company making any recommendations regarding thiecipant’'s decision to accept this Award. The Rgrant is
hereby advised to consult with her own personallegal and financial advisors regarding this Awbedore taking an
action related to the Award.

(H Data Privacy.

() The Participant hereby explicitly and unambiguoustpnsents to the collection, use and transfer
in electronic or other form, of the Participant'sgrsonal data as described in this Agreement and atityer Award
grant materials by and among, as applicable, the oyer, the Company and its subsidiaries for thecksive
purpose of implementing, administering and managitfie Participan’s Award.

(i)  The Participant understands that the Company ane tBmployer may hold certain personal
information about the Participant, including, but ot limited to, the Participant’'s name, home addresmsd telephone
number, date of birth, social insurance number other identification number, salary, nationality, jotitle, any
shares of stock or directorships held in the Compadetails of all awards from the Company for thectusive
purpose of implementing, administering and managitttge Award fData”).

(i)  The Participant understands that the Data may barisferred to the Company (or its
subsidiaries or Award payment provider) in the Usit States or elsewhere, and that the country tochithe Data i<
transferred (e.g., the United States) may haveeléint data privacy laws and protections than therffapant’s
country. If the Participant resides outside the Ued States, the Participant understands that hesbe may request a
list with the names and addresses of any potentalipients of the Data by contacting her local humaesources
representative. The Participant authorizes the Caanyg and any other possible recipients which mayisisthe
Company (presently or in the future) with




implementing, administering and managing the Awata receive, possess, use, retain and transfer tlagaDin
electronic or other form, for the sole purpose aofhplementing, administering and managing her Awarthe
Participant understands that Data will be held ondg long as is necessary to implement, administed amanage the
Participants Award. If the Participant resides outside the ied States, the Participant understands that hesbie
may, at any time, view Data, request additionalanhation about the storage and processing of Datequire any
necessary amendments to Data or refuse or withdthe/consents herein, in any case without cost, byptacting in
writing her local human resources representativeufther, the Participant understands that he or siseproviding
the consents herein on a purely voluntary basistie Participant does not consent or if the Parpeint later seeks to
revoke her consent, her status as an employee arder with the Employer will not be adversely affed; the only
consequence of refusing or withdrawing her consémthat the Company would not be able to grant adsuor
administer or maintain such awards. Therefore, tRarticipant understands that refusing or withdrawgnher
consent may affect the Participant’s ability to reiwe this Award. For more information on the consgences of the
Participants refusal to consent or withdrawal of consent, tRarticipant understands that he or she may contaer
local human resources representative.

(g) Assignment Neither this Agreement nor any right, remedyjgdtlon or liability arising hereunder or by
reason hereof shall be assignable by the Participan

(h) Successors and Assigns; No Third Party Benefigarldis Agreement shall inure to the benefit of &ed
binding upon the Company and the Participant aait tespective heirs, successors, legal represezdgaand permitted
assigns. Nothing in this Agreement, expressed pliéd, is intended to confer on any Person othan the Company
and the Participant, and their respective heirszessors, legal representatives and permittedrassgy rights,
remedies, obligations or liabilities under or bggen of this Agreement.

() Headings Headings are given to the sections and subseatibtiis Agreement solely as a convenience
facilitate reference. Such headings shall not lesekel in any way material or relevant to the corstva or
interpretation of this Agreement or any provisi@ardof.

() Governing Law; Arbitration The internal law, and not the law of conflictéftte State of Texas will
govern all questions concerning the validity, camgion and effect of this Agreement. Any contrayerdispute or
claim arising under or in connection with this Agneent (including, without limitation, the existenealidity,
interpretation or breach hereof and any claim basecbntract, tort or statute) shall be resolvea tynding arbitratior
to be held in Dallas, Texas pursuant to the U.8eFa# Arbitration Act and in accordance with thertkprevailing
National Rules of Resolution of Employment Disputéthe American Arbitration Association (t* AAA”). The AAA
shall select a sole arbitrator. Each party shall lits own expenses incurred in connection withti@tion and the fees
and expenses of the arbitrator shall be sharedlgdpyathe parties involved in the dispute and atbed by them from
time to time as required. It is the mutual intentand desire of the parties that the arbitratachmesen as expeditiously
as possible following the submission of the dispgate




arbitration. Once such arbitrator is chosen, arw@pixas may otherwise be agreed in writing by tiréigs involved in
such dispute or as ordered by the arbitrator upbstantial justification shown, the hearing for thgpute will be held
within sixty (60) days of submission of the disptderbitration. The arbitrator shall render heafiaward within sixty
(60) days, subject to extension by the arbitrapmrusubstantial justification shown of extraordineircumstances,
following conclusion of the hearing and any reqdip®st-hearing briefing or other proceedings ordénethe
arbitrator. Any discovery in connection with arbtion hereunder shall be limited to informatioredity relevant to the
controversy or claim in arbitration. The arbitrataH state the factual and legal basis for the mvahe decision of the
arbitrator in any such proceeding will be final dndding and not subject to judicial review andafijudgment may be
entered upon such an award in any court of compgtesdiction, but entry of such judgment will neg¢ required to
make such award effective. Any action against aryyghereto ancillary to arbitration, including aagtion for
provisional or conservatory measures or actiomforee an arbitration award or any judgment entéyedny court in
respect of any thereof may be brought in any fdderstate court of competent jurisdiction locatethin the State of
Texas, and the parties hereto hereby irrevocalidgngito the non-exclusive jurisdiction of any fealeor state court
located within the State of Texas over any suciolactThe parties hereby irrevocably waive, to thiéekt extent
permitted by applicable law, any objection whichyttmay now or hereafter have to the laying of vesiugny such
action brought in such court or any defense ofrivemient forum for the maintenance of such actitath of the
parties hereto agrees that a judgment in any sttatnamay be enforced in other jurisdictions byt s the judgment «
in any other manner provided by law.

(k) Notices. The Participant should send all written notiaegarding this Agreement to the Company at the
following address:

MoneyGram International, Inc.
EVP, General Counsel & Secretary
2828 North Harwood Street, ¥%loor
Dallas, TX 75201

(0 Amendments The Company may amend this Agreement at any fmo¥jided that, subject to this Section
9(l), no such amendment, alteration, suspensi@apdiinuation or termination shall be made withibet Participant’s
consent, if such action would materially diministyaf the Participant’s rights under this Agreemdite Company
reserves the right to impose other requirementhemward, to the extent the Company determinesriecessary or
advisable under the laws of the country in whiah Barticipant resides to facilitate the adminigtradbf the Award.

(m) Correction of Defects, Omissions and Inconsistencidhe Committee may correct any defect, supply
omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the &gment in the manner and to the extent it shall déesirable to
implement or maintain the effectiveness of the A&gnent.

(n) No Limit on Other Compensation Plans or ArrangemmeNothing contained in the Agreement shall
prevent the Company from adopting or continuingfiiect other or




additional compensation plans or arrangementssaak plans or arrangements may be either genagtiiyjcable or
applicable only in specific cases.

(o) Entire Agreement This Agreement, including other agreements reteto herein, and any schedules,
exhibits and other documents referred to hereinstiinite the entire agreement and an understarzaimeng the parties
hereto exists in respect of the subject matterdiened supersede all prior and contemporaneousgaraents,
agreements and understandings, both oral and mnittieether in term sheets, presentations or otisefveimong the
parties hereto, or between any of them, with resSjoethie subject matter hereof.

(p) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is invalidetjal, or incapable of being enforced by any
law, all other provisions of this Agreement shalin@in in full force and effect so long as the ecoiccand legal
substance of the transactions contemplated herelyoa affected in any manner materially adversanyparty. If any
provision of this Agreement is held to be invalltkgal, or incapable of being enforced, the partiereto shall
negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreementsao effect the original intent of the partiecksely as possible in
order that the transactions contemplated herebgarsummated as originally contemplated to thetgst@xtent
possible.

(q) Participant UndertakingThe Participant agrees to take such additiortedraand execute such additional
documents the Company may deem necessary or alivisatarry out or effect one or more of the oltiigas or
restrictions imposed either on the Participantporuthis Award pursuant to the provisions of thgréement.

() Counterparts For the convenience of the parties and to fatdiexecution, this Agreement may be
executed in two or more counterparts, each of whidil be deemed an original, but all of which kbahstitute one
and the same document.

(s) Electronic Delivery. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decidédliver any documents related to
the Award by electronic means. The Participanthemmnsents to receive such documents by electoaticery.

(t) Language If the Participant has received this Agreemengny other document related to the Award
translated into a language other than English ftieimeaning of the translated version is diffétban the English
version, the English version will control.

(u) Waiver. The Participant acknowledges that a waiver byGbmpany of any provision of this Agreement
shall not operate or be construed as a waiverybé#rer provision of this Agreement, or of any sedpsent breach by
the Participant or any other participant.

(v) No Trust or Fund Createdrhis Agreement shall not create or be constroantdate a trust or separate
fund of any kind or a fiduciary relationship betwele Company or any subsidiary and the Participaaty other
person.

(w) Section 409A ProvisionsThe Award and the payment of cash under this &gent is intended to be
exempt from the application of Section 409A of @mde, as
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amended (‘Section 409A) by reason of the short-term deferral exemptienferth in Treasury Regulation 81.409A-1
(b)(4). Notwithstanding anything in this Agreemémthe contrary, to the extent that any amounteoretiit hereunder
that constitutes “deferred compensation” to thdi€lpant under Section 409A and applicable guidaheeeunder is
otherwise payable or distributable to the Participamder this Agreement solely by reason of thaioence of a
separation from service, such amount or benefitnail be payable or distributable to the Partictdanreason of such
circumstance unless the Committee determines id gaith that (i) the circumstances giving rise tigls separation
from service meet the definition of a separati@mfrservice within the meaning of Section 409A (g2 )of the Code
and applicable Treasury Regulations, or (i) thgnpant or distribution of such amount or benefit Vadoloe exempt fror
the application of Section 409A by reason of thersterm deferral exemption or otherwise (includibgt not limited
to, a payment made pursuant to an involuntary sd¢ipararrangement that is exempt from Section 4008der the
“short-term deferral” exception). Any payment ostdbution that constitutes deferred compensatidnext to Code
Section 409A and that otherwise would be madedddrticipant who is a specified employee as définéection
409A(a)(2)(B) of the Code on account of separafiom service instead shall be made on the eadidreodate that is
six months and one day after the date of the Spdagimployee’s separation from service and theispg@mployee’s
death, to the extent necessary to avoid a prokilitasaction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company and the Participant have executedAiinieement on the date set
forth in the first paragraph.

MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By:

PARTICIPANT

PAMELA H. PATSLEY
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SUBSIDIARIES OF MONEYGRAM INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Ferrum Trust (Delaware)

Hematite Trust (Delaware)

MIL Overseas Limited (United Kingdom)

MIL Overseas Nigeria Limited (Nigeria)

Money Globe Payment Institution Societe Anonyme
MoneyGram India Private Ltd. (India)

MoneyGram International Holdings Limited (Unitedni§idom)
MoneyGram International Limited (United Kingdom)
MoneyGram International Payment Systems, Inc. (Data)
MoneyGram International Pte. Ltd (Singapore)
MoneyGram Mexico S.A. de C.V.

MoneyGram of New York LLC (Delaware)

MoneyGram Overseas (Pty) Limited South Africa ($odfrica)
MoneyGram Payment Systems Belgium N.V. (Belgium)
MoneyGram Payment Systems Canada, Inc. (VancoB@r,
MoneyGram Payment Systems, Inc. (Delaware)
MoneyGram Payment Systems Brasil LTDA (Brazil)
MoneyGram Payment Systems Greece S.A.

MoneyGram Payment Systems Ireland Limited (Ireland)
MoneyGram Payment Systems ltaly S.r.I. (Italy)
MoneyGram Payment Systems Malaysia Sdn. Bnd.
MoneyGram Payment Systems Netherlands B.V. Nethesla
MoneyGram Payment Systems Poland sp. Zoo (Poland)
MoneyGram Payment Systems Spain, S.A. (Spain)
MoneyGram Payment Systems Worldwide, Inc. (Delajvare
MPS France, S.A. (France)

MTI Money Transfer Limited (United Kingdom)

MTI Norway AS (Norway)

PT MoneyGram Payment Systems Indonesia

Travelers Express Co. (P.R.), Inc. (Puerto Rico)

Tsavorite Trust (Delaware)

Exhibit 21



Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement No. 333-176567, No. 333-159R@9,333-125122, No. 33816976 an
No. 33190257 on Form S-8 and in Registration Statement383-171151 and No. 333-197055 on Form S-3 ofeports dated March 3,
2015, relating to the consolidated financial staats of MoneyGram International, Inc. and subsigiga(the “Company”), and the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting, appearing in this Annual Reon Form 10-K of the Company for the
year endeDecember 31, 2014 .

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 3, 2015



Exhibit 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, that each director wl@sgnature appears below constitutes and appeiatsis Aaron Heni
and Corinna Ulrich, and each of them severally,drider true and lawful attorneysdaet and agents, with full power of substitutiord
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or hemeg place and stead, in any and all capacitiesigto MoneyGram International, Ins.Annua
Report on Form 16 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014,amdand all amendments thereto, and to file theesavith all exhibit
thereto, and other documents in connection thehewiith the Securities and Exchange Commissiomtgrg unto said attorneys-fiact ant
agents, and each of them, full power and authesityo and perform each and every act and thingisiggwr necessary to be done in and a
the premises, as fully to all intents and purp@seke or she might or could do in person, herefifyireg and confirming all that said attorneys-
in-fact and agents or any of them, or their ordwdostitutes or substitute, may lawfully do or caigske done by virtue hereof.

/sl J. Coley Clark March 3, 201!
J. Coley Clark
/sl Victor W. Dahir March 3, 201!

Victor W. Dahir

/s/ Antonio O. Garza March 3, 201!
Antonio O. Garza

/sl Thomas M. Hagerty March 3, 201!
Thomas M. Hagerty

/sl Seth W. Lawry March 3, 201!
Seth W. Lawry

/s/ Ganesh B. Rao March 3, 201!
Ganesh B. Rao

/s/ W. Bruce Turner March 3, 201!
W. Bruce Turner

/sl Peggy Vaughan March 3, 201!
Peggy Vaughan




Exhibit 31.1

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Pamela H. Patsley, certify that:

1.

Date: March 3, 2015

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16ffloneyGram International, Inc. for the fiscabyended
December 31, 2014 ;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamnstate a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenveeits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered Iy thport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present
in all material respects the financial conditicgsults of operations and cash flows of the regista of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ayHhd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repaogtifas
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)154r the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procsdoifge
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatrrabileformation relating to the registrant, incing its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanaggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to providsarable assurance regarding the reliability afrfaial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyeral
accepted accounting principles;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the@isce controls and procedures, as of the endeopéhiod
covered by this report based on such evaluatiash; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt’s internal control over financial reportithgat occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quaftiee registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the casan annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnbkely to materially affect, the registrant'sternal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s aoditand the audit committee of the registrant’sthaé directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize
and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedyumanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole
in the registrant’s internal control over finandiaporting.

/sl Pamela H. Patsley

Pamela H. Patsley

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, W. Alexander Holmes, certify that:

1.

Date: March 3, 2015

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16ffloneyGram International, Inc. for the fiscabyended
December 31, 2014 ;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamnstate a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenveeits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered Iy tport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg other financial information included in théport, fairly present
in all material respects the financial conditicgsults of operations and cash flows of the regista of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ayHhd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repaogtifas
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)154r the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procsdoifge
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatrrabileformation relating to the registrant, incing its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanaggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to providsarable assurance regarding the reliability afrfaial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyeral
accepted accounting principles;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the@isce controls and procedures, as of the endeopéhiod
covered by this report based on such evaluatiash; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt’s internal control over financial reportithgat occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quaftiee registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the casan annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnbkely to materially affect, the registrant'sternal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s aoditand the audit committee of the registrant’sthaé directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize
and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedyumanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole
in the registrant’s internal control over finandiaporting.

/sl W. Alexander Holmes
W. Alexander Holmes

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficedaChief
Operating Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10tke(“Report”), of MoneyGram International, Inc. §ttCompany”) for the period ended
December 31, 2014 , as filed with the SecuritieBxchange Commission on the date hereof |, PakheRatsley, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanil8 U.S.C. 81350, as adopted pursuant to Se@@érof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934 (15
U.S.C. 78m(a) or 780(d)); and
2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of

operations of the Company.

Date: March 3, 2015 /sl Pamela H. Patsley
Pamela H. Patsley
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10tke(“Report”), of MoneyGram International, Inc. §ttCompany”) for the period ended
December 31, 2014 , as filed with the SecuritiesBxchange Commission on the date hereof |, W. #leler Holmes, Executive Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief OpeigOfficer of the Company, certify, pursuant tol&.C. 81350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; that

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934 (15
U.S.C. 78m(a) or 780(d)); and
2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of

operations of the Company.

Date: March 3, 2015 /s/ W. Alexander Holmes
W. Alexander Holmes

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficedaChief
Operating Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)




